CDP

Full Corporate Questionnaire

Module 8 to 13



Version

Version number	Release / Revision date	Revision summary
1.0	Released: May 1, 2024	Publication of the CDP full corporate questionnaire

Contents

Module overview	9
Exclusions	10
(8.1) Are there any exclusions from your disclosure of forests-related data?	10
(8.1.1) Provide details on these exclusions.	11
Commodity volume data	14
Section overview	14
(8.2) Provide a breakdown of your disclosure volume per commodity.	14
(8.2.1) Provide details on any soy embedded in animal products sourced by your organization	15
Own land usage and location (produced volumes)	20
(8.3) Provide details on the land you own, manage and/or control that is used to produce your di commodities.	sclosed 20
(8.4) Indicate if any of the land you own, manage and/or control was not used to produce your di commodities in the reporting year.	sclosed 23
(8.4.1) Provide details on the land you own, manage and/or control that was not used to produce commodities in the reporting year.	your disclosed
Commodity sourcing locations (sourced volumes)	26
(8.5) Provide details on the origins of your sourced volumes.	26
Biofuels	29
(8.6) Does your organization produce or source palm oil derived biofuel?	29
(8.6.1) Provide details of how your organization produces or sources palm oil derived biofuel	29
Targets	31
(8.7) Did your organization have a no-deforestation or no-conversion target, or any other targets production/ sourcing of your disclosed commodities, active in the reporting year?	for sustainable 31
(8.7.1) Provide details on your no-deforestation or no-conversion target that was active during th	e reporting year. 34
(8.7.2) Provide details of other targets related to your commodities, including any which contribu deforestation or no-conversion target, and progress made against them.	te to your no- 37
Traceability	46
(8.8) Indicate if your organization has a traceability system to determine the origins of your source provide details of the methods and tools used	ed volumes and46
(8.8.1) Provide details of the point to which your organization can trace its sourced volumes	48
Deforestation- and- conversion free (DCF) status metrics and methods to determine DCF	50
Section overview	50
(8.9) Provide details of your organization's assessment of the deforestation-free (DF) or deforest conversion-free (DCF) status of its disclosed commodities.	ation- and 51
(8.9.1) Provide details of third-party certification schemes used to determine the deforestation-free deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF) status of the disclosure volume, since specified cutoff	ee (DF) or date.54
(8.9.2) Provide details of third-party certification schemes not providing full DF/DCF assurance	57
(8.9.3) Provide details of production unit monitoring used to determine deforestation-free (DF) or and conversion-free (DCF) status of volumes since specified cutoff date	deforestation- 60
(8.9.4) Provide details of the sourcing area monitoring used to determine deforestation-free (DF) and conversion-free (DCF) status of volumes since specified cutoff date	or deforestation- 62
Status and progress towards deforestation- and conversion- free (DCF) volumes	66
(8.10) Indicate whether you have monitored or estimated the deforestation and conversion of oth ecosystems footprint for your disclosed commodities	ner natural 66
(8.10.1) Provide details on the monitoring or estimating of your deforestation and conversion foo	tprint. 67
(8.11) For volumes not assessed and determined as deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF), i have taken actions in the reporting year to increase production or sourcing of DCF volumes	ndicate if you 70

(8.11.1) Provide details of actions taken in the reporting year to assess and increase production/se deforestation- and conversion-free (DCE) volumes	ourcing of
Certified commodity volumes sold	75
(8.12) Indicate if certification details are available for the commodity volumes sold to requesting C Chain members.	DP Supply 75
(8.12.1) Provide details of the certified volumes sold to each requesting CDP Supply Chain memb	oer.77 80
(8.13) Does your organization calculate the GHG emission reductions and/or removals from land management and land use change that have occurred in your direct operations and/or upstream v	use /alue chain? 80
(8.13.1) Provide details on the actions your organization has taken in its direct operations and/or u chain that have resulted in reduced GHG emissions and/or enhanced removals	upstream value 82
Legal compliance	85
(8.14) Indicate if you assess your own compliance and/or the compliance of your suppliers with fo and/or mandatory standards, and provide details.	rest regulations 85
Landscape and jurisdictional approaches and initiatives	87
(8.15) Do you engage in landscape (including jurisdictional) initiatives to progress shared sustaina goals?	able land use 87
(8.15.1) Indicate the criteria you consider when prioritizing landscapes and jurisdictions for engage collaborative approaches to sustainable land use and provide an explanation	ement in 88
(8.15.2) Provide details of your engagement with landscape/jurisdictional initiatives to sustainable the reporting year.	land use during .90
(8.15.3) For each of your disclosed commodities, provide details on the disclosure volume from ea landscapes/jurisdictions you engage in.	ach of the 96
External activities	98
(8.16) Do you participate in any other external activities to support the implementation of policies a commitments related to deforestation, ecosystem conversion, or human rights issues in commodit	and ty value chains? 98
(8.16.1) Provide details of the external activities to support the implementation of your policies and related to deforestation, ecosystem conversion, or human rights issues in commodity value chains	d commitments s 99
Ecosystem restoration projects	100
(8.17) Is your organization supporting or implementing project(s) focused on ecosystem restoration protection?	n and long-term 100
(8.17.1) Provide details on your project(s), including the extent, duration, and monitoring frequence specify any measured outcome(s).	y. Please 101
dule overview	106
Exclusions	107
(9.1) Are there any exclusions from your disclosure of water-related data?	107
(9.1.1) Provide details on these exclusions.	108
Company-wide water accounting (including EU, OG, and FB/AC specific data points)	111
9.2 Across all your operations, what proportion of the following water aspects are regularly measu monitored?	ired and 111
9.2.1 For your hydropower operations, what proportion of the following water aspects are regularly monitored?	y measured and 120
(9.2.2) What are the total volumes of water withdrawn, discharged, and consumed across all your how do they compare to the previous reporting year, and how are they forecasted to change?	operations, 122
9.2.3 In your oil & gas sector operations, what are the total volumes of water withdrawn, discharge consumed (by business division), how do they compare to the previous reporting year, and how a forecasted to change?	ed, and re they 129
(0.2.4) Indiante whether water is withdrawn from group with water stress, provide the volume, how	, it compored

(9.2.5) What proportion of the produced agricultural commodities that are significant to your orga originate from areas with water stress?	anization 137
(9.2.6) What proportion of the sourced agricultural commodities that are significant to your organ from areas with water stress?	nization originate 138
(9.2.7) Provide total water withdrawal data by source.	140
(9.2.8) Provide total water discharge data by destination.	144
(9.2.9) Within your direct operations, indicate the highest level(s) to which you treat your dischar	rge.148
(9.2.10) Provide details of your organization's emissions of nitrates, phosphates, pesticides, and substances to water in the reporting year.	l other priority 153
Facility-level water accounting & Verification	155
Section overview	155
(9.3) In your direct operations and upstream value chain, what is the number of facilities where y identified substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities?	you have 155
(9.3.1) For each facility referenced in 9.3, provide coordinates, water accounting data, and a con previous reporting year.	mparison with the 158
(9.3.2) For the facilities in your direct operations referenced in 9.3.1, what proportion of water ac has been third party verified?	counting data 170
Impacts of facilities on CDP supply chain members	172
(9.4) Could any of your facilities reported in 9.3.1 have an impact on a requesting CDP supply c	hain member? 172
(9.4.1) Indicate which of the facilities referenced in 9.3.1 could impact a requesting CDP supply	chain member. 172
(9.14) Do you classify any of your current products and/or services as low water impact?	201
Water-related targets: water quantity, water quality, WASH, Other	202
Section overview	202
(9.15) Do you have any water-related targets?	202
(9.15.1) Indicate whether you have targets relating to water pollution, water withdrawals, WASH related categories	, or other water- 204
(9.15.2) Provide details of your water-related targets and the progress made	206
(9.15.3) Why do you not have water-related target(s) and what are your plans to develop these	in the future? 220
Module overview	222
Module overview Targets	222 223
Module overview Targets (10.1) Do you have plastics-related targets, and if so what type?	222 223 223
Module overview Targets (10.1) Do you have plastics-related targets, and if so what type? Activities	222 223 223 227
Module overview	222 223 223 227 227
Module overview	222 223 223 227 227 228
Module overview	222 223 223 227 227 228 228
Module overview Targets (10.1) Do you have plastics-related targets, and if so what type? Activities (10.2) Indicate whether your organization engages in the following activities. Metrics for plastic polymers (10.3) Provide the total weight of plastic polymers sold and indicate the raw material content Metrics for durable goods and durable components.	222 223 223 227 227 228 228 230
Module overview	222 223 223 227 227 227 228 228 230 and/or used, and 230
Module overview	222 223 223 227 227 227 228 228 230 and/or used, and 230 232
Module overview	222 223 223 227 227 227 228 228 228 230 and/or used, and 230 232 al content. 232
Module overview Targets (10.1) Do you have plastics-related targets, and if so what type? Activities (10.2) Indicate whether your organization engages in the following activities. (10.2) Indicate whether your organization engages in the following activities. Metrics for plastic polymers. (10.3) Provide the total weight of plastic polymers sold and indicate the raw material content. Metrics for durable goods and durable components. (10.4) Provide the total weight of plastic durable goods and durable components produced, sold indicate the raw material content. Metrics for plastic packaging. (10.5) Provide the total weight of plastic packaging sold and/or used and indicate the raw materi (10.5.1) Indicate the circularity potential of the plastic packaging you sold and/or used.	222 223 223 227 227 227 228 228 230 and/or used, and 230 232 ial content. 232 235
Module overview	222 223 223 227 227 227 228 228 228 230 and/or used, and 230 232 ial content. 232 235 235 237
Module overview	222 223 223 227 227 227 227 228 228 228 230 and/or used, and 230 232 ial content. 232 235 237 se and/or process 237
Module overview Targets (10.1) Do you have plastics-related targets, and if so what type? Activities (10.2) Indicate whether your organization engages in the following activities. Metrics for plastic polymers (10.3) Provide the total weight of plastic polymers sold and indicate the raw material content. Metrics for durable goods and durable components (10.4) Provide the total weight of plastic durable goods and durable components produced, sold indicate the raw material content. Metrics for plastic packaging (10.5) Provide the total weight of plastic packaging sold and/or used and indicate the raw materi (10.5.1) Indicate the circularity potential of the plastic packaging you sold and/or used. Metrics for end-of-life management (10.6) Provide the total weight of waste generated by the plastic you produce, commercialize, us and indicate the end-of-life management pathways.	222 223 223 227 227 227 227 228 228 228 230 and/or used, and 230 232 ial content. 232 235 237 se and/or process 237 240

11.1 Within your reporting boundary, are there any geographical areas, business units or mining excluded from your disclosure?	projects . 241
11.1.1 Please report your exclusions and describe their potential for biodiversity-related risk	.242
Actions on biodiversity-related commitments	. 243
11.2 What actions has your organization taken in the reporting year to progress your biod commitments?	iversity-related
Biodiversity indicator	. 245
11.3 Does your organization use biodiversity indicators to monitor performance across its activitie	es?245
Areas important for biodiversity	. 246
11.4 Does your organization have activities located in or near to areas important for biodiversity i year?	n the reporting .246
Question details	.247
Change from last year	.247
Modified question (2023 C15.4, C15.4a, F-MM9.3/F-CO9.3)	.247
Rationale	.247
Awareness of the proximity of your organization's activities to areas important for biodiversity der understanding of the relationship between the two. This awareness allows organizations to mitigan egative effects of their activities on areas important for biodiversity	nonstrates an ate the potential .247
Ambition	.247
Organizations have accessed their activities and are aware of any that are located in or nea important for biodiversity.	r to areas .247
Connection to other frameworks	.247
• ESRS 2	.247
• ESRS E4	.247
Response options	.247
Please complete the following table:	.247
11.4.1 Provide details of your organization's activities in the reporting year located in or near to a for biodiversity.	reas important .248
Land resourced and land disturbed	. 253
11.5 Can you disclose the mining project area and the area of land disturbed for each of your min	ning projects? . 253
11.5.1 Provide details on the mining project area and the area of land disturbed for each of your	mining projects. .254
Artisanal and small-scale mining (ASM)	. 256
11.6 Are there artisanal and small-scale mining (ASM) operations active in your mining project ar area of influence?	eas or in their .256
11.6.1 Provide details on artisanal and small-scale mining operations active in your mining project their area of influence. Indicate the associated challenges, if there are any.	xt areas or in .257
Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP)	. 259
11.7 Do you adopt biodiversity action plans to manage your impacts on biodiversity?	.259
11.7.1 Describe your criteria for defining which sites are required to produce biodiversity action p	lans. 260
11.8 Provide details on mining projects that are required to produce Biodiversity Action Plans	.260
Impacts on biodiversity	. 262
11.9 Have any of your projects caused, or have the potential to cause, significant adverse impact biodiversity?	t(s) on .262
11.9.1 For your disclosed mining projects, provide details of the significant adverse impacts on bit the respective response to the impact.	odiversity, with .263
Strategic business plan	. 266
11.10 Are biodiversity issues integrated into any aspects of your long-term strategic business pla how?	n, and if so .266

Biodiversity-related targets	268
11.11 Have you specified any measurable and time-bound targets related to your commitments avoid impacts on biodiversity?	to reduce or 268
11.11.1 Provide details of your targets related to your commitments to reduce or avoid impacts and progress made.	on biodiversity, 269
Mitigation hierarchy	271
11.12 Has your organization adopted avoidance and/or minimization as strategies to prevent or significant adverse impacts on biodiversity?	mitigate 271
11.12.1 Provide relevant company-specific examples of your implementation of avoidance and actions to manage adverse impacts on biodiversity.	minimization 272
11.13 Have significant impacts on biodiversity been mitigated through restoration?	274
11.13.1 Provide details on restoration actions you have in place in your sites.	275
Additional conservation actions	277
11.14 Have significant residual impacts of your projects been compensated through biodiversity	offsets? 277
11.14.1 Provide details on the biodiversity offsets you have in place	278
11.15 Is your organization implementing or supporting additional conservation actions?	280
11.15.1 Provide details on the main ACAs you are implementing or supporting	281
Closure and rehabilitation	283
11.16 Do your mining projects have closure plans in place?	283
11.16.1 Please provide details on mines with closure plans.	284
11.17 Can you disclose the area rehabilitated (in total and in the reporting year) for each of you	r mining projects?
11.17.1 Provide details on the area rehabilitated (total/reporting year) for each of your mining p post-mining land use.	rojects, including 287 289
11.18 Do you collaborate or engage in partnerships with pop-governmental organizations to pro	mote the
implementation of your biodiversity-related goals and commitments?	289
11.18.1 Provide details on main collaborations and/or partnerships with non-governmental orga were active during the reporting year.	inizations that 290
11.19 Do you engage with artisanal and small-scale miners operating within your mining project area of influence?	t areas or in their 292
11.19.1 Describe your engagement approach to artisanal and small-scale mining (ASM) during year.	the reporting 293
11.20 Do you engage with other stakeholders to further the implementation of your policies con biodiversity?	cerning 295
11.20.1 Provide relevant examples of other biodiversity-related engagement activities that happed reporting year.	ened during the
Module overview	299
Environmental impact of portfolio and emissions breakdown (FS only)	300
(12.1) Does your organization measure the impact of your portfolio on the environment?	300
(12.1.1) Provide details of your organization's financed emissions in the reporting year and in the	e base year. 303
(12.1.2) Disclose or restate your financed emissions for previous years.	307
(12.1.3) Provide details of the other metrics used to track the impact of your portfolio on the env	vironment. 310
(12.2) Are you able to provide a breakdown of your organization's financed emissions and othe footprinting metrics?	r portfolio carbon 315
(12.2.1) Break down your organization's financed emissions and other portfolio carbon footprint asset class, by industry, and/or by scope.	ing metrics by 316
Portfolio Values	320
(12.3) State the values of your financing and insurance of fossil fuel assets in the reporting yea	r320

(12.4) Does your organization provide finance and/or insurance to companies in the corso, for each commodity and portfolio, state the values of your financing and/or insuran	ommodity value chain? If ice in the reporting year.
(12.5) In the reporting year, did your organization finance and/or insure activities or se or eligible under, a sustainable finance taxonomy? If so, are you able to report the valuunderwriting?	ctors that are aligned with, ues of that financing and/or
Environmentally sustainable products/services (FS only)	333
(12.6) Do any of your existing products and services enable clients to mitigate and/or a environmental issues?	adapt to the effects of
(12.6.1) Provide details of your existing products and services that enable clients to m effects of environmental issues, including any taxonomy or methodology used to class services.	itigate and/or adapt to the ify the products and 335
Other portfolio targets	339
(12.7) Has your organization set targets for deforestation- and conversion-free and/or investing and/or insuring?	water-secure lending, 339
(12.7.1) Provide details of your targets for deforestation and conversion-free and/or wa investing and/or insuring.	ater-secure lending, 340
Module overview	
(13.1) Indicate if any environmental information included in your CDP response (not al 8.9.1/2/3/4, and 9.3.2) is verified and/or assured by a third party?	lready reported in 7.9.1/2/3,
(13.1.1) Which data points within your CDP response are verified and/or assured by a standards were used?	third party, and which 349
Further Information	353
(13.2) Use this field to provide any additional information or context that you fee organization's response. Please note that this field is optional and is not scored	el is relevant to your 354
Sign off	354
(13.3) Provide the following information for the person that has signed off (appro response.	oved) your CDP 354
Water Action Hub	356
(13.4) Please indicate your consent for CDP to share contact details with the Pac content for its Water Action Hub website	cific Institute to support

Module 8: Forests

Guidance for companies reporting on Forests - 8-8.11

The full reporting guidance including explanation of terms is available via the portal/public guidance page.

Module overview

Module Overview	This module requests information on your organization's dependency on commodities, and implementation of policies and commitments related to deforestation and conversion of other natural ecosystems.
	It includes questions on your organization's commodity volumes produced and/or sourced, land usage and locations used for production, commodity sourcing locations, targets, traceability, deforestation- and conversion (DCF) status metrics and methods to determine DCF. It also covers progress and plans towards increasing production or sourcing of DCF volumes, legal compliance, landscape and jurisdictional approaches and initiatives, and your organization's involvement in ecosystem restoration projects.

Exclusions

(8.1) Are there any exclusions from your disclosure of forests-related data?

Question details	
Change from last	Modified question (2023 F0.7)
year	
Rationale	CDP seeks to share comprehensive and representative data to ensure data users' confidence in the information reported. As such, if organizations need to exclude parts of their direct operations and/or upstream value chain from their disclosure of forests-related data, data users must be informed of the exclusions as this may affect their analysis.
Ambition	 The organization reports on all exclusions from the reporting boundary and does not have any significant exclusions from their disclosure.
Connection to other frameworks	AFi Core Principle 12

0	1
Commodity	Exclusion from disclosure
Timber products	Select from: • Yes • No
Palm oil	
Cattle products	
Soy	
Rubber	
Сосоа	
Coffee	
[Fixed row]	

Requested content	 General This question asks if there are any exclusions of forests-related data from your disclosure. References throughout the questionnaire to your "organization" include all the entities within your reporting boundary, as reported in 1.5, for which you are providing information. Please apply this logic consistently when responding to questions. References throughout the questionnaire to your "upstream value chain" are to the entities outside of your reporting boundary for which you are providing information. Please apply this logic consistently when responding to questions. References throughout the questionnaire to your "upstream value chain" are to the entities outside of your reporting boundary for which you are providing information. Please apply this logic consistently when responding to questions. Any groups, companies, businesses or organizations that fall within your reporting boundary or within your upstream value chain but are not included in your disclosure of forests related data should be disclosed in 8.1.1. If your disclosure of forests-related data includes all aspects of your direct operations and/or upstream value chain, select "No".
	 If your disclosure of forests-related data excludes certain aspects of your direct operations and/or upstream value chain, select "Yes".

	• Elements of your business or upstream value chain may be excluded for a number of
	reasons:
	 A geographical location may be excluded if there is no commodity usage or a current lack of visibility over management practices which makes reporting unfeasible for operations in that country, area or region until systems have been put in place;
	 An activity (e.g. type of business process, or type of supplier) may be excluded due to limited data or reporting feasibility;
	 Facilities may be excluded due to recent mergers, acquisitions and divestitures (which have taken place during the reporting year), outsourcing and in-sourcing of activities (smaller facilities for which it is not currently possible to track deforestation and/or conversion may also be considered); and
	 A specific product line may be excluded due to limited data or reporting feasibility.
	 Note that <u>retailers</u> are only expected to report on their own-branded products, excluding products owned and branded by third parties.
	 In all cases, the following principles of relevance and transparency must apply to all disclosures (adapted from GHG Protocol, 2004):
	 Relevance: Ensure the disclosure appropriately reflects the forests-related use of the company and serves the decision-making needs of users – both internal and external to the company.
	 Transparency: Address all relevant issues in a factual and coherent manner, based on a clear audit trail. Disclose any relevant assumptions and make appropriate references to the accounting and calculation methodologies and data sources used.
Additional information	The GHG Protocol states that an acknowledgement of all exclusions should be made each
	year to enhance transparency despite disclosure of the same exclusion in previous years.
	This ensures all data users are always aware of what data has been included in your
	response.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F only
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

(8.1.1) Provide details on these exclusions.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in any row in response to column "Exclusion from disclosure" in 8.1.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F0.7a, F1.5e)
Rationale	An organization's disclosure must be comprehensive and representative to ensure data users' confidence in the information reported. As such, organizations are encouraged to report on all exclusions of forests-related data from their direct operations and/or upstream value chain. This question helps data users contextualize responses to subsequent commodity-related questions.
Ambition	• The organization reports on all exclusions from the reporting boundary and does not have any significant exclusions from their disclosure.

Connection to other	Afi Core Principle 5
frameworks	Afi Core Principle 12

1	2	3	4	5	6
Commodity	Exclusion	Description of	Value chain	Reason for	Primary reason why data is not
-		exclusion	stage	exclusion	available for your disclosed
					commodity
Timber	Select from:	Text field	Select from:	Select from:	Select from:
products	 Business activities Geographical area Facilities Specific product lines Specific suppliers Other, please 	[maximum 2,500 characters]	 Direct operations Upstream value chain 	 Challenges associated with traceability Data is not available Embedded soy [soy] Recent acquisition or merger 	 Challenges associated with data collection and/or quality Insufficient knowledge of deforestation/forest degradation/conversion impacts from commodities Lack of internal resources, capabilities, or expertise (e.g., due to organization size) No standardized procedure Not an immediate strategic
	specify			 Divestiture Other, please specify 	 Not an immediate strategic priority Judged to be unimportant or not relevant Data collection is in progress Other, please specify
Palm oil					
Cattle products					
Soy					
Rubber					
Cocoa					
Coffee					
Select from:					
 Timber products Palm oil Cattle products Soy Rubber Cocoa 2 " 					

7	8	9	10	11
Completion date of acquisition or merger	Data from the merger/acquisition will be incorporated in the next reporting year	Indicate if you are providing the commodity volume that is being excluded from your disclosure of forests- related data	Volume excluded (metric tons)	Please explain

L

[DD/MM/YYYY]	Select from:	Select from:	Numerical field [enter a	Text field
	• Yes • No	 Yes, we are providing the volume excluded No, the volume excluded is unknown No, the volume excluded is confidential No, other reason, please specify 	number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	[maximum 1,500 characters]

[Fixed row, add row]

Requested	General
content	 Provide details on the exclusions from your disclosure of forests-related data, including the category, reason and the volume of a commodity this exclusion represents. Exclusions that include any groups, companies, businesses or organizations that fall within your organizational boundary or within your upstream value chain, but are not included in your disclosure, should be reported here. If your organization has multiple exclusions, add a row for each.
	 Description of exclusion (column 3) Clearly outline your exclusion. For example, if you selected geographical area in column 2 "Exclusion", you may provide details on the specific geographical area the exclusion relates to. You may also provide details such as the activity and the name of the business unit, product line, or facility. If your exclusion relates only to a specific form of the commodity you should detail this here. If you selected "Other, please specify" in column 2, please elaborate on the exclusion here.
	 Reason for exclusion (column 5) If the reason for the exclusion is due to a recent merger or acquisition, you will be asked to provide the year for when the merger took place and whether this data will be incorporated in the next reporting year.
	 Primary reason why data is not available for your disclosed commodity (column 6) This column is only presented if "Data is not available" is selected in column 5 "Reason for exclusion". Select the option that best describes the primary reason for why data, including data on produced and/or sourced volumes, is not available for your disclosed commodity.
	 Completion date of acquisition or merger (column 7) This column is only presented if "Recent acquisition or merger" is selected in column 5 "Reason for exclusion".
	 Data from the merger/acquisition will be incorporated in the next reporting year (column 8) This column is only presented if "Recent acquisition or merger" is selected in column 5 "Reason for exclusion".
	 Indicate if you are providing the commodity volume that is being excluded from your disclosure of forests-related data (column 9) It is expected that organizations will be able to report the volume that is excluded. If you select "No, other reason, please specify" provide a brief explanation as to why you are not providing the volume.
	 Volume excluded (metric tons) (column 10) This column is only presented if "Yes, we are providing the volume excluded" is selected in column 9 "Indicate if you are providing the commodity volume that is being excluded from your disclosure of forests-related data". State the volume (in metric tons) that you produce and/or source (including use, purchase and consume) that is being excluded from your disclosure.
	Please explain (column 11).

 Use this column to provide further information on the reason for the exclusion selected in column 5 "Reason for exclusion", e.g., additional contextual information. Use this column to explain if the exclusion has a (potential) linkage to deforestation and conversion of natural ecosystems.
 If you selected recent acquisition or merger as the reason for the exclusion and indicated that you do not plan to include this data in the next reporting period, provide details on when you expect to include the forests-related data of the acquired or merged company in your disclosure. If you selected "Other, please specify" in column 5 "Reason for exclusion", please elaborate on the reason here.

Authoring notes				
Tags				
Corporate authority	Capital Markets			
Environmental Issue	Question level	F only		
(Theme)				
	Question level	All (except FS)		
Sector				

Commodity volume data

Section overview

Section Overview	This section requests information on commodity volumes. This is important context for data users and enables disclosers to provide transparent, comprehensive, and comparable data. CDP requests details on four types of commodity volumes in the context of disclosure on forests-related data: total commodity volume, disclosure volume, produced volume and sourced volume. This section gathers details on the disclosure volume and its breakdown according to the volume that is produced and/or sourced per commodity. The volumes reported in this section will be referred to throughout the section and your response here will be used to contextualize subsequent answers.
---------------------	--

(8.2) Provide a breakdown of your disclosure volume per commodity.

Question details	
Change from last	New question
year	
Rationale	Transparency on the commodity volumes included in an organization's disclosure is key to data users' understanding of environmental performance. This question requests the breakdown of the volume that is being disclosed on (here referred to as the "Disclosure volume") according to the volume that is produced ("Produced volume") and sourced ("Sourced volume"). This question helps data users to understand and contextualise the volumes that are being reported on in this module.
Ambition	• The organization discloses on all commodities and volumes produced and/or sourced.
Connection to other frameworks	Afi Core Principle 12

0	1	2	3	4
Commodity	Disclosure volume (metric tons)	Volume type	Produced volume (metric tons)	Sourced volume (metric tons)
Timber products	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Select all that apply: • Produced • Sourced	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]
Palm oil				
Cattle products				
Soy				
Rubber				
Сосоа				
Coffee				

[Fixed row]

Requested	Disclosure volume (metric tons) (column 1)
content	 State the volume in metric tons that you will be disclosing on through CDP per commodity. Your response to questions in the Environmental Performance – Forests module will correspond to the volume you state here.
	• Organizations are encouraged to disclose on the same volume as the total commodity volume, minus any exclusions that they may have, if any. Exclusions should be reported here and in 8.1.1.
	• Refer to the "Explanation of terms" section below for further detail on the types of volumes referred to by CDP.
	Volume type (column 2)
	Drop-down options will appear based on your selection in 1.22 column 1 "Produced and/or sourced".
	Select the volume type that is included in your "Disclosure volume".
	Produced volume (metric tons) (column 3)
	 This column is only presented if you selected "Produced" in column 2 "Volume type". State the produced volume, in metric tons, that is included in your "Disclosure volume (metric tons)" in column 1.
	Sourced volume (metric tons) (column 4)
	 This column is only presented if you selected "Sourced" in column 2 "Volume type". State the sourced volume, in metric tons, that is included in your "Disclosure volume (metric tons)" in column 1.
	• If you are including embedded soy as part of your "Disclosure volume", include the associated volume here.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F only
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

(8.2.1) Provide details on any soy embedded in animal products sourced by your organization.

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Embedded soy only" or "Mixture of
dependencies	embedded soy and direct soy" in column 3 "Indicate if you have direct soy and/or
	embedded soy in your value chain" of 1.22.
Change from last	New question
year	
Rationale	Global population growth is increasing the demand for animal products and
	consequently, increasing the demand for soy used to feed animals. This growth in soy
	production is linked to deforestation and conversion of natural ecosystems and usually
	goes unaccounted for, as it is "embedded" or "hidden" in organizations' value chains.
	To address this, organizations who source animal products should: improve their
	awareness of their embedded soy exposure across the breadth of their product
	sourcing; work towards better visibility of their embedded soy origins; and assess their
	deforestation-free (DF) or deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF) status of their
	embedded soy volume. This question provides investors and other data users
	transparency on an organization's embedded soy use, in terms of its associated
	volume calculation, traceability, and DCF status.
Ambition	The organization includes embedded soy within its disclosure volume with actions
	to:
	 Improve understanding of their value chain and define a policy scope using materiality assessment across the breadth of product sourcing
	 Progress towards better visibility of embedded sov origin and reduce
	associated risk of deforestation and conversion.
	 Engage with suppliers and landscape initiatives to promote forest-positive production of embedded soy.
Connection to other	Afi Core Principle 1
frameworks	Afi Core Principle 5
	Afi Core Principle 11
	Afi Core Principle 12

0	1	2	3	4	5
Commodity	Disclosure of embedded soy	Description of embedded soy use and soy tiers	Volume calculation methodology	Embedded soy disclosure volume (metric tons)	% of sourced volume that is embedded soy
Soy	 Select from: Some or all of our embedded soy volume is included in our "Sourced volume" as reported in column 4 of 8.2 All of our embedded soy volume is excluded from our disclosure as reported in 8.1.1 	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	Text field [maximum 3,000 characters]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]

6	7	8	9	10	11	12

Traceability system	Description of traceability system	% of embedded soy disclosure volume traceable to country/area of soy production	% of embedded soy disclosure volume for which the soy production origin is unknown	DF/DCF status assessed for embedded soy	% of embedded soy disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF in the reporting year	Methodology used to determine DF/DCF status
 Select from: Yes, we have a traceability system for our embedded soy No, but we plan to establish one within the next two years No, and we do not plan to establish one within the next two years 	Text field [maximum 3,000 characters]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	 Select from: Yes, deforestation- and conversion- free (DCF) status assessed Yes, deforestation- free (DF) status assessed No, but we plan to do so within the next two years No, and we do not plan to do so within the next two years 	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]

[Fixed Row]

Requested	General
content	 This question gathers information on your embedded soy, defined as indirectly sourced soy used in animal feed during the production of an animal product, e.g., meat, farmed fish, dairy, eggs, or other animal products as ingredients. The concept of embedded soy allows organizations to account for the impact of soy from sourcing animal products despite the organization not sourcing soy or soy products directly. This question is only applicable if you indicated in column 3 "Indicate if you have direct soy and/or embedded soy in your value chain" of 1.22 that you have embedded soy in your value chain. If you only produce or directly source soy or soy products e.g., animal feed containing soy, then this should be reported as "Direct soy only" in column 3 of 1.22
	 Note: soy derivatives should be reported as "direct soy" and not as "embedded soy" in 1.22. Refer to the "Explanation of terms" section below to identify the distinction between the difference in terms "Embedded soy", "Direct soy", and "Derivative". If you have included embedded soy within your "Sourced volume" (i.e., your "Disclosure volume") in 8.2, this question will gather further information on your embedded soy to visualise how embedded soy affects the rest of your disclosure and the progress made on these volumes.
	Disclosure of embedded soy (column 1)
	• Selections in this column will determine the presentation of further columns in this table.
	• If you select "Some or all of our embedded soy volume is included in our "Sourced volume" as reported in column 4 of 8.2" you will be asked to provide further information of your embedded soy volume in this table.
	• If you select "All of our embedded soy volume is excluded from our disclosure as reported in 8.1.1", your total embedded soy volume should be reported in 8.1.1 as an exclusion. In this case, you will not be presented with columns 3 "Volume calculation methodology" to 12 "Methodology used to determine DF/DCF status".

Description of embedded soy use and soy tiers (column 2)

- Provide information on the animal products you source and how the soy is embedded within these products, e.g., "We source products that come from cattle which have been fed soy-based meal."
- The <u>Consumer Goods Forum (CGF) "Soy Measurement Ladder"</u> groups products into five tiers. Each tier contains groupings of similar products for which soy usage occurs at the same point in the value chain. Tiers 2 to 5 include product groupings that are applicable to embedded soy users. Use this resource to identify how the animal products you source fall into the different tiers.
- If possible, provide the different proportions of your embedded soy volume categorized across the different tiers e.g., "40% of our embedded soy volume falls into Tier 2 (meat, e.g., beef) and the remainder 60% falls into Tier 3 (eggs and dairy)."
- Indicate whether certain tiers are excluded from your disclosure.

Volume calculation methodology (column 3)

- Provide details on the methodology used to calculate your embedded soy volume, including any references to literature on the conversion factor used.
- If you are reporting on multiple products that are in different product tiers, where possible, clarify the methodology used for each tier.
- If you have not calculated your entire embedded soy volume, provide a brief explanation as to why you are not able to calculate the entire scope of your embedded soy volume.

Embedded soy disclosure volume (metric tons) (column 4)

- State the volume of embedded soy that you source, in metric tons, which is included in your "Sourced volume" in column 4 of 8.2.
- This is the volume that will be included in your "Disclosure volume" and "Sourced volume" throughout the environmental performance forests module.
- Do not include any of the embedded soy volume that you have excluded in 8.1.1.

% of sourced volume that is embedded soy (column 5)

• Calculate the percentage of your soy "Sourced volume" reported in column 4 of 8.2, that is your "Embedded soy disclosure volume" reported in column 4 of this question.

Description of traceability system (column 7)

- This column only appears if "Yes, we have a traceability system for our embedded soy" is selected in column 6 "Traceability system".
- Report on the level of traceability of your embedded soy. This includes whether you can trace to:
 - the soy production origin; or
 - the soy feed supplier origin; or
 - to the origin of the animal that was fed the soy.
- If you have traced back to the soy production origin, indicate if this is to country/area level, sourcing area or production unit.
- In addition, provide details of the methods and tools used to trace your embedded soy.

% of embedded soy disclosure volume traceable to country/area of soy production (column 8)

- This column only appears if "Yes, we have a traceability system for our embedded soy" is selected in column 6 "Traceability system".
- State the percentage of your embedded soy disclosure volume that is traceable back to the country/area of soy production. For guidance on country/area lists, refer to the CDP technical note: Countries, Areas and Regions.

	 % of embedded soy disclosure volume for which the soy production origin is unknown (column 9) This column only appears if "Yes, we have a traceability system for our embedded soy" is selected in column 6 "Traceability system". State the percentage of your embedded soy disclosure volume for which you cannot trace back to the country/area of soy production. This should also include the volume for which you can only trace back to the country of animal production or to the soy feed supplier, as this is not necessarily the country of where the soy was produced and harvested. Note: ensure the sum of figures provided here and in column 8 "% of embedded soy disclosure volume traceable to country/area of soy
	 production" is 100%. DF/DCF status assessed for embedded soy (column 10) – Methodology used to determine DF/DCF status (column 12) Columns 10-12 request information about the DF or DCF status of your "Embedded soy disclosure volume" reported in column 4. The DF/DCF designation signifies that materials did not originate from production units where conversion from forests or other natural ecosystems occurred after a specified cutoff date. If you have assessed your DF/DCF status, you will be asked to report the proportion of your embedded soy disclosure volume that is determined as DF/DCF and the methods you have used to determine those volumes as DF/DCF. The DF/DCF status may be assessed via any of these three methods: Certification through schemes providing full DF/DCF assurance Production unit level monitoring Sourcing area level monitoring For volumes reported here to be considered DF/DCF, you must also report a cutoff date in 8.7.1. Cutoff dates provide the basis for calculating your DF/DCF volumes. For example, if you report a 2020 cutoff date for a soy no-conversion target in 8.7.1, the percentage of your embedded soy disclosure volume reported as DCF in column 11 must originate from production units free from deforestation and conversion since 2020. Select "Yes, deforestation-free (DF) status assessed" in column 10 "DF/DCF status assessed for embedded soy" if your organization has assessed whether embedded soy volumes have contributed to deforestation since a specified cutoff date, and you have a no-deforestation and conversion target that will be reported on in 8.7.1. Select "Yes, deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF) status assessed" in column 10 "DF/DCF status assessed for embedded soy" if your assessment includes conversion of other natural ecosystems since a specified cutoff date, and you have a no-deforestation and conversion target that will be reported on in 8.7.1. Select "Yes,
Additional information	For further information on reporting on embedded soy, consult the <u>CGF</u> <u>Guidance on the Forest Positive Soy Roadmap</u> .

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F
(Ineme)		
	Question level	All (except FS)
Sector		

Own land usage and location (produced volumes)

(8.3) Provide details on the land you own, manage and/or control that is used to produce your disclosed commodities.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears you select "Produced" in response to column "Volume type" of 8.2.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F1.3)
Rationale	This question gathers information on the land that you own, manage and/or control that is used to produce your disclosed commodities. The data disclosed provides an indication of your market power and potential influence over land use in different regions including eventual links to deforestation and the conversion of natural ecosystems. It is important to demonstrate to investors and other stakeholders that your organization has a good understanding of the land it owns, manages, or controls.
Ambition	The organization discloses on the sites that they own, manage and/or control.
Connection to other frameworks	TNFD Metrics & targets B Afi Core Principle 5 Afi Core Principle 7 Afi Core Principle 8 Afi Core Principle 11 Afi Core Principle 12

1	2	3	4	5	6
Commodity	Type of control	Country/area	First-level administrative division	Specify the states or equivalent jurisdictions	Land type
Timber products	Select from: • Own land • Concessions/lease • Company-affiliated smallholders • Other type of control, please specify	Select from: • [List of forest – countries/areas] • Unknown origin	Select from: • States/equivalent jurisdictions • Unknown • Not disclosing	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	 Select from: Managed natural forests Tree plantations Other land type, please specify
Palm oil					
Cattle products					
Soy					
Rubber					
Cocoa					

Coffee			
Select from:			
 Timber products Palm oil 			
 Cattle products 			
• Soy			
 Rubber 			
• Cocoa			
Coffee			

7	8	9	10	11	12
Area (hectares)	Indicate if you can provide the volume produced on land you own, manage and/or control	Volume produced on land you own, manage and/or control (metric tons)	% area third- party certified	Third-party certification scheme	Attach a list of production facility names and locations (optional)
Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	 Select from: Yes No, data is not available No, data is confidential No, other reason, please specify 	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Select all that apply from the drop-down list below	[Attachment functionality]

[Fixed row, add row]

Third-party certification scheme (column 11)				
 FSC Forest Management certification [Timber products, Rubber] FSC Controlled Wood certification [Timber] RSPO producer/grower certification [Palm oil] Preferred by Nature Sustainability Framework RTRS standard for Responsible Soy Production [Soy] RA Sustainable Agriculture standard: Farm certificate [Coffee, Cocoa] ProTerra certification [Soy, Coffee, Cocoa, Cattle products, Palm oil] ISCC CORSIA ISCC EU [Palm oil, Cattle products, Soy, Timber products, Coffee, Cocoa] ISCC PLUS RSB Global Advanced Products RSB Japan FIT Biomass [Palm oil] RSB Global Fuels RSB ICAO CORSIA RSB Certificate for Smallholder Groups 	 Biosuisse organic [Palm oil, Cattle products, Soy, Coffee, Cocoa] Naturland [Cattle products, Soy, Coffee, Cocoa] Soil Association Organic Farming & Growing (GB and Northern Ireland) [Cattle products, Soy] Europe Soja [Soy] Donau Soja [Soy] PEFC Sustainable Forest Management certification [Timber products, Rubber] SFI Forest Management standard [Timber products] Sustainable Biomass Program [Timber products] SURE [Timber products, Palm oil, Soy] Other No certified area in this country/area, state or equivalent jurisdiction Other forest management/producer certification, please specify 			

Requested	General		
content	 In order to ensure data quality, organizations are requested to provide data for all their operations. 		

• For land that you own, manage and/or control, report on the land holdings under
production. This question relates to your "Produced volume". If you both produce and source the
commodity, your responses here should refer only to the volumes that you produce.
 If only part of the land you own, manage and/or control is used to produce your
disclosed commodity, provide details on the part of the land that is used to produce your
commodity here, and the remaining land area in question 8.4 and 8.4.1.
 You may add additional rows for each of your disclosed commodities.
Type of control (column 2)
• Select the option that best represents your organization's control over the land. If you
have more than one type of control per country/area, add a row for each type of control.
• If you are an independent smallholder, select "Own land" in response to this question.
 If note of the available options are suitable, select "Other type of control, please specify" and a text box will appear for you to complete.
Country/area (column 3)
 If you own, manage and/or control land for commodity production in more than one country/area, add a row for each relevant country/area
First-level administrative division (column 4)
 Select the first-level administrative division within the country where you own, manage and/or control land for commodity production
 If your organization has information on the first level administrative division but is unable
to disclose this, select "Not disclosing".
 If your organization does not know the first level administrative division, select
Onknown .
Specify the states or equivalent jurisdictions (column 5)
• This column only appears if you select "States/equivalent jurisdictions" in column 4
"First-level administrative division".
manage or control land for commodity production. For instance, this could be a federal
state, a department, or a province (e.g., the state of Mato Grosso in Brazil).
 If you own, manage or control sites from more than one state (or equivalent invitediation) in the same sountry, list each state or equivalent invitediation
separated by a semicolon (e.g., Mato Grosso: Amazonas: Acre).
Land type (column 6)
Commodity".
This column allows for a differentiation between production originating from managed
natural forests and from tree plantations. Areas of managed natural forests and tree
plantations should be disclosed in different rows.
to complete.
Area (nectares) (column 7) Disclose in bectares the land area used for commodity production associated with the
type of control in the country/area.
Indicate if you can provide the volume produced on land you own, manage and/or control
• Select the option that best reflects if you are providing a volume in metric tons
associated with the production area detailed in column 7 "Area (hectares)".
• If you select "No, other reason, please specify", provide a brief explanation in the text
box that appears, as to why you are not providing a volume associated with the
Volume produced on land you own, manage and/or control (metric tons) (column 9)
• This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column 8 "Indicate if you can provide the
volume produced on land you own, manage and/or control.

 State the commodity volume that is produced on the land area detailed in column 7 "Area (hectares)".
% area third-party certified (column 10)
 This refers to the percentage of area reported in column 7 "Area (hectares)" that is certified under credible third-party certification schemes. If the production area being disclosed in this row is not certified under such schemes,
enter "0" (zero) in response to this column.
Third-party certification scheme (column 11)
 For each row, if the owned/managed/controlled land area disclosed is certified under more than one credible third-party certification scheme, select all certification schemes that apply.
• If none of the available options are suitable, or you would like to add another scheme, select "Other, please specify" and specify the scheme.
• If the production area being disclosed in this row is not certified, select "No certified areas in this country/area or state or equivalent jurisdiction".
Attach a list of production facility names and locations (optional) (column 12)
This request is optional. You may provide a list of production and primary processing sites.
Examples of information useful to data users are: A Facility name
 Locations including the name of country/area, region, state, or equivalent jurisdiction.
 Location data in the form of longitude and latitude coordinates. Certification status if relevant
Alternatively, you may provide a geo-referenced maps or shapefile.
• Palm oil mill lists should use the conventions of the universal mill list. See <u>Universal</u>
Mill List: A Standardized Methodology for Creating a Global Database of Palm Oil

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F only
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

(8.4) Indicate if any of the land you own, manage and/or control was not used to produce your disclosed commodities in the reporting year.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Produced" in response to column "Volume type" of 8.2.
Change from last year	New question
Rationale	This question gathers information on if any of the land you own, manage and/or control was not used for the production of your disclosed commodities in the reporting year. The disclosure of land holdings is critical for understanding current and future risks and opportunities related to deforestation and conversion of other natural ecosystems.
Ambition	• The organization discloses on the sites that they own, manage and/or control.

Connection to other frameworks	AFi Core Principle 8
Response options	 Select one of the following options: All the land we own, manage and/or control is used for production Some of the land we own, manage and/or control is not used for production

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F only
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

(8.4.1) Provide details on the land you own, manage and/or control that was not used to produce your disclosed commodities in the reporting year.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Some of the land we own, manage and/or control is not used for production" in response to 8.4
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F1.4)
Rationale	Organizations should be able to identify the land it owns, manages and/or controls which is not currently used to produce commodities, but may or may not be in the future. By disclosing this data, you provide investors and other data users insights on land stewardship in addition to potential challenges your organization may face in expanding production areas.
Ambition	• The organization discloses on the sites that they own, manage and/or control.
Connection to other frameworks	TNFD Metrics & targets B
	AFi Core Principle 7
	AFi Core Principle 8
	AFi Core Principle 9

1	2	3	4	5	6
Country/area	Type of control	Land type	Area (hectares)	% covered by natural forests and other natural ecosystems	Please explain
Select from: [List of countries/areas]	Select from: • Own land • Concessions/lease • Publicly owned land • Other type of control, please specify	 Select from: Area for infrastructure Unplanted land (designated for future planting) Set-aside land for conservation 	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]

	 Natural ecosystems with potential to be legally converted for commodity production Degraded/abandoned area with potential for commodity production Land managed by company-affiliated smallholders Land protected by certifications Land leased for natural resource exploration and/or extraction Other land type, please specify 		

[Add row]

Requested	General
content	 This question requests information on the land you own, manage and/ or control that was not used to produce a commodity. This includes land that is used for infrastructure such as offices and roads, or natural ecosystems. This land may be designated for future cultivation or rearing of the commodities, or the land may be set-aside for conservation.
	 Country/area (column 1) If you own, manage and/or control land which was not used for production that is located in more than one country/area, add a row for each relevant country/area per land type.
	 Type of control (column 2) Select the option that best represents your organization's control over the land in a specific country/area. If you have more than one type of control (e.g., own land and leasehold), add a row for each type of control.
	 Land type (column 3) Provide information on each type of land owned, managed and/or controlled by your organization within each country/area. See the definitions of the land type options in the "Explanation of terms". Select "Other land type, please specify" to add another land type and a text box will appear for you to complete.
	 Area (hectares) (column 4) State the area that you own, manage and/or control that was not used for production.
	 % covered by natural forests and other natural ecosystems (column 5) This refers to the percentage of area reported in column 4 "Area (hectares)" that is covered by natural forests and other natural ecosystems. For clarity on what is meant by "natural forests" and other "natural ecosystems", refer to the "Explanation of terms".
	 Please explain (column 6) Provide further details on the land you own, manage and/or control that was not used to produce your commodities in the reporting year. If you selected "Set aside land for conservation" in column 4 "Land type", you can provide further information on if this conservation is on a long-term basis and what type of conservation designation or status is used there. If you have selected

	 "Brazil" in column 1 "Country/area" then the set aside land for conservation might be Areas of Permanent Protection (APPs) and Legal Reserves, as defined by the Brazilian Forest Code. If you selected "Natural ecosystems with potential to be legally converted for commodity production" in column 3 "Land type", you can provide further details on the necessary permits that you have obtained to expand for that commodity in the country/area (e.g. obtained a HGU in Indonesia in the case of palm oil). Provide details on how the land is being managed effectively to retain its conservation values. Provide a description of how your future operation/expansion plans avoid deforestation and conversion of natural ecosystems.
	deforestation and conversion of natural ecosystems.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F only
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

Commodity sourcing locations (sourced volumes)

(8.5) Provide details on the origins of your sourced volumes.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Sourced" in response to column "Volume type" of 8.2.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F1.5c, F2.2a, F1.1)
Rationale	This question provides data users with more clarity about your organization's exposure to deforestation and conversion risks. This question will benefit disclosers through increased transparency and improved ability to identify risks to their business.
Ambition	The organization discloses on the origins of their sourced volume.
Connection to other frameworks	AFi Core Principle 5 AFi Core Principle 12

1	2	3	4	5
Commodity	Country/area of origin	First level administrative division	Specify the states or equivalent jurisdictions	Volume sourced from country/area of origin (metric tons)
Timber products	Select from:[List of forest- countries/areas]Unknown origin	 Select from: States/equivalent jurisdictions Unknown Not disclosing 	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	Numerical field [enter a number from 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]

Palm oil		
Cattle		
products		
_		
Soy		
Rubber		
Cocoa		
Coffee		
Select from:		
• Timber		
products		
Palm oil		
Cattle		
products		
• Soy		
Rubber		
• Cocoa		
Coffee		

[Fixed row, add row]

6	7	8
Source	List of supplier production and primary processing sites: names and locations (optional)	Please explain
Select all that apply:	[Attachment functionality]	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters
 Independent smallholders 		
 Company-affiliated smallholders 		
 Single contracted producer 		
Multiple contracted producers		
 Trader/broker/commodity market 		
 Contracted suppliers (processors) 		
 Contracted suppliers (manufacturers) 		
 Other, please specify 		

Requested content	 General For each of your disclosed commodities, provide a breakdown of your sourced volume by country/area and state or equivalent jurisdiction of origin. If you have any volumes of unknown origin, you will be able to disclose it here.
	 If your organization both produces and sources commodities, this question only relates to the sourced volumes. For clarity on what is meant by "sourced volume" refer to the "Explanation of terms". Country/area of origin (column 2)
	• For each commodity, provide a breakdown of your organization's sourced volume by country/area of origin.
	 If your organization's sourced volume originates from more than one country/area, add a row for each country/area.
	 If your organization does not have information on the country/area from where your commodity originates, select "Unknown origin".
	• If you are reporting on embedded soy, refer to the origin of the soybean production, rather than the origin of the animal that consumed the soy. If you do not know the origin of where the soybean was produced before it became embedded into another product, then select "Unknown origin".

 First level administrative division (column 3) Select the first level administrative division within the country from which your sourced volume originates. If your organization has information on the first level administrative division but is unable to disclose this select "Not disclosing"
 If your organization does not know the first level administrative division, select "Unknown".
 Specify the states or equivalent jurisdictions (column 4) Column appears if you select "States/equivalent jurisdictions" in column "First level administrative division". Provide details on the states or equivalent jurisdictions within each country from which your sourced volume originates. For instance, this could be a federal state, a department, or a province (e.g. the state of Mato Grosso in Brazil). If your sourced volumes originate from more than one state (or equivalent jurisdiction) in the same country, list each state or equivalent jurisdiction separated by a semicolon (e.g., Mato Grosso; Amazonas; Acre).
 Volume sourced from country/area of origin (metric tons) (column 5) State the volume in metric tons that is sourced from the country/area of origin for the specified commodity. If your organization both produces and sources commodities, this volume should only relate to the sourced volume. The volume should include all of your "sourced volume" as reported in 8.2. For clarity on what is meant by "sourced volume" refer to the "Explanation of terms". The volumes disclosed per commodity should sum up to 100% (+/- 5%) of the sourced volume reported in 8.2.
 Source (column 6) The source refers to the type of supplier you source the commodity from. Select the option that best reflects the source of your commodities. If you source the commodity from more than one type of supplier, you may select all that apply. For example, a processor may source timber to produce pulp from their own plantations as well as from smallholders. If none of the available options are suitable, select "Other, please specify" and a text box will appear for you to complete.
 List of supplier production and primary processing sites: names and locations (column 7) (optional) This request is optional. You may provide a list of your suppliers' production and primary processing sites. Examples of information useful to data users are names and locations including country, region, longitude and latitude (alternatively, georeferenced maps, addresses generating locations on google maps, or shapefiles). Palm oil mill lists should use the conventions of the universal mill list. See <u>Universal Mill List: A Standardized Methodology for Creating a Global Database of Palm Oil Mills World Resources Institute (WRI).</u>
 Please explain (column 8) For sourced volume of unknown origin, provide an explanation on the strategy adopted to assure this volume is not associated with deforestation or conversion. If you are unable to disclose data for the state or equivalent jurisdiction, provide an explanation as to why this is the case. Specify which biome or ecoregion the state or equivalent jurisdiction is located in, e.g. Cerrado biome or Amazon biome.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	Fonly

Sector Question level All (except FS)		Sector	Question level	All (except FS)
---------------------------------------	--	--------	----------------	-----------------

Biofuels

(8.6) Does your organization produce or source palm oil derived biofuel?

Question details	
Question dependencies	Only shown to organizations disclosing on palm oil.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F1.5f)
Rationale	This question allows data users to understand the relevancy of palm oil derived biofuels to your organization.
Connection to other frameworks	AFi Core Principle 12
Response options	Select one of the following options: • Yes • No

Authoring notes					
Tags					
Corporate authority	Capital Markets				
Environmental Issue	Question level	F only			
(Theme)					
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)			

(8.6.1) Provide details of how your organization produces or sources palm oil derived biofuel.

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in question 8.6.
dependencies	
Change from last	Modified question (2023 F1.5f)
year	
Rationale	This question provides investors and data users transparency on organization's palm oil derived biofuel in terms of its associated volume and its origin.
Connection to other	AFi Core Principle 5
frameworks	AFi Core Principle 12

1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
Volume type	Palm oil derived	Metric	Country/area of origin	First-level administrative division	% of disclosure volume	Biofuel material is	Comment (optional)

	biofuel volume					sourced from smallholders	
Select from: • Produced • Sourced	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999 ,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Select from: • Metric tons • Liters • Gallons • Other, please specify	Select from: • [List of forests- countries/ar eas] • Unknown origin	Select from: • State/equivale nt jurisdiction, please specify • Unknown • Not disclosing	Select from: < 1% < 1-5% < 6-10% < 11-20% < 21-30% < 31-40% < 41-50% < 51-60% < 61-70% < 71-80% < 81-90% < 91-99% < 100% < Unknown < Not applicable	Select from: • Yes • No • Unknown • Not disclosing	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]

[Add row]

Requested	General					
content	 Provide a breakdown of your total palm oil derived biofuel volume that you produce and/or source by country/area of origin and state/equivalent jurisdiction. If you have any volumes of unknown origin, you will be able to report it here. 					
	Volume type (column 1)					
	• Provide your produced and sourced volumes separately by adding a new row.					
	Palm oil derived biofuel volume (column 2)					
	 If your organization both produces and sources biofuel derived from palm oil, add a row, and provide the produced and sourced volumes in separate rows. Note: the sum of the volumes stated in all of the rows should equal your total palm oil derived biofuel volume that you produce and/or source. 					
	Metric (column 3)					
	• Ensure that you select a metric that is suitable to the forms of biofuel you are disclosing.					
	• If none of the available options are suitable, select "Other, please specify" and a text box will appear for you to complete.					
	Country/area of origin (column 4)					
	 For each of your selected volume types in column 1, select the countries/areas of origin of the palm oil used for biofuels. This information refers to the country/area in which the raw material for your biofuels is grown or harvested, and not the location where it is processed or turned into manufactured goods. Add a row for each country/area your palm oil derived biofuel volume originates from. 					
	• Select "Unknown origin" if you do not know the country/area of origin associated with some or all of your total palm oil derived biofuel volume.					
	First-level administrative division (column 5)					
	• This column appears if any option other than "Unknown origin" is selected in column 4 "Country/area of origin".					
	• State the first-level administrative division within the country/area selected in column 4 "Country/area of origin" from which your produced or sourced palm oil					

 derived biofuel volume originates. For instance, this could be a federal state, a department, or a province (e.g. the province of Jambi in Indonesia). If your palm oil derived biofuel volume originates from more than one state (or
equivalent jurisdiction) in the same country, add a row for each state.
 If your organization has no information on the state (or equivalent jurisdiction) where your biofuel derived from palm oil came from, select "Unknown" and provide an explanation in column 8 "Comment (optional)". If your organization has the information but is not disclosing, select "Not disclosing" and provide an explanation in column 8 "Comment (optional)".
% of disclosure volume (column 6)
 Indicate the percentage of the "Disclosure volume" reported in 8.2, that is the corresponding "Palm oil derived biofuel volume" stated in each row. Percentages smaller than 0.01% must be rounded up to 0.01% (the smaller value may be provided in column 8 "Comment (optional)").
Biofuel material is sourced from smallholders (column 7)
 This column appears if "Sourced" is selected in column 1 "Volume type".
 Indicate whether the raw material that is used to make the biofuel derived from palm oil used by your organization is sourced from smallholders.
Comment (optional) (column 8)
 If you select "Unknown" or "Not disclosing" in column 5 "State or equivalent jurisdiction", or "Unknown origin" in column 4 "Country/area of origin", provide a brief explanation of why this is the case.
 If you have had to round the percentage disclosed in column 6 "% of disclosure volume" up to 0.01%, the smaller value may be disclosed here.

Authoring notes					
Tags					
Corporate authority	Capital Markets				
Environmental Issue	Question level	F only			
(Theme)					
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)			

Targets

(8.7) Did your organization have a no-deforestation or no-conversion target, or any other targets for sustainable production/ sourcing of your disclosed commodities, active in the reporting year?

Question details	
Question dependencies	Your response to this question will determine which subsequent questions are presented. If your response to 8.7 is amended, data in those dependent questions may be erased.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F4.6b, F6.1, F6.1b)
Rationale	This question establishes whether organizations have targets for eliminating deforestation and conversion of other natural ecosystems in their value chain. Setting specific targets with clear progress indicators enables organizations to effectively implement their commitments, policies, and goals.

Ambition	• The organization sets organization-wide timebound and quantifiable targets to eliminate deforestation and conversion of other natural ecosystems.
Connection to other frameworks	TNFD Metrics & targets C AFi Core Principle 1 AFi Core Principle 3 AFi Core Principle 4

0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Commodit y	Active no- deforestatio n or no- conversion target	No-deforestation or no-conversion target coverage	Primary reason for not having an active no- deforestatio n or no- conversion target in the reporting year	Explain why you did not have an active no- deforestatio n or no- conversion target in the reporting year	Other active targets related to this commodity, including any which contribute to your no- deforestatio n or no- conversion target	Primary reason for not having other active targets in the reporting year	Explain why you did not have other active targets in the reporting year
Timber products	 Select from: Yes, we have a no- deforestatio n target Yes, we have a no- conversion target No, but we plan to have a no- deforestatio n or no- conversion target in the next two years No, and we do not plan to have a no- deforestatio n or no- conversion target in the next two years 	Select from: • Organization-wide (including suppliers) • Organization-wide (direct operations only) • Business division • Business activity • Country/area/regi on • Product level • Site/facility • Suppliers • Other, please specify	 Select from: Lack of internal resources, capabilities , or expertise (e.g., due to organizatio n size) No standardize d procedure Not an immediate strategic priority Judged to be unimportan t or not relevant Other, please specify 	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	 Select from: Yes, we have other targets related to this commodity No, but we plan to have other targets related to this commodity in the next two years No, and we do not plan to have other targets related to this commodity in the next two years 	 Select from: Lack of internal resources, capabilities , or expertise (e.g., due to organizatio n size) No standardize d procedure Not an immediate strategic priority Judged to be unimportan t or not relevant Other, please specify 	Text field [maximum 2,500 character s]
Palm oil							
Cattle products							
Soy							
Rubber							

00000							
Coffee							
ixed row]							
Requested content	Activ • I • C • S • C • C • C • C • C • C • C • C	ve no-deforestation or if you have set a targe chain of your disclose Select "Yes, we have achieve no deforestation savannahs, grassland cover no deforestation. Select "Yes, we have deforestation. If, for example, you have conversion targets wit deforestation target. conversion targets ap deforestation or no-co This column is only p we have a no-defores no-conversion target. Select "Organization operations only)" if your poperations only)" if your poperations the coverage f the target does no describes the coverage f none of the availate specify" and a text bo For guidance on coun and Regions.	r no-conversion et for achieving d commodity, i e a no-convers ation and no c ds, and peatlan h, and there is n a no-deforesta ave an organiza hin specific cou You will have ply in 8.7.1. <i>Inversion target</i> resented if eith station target cove ary that use the sof your busine of the target ble options des x will appear for try/area/regions	a target (column no deforestation ndicate this he ion target" if yo conversion of o nds. As such, a ion need to repo- tion target" if yo ation-wide no-co untries/areas of the opportunion t coverage (col- er "Yes, we have s selected in c ling suppliers ers all operation e relevant completes whole organion coribe your targon s, refer to the C	n 1) on or no conver- re. ou have a con- other natural a no-conversion rt separate targ ou only have a deforestation tar- biomes, select ity to provide <i>umn 2)</i> we a no-conver- olumn 1 "Activ)" or "Organ ns within the second modity, even if zation, select get coverage, ete. DP technical r	ersion within the van prehensive targe ecosystems such on target should a gets for no convers a target to achieve arget but have set target but have set details of where ersion target" or " re no-deforestation hization-wide (di selected boundar the target itself d the option that I select "Other, ple note: Countries, An	alue et to also sion e no t no- no- Yes, n or irect y of loes best ease
	Othe defo • \$	er active targets relate restation or no-conve Select "Yes, we have set any targets other column 1. This include o Targets that of targets report o Any other targ disclosed con	ed to this comi rsion target (co other targets r r than a no-de es: contribute to im ed in column 1 gets to achieve nmodities.	modity, includir olumn 5) related to this of forestation or nplementing the (e.g., achievin more sustaina	ng any which o commodity" if y no-conversior e no-deforesta g 100% certifio ble production	contribute to your your organization target requeste tion or no-conversi cation or traceabil or sourcing of yo	<i>no-</i> has d in sion ity). our
	Expl repo • (• (• (• (ain why you did not rting year (column 4) Column 4 only apped deforestation or no-co Column 7 only appear related to this common conversion target". If you select "No, but o the type of tar o progress indic o whether it app o the target cov o the expected	have an active or any other ac- ears if any "No- proversion targe s if any "No" dity, including a we plan to" in rget; cators; blies to produce rerage (e.g., or date for impler	e no-deforesta ctive target in to c" option is t". option is select any which contr n either column ed or sourced o ganization-wide nenting the targ	tion or no cor he reporting ye selected in c ted in column & ibute to your n h, specify, whe commodities; e, or selected f get.	nversion target in ear (column 7) olumn 1 "Active 5 "Other active targ o-deforestation or never possible: facilities); and	no- gets

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

(8.7.1) Provide details on your no-deforestation or no-conversion target that was active during the reporting year.

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes, we have a no-deforestation target", or
dependencies	"Yes, we have a no-conversion target" in response to column "Active no-deforestation
	or no-conversion target" of 8.7.
Change from last	Modified question (2023 F4.6b, F6.1)
year	
Rationale	This question establishes how ambitious an organization's no-conversion or no- deforestation targets are. Information disclosed about your targets provides data users with a way of tracking progress towards a sustainable value chain. Ambitious targets reflect how urgent issues related to deforestation and conversion of other natural ecosystems are being addressed by organizations.
Ambition	• The organization sets timebound and quantifiable commodity specific targets to eliminate deforestation and conversion of other natural ecosystems.
Connection to other	TNFD Strategy B
frameworks	TNFD Metrics & targets C
	Afi Core Principle 1
	Afi Core Principle 3
	Afi Core Principle 4
Response options	

1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Commodity	No- deforestation or no- conversion target	Your organizatio n's definition of "no- deforestati on" or "no- conversion "	Cutoff date	Geographic scope of cutoff date	Rationale for selecting cutoff date	Target date for achievin g no- deforest ation or no- convers ion
Timber products	Select from: • No- deforestation • No- conversion	Text field [maximum 500 characters]	Select from: < 1987 1987-1992 1993-1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011	Select from: • Applied globally • Country/area, please specify • Biome, please specify • Other, please specify	 Select from: Sector-wide agreement/recommendation Region-wide agreement/recommendation In line with supplier commitments Legal requirements Compliance with initiative, please specify In line with organizational commitments, because no sector- or region-wide cutoff date is available In line with organizational commitments, but sector- or region-wide cutoff date is available 	Select from: < 2017 < 2017 < 2018 < 2019 < 2020 < 2021 < 2022 < 2023 < 2024 < 2025 < 2026- 2030 < > 2030 < > 2030 < No target date

		• 2012	• Other, please specify	
		• 2012	• Other, please specify	
		• 2013		
		• 2014		
		• 2015		
		• 2016		
		• 2017		
		• 2018		
		• 2019		
		• 2020		
		• 2021		
		• 2021		
		• 2022		
		 Z0Z3 No outoff 		
Dalas all		uale		
Paimoli				
Cattle				
products				
Soy				
-				
Rubber				
Casaa				
Cocoa				
Coffee				
Select from:				
Timbor				
products				
Paim oil				
Cattle				
products				
 Soy 				
 Rubber 				
 Cocoa 				
Coffee				

[Fixed row, add row]

Requested	General				
content	 This question requests additional information on the no-deforestation or no-conversion target reported in 8.7. 				
	 Responses to this question should be consistent with responses provided in 8.7 column 1 "Active no-deforestation or no-conversion target" and column 3 "No-deforestation or no- conversion target coverage". 				
	• If there is variability in certain elements of your target (e.g., you enforce different cut off dates for different areas), add multiple rows to reflect this.				
	• Further details on targets can be provided in 8.7.2.				
	 No-deforestation or no-conversion target (column 2) Since conversion includes deforestation, if you select "Yes, we have a no-conversion target" for a commodity in column 1 of 8.7, you will only be presented with the option "No-conversion" in this column. If you select "Yes, we have a no-deforestation target" for a commodity in 8.7, you will be presented with both options "No-deforestation" and "No-conversion". This allows you to report a no-conversion target for a specific biome, or country/area. 				
	 Your organization's definition of "no-deforestation" or "no-conversion" (column 3) Provide the definition that your organization applies to its no-deforestation or no- conversion targets 				
	 This may be the same as the definitions provided in "Explanation of terms", or it may differ. 				

• Indicate if your definition relates to localized definitions for specific countries,
commodities, or other contexts.
• If you are defining "No-conversion", indicate the land types covered by your target.
 If your definition is not representative of all the land types relevant to your organization, describe your process for prioritizing the land types that are included.
• If you have assessed whether your no-deforestation or no-conversion definition is aligned
with the definitions provided by any recognized frameworks, initiatives, standards,
agreements or legislation (e.g., Accountability Framework), and found that your definition
is aligned, indicate this here.
Refer to the <u>Afi's operational guidance on Applying the Definitions Related to</u>
<u>Deforestation and Conversion</u> , for further information on applying definitions of no-
delorestation and no-conversion in relation to targets.
Cutoff date (column 4)
• Indicate the cutoff date after which deforestation or conversion of other natural
ecosystems is not accepted. Please refer to the section "Explanation of terms" for more
details.
• If your target has multiple cutoff dates, add a row for each cutoff date.
 Select "No cutoff date" if none of your targets on no-deforestation or no-conversion specific a sutoff date.
specily a culoil date. • For additional quidance on how organizations can select appropriate cutoff dates refer to
the Afi's Operational Guidance on Cutoff Dates
Geographic scope of cutoff date (column 5)
• This column only appears if any option except "No cutoff date" is selected in column 4
"Cutoff date".
 Select "Applied globally" only if you apply the same cutoff date regardless of where your
activities are located and do not apply different cutoff dates for some of the
 If you apply a cutoff date for specific countries/areas or biomes (e.g., the Amazon biome)
select either "Country/area, please specify" or "Biome, please specify". Countries/areas
or biomes may be grouped if they share the same cutoff date and target.
Rationale for selecting cutoff date (column 6)
• This column only appears if any option except "No cutoff date" is selected in column 4
"Cutoff date".
 Select the option that best describes the primary reason why your organization selected its cutoff date
 Select "In line with organization commitments as no sector- or region-wide cutoff date is
available" or "In line with organization commitments but sector- or region-wide cutoff date
is available" if the cutoff date was determined internally for this specific target, and not
based on widely agreed upon and applied cutoff dates for a particular sector, commodity
or region – either because no relevant dates exist or you have chosen not to use them.
Larget date for achieving no-deforestation or no-conversion (column 7)
 Select the year your organization specified for realizing its no-deforestation of no- conversion target
 If your organization has multiple target dates, add a row for each target date.
 If your organization's target has no established date for achieving no-deforestation or no-
conversion, select "No target date".

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)
(8.7.2) Provide details of other targets related to your commodities, including any which contribute to your no-deforestation or no-conversion target, and progress made against them.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes, we have other targets related to this commodity" in response to column "Other active targets related to this commodity, including any which contribute to your no-deforestation or no-conversion target" of 8.7.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F6.1a)
Rationale	This question captures details on targets organizations have in place to implement their overall no-deforestation or no-conversion targets, or to improve the sustainability of commodity production and sourcing. Providing details on metrics and progress against targets helps data users understand whether organizations have relevant targets to address the dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities in their value chain.
Ambition	The organization sets timebound and quantifiable commodity specific targets to contribute towards overall no-deforestation or no-conversion targets and/or to improve sustainable commodity production and sourcing.
Connection to other	TNFD Strategy B
frameworks	TNFD Metrics & targets C
	Afi Core Principle 1
	Afi Core Principle 2
	Afi Core Principle 3
	Afi Core Principle 4
	Afi Core Principle 10
	Afi Core Principle 11
	Afi Core Principle 12
Response options	

1	2	3	4	5	6a	6b
Commodity	Target reference number	Target contributes to no- deforestation or no- conversion target reported in 8.7	Target coverage	Commodity volume covered by target (metric tons)	Category of target	Quantitative metric
Timber products	Select from: • Target 1- 25	 Select from: Yes, this target contributes to our no-deforestation target Yes, this target contributes to our no-conversion target 	Select from: • Business activity • Business division • Organization-wide (direct operations only) • Organization-wide (including suppliers) • Country/area/region • Product level • Site/facility • Suppliers	Select from: • Disclosure volume • Total commodity volume • Total commodity volume associated with operations or locations	 Select from: Traceability Third-party certification Engagement with smallholders Engagement with Tier 1 suppliers Engagement with Tier 2+ suppliers Performance of owned or managed processing facilities 	Select from the drop- down list below

	• No, this target is separate from our no- deforestation or no- conversion target	Other, please specify	covered by target • Other volume, please specify	 Performance of processing facilities in value chain Engagement in landscapes/jurisdictions Natural ecosystem restoration and long- term protection Resource use and efficiency Other target category, please specify 	
Palm oil					
Cattle products					
Soy					
Rubber					
Cocoa					
Coffee					
Select from: • Timber products • Palm oil • Cattle products • Soy • Rubber • Cocoa • Coffee					

7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14
Traceability point	Third-party certification scheme	Date target was set	End date of base year	Base year figure	End date of target	Target year figure	Reporting figure
 Select from: Production unit Sourcing area, but not to production unit Country/area of origin 	Select all that apply from the drop-down list below	[DD/MM/YYYY]	[DD/MM/YYYY]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 4 decimal places]	[DD/MM/YYYY]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 4 decimal places]	Numerical f [enter a nur from 0- 999,999,99 using a maximum c decimal pla

15	16	17	18	19	20	21
Target status in reporting year	% of target achieved relative to base year [auto- calculated]	Global environmental treaties/ initiatives/ frameworks aligned with or	Explain target coverage and identify any exclusions	Plan for achieving target, and progress made to the end of the reporting year	List the actions which contributed most to achieving or maintaining this target	Further details of target

		supported by this target				
Select from: • New • Underway • Achieved • Achieved and maintained • Expired • Revised • Replaced • Retired	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Select all that apply: • Kunming- Montreal Global Biodiversity Framework • Paris Agreement • Sustainable Development Goals • Planetary Boundaries • None, alignment not assessed • None, no alignment after assessment • Other, please specify	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]

[Fixed row, add row]

Metric (column 6b)			
Traceability	Performance of owned or managed processing facilities		
% of volume traceable to traceability pointOther traceability target metric, please specify	 % of processing facilities with deforestation/conversion monitoring systems in place % of processing facilities with DOE/NDDE commitments 		
 Third-party certification % of volume third-party certified Other third-party certification target metric, please specify 	 % of processing facilities with DCF/NDPE commitments % of processing facilities compliant with DCF/NDPE commitments % of processing facilities with public time-bound action plans in 		
 Engagement with smallholders % of smallholders engaged Investment in programs to support smallholders 	 Place Other owned or managed processing facilities performance target metric, please specify 		
Investment in programs to support smallholders Number of smallholders ongogod	Performance of processing facilities in value chain		
 Volume sourced from smallholders supported to enter responsible value chains 	 % of processing facilities with public time-bound action plans in place 		
 Other smallholders engagement target metric, please specify 	 % of processing facilities in value chain with DCF/NDPE commitments 		
Engagement with Tier 1 suppliers	 % of processing facilities in value chain compliant with DCF/NDPE commitments 		
 % of procurement spend from Tier 1 suppliers compliant with your po-deforestation or po-conversion target 	 % of processing facilities in value chain with deforestation or conversion monitoring systems in place 		
 % of procurement spend from Tier 1 suppliers with their own commitments across their entire commodity operations 	 Other processing facilities in value chain performance target metric, please specify 		
• % of Tier 1 suppliers engaged	Engagement in landscapes/jurisdictions		
 % of Tier 1 suppliers with no-deforestation or no- conversion target across their entire business 	 Hectares of land area invested in under jurisdictional/landscape approach 		
% of Tier 1 suppliers with public time-bound action plans	 Investment in landscapes and jurisdictions 		
in place	 Number of landscape/jurisdictional initiatives supported 		
 % of volume from Tier 1 suppliers compliant with your no-deforestation or no-conversion target 	 Other landscapes/jurisdictions engagement target metric, please specify 		
 Other Tier 1 suppliers engagement target metric, please specify 	Natural ecosystem restoration and long-term protection		
Engagement with Tier 2+ suppliers	 % decrease in absolute agricultural land footprint from direct operations 		

 % of procurement spend from Tier 2+ suppliers compliant with your no-deforestation or no-conversion target % of Tier 2+ suppliers engaged % of Tier 2+ suppliers with public time-bound action plans in place % of volume from Tier 2+ suppliers compliant with your no-deforestation or no-conversion target Other Tier 2+ suppliers engagement target metric, please specify 	 % decrease in agricultural land footprint intensity from direct operations Hectares afforested Hectares reforested Hectares under protection Hectares under restoration Investment in restoration and conservation projects Number of carbon credits originated (metric tons CO2e) Total number of restoration and/or conservation projects Other natural ecosystem restoration and long-term protection target metric, please specify
	 Resource use and efficiency % of commodity volume discarded as waste % decrease in average weight of packaging per product unit (grams) % of paper and packaging products using alternative fibers that consider full life cycle, biodiversity, and food security impacts % of recycled content used in paper and packaging products % of revenue from beef replaced with alternative sources (e.g. alternative protein) [Cattle products only] % decrease in material inputs for paper and packaging products (metric tons) Other resource use and efficiency target metric, please specify Other target category, please specify Other target metric, please specify

Inird-party certification scheme (courinn 8)			
Forest management unit/Producer certification	Chain-of-custody certification		
• FSC Forest Management certification [Timber products,	• FSC Chain-of-Custody certification (any type) [Timber products,		
Rubberj	Rubberj		
 FSC Controlled Wood certification [Timber] 	 FSC Recycled certification [Timber products] 		
 RSPO producer/grower certification [Palm oil] 	 RSPO supply chain certification – Identity Preserved [Palm oil] 		
 Preferred by Nature Sustainability Framework 	 RSPO supply chain certification – Segregated [Palm oil] 		
 RTRS standard for Responsible Soy Production [Soy] 	Preferred by Nature Sustainability Framework Chain-of-Custody		
RA Sustainable Agriculture standard: Farm certificate	- Segregated		
[Coffee, Cocoa]	• RTRS chain-or custody standard – Segregated [Soy]		
 ProTerra certification [Soy, Coffee, Cocoa, Cattle products, Palm oil] 	 RA Sustainable Agriculture standard: Supply chain certificate – Identity preserved [Coffee, Cocoa] 		
ISCC CORSIA	• RA Sustainable Agriculture standard: Supply chain certificate –		
ISCC Japan FIT [Palm oil]	Segregated [Coffee, Cocoa]		
ISCC ELL[Palm oil Cattle products Sov Timber	 ProTerra certification – Identity preserved [Soy, Coffee, Cocoa, 		
products Coffee Coccel	Cattle products, Palm oil]		
◆ ISCC PLUS	 ProTerra certification – Segregated [Soy, Coffee, Cocoa, Cattle products, Palm oil] 		
 RSB Global Advanced Products 	• ISCC Japan FIT – Identity preserved [Palm oil]		
 RSB Japan FIT Biomass [Palm oil] 	ISCC Japan FIT – Segregated [Palm oil]		
RSB Global Fuels	ISCC ELL Identity preserved [Palm oil Cattle products Sov		
RSB ICAO CORSIA	Timber products, Coffee, Cocoa]		
• Biosuisse organic [Palm oil, Cattle products, Soy, Coffee,	• ISCC EU – Segregated [Palm oil, Cattle products, Soy, Timber		
Cocoa]	products, Coffee, Cocoa]		
 Naturland [Cattle products, Soy, Coffee, Cocoa] 	 ISCC PLUS – Identity preserved 		
 Soil Association Organic Farming & Growing (GB and 	 ISCC PLUS – Segregated 		
Northern Ireland) [Cattle products, Soy]	 ISCC CORSIA – Identity preserved 		
• Europe Soja [Soy]	ISCC CORSIA – Segregated		
• Donau Soja [Soy]	RSB Japan FIT Biomass – Identity Preserved [Palm oil]		
 PEFC Sustainable Forest Management 	RSB Japan FIT Biomass – Segregated [Palm oil]		
certification [Timber products, Rubber]	RSB Global Advanced Products – Identity preserved		
 SFI Forest Management standard [Timber products] 	RSB Global Advanced Products – Segregated		
Sustainable Biomass Program [Timber products]	RSB Global Fuels – Identity preserved		

SURE [Timber products, Palm oil, Soy]	 RSB Global Fuels – Segregated
 Other forest management/producer certification, please 	 RSB ICAO CORSIA – Identity preserved
specify	 RSB ICAO CORSIA – Segregated
	 Europe Soja – Segregated [Soy]
	Donau Soja – Segregated [Soy]
	PEFC Chain-of-Custody (any type) [Timber products, Rubber]
	PEFC Recycled certification [Timber products, Rubber]
	• SFI Chain-of-Custody – Physical separation [1 imper products]
	SET Chain-of-Custody – Percentage [Timber products] Sustainable Biomage Program Chain of Custody – Separation
	 Sustainable Biomass Program Chain-or-Custody – Separation method [Timber products]
	 SURE – Mass balance [Timber products, Palm oil, Soy]
	 RTRS chain-of custody standard – Mass balance [Soy]
	 ProTerra certification – Mass balance [Soy, Coffee, Cocoa, Cattle products, Palm oil]
	 RA Sustainable Agriculture standard: Supply chain certificate – Mass balance [Coffee, Cocoa]
	Preferred by Nature Sustainability Framework Chain-of-Custody
	– Mass Balance
	 RSB Global Fuels – Controlled Blending
	 RSB Global Fuels – Mass Balance
	 RSB Global Advanced Products – Controlled Blending
	RSB Global Advanced Products – Mass Balance
	RSPO – Mass Balance [Palm oil]
	RSB EU RED Fuel – Mass balance
	RSB Global Advanced Products – Controlled Blending
	RSB Global Advanced Products – Mass Balance
	RSB Global Fuels – Controlled Blending
	RSB Global Fuels – Mass Balance
	RSB ICAO CORSIA – Mass Balance
	ISCC EU – Mass Balance [Palm oil, Cattle products, Soy, Timber products, Coffee, Cospee]
	ISOU FLUS - IVIASS DataTive
	Other chain of custody contification, plagas specify

Requested	General
content	• This question requests information about your timebound and quantifiable targets that were underway, achieved, expired, replaced, or retired during the reporting year.
	• Targets reported here may contribute to implementing the no-deforestation or no-conversion targets reported in 8.7 (e.g., achieving 100% certification or traceability).
	• If you did not report a no-deforestation or no-conversion target, you may disclose any other targets to achieve more sustainable production or sourcing of your disclosed commodities.
	• If you failed to meet a target in the reporting year, report this, and do not report the same target with a new date.
	• To add targets, use the "Add Row" button. You may report up to 25 different targets.
	• Your base year figure, reporting year figure, and target year figures may be numeric values or percentages. Ensure the numeric type for these figures is consistent throughout each target. For example, if you are using a percentage for the column 11 "Base year figure" you should also provide a percentage in the column 13 "Target year figure" and column 14 "Reporting year figure".
	• If you choose to report on your base, target and reporting year figures using a percentage, the percentage for each should be equal to the amount of the selected metric during the base/target/reporting year divided by the total amount of that specific metric. For example, if your organization has a total of 50 direct suppliers and engaged with 20 of them during the

base year, then your base year figure should be 40%. Similarly, if your organization engaged with 30 direct suppliers during the reporting year, then your reporting year figure should be 60%
Target reference number (column 2)
 Select a "Target reference number" from the drop-down list to allocate a unique identifier to your target. This will allow you to track and report progress for this target in future disclosures to CDP until the target is retired. The target reference number is not specific to your organization.
• When providing information from previously disclosed targets, be sure to use the same reference number as in previous years. Targets should keep their reference number in subsequent years. A target reference number may only apply to one single row.
Target contributes to no-deforestation or no-conversion target reported in 8.7 (column 3)
 This column only appears if you have selected "Yes, we have a no-deforestation target" or "Yes, we have a no-conversion target" in response to column 1 "Active no-deforestation or no-conversion target" in question 8.7.
• If the target you are disclosing on is in place to help your organization achieve its no- deforestation or no-conversion target, indicate this here. For example, a target to improve the traceability of a commodity within its supply chain could be in place to provide insight into where conversion may be occurring, which can help to enforce preventative measures.
• If the target you are disclosing on is not in place to help your organization achieve its no- deforestation or no-conversion target, indicate this here. For example, a target relating to hectares of land area invested in under jurisdictional/landscape approach may refer solely to land area that does not fall within commodity supply chains, and so would have no influence on achieving no deforestation or no conversion within them.
Target coverage (column 4)
 Select "Organization-wide (direct operations only)", if a target applies to your entire reporting boundary, but is limited to your direct operations. Note that "Organization-wide" refers collectively to all the companies, businesses, organizations, other entities or groups that fall within your definition of the reporting boundary.
 If a target applies to both your direct operations and upstream value chain, select "Organization-wide (including suppliers)".
 If the target does not apply to the whole organization, select the option that best describes the coverage of the target.
 Select "Product level" if your target applies to specific products produced using the disclosed commodity. For example, if you use cattle products for multiple products, but are disclosing a target to achieve 100% third-party certification for car interior specifically.
 If none of the available options describe your target coverage, select "Other, please specify" and a text box will appear for you to complete.
Commodity volume covered by target (metric tons) (column 5)
 Select "Disclosure volume" if you selected either "Organization-wide" option in response to column 4 "Target coverage", and the target covers your disclosure volume disclosed in column 3 "Disclosure volume (metric tons)" of 8.2.
 Select "Total commodity volume" if you selected either "Organization-wide" option in response to column 4 "Target coverage", and the target covers your entire commodity volume disclosed in column 1 "Total commodity volume (metric tons)" of 8.2.
 Select "Total commodity volume associated with operations or locations covered by target" if you selected any option except either "Organization-wide" option in response to column 4 "Target coverage", and the target covers the entire volume associated with your selected target coverage.
 If none of the available options reflect the commodity volume covered by the target, select "Other volume, please specify" and disclose the commodity volume the target applies to in metric tons.
Category of target & quantitative metric (column 6a, column 6b)

	 Note that some target categories listed in this column correspond to questions you will find in different sections of the Environmental Performance – Forests module (Module 8). For greater clarity on terminology and different actions to achieve specific targets, refer to the guidance to these individual questions.
	 If your target is related to "Traceability", provide further details on the level of traceability across your value chain in column 7 "Traceability point".
	 If your target is linked to "Third-party certification", provide further details on which schemes are accepted in column 8 "Third-party certification scheme".
	If disclosing on a "% of volume" metric, the percentage should be of the volume figure indicated in column 5 "Commodity volume covered by target (metric tons)".
	If disclosing on a metric that is framed as a percentage reduction, you will need to reframe the metric in columns 11 "Base year figure", 13 "Target year figure" and 14 "Reporting year figure" so that is presented as a percentage increase. This applies to the following metrics:
	 % decrease in agricultural land footprint intensity from direct operations % of commodity volume discarded as waste
	 % decrease in average weight of packaging per product unit (grams) % decrease in material inputs for paper and packaging products (%)
	For example, when disclosing using the metric "% of commodity volume discarded as waste" – if 40% of a commodity volume is being discarded as waste, and the target is to bring this down to 0%, this would be presented as 60% of the commodity volume is currently not discarded as waste in column 11, and the target would be to achieve 100% not discarded as waste in column 13.
	Third-party certification scheme (column 8)
	This column only appears if you selected "Third-party certification" in response to column 6a "Category of target".
	If you have a target that involves more than one certification scheme per commodity, select all that apply.
	If none of the available options describe the scheme adopted by your organization, or if you would like to add a scheme that is not on the list, select "Other, please specify" and a text box will appear for you to complete.
	Date target was set (column 9)
	Enter the date in which your organization set the target.
	This must be either before or during the reporting year but cannot be after the reporting year or after the end date of target year.
	If you have a year-on-year rolling target or a maintenance target, enter the year you first set the target. This can be before the base year.
	If you set the target based on financial years, enter the year that applies to the end of your financial year.
	If you do not know the exact date on which your company set the target, enter the end of the year that the target was set.
	End date of base year (column 10)
	The base year is the year against which you are comparing your target. For example, if the target is to increase tier 1 supplier engagement by 20% based on the percentage of suppliers engaged in 2020, the end date of the base year is 31 st December 2020.
	The base year cannot be after your reporting year.
	If you have a year-on-year rolling target or a maintenance target, the base year will be the previous reporting year.
	If you set the target based on financial years, enter the year that applies to the end of your financial year.
	If you have a target based on an average over a period of time (e.g., 5-year average), enter the year that applies to the end of the average period.
	Base vear figure (column 11)

Provide the base year figure for your target. This is the figure against which progress is measured. It may be an absolute value or a percentage value.

This figure will be used to auto-calculate the "% of target achieved relative to base year" in column 16.

End date of target (column 12)

This date represents when you expect to achieve your target.

Enter the date year that the target ends. For example, if the target is to increase tier 1 supplier engagement by 20% by the end of 2025, the end date of the target is 31st December 2025.

If you have a year-on-year rolling target or maintenance target, the target year will be the reporting year.

If you have a target based on financial years, enter the end date of the year that applies to the end of your financial year.

You should not report any target that was completed before the start of the reporting year.

Target year figure (column 13)

Enter the figure that you are aiming to achieve in the target year. This may be a numeric value or a percentage.

This should not represent the metric's percent increase, but the targeted figure for the metric in the unit used to monitor it.

If you are disclosing on a maintenance target, this should be the same as your base year figure. This figure will be used to auto-calculate the "% of target achieved relative to base year" in column 16.

Reporting year figure (column 14)

Enter the figure achieved in the reporting year. This may be a numeric value or a percentage. Ensure the figure reported is consistent with your response to column 5 "Commodity volume covered by target (metric tons)".

This figure will be used to auto-calculate the "% of target achieved relative to base year" in column 16.

Target status in reporting year (column 15)

New – Select this option for targets that have been set in the reporting year and are still in progress.

Underway – Select this option for targets that were set before the reporting year, with an end date in the future, that have not been achieved and continue to be pursued.

Achieved – Select this option for targets that are in place to achieve a certain level of performance (e.g., to achieve 100% compliance with a commitment to no conversion for the volume sourced from direct suppliers) and have been achieved or exceeded in the reporting year.

Achieved and maintained – Select this option for targets that are in place to maintain a certain level of performance (e.g., to maintain 100% compliance with a commitment to no conversion for the volume sourced from Tier 1 suppliers) and this has been achieved in the reporting year.

Expired – Select this option for targets with an end date within the reporting year, that have not been achieved or maintained and have therefore expired in the reporting year.

Revised – Select this option for targets that were set before the reporting year but a revision has been made to any of the elements in columns 4 to 14 in the reporting year, for example due to a recalculation of the base year figure or a change to the end date of the target.

Replaced – Select this option for previously reported targets that have been replaced with another target in the reporting year, for example where a facility target has been incorporated into an organization-wide target.

Retired – Select this option for targets with an end date in the future, that have not been achieved, but will no longer be pursued.

% of target achieved relative to base year [auto-calculated] (column 16)

This column only appears if you have selected any option except "Achieved and maintained" in response to column 15 "Target status in reporting year". This column will be auto-calculated. The % of target achieved relative to the base year will be calculated using the base year figure (column 11), the target year figure (column 13) and the reporting year figure (column 14). **Ensure that you have entered data into these columns.**

Reporting year figure (column 14) – Base year figure (column 11) $\times 100$

Target year figure (column 13) – Base year figure (column 11)

For example, if you are disclosing on soy and you selected "Percentage of volume third-party certified" as your metric, and your base year figure is 65%, your reporting year figure is 90% and your target year figure is 100% this column will display 71%.

Negative values indicate a setback in your target progress relative to the base year.

Values greater than 100 indicate that you have exceeded your target.

Global environmental treaties/initiatives/frameworks aligned with or supported by this target (column 17)

Select any of the global environmental treaties/initiatives/frameworks for which you have assessed that achieving the target you are disclosing will contribute to your organization aligning with or supporting the goals of them.

If you have assessed this but found no alignment, select "None, no alignment after assessment".

If you have not assessed this, select "None, alignment not assessed".

If you have assessed alignment with any other global environmental

treaties/initiatives/frameworks, select "Other, please specify" and provide a label to indicate which global environmental treaties/initiatives/frameworks are aligned.

Explain target coverage and identify any exclusions (column 18)

If the target is not organization-wide (i.e., it does not apply to the whole organization in line with your definition of the reporting boundary), provide further details of your target coverage in this column. E.g. if you have selected "Country/area/region" in column 4, please specify which countries/areas/regions your target covers.

If you selected "Other volume, please specify" in column 5 "Commodity volume covered by target (metric tons)", indicate if you have excluded any relevant volumes from your target.

• State the reason for omitting these volumes and outline any steps you are taking to enable target-setting for relevant volumes.

Plan for achieving target, and progress made to the end of the reporting year (column 19)

This column only appears if you select "Underway", "Revised", or "New" in column 15 "Target status in reporting year".

If you are not on track to achieve the target, explain how you plan to get back on track.

If possible, specify your anticipated and/or observed progress curve in this column, i.e.:

- Linear the rate of progress towards the target is anticipated and/or observed to be steady over time
- Logarithmic the rate of progress towards the target is anticipated and/or observed to be faster at the start
- Exponential the rate of progress towards the target is anticipated and/or observed to be faster at the end
- Variable the rate of progress towards the target is anticipated and/or observed to change from year to year

List the actions which contributed most to achieving or maintaining this target (column 20)

This column is only presented if "Achieved" is selected in column 15 "Target status in reporting year" OR "Achieved and maintained" is selected in column 15 "Target status in reporting year" AND column 11 "Base year figure" is equal to column 14 "Reporting year figure".

If you have achieved your target in this reporting year, indicate the key actions your organization took to achieve the target.

If your target was to maintain a certain level of performance in the reporting year, and your organization was successful in doing so, indicate the key actions taken to maintain the target.

Further details of target (column 21)

Use this column to provide any further details or context that may be relevant for understanding this target.

If you are disclosing a maintenance target and you have not been able to maintain your reported base year figure in the reporting year, explain why this was the case.
You can use this column to identify whether you have a financial year or average year-based target.
If your target was originally in a different format, you may wish to give the original target before it was converted into the format required for the purposes of this table.
If your target is part of a wider goal, a regulatory requirement, or a longer-term target, you can also explain this here.
If relevant, explain how this target intends to help your organization manage its forests-related dependencies, impacts, risks and/or opportunities.
Provide details of the methodology used to set the target and baseline, including whether you have used any external standards when setting the target and whether these use a science-based approach.

Authoring notes					
Tags	Tags				
Corporate authority	Capital Markets				
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	F			
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)			

Traceability

(8.8) Indicate if your organization has a traceability system to determine the origins of your sourced volumes and provide details of the methods and tools used.

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Sourced" for any row in column "Volume type" of 8.2.
dependencies	
Change from last	Modified question (2023 F6.2, F6.2b)
year	
Rationale	Organizations should know or control the origins of their sourced commodities to eliminate deforestation and conversion of other natural ecosystems in their value chain. Robust traceability systems allow organizations to ascertain that the production and processing units of commodity origins are free from deforestation and conversion. This information helps investors and other data users assess whether organizations have the necessary traceability systems to determine the compliance of sourced volumes with their no-deforestation and no-conversion policies, targets, and goals, and the methodologies and tools involved.
Ambition	• Organizations have robust traceability systems in place to ensure the origins of the sourced volumes across their value chain are known or controlled to a sufficient extent to determine the deforestation- and conversion-free status of production and processing units.
Connection to other frameworks	Afi Core Principle 5

0	1	2	3	4	5
Commodity	Traceability system	Methods/tools used in traceability system	Description of methods/tools	Primary reason your organization does	Explain why your organization does

			used in traceability system	not have a traceability system	not have a traceability system
Timber products	 Select from: Yes No, but we plan to establish one within the next two years No, and we do not plan to establish one within the next 	 Select all that apply: Chain-of-custody certification Value chain mapping Supplier engagement/communication Internal traceability system Landscape and jurisdictional approaches 	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	 Select from: Lack of internal resources, capabilities, or expertise (e.g., due to organization size) No standardized procedure Not an immediate 	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]
	two years	 Other, please specify 		 strategic priority Judged to be unimportant or not relevant Other, please specify 	
Palm oil					
Cattle products					
Soy					
Rubber					
Cocoa					
Coffee					

-	
Requested	General
content	• This question gathers information on the traceability systems your organization uses to know or control the origins of its sourced volumes.
	• If you use your suppliers' traceability systems, you may select "Yes" in response to column 1 "Traceability system" and provide details on these systems.
	• Depending on your position in the value chain, the approach to tracing your sourced volumes may vary i.e.,
	 Primary processors and first intermediary traders: should know the origin of raw materials to the level of the production unit.
	 Buyers downstream of the first intermediary (e.g., manufacturers and retailers) should trace supplies upstream until they can ascertain compliance status at the supply base level, through evidence from suppliers.
	• Buyers at any stage of the value chain should use one or more of the following methods to determine the deforestation- and conversion-free status of the production and processing units of origin:
	 trace materials back to the production or processing units of origin. trace materials back to an intermediate supplier that itself has effective control mechanisms in place to ensure that its supplies are traced to the production or processing units of origin and can provide sufficient evidence of this to the buyer. utilize credible assurance systems (e.g., credible certification systems) capable of linking raw material supplies with production units having specific compliance or performance attributes.
	 trace materials to jurisdictions or landscapes where it has been demonstrated that performance related to specific social or environmental issues is adequate to fulfil the buyer's commitments on the corresponding issues.
	Traceability system (column 1)
	• Select "Yes" if your organization has a system in place to determine the origins of its
	sourced volumes. Systems can include:
	 business-to-business disclosure of traceability information from suppliers

10	
	 internal systems
	 third-party certification
	 use of open data platforms, e.g., TRASE, to link purchases to production regions for different commodities
	Description of methods/tools used in traceability system (column 3)
	 This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column 1 "Traceability system".
	• Provide further details on the methods/tools you selected in column 2 "Methods/tools used in traceability system". For example, if you selected "Internal traceability system", provide details on the type of systems used.
	 You may provide details on how the methods/tools differ based on the form of commodities that you source or use.
	 Explain why your organization does not have a traceability system (column 5) This column only appears if you select either "No" option in column 1 "Traceability system". Briefly describe the primary reason selected in column 4 "Primary reason your organization does not have a traceability system" and explain any plans to address this in the future.

Authoring notes					
Tags	Fags				
Corporate authority	Capital Markets				
Environmental Issue	Question level	F			
(Theme)					
Sector	Question level	All except FS			

(8.8.1) Provide details of the point to which your organization can trace its sourced volumes.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to column "Traceability system" in 8.8.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F6.2a)
Rationale	Organizations must understand and disclose the traceability levels of their sourced volumes to demonstrate their ability to assess compliance with no-deforestation and no-conversion policies, targets, and goals. This question helps investors and other data users understand the extent to which organizations know the origin of their commodities, and therefore their ability to determine deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF) status and identify their dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities.
Ambition	Organizations trace their sourced volumes back to a point from which they can confirm that no deforestation and no conversion of other natural ecosystems occurred during production, after a designated cutoff date.
Connection to other frameworks	AFi Core Principle 5 AFi Core Principle 12

0	1	2	3	4	5	6
Commodity	% of sourced volume traceable to production unit	% of sourced volume traceable to sourcing area and not to production unit	% sourced volume traceable to country/area of origin and not to sourcing area or production unit	% of sourced volume traceable to other point (i.e., processing facility/first importer) not in the country/area of origin	% of sourced volume from unknown origin	% of sourced volume reported [auto calculated]

Timber products	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	[Auto calculated]
Palm oil						
Cattle products						
Soy						
Rubber						
Cocoa						
Coffee						

Requested	General
content	 This question requests a percentage breakdown of your sourced volume by the level of traceability, and the percentage from an unknown origin. The percentages reported across columns 1 "% [] traceable to production unit" to 5 "% [] from unknown origin" should account for 100% of the sourced volume you reported in 8.2, for each commodity. If you have included embedded soy in your sourced volume, as reported in 8.2 and 8.2.1, you should include your embedded soy volume in your response to this question. Note: when disclosing the traceability of embedded soy, report the level of traceability back to the soy production origin. If you can only trace to the origin of the animal that was fed the soy or to the soy feed supplier origin, report this in column "% of sourced volume traceable to other point". If you have not traced your embedded soy at all, disclose this in column "% of sourced volume from unknown origin".
	 % of sourced volume traceable to production unit (column 1) If you have traced your sourced volumes to the specific production unit of origin (e.g. farm, breeding farm, plantation, ranch, or forest management unit), report the related percentage here.
	 % of sourced volume traceable to sourcing area and not to production unit (column 2) If you have traced your sourced volumes to an area or region where the material was produced or extracted (e.g., a radius or supply shed around a mill, processing facility or a first point of collection), but the specific production unit of origin is not known, report the related percentage here.
	 % of sourced volume traceable to country/area of origin and not to sourcing area or production unit (column 3) If you have not traced your sourced volume to the production unit or sourcing area where the material was produced and have only traced to the level of the country/area of origin, report the related percentage here. For further guidance on country/area lists, refer to the <u>z</u>.
	 % of sourced volume traceable to other point (i.e., processing facility/first importer) not in the country/area of origin (column 4) If you can trace the commodity to a processing or storage facility/first importer in a different country to the country/area of origin, report the related percentage here.
	 % of sourced volume reported [auto calculated] (column 6) This column will be auto-calculated. The percentage of sourced volume reported will be calculated as the sum of column 1 "% [] traceable to production unit", column 2 "% [] traceable to sourcing area and not to production unit, column 3 "% [] traceable to country/area of origin and not to sourcing area or production unit", column 4 "% [] traceable

	 to other point (i.e., processing facility/first importer) not in the country/area of origin" and column 5 "% [] from unknown origin". Ensure that you have entered data into all these columns. If none of your volumes are traceable to a particular point, enter 0 (zero). These columns should be completed for all commodity rows. Please ensure that this column adds up to 100%.
Example response	 Example of an organization that has: 50% of their palm oil traceable to the plantation where it was produced, in Argentina (i.e. production unit). 20% traceable to a processing facility close to the plantation where it was produced, in Argentina (i.e. sourcing area). 10% only traceable to Argentina, but not to a specific processing facility or plantation (i.e.
	 10% only traceable to Argentina, but not to a specific processing facility of plantation (i.e. country/area of origin). 10% traceable to a first importer in Paraguay, not to the country/area of origin that the palm oil was produced in (i.e. traceable to other point). 10% from an origin that is unknown (i.e. unknown origin).

0	1	2	3	4	5	6
Commodity	% of sourced volume traceable to production unit	% of sourced volume traceable to sourcing area and not to production unit	% sourced volume traceable to country/area of origin and not to sourcing area or production unit	% of sourced volume traceable to other point (i.e., processing facility/first importer) not in the country/area of origin	% of sourced volume from unknown origin	% of sourced volume reported [auto calculated]
Palm oil	50	20	10	10	10	100

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All except FS

Deforestation- and- conversion free (DCF) status metrics and methods to determine DCF

Section overview

Section	This section gathers information on the proportion of volumes in an organization's direct					
Overview	operations and upstream value chain that are assessed and determined to be					
	deforestation-free (DF) or deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF). The DF or DCF					
	designation signifies that the production and sourcing of commodity volumes did not cause					
	or contribute to deforestation and conversion since a specified cutoff date. Responses to					
	this section should align with your organization's commitments/ targets on no deforestation					
	This section will request further information on the methods used to determine the DF/DCF					
	status of disclosure volume. The DF/DCF status may be assessed via any of these three					
	methods:					
	 Certification through schemes providing full DF/DCF assurance 					
	 Production unit level monitoring 					

0	Sourcing area level monitoring

(8.9) Provide details of your organization's assessment of the deforestation-free (DF) or deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF) status of its disclosed commodities.

Question details	
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F1.5a, F1.5b)
Rationale	Organizations should disclose the proportion of volumes in their direct operations and upstream value chain assessed and determined to be DF or DCF. The DF designation signifies that the production and sourcing of commodity volumes did not cause or contribute to deforestation since a specified cutoff date, while the DCF designation signifies that the production and sourcing of commodity volumes did not cause or contribute to deforestation and sourcing of commodity volumes did not cause or contribute to deforestation and sourcing of commodity volumes did not cause or contribute to deforestation and the conversion of other natural ecosystems since a specified cutoff date. This question helps data users understand organizations' performance and progress towards DCF and the methods used to ascertain DF/DCF status.
Ambition	 Organizations track progress towards achieving DF or DCF. Organizations disclose on their progress to achieving DF or DCF and disclose relevant methodological choices used to calculate DF/DCF volumes. Organizations disclose on their progress to achieving DF/DCF by methods. Organizations have assessed 100% of their volumes to be deforestation and conversion free since cutoff date.
Connection to other frameworks	AFi Core Principle 1 AFi Core Principle 5 AFi Core Principle 11 AFi Core Principle 12

0	1	2	3	4	5
Commodity	DF/DCF status assessed for this commodity	% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF in the reporting year	% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through a third-party certification scheme providing full DF/DCF assurance	% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of production unit	% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of sourcing area
Timber products	 Select from: Yes, deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF) status assessed Yes, deforestation- free (DF) status assessed No, but we plan to do so within the next two years No, and we do not plan to do so within the next two years 	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]
Palm oil					

Cattle products			
Soy			
Rubber			
Cocoa			
Coffee			

	1	1
6	7	8
Is a proportion of your disclosure volume certified through a scheme not providing full DF/DCF assurance?	Primary reason for not assessing DF/DCF status	Explain why you have not assessed DF/DCF status
Select from:	Select from:	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]
• Yes • No	 Lack of internal resources, capabilities, or expertise (e.g., due to organization size) No standardized procedure Not an immediate strategic priority Judged to be unimportant or not relevant Other, please specify 	

```
[Fixed row]
```

General
 General This question requests a breakdown of the methods used to determine the DF/DCF status of your disclosure volume in the reporting year. The cutoff date stated in 8.7.1 (targets) provides the basis for calculating your DF/DCF volumes. For example, if you report a 2020 cutoff date for a timber no-conversion target in 8.7.1, the percentage of your timber disclosure volume reported as DCF in 8.9 must originate from production units free from deforestation and conversion since 2020. Ensure that your response here is consistent with the type of target you have selected in 8.7.1 for the disclosed commodity. For example, select "Yes, deforestation-and conversion-free (DCF)", if you: Reported in 8.7.1 that you have a no-conversion target; and Have assessed for no conversion of forests and other natural ecosystems since the stated cutoff-date. The DCF status of commodity volumes may be assessed via any of these three methods:
 The DCF status of commodity volumes may be assessed via any of these three methods: Certification through schemes providing full DF/DCF assurance Production unit level monitoring
 Sourcing area level monitoring
 Note: volumes certified through schemes that do not provide full DF/DCF assurance will only be considered DF/DCF if you have also carried out one of the other methods (i.e., certified through a scheme that provides full assurance, carried out production unit, or sourcing area monitoring). Do not report these volumes in column 3 "% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through a scheme providing full DF/DCF assurance".
 For example, if 70% of your timber disclosure volume is certified through a mass- balance chain-of-custody certification, and you have used production unit monitoring to determine that these volumes are DCF, you should report 70% in column 4 "% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of production unit" and provide details of the method in 8.9.3. Select "Yes" in column 6 "Is a proportion of your disclosure volume certified through a scheme not providing full DF/DCF assurance?" to report details of these certifications in 8.9.2.

 DF/DCF status assessed for this commodity (column 1) Select "Yes, deforestation-free (DF) status assessed" if your organization has assessed whether commodity volumes have contributed to deforestation. If you indicate here that you have only assessed the deforestation-free (DF) status, your responses to 8.9.1/8.9.3/8.9.4 for this commodity will relate to methods to determine volumes as DF. Select "Yes, deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF) status assessed" if your assessment includes conversion of other natural ecosystems. If you indicate here that you have also assessed conversion-free status, your responses to 8.9.1/8.9.3/8.9.4 for this commodity of the deformation of the status as DCF.
 % of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through a third-party certification scheme providing full DF/DCF assurance (column 3) This column only appears if "Yes, deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF) status assessed" or "Yes, deforestation-free (DF) status assessed" in column 1 "DF/DCF status assessed for this commodity". If you report a percentage higher than 0% in this column, you will be asked to provide further details on how you have determined volumes as DF/DCF through this method, in the following questions. Volumes reported as "determined as DF/DCF through a scheme providing full DF/DCF assurance" should be: Certified through an accredited scheme, with criteria that prohibit deforestation and conversion after a stated cutoff date; and/or Certified through a scheme using a chain-of-custody model that verifies the physical traceability of raw material supplies to a production unit that complies with nodeforestation or no-conversion criteria. Note: segregated and identity-preserved mechanisms meet this criterion, while mass balance, mixed, and crediting systems generally do not. Refer to the "Explanations of"
 terms" section below for further details on schemes providing full assurance. When using a certification scheme to demonstrate DF/DCF, buyers should exercise due diligence to ascertain that both the requirements and the implementation of the certification scheme are sufficiently robust to provide a high level of assurance regarding DF/DCF status.
 % of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of production unit (column 4) This column only appears if "Yes, deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF) status assessed" or "Yes, deforestation-free (DF) status assessed" in column 1 "DF/DCF status assessed for this commodity". If you report a percentage higher than 0% in this column, you will be asked to provide further details on how you have determined volumes as DF/DCF through this method, in the following questions. If you know the boundaries of the production units in your own operations or from which you source, the DF/DCF status of volumes can be assessed directly by determining whether there has been deforestation or conversion on each production unit after the relevant cutoff date. Downstream organizations (i.e., buyers) can also collect this information from their suppliers via business-to-business value chain control systems, which can decrease the monitoring burden on downstream organizations. Note: buyers must ensure that information is reliable, which may require independent varification
 verification. % of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of sourcing area (column 5) This column only appears if "Yes, deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF) status assessed" or "Yes, deforestation-free (DF) status assessed" in column 1 "DF/DCF status assessed for this commodity". If you report a percentage higher than 0% in this column, you will be asked to provide further details on how you have determined volumes as DF/DCF through this method, in the following questions. If you can trace materials to a sourcing area with no or negligible deforestation or conversion since an appropriate cutoff date, volumes sourced from that area may be considered DF/DCF.

	 If using this approach, you must continue to monitor the sourcing areas to identify any change in the occurrence or risk of deforestation or conversion. Risk assessments should use clear and well-defined metrics to evaluate the risks objectively. The methods used should be credible and current and provide all the data necessary to effectively characterize the risk (Adapted from <u>AFi, 2020</u>).
	Is a proportion of your disclosure volume certified through a scheme not providing full DF/DCF assurance? (column 6)
	 If you select "Yes" you will be able to provide details of certifications you are using that do not provide full DF/DCF assurance and the additional control methods, in the following questions
	 Refer to the "Explanation of terms" section, and the response options in 8.9.2 for further information on which are schemes are not considered to provide full DF/DCF assurance.
	 Explain why you have not assessed DF/DCF status (column 8) This column only appears if you select either "No" option in column 1 "DF/DCF status assessed for this commodity". Briefly describe the primary reason selected in column 7 "Primary reason for not assessing
	DF/DCF status" and explain any plans to address this in the future.
Additional information	For information on DCF accounting and the methods to determine DCF, consult the joint <u>AFi</u> , <u>GHG protocol and SBTi FLAG guidance (2023)</u>
	• For further information on DCF methodology and verification approaches, <u>Proforest (2022)</u> Generic Verified Deforestation and Conversion Free (V-DCF) methodology is a high-level framework that provides the agricultural commodities sector with a consolidated, generic approach to confirming and demonstrating DCF and Verified-DCF.
	• Refer to the <u>AFi's operational guidance on Applying the Definitions Related to Deforestation</u> <u>and Conversion</u> , for further information on the distinction between 'no deforestation' and 'no- deforestation and -conversion' policies and related status claims.

Authoring notes				
Tags				
Corporate authority	Capital Markets			
Environmental Issue	Question level	F		
(Theme)				
Sector	Question level	All except FS		

(8.9.1) Provide details of third-party certification schemes used to determine the deforestation-free (DF) or deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF) status of the disclosure volume, since specified cutoff date.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you report any value other than "0" in response to column "% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through scheme providing full DF/DCF assurance" of 8.9.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F6.3, F6.3a)
Rationale	This question gathers information on the proportion of your disclosure volume determined to be DF or DCF using a third-party certification scheme providing full assurance of DF/DCF. Credible third-party certification is one method organizations can use to determine that no deforestation or conversion has occurred since a specified cutoff date and assure investors and other data users that their commodity volumes are DF/DCF.

Ambition	Organizations use credible certification schemes, with chain-of-custody systems capable of linking raw material supplies with production units and providing assurance of no deforestation and no conversion.
Connection to other frameworks	TNFD Metrics & targets B AFi Core Principle 1 AFi Core Principle 5 AFi Core Principle 11 AFi Core Principle 12
Response options	

Rows appear based		Drop-down options			
which anything		the commodity row			
other than "0"					
disclosed in column					
3 of 8.9					
1	2a	2b	3	4	5
Commodity	Third-party	Third-party	% of disclosure	Comment	Certification
	certification type	certification	DE/DCE through		documentation
		full DF/DCF	certification scheme		
		assurance	providing full DF/DCF		
			assurance		
Timber products	Select from:	Select from the	Numerical field [enter a	Text field [maximum	[Attach evidence of
	• Forost	arop-aown list below:	number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2	2,500 characters]	centification]
	 Forest management 	Solow.	decimal places]		
	unit/Producer				
	certification				
	 Chain-of- 				
	custody				
	certification				
Palm oil					
Cattle products					
Soy					
Rubber					
Cocoa					
Coffee					
Select from:					
 Timber products 					
 Palm oil 					
 Cattle products 					
• Soy					
 Rubber 					
 Cocoa 					
 Coffee 					

[Fixed row, add row]

Forest management unit/Producer certification	Chain-of-custody certification
 FSC Forest Management certification [Timber products, 	 FSC Chain-of-Custody certification (any type) [Timber
Rubber]	products, Rubber]
 FSC Controlled Wood [Timber] 	 FSC Recycled certification [Timber products]
 RSPO producer/grower certification [Palm oil] 	 RSPO supply chain certification – Identity Preserved [Palm oil]
 Preferred by Nature Sustainability Framework 	 RSPO supply chain certification – Segregated [Palm oil]
 RTRS standard for Responsible Soy Production [Soy] 	 Preferred by Nature Sustainability Framework Chain-of-
 RA Sustainable Agriculture standard: Farm certificate 	Custody – Segregated
[Coffee, Cocoa]	 RTRS chain-of custody standard – Segregated [Soy]
 ProTerra certification [Soy, Coffee, Cocoa, Cattle 	RA Sustainable Agriculture standard: Supply chain certificate –
products, Palm oil]	Identity preserved [Coffee, Cocoa]
ISCC CORSIA	RA Sustainable Agriculture standard: Supply chain certificate –
 ISCC Japan FIT [Palm oil] 	Segregated [Conee, Cocoa]
 ISCC EU [Palm oil, Cattle products, Soy, Timber products, Coffee, Coccal 	Cattle products, Palm oil]
	 ProTerra certification – Segregated [Soy, Coffee, Cocoa,
BCC FLUS BCB Clobal Advanced Braduate	Cattle products, Palm oil]
RSB Global Advanced Ploducis	 ISCC Japan FIT – Identity preserved [Palm oil]
RSB Japan FTT Biomass [Paim oil]	 ISCC Japan FIT – Segregated [Palm oil]
	 ISCC EU – Identity preserved [Palm oil, Cattle products, Soy,
ROB ICAU CORSIA Bioguiago organia [Balm oil Cattle products Sour Coffee	Timber products, Cottee, Cocoaj
• Biosuisse organic [Faint oil, Cattle products, Soy, Conee, Cocoal	 ISCC EU – Segregated [Paim oil, Cattle products, Soy, Timber products, Coffee, Cocoal
 Naturland [Cattle products, Sov, Coffee, Cocoa] 	ISCC PLUS – Identity preserved
Soil Association Organic Farming & Growing (GB and	ISCC PLUS – Segregated
Northern Ireland) [Cattle products, Soy]	ISCC CORSIA – Identity preserved
• Europe Soja [Soy]	ISCC CORSIA – Segregated
• Donau Soja [Soy]	 RSB Japan FIT Biomass – Identity Preserved [Palm oil]
 Other forest management/producer certification, please 	RSB Japan FIT Biomass – Segregated [Palm oil]
specify	 RSB Global Advanced Products – Identity preserved
	 RSB Global Advanced Products – Segregated
	 RSB Global Fuels – Identity preserved
	 RSB Global Fuels – Segregated
	 RSB ICAO CORSIA – Identity preserved
	 RSB ICAO CORSIA – Segregated
	 Europe Soja – Segregated [Soy]
	 Donau Soja – Segregated [Soy]
	 Other chain-of-custody certification, please specify

Des sets l	1
Requested	General
content	 Only volumes certified through schemes providing full DF/DCF and/or chain-of- custody model with physical traceability (e.g., identity preserved or segregated) should be reported in this question.
	 You may add a row to report different certification schemes used for the same commodity. For each commodity, ensure that the percentages reported across multiple rows sum to the percentage reported in column 3 of 8.9.
	• If you do not hold third-party certification but have obtained proof of your direct suppliers' certification for the disclosure volume (e.g., through business-to-business disclosure of the relevant documentation), report the third-party certification scheme and chain-of-custody model used by your direct supplier.
	 Third-party certification scheme providing full DF/DCF assurance (column 2) Select the type of certification you have used to determine the DF/DCF status of your disclosure volume for each commodity.
	• Note: if you are disclosing on the certification of sourced volumes, you should only report a forest management unit or producer certification when you source directly from a producer holding this certification. If your direct supplier sourced these volumes from a producer, you should obtain evidence of their chain-of-custody certification.
	Drop-down options will appear relating to the commodity you are disclosing information on.

 If you report a chain-of-custody certification, select the option with the correct model. Refer to the explanation of terms for further details on the different types of models. Note: "FSC controlled wood" should only be reported for produced volumes from Forest Management Enterprises that have been evaluated according to the FSC Controlled Wood Standard. If you are disclosing sourced volumes from FSC controlled sources, these should be reported under "FSC Chain-of-Custody certification – FSC Mix".
 Comment (column 4) (optional) You may use this column to provide details to help data users understand your response e.g., if you select "Other, please specify" in column 2 "Third-party certification scheme providing full DF/DCF assurance" provide a brief description of the scheme, including its requirements on no deforestation and no conversion, and, if relevant the chain-of-custody model used.
 Certification documentation (column 5) (optional) You may use this column to provide evidence of your or your suppliers' certificates to support your DCF claim.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All except FS

(8.9.2) Provide details of third-party certification schemes not providing full DF/DCF assurance.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to column "Is a proportion of your disclosure volume certified through a scheme not providing full DF/DCF assurance?" of 8.9.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F6.3, F6.3a)
Rationale	This question gathers information on the proportion of your disclosure volume certified through third-party certification schemes that do not provide full DF or DCF assurance, used in combination with additional control methods to determine the DF/DCF status.
Ambition	Organizations use additional control methods to determine the DF/DCF status of volumes, where third-party certification schemes do not provide full assurance.
Connection to other frameworks	TNFD Metrics & targets B AFi Core Principle 1 AFi Core Principle 11 AFi Core Principle 12

1	2a	2b	3	4	5	6
Commodity	Third-party certification type	Third-party certification scheme not providing full DF/DCF assurance	% of disclosure volume certified through scheme not providing full DF/DCF assurance	Additional control methods in place to determine DF/DCF status of volumes certified through scheme not providing full	Comment	Certification documentation

				DF/DCF assurance		
Timber products	Select from: • Forest management unit/Producer certification • Chain-of- custody certification	Select from drop- down list below:	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Select all that apply: Production unit monitoring Sourcing area monitoring Third-party certification providing full DF/DCF assurance No	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	[Attach evidence of certification]
Palm oil						
Cattle products						
Soy						
Rubber						
Сосоа						
Coffee						
Select from:						
 Timber products Palm oil Cattle products Soy Rubber Cocoa Coffee 						

[Fixed row, add row]

Third-party certification scheme not pro	oviding full DF/DCF assurance (column 2b)
Forest management unit/Producer certification	Chain-of-custody certification
 PEFC Sustainable Forest Management 	PEFC Chain-of-Custody (any type) [Timber products, Rubber]
certification [Timber products, Rubber]	 PEFC Recycled certification [Timber products, Rubber]
 SFI Forest Management standard [Timber products] 	 SFI Chain-of-Custody – Physical separation [Timber products]
 Sustainable Biomass Program [Timber products] 	 SFI Chain-of-Custody – Percentage [Timber products]
 SURE [Timber products, Palm oil, Soy] Other forest management/producer certification, please 	 Sustainable Biomass Program Chain-of-Custody – Separation method [Timber products]
specify	 SURE – Mass balance [Timber products, Palm oil, Soy]
	 RTRS chain-of custody standard – Mass balance [Soy]
	 ProTerra certification – Mass balance [Soy, Coffee, Cocoa, Cattle products, Palm oil]
	 RA Sustainable Agriculture standard: Supply chain certificate – Mass balance [Coffee, Cocoa]
	 Preferred by Nature Sustainability Framework Chain-of- Custody – Mass Balance
	 RSB Global Fuels - Controlled Blending
	RSB Global Fuels - Mass Balance
	 RSB Global Advanced Products - Controlled Blending
	 RSB Global Advanced Products - Mass Balance
	RSPO - Mass Balance [Palm oil]
	RSB EU RED Fuel - Mass balance
	 RSB Global Advanced Products - Controlled Blending
	 RSB Global Advanced Products - Mass Balance

 RSB Global Fuels - Controlled Blending
RSB Global Fuels - Mass Balance
RSB ICAO CORSIA - Mass Balance
 ISCC EU - Mass Balance [Palm oil, Cattle products, Soy, Timber products, Coffee, Cocoa]
ISCC CORSIA - Mass Balance
ISCC PLUS - Mass Balance
 ISCC PLUS - Controlled blending
 ISCC CORSIA – Mass balance
 Other chain-of-custody certification, please specify

Requested	General
content	 Volumes certified through schemes that do not provide full DF/DCF assurance will only be considered DF/DCF if you have also carried out one of the other methods (i.e., certified through a scheme that provides assurance, production unit, or sourcing area monitoring). Do not report volumes certified through schemes that do not provide full assurance in column 4 "% of disclosure volume certified through scheme not providing full DF/DCF assurance" of 8.9.1. For example, if 70% of your timber disclosure volume is certified through a mass-balance chain-of-custody certification, and you have used production unit monitoring to determine that these volumes are DCF, ensure that you reported the volumes in column 4 "% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of production unit" of 8.9 and provide details of the method in 8.9.3. If you do not hold third-party certification but have obtained proof of your direct supplier's certification for the disclosure volume (e.g., through business-to-business disclosure of the relevant documentation), report the third-party certification scheme and chain-of-custody model used by your direct supplier. You may add a row to report different certification schemes used for the same commodity.
	 Third-party certification scheme not providing full DF/DCF assurance (column 2) Select the type of certification you have used for each commodity. Note: if you are disclosing on the certification of sourced volumes, you should only report a forest management unit or producer certification when you source directly from a producer holding this certification. If your direct supplier sourced these volumes from a producer, you should obtain evidence of their chain-of-custody certification. Drop-down options will appear relating to the commodity you are disclosing information on. If you report a chain-of-custody certification, ensure you select the option with the correct model. Refer to the explanation of terms for further details on the different types of models.
	 % of disclosure volume certified through scheme not providing full DF/DCF assurance (column 3) Only volumes certified through schemes not providing full DF/DCF and/or chain-of- custody model without physical traceability (e.g., mass balance, controlled blending) should be reported in this question. Volumes provided in this question, should not be reported in column 3 "% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through scheme providing full DF/DCF assurance" of 8.9.
	 Additional control methods in place to determine DF/DCF status of volumes certified through scheme not providing full DF/DCF assurance (column 4) Your selection here should be consistent with your response to 8.9 for each commodity e.g., if you indicate in 8.9, that you have used production unit monitoring to determine the DCF status of your timber disclosure volume, select "Production unit monitoring" here. You will be able to provide details of the method in 8.9.3. Select "Third-party certification providing full DF/DCF assurance" if you also certify the commodity disclosure volume through another scheme that does provide full DF/DCF

assurance. If you select this, ensure you reported the volume in 8.9.1 column 3 "% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through certification scheme providing full DF/DCF assurance".
 Comment (column 5) (optional) You may use this column to provide details to help data users understand your response e.g., if you select "Other, please specify" in column 2 "Third-party certification scheme not providing full DF/DCF assurance" provide a brief description of the scheme, including its requirements on no deforestation and no conversion, and, if relevant the chain-of-custody model used.
 Certification documentation (column 6) (optional) You may use this column to provide evidence of your or your suppliers' third-party certificates to support your DF/DCF claim.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	F
Sector	Question level	All except FS

(8.9.3) Provide details of production unit monitoring used to determine deforestation-free (DF) or deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF) status of volumes since specified cutoff date.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question is only shown if you report a value other than '0' in column "% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of production unit" of 8.9.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F6.4a)
Rationale	This question gathers information on the proportion of the disclosure volume that has been determined to be DF or DCF via monitoring of the production unit for deforestation and conversion. Regular monitoring of the production unit is one method organizations can use to determine that no deforestation or conversion has occurred since a specified cutoff date and assure investors and other data users that their commodity volumes are DF/DCF.
Ambition	 The organization discloses on the monitoring methods used to determine DF/DCF status of volumes. The organization verifies the DF/DCF status of volumes they produce, source or use.
Connection to other frameworks	AFi Core Principle 1 AFi Core Principle 5 AFi Core Principle 6 AFi Core Principle 11 AFi Core Principle 12

0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
Commodity	% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through	Production unit monitoring approach	Description of production unit monitoring approach	DF/DCF status verified	Type of verification	% of your disclosure volume that is both determined as DF/DCF	Explain the process of verifying DF/DCF status	Attachment of verification (optional)

	monitoring of production unit					through monitoring of production unit and is verified as DF/DCF		
Timber products	[Auto- calculated with % reported in column 4 of 8.9 - 0]	 Select all that apply: Geospatial monitoring or remote sensing tool Ground-based monitoring system Community-based monitoring Other, please specify 	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	Select from: • Yes • No	Select all that apply: • First party • Second party • Third party	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	[Attachment- type column]
Palm oil								
Cattle products								
Soy								
Rubber								
Cocoa								
Coffee								
[Fixed row]	I	1	I	1	1		1	11

Requested	General
content	 When the organization knows the boundaries of production units in its own operations or from which it sources, DF/DCF volumes may be assessed directly by determining whether there has been deforestation or conversion on each production unit after the relevant cutoff date. This information may also be passed from suppliers to buyers via business-to-business value chain control mechanisms. Where suppliers are able to provide reliable data to their buyers regarding the DF/DCF status of volumes that they are supplying, based on site-level assessment, this may greatly decrease the monitoring burden on downstream companies. However, it is incumbent upon buyers to ensure that any such information is reliable. The origin of commodities must first be traced to production units before monitoring of production units becomes a viable means of determining if volumes are DF/DCF. This question therefore only applies to the volumes reported in column "% of sourced volume traceable to production unit in 8.8.1. The monitoring of the production unit should cover all deforestation and/or conversion in the production unit since the cutoff date, regardless of the current use of the land. % of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of production unit (column 1) This column is auto-calculated from the volumes disclosed in column 4 of 8.9. The rest of the information disclosed in this question should relate to these volumes. Production unit monitoring approach (column 2) Select the types of monitoring approaches you have in place at the production unit to determine that your disclosure volume disclosed in column 4 of 8.9 is DF/DCF. If none of the available options are suitable, select "Other, please specify" and a text box will appear for you to complete. Description of production unit monitoring approach (column 3)
	 question therefore only applies to the volumes reported in column "% of sourced volume traceable to production unit" in 8.8.1. The monitoring of the production unit should cover all deforestation and/or conversion in the production unit since the cutoff date, regardless of the current use of the land. % of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of production unit (column 1) This column is auto-calculated from the volumes disclosed in column 4 of 8.9. The rest of the information disclosed in this question should relate to these volumes. Production unit monitoring approach (column 2) Select the types of monitoring approaches you have in place at the production unit to determine that your disclosure volume disclosed in column 4 of 8.9 is DF/DCF. If none of the available options are suitable, select "Other, please specify" and a text box will appear for you to complete. Description of production unit monitoring approach (column 3)

 Provide a description of the monitoring approach for assessing whether any deforestation and/or conversion has taken place within the production unit, including the monitoring frequency.
• If disclosing on cattle products, you should state each of the specific value chain stages at which this monitoring has occurred, e.g., birth farm, rearing farm, fattening farm.
 DF/DCF status verified (column 4) For volumes determined to be DF/DCF through production unit monitoring, indicate if this status has been verified. Verification is a separate process, conducted by an independent
 party, from the initial process of determining volumes to be DF/DCF. This verification is distinct from certification schemes used to determine DF/DCF status of volumes, those volumes should be reported through 8.9 and 8.9.1.
% of your disclosure volume that is both determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of production unit and is verified as DF/DCF (column 6)
 This column only appears if Yes is selected in column 4 DF/DCF status verified. As a result of the verification approach, indicate the percentage of your disclosure volume that is determined to be DF/DCF through monitoring of the production unit and that has also been verified as being DF/DCF in the reporting year. The percentage given in this column cannot be greater than the percentage disclosed in column 4 of 8.9 "% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of production unit". For example, if in column 4 of 8.9, you report that 50% of disclosure volume is determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of production unit, and all of that volume is verified as being DF/DCF, report 50%.
 Explain the process of verifying DF/DCF status (column 7) This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column 4 "DF/DCF status verified". Provide a description of the approach taken for verifying the compliance of raw materials or products determined to be DF/DCF at their place of production. Include details of the party undertaking the verification, their credentials for verifying DF/DCF status, and the methods used.
 Attachment of verification (optional) (column 8) This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column 4 "DF/DCF volume is verified". If you have documentation outlining the verification of your volumes determined to be DF/DCF through production unit monitoring, this can be attached here.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Environmental Issue	Question level	F
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All except FS

(8.9.4) Provide details of the sourcing area monitoring used to determine deforestation-free (DF) or deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF) status of volumes since specified cutoff date.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question is only shown if you report a value other than '0' in column "% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of sourcing area" in 8.9.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F2.3)
Rationale	Commodity volumes can be claimed to be DF or DCF if they originate in sourcing areas where there is no or negligible risk that deforestation and/or conversion has occurred related to that

	commodity since an appropriate cutoff date. Determining this risk requires ongoing monitoring of the sourcing area. This question helps data users understand whether your organization is making DF/DCF claims based on sourcing area-level risk assessment, and how your organization is monitoring those sourcing areas to ensure the absence of deforestation or conversion risk.
Ambition	 The organization discloses on their risk assessment process used to determine no or negligible risk of sourcing areas. The organization verifies the DF/DCF volumes they produce, source or use, in which they have a methodology to determine risk and monitor this risk over time.
Connection to other frameworks	AFi Core Principle 1 AFi Core Principle 5 AFi Core Principle 10 AFi Core Principle 11 AFi Core Principle 12

0	1	2	3	4	5	6
Commodity	% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of deforestation and conversion within the sourcing area	Monitoring approach used for determining that sourcing areas have no or negligible risk of deforestation or conversion	Description of approach, including frequency of assessment	Countries/areas of origin	Sourcing areas	DF/DCF status is verified
Timber products	[Auto-calculated with volumes reported in column 5 of 8.9 - 0]	Select all that apply: • Collaborating with other organizations to develop and share risk profiles • Consultation with rights holders and other stakeholders • Ground-based monitoring • Independent studies • Information gathered through grievance mechanisms • Landscape or jurisdictional approaches • Pre-existing current and credible risk profiles/indexes • Remote sensing or other geospatial data • Third-party assessment tool • Other, please specify	Text field [maximum 4,000 characters]	Select all that apply: [List of countries/areas]	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	Select from: • Yes • No

	Image: Second	Image: series of the series	Image: series of the series

7	8	9	10	11	12
Type of verification	% of your disclosure volume that is both determined as DF/DCF through sourcing area monitoring and is verified as DF/DCF	Explain the process of verifying DF/DCF status	Attachment of verification (optional)	Use of risk classification	Attachment indicating risk classification for each sourcing area (optional)
Select all that apply: • First party • Second party • Third party	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	[Attachment functionality]	Text field [maximum 4,000 characters]	[Attachment functionality]

Requested	General
content	• Volumes can be determined to be DF/DCF when there is no or negligible risk of deforestation and/or conversion at the level of the sourcing area, with ongoing monitoring in place to ensure the risk level is up to date.
	• The sourcing area is an area or region from which materials in a value chain originate. This is more specific than the country/area level, and could include a sourcing radius or a supply-shed around a first point of collection or processing facility (e.g., a radius from a palm oil mill); a defined set of production units supplying a particular aggregator or buyer (e.g. the area covered by a smallholder cooperative); or a landscape or subnational jurisdiction (e.g. municipality) from which materials are sourced (adapted from <u>AFi, 2024</u>).
	Where the organization can trace materials to a sourcing area in which no or negligible deforestation and/or conversion has occurred since an appropriate cutoff date, they may generally consider all volumes sourced from that area to be DF/DCF. If using this approach, organizations must continue to monitor such sourcing areas to identify any change in the occurrence or risk of deforestation or conversion. Monitoring at this scale should include all deforestation/conversion, not only land use change directly linked to the commodity of interest. If there is recent ecosystem conversion linked to agriculture or forestry in a sourcing area, regardless of the direct driver or current land use, DF/DCF claims should not be made without further due diligence, monitoring, and assurance. This may necessitate monitoring at a finer scale and/or using data related to expansion of the commodity of interest or other publicly

 available information. Organizations using this approach should disclose the methodology and data used (Adapted from <u>AFi 2022</u>). This risk level monitoring must be robust and evidence based. It should be specific and consider all relevant aspects of the risks related to the commodities, locations, and suppliers under assessment. Risk assessments should use clear and well-defined metrics to objectively evaluate the risks. The methods used should be credible, current, and provide all the data necessary to effectively characterize the risk (Adapted from <u>AFi, 2020</u>).
 % of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of deforestation and conversion within the sourcing area (column 1) This column is auto-calculated from the percentage disclosed in column 5 "% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF through monitoring of sourcing area" of 8.9. The rest of the information disclosed in this question should relate to this proportion of the disclosure volume.
 Monitoring approach used for determining that sourcing areas have no or negligible risk of deforestation or conversion (column 2) Select the types of methodological approaches and/or tools you have in place to determine whether your volumes are DF/DCF. If none of the available options are suitable, select "Other, please specify" and a text box will appear for you to complete.
 Description of approach, including frequency of assessment (column 3) Provide details on the approach, scope, methods, and tools used to classify levels of risk, and how they are adapted to the specific geographies and other attributes of the relevant sourcing areas.
 Include the risk categories applied to the classification system and how your organization defines "no risk" or "negligible risk" levels (e.g., type and magnitude of threshold). Include the frequency with which you undertake an assessment to determine levels of risk.
 Countries/areas of origin (column 4) Select the countries/areas in which the sourcing areas determined to have no or negligible risk of deforestation/conversion are located.
 For further guidance on country/area lists, refer to the <u>CDP technical note: Countries, Areas</u> and <u>Regions</u>.
 Sourcing areas (column 5) Provide details of the location of the specific sourcing areas which are determined to have no or negligible risk of deforestation and/or conversion. This should include the most granular level of location data available, e.g., the subnational jurisdiction or landscape.
 DF/DCF status is verified (column 6) For volumes determined to be DF/DCF through monitoring the risk of deforestation or conversion at the sourcing area, indicate if this status has been verified. Verification is a separate process, conducted by an independent party, from the initial process of determining volumes to be DF/DCF. This verification is distinct from certification schemes used to determine DF/DCF status of volumes, those volumes should be reported through 8.9 and 8.9.1.
 % of your disclosure volume that is both determined as DF/DCF through sourcing area monitoring and is verified as DF/DCF (column 8) This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column 6 "DF/DCF status is verified". As a result of the verification approach, indicate the percentage of your disclosure volume that is determined to be DF/DCF through no or negligible risk of deforestation and/or conversion within the sourcing area that has also been verified by a relevant party as being DF/DCF. The percentage reported here cannot be higher than the percentage reported in column 5 of 8.9. For example, if in column 5 of 8.9, you report that 50% of disclosure volume is determined as DF/DCF through no or negligible risk of deforestation and/or conversion within the sourcing area, and all of that volume is verified as being DF/DCF, report 50%.
 Explain the process of verifying DF/DCF status (column 9) This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column 6 "DF/DCF status is verified".
 Provide a description of the approach taken for verifying the compliance of raw materials or products determined to be DF/DCF at the level of the sourcing area.

	 Include details of the party undertaking the verification, their credentials for verifying DF/DCF status, and the methods used. Attachment of verification (optional) (column 10)
	 This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column 6 "DF/DCF status is verified". If you have documentation outlining the verification of your volumes determined to be DF/DCF through sourcing area risk monitoring, this can be attached here.
	 Use of risk classification (column 11) Provide details on how your organization uses the risk classifications and how this affects your decision making.
Additional	Guidance on good practices for how to conduct a risk assessment and sourcing area monitoring
information	are provided by the Accountability Framework initiative's Operational Guidance on Supply Chain
	Management (AFi, 2020) and Monitoring and Verification (AFi, 2020). AFi also provide further
	guidance on deforestation- and conversion-free supply chains, in collaboration with the Science
	Based Targets initiative (SBTI) and the Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Protocol (<u>AFI, 2022</u>).

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	F
Sector	Question level	All except FS

Status and progress towards deforestation- and conversion- free (DCF) volumes

(8.10) Indicate whether you have monitored or estimated the deforestation and conversion of other natural ecosystems footprint for your disclosed commodities.

Question details	
Change from last	Modified question (2023 F1.3, F1.7)
year	
Rationale	Monitoring and estimating the deforestation and conversion footprint associated with commodity production or sourcing is key to understanding the scale of your impacts.
Ambition	• The organization assesses and discloses the deforestation and natural ecosystems conversion footprint in its direct operations and/or value chain.
Connection to other	AFi Core Principle 1
frameworks	AFi Core Principle 11
	AFi Core Principle 12

0	1	2	3
Commodity	Monitoring or estimating your deforestation and conversion footprint	Primary reason for not monitoring or estimating deforestation and conversion footprint	Explain why you do not monitor or estimate your deforestation and conversion footprint
Timber products	Select from: • Yes	Select from:	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]

	 No, but we plan to monitor or estimate our deforestation and conversion footprint in the next two years No, and we do not plan to monitor or estimate our deforestation and conversion footprint in the next two years 	 Lack of internal resources, capabilities, or expertise (e.g., due to organization size) No standardized procedure Not an immediate strategic priority Judged to be unimportant or not relevant Other, please specify 	
Palm oil			
Cattle products			
Soy			
Rubber			
Cocoa			
Coffee			
[Eived row]			

Requested	Primary reason for not monitoring or estimating deforestation and conversion footprint (column 2)
content	 This column is only presented if "No, but we plan to monitor or estimate our deforestation and conversion footprint in the next two years" or "No, and we do not plan to monitor or estimate our deforestation and conversion footprint in the next two years" is selected in column "Monitoring and estimating your deforestation and conversion footprint". Select the option that best describes the primary reason for not monitoring and estimating your deforestation.
	• If you select "Other, please specify" provide a label for the primary reason for not monitoring and estimating your deforestation and conversion footprint.
	 Explain why you do not monitor or estimate your deforestation and conversion footprint (column 3) This column is only presented if "No, but we plan to monitor or estimate our deforestation and conversion footprint in the next two years" or "No, and we do not plan to monitor or estimate our deforestation and conversion footprint in the next two years" is selected in column "Monitoring and estimating your deforestation and conversion footprint".
	• Briefly describe the primary reason selected in column "Primary reason for not monitoring or estimating deforestation and conversion footprint" and explain any plans to address this in the future.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F only
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

(8.10.1) Provide details on the monitoring or estimating of your deforestation and conversion footprint.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to 8.10.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F1.3, F1.7)

Rationale	Disclosure of the extent to which your organization monitors or estimates its deforestation and conversion footprint on land you own, manage or control, and/or within your upstream value chain, provides investors and other data users with an understanding of the scale of your impacts related to deforestation and conversion of other natural ecosystems. This question allows organizations to demonstrate transparency and awareness of the relationship between natural ecosystems and their business activities.
Ambition	The organization assesses and discloses the deforestation and natural ecosystems conversion footprint in its direct operations and/or upstream value chain.
Connection to other frameworks	TNFD Metrics & targets B AFi Core Principle 1 AFi Core Principle 5 AFi Core Principle 7 AFi Core Principle 8 AFi Core Principle 11 AFi Core Principle 12

1	2	3	4	5
Commodity	Monitoring and estimating your	% of disclosure volume	Reporting of	Year of cutoff date
	deforestation and conversion	monitored or estimated	deforestation and	
	footprint		conversion footprint	
Timber products	 Select from: We monitor the deforestation and conversion footprint on the land we own, manage or control We monitor the deforestation and conversion footprint in our value chain We estimate the deforestation and conversion footprint based on sourcing 	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	 Select all that apply: During the reporting period Since a specified cutoff date During the last 5 years Other, please specify 	Numerical field [enter a number from 1900 – 2024 using 0 decimal places]
Palm oil	area			l
Cattle products				
Sov				
Rubber				
Сосоа				
Coffee				
Select from:				
 Timber products Palm oil Cattle products Soy Rubber Casson 				
Coffee				

	I	1		
6	7	8	9	10
Known or estimated	Known or estimated	Known or estimated	Known or estimated	Describe the methods and
deforestation and	deforestation and	deforestation and	deforestation and	data sources used to
conversion footprint in the	conversion footprint since	conversion footprint	conversion footprint since	monitor or estimate your
reporting period (hectares)	the specified cutoff date	during the last five	other specified point	deforestation and
	(hectares)	years (hectares)	(hectares)	conversion footprint
Numerical field [enter a	Numerical field [enter a	Numerical field	Numerical field [enter a	Text field [maximum 1,500
number from 0-	number from 0-	[enter a number	number from 0-	characters
999,999,999,999 using a	999,999,999,999 using a	from 0-	999,999,999,999 using a	

maximum of 2 decimal	maximum of 2 decimal	999,999,999,999	maximum of 2 decimal	
places]	places]	using a maximum of	places]	
		2 decimal places]		

```
[Fixed row, add row]
```

Requested	Monitoring and estimating your deforestation and conversion footprint (column 2)
content	Select the option that best represents your monitoring or estimating of your deforestation and conversion footprint
	 If more than one option is applicable per commodity, add a row for each option. For example, if you both produce and source the commodity, you should add a row to report on the monitoring in the land you own, manage or control and a row to report on the monitoring in your value chain or estimation based on sourcing area.
	 % of disclosure volume monitored or estimated (column 3) Indicate the proportion of your disclosure volume that is covered by your monitoring or estimating of your deforestation and conversion footprint. Monitoring or estimation is for your disclosure volume including the volumes determined to be deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF). If you are both producing and sourcing volumes for a given commodity, this percentage relates to the sum of both (produced volume and sourced volume) per commodity.
	 Reporting of deforestation and conversion (column 4) Select the options that best represent the timeframe within which the known or estimated deforestation and conversion footprint is being disclosed upon. If you selected "Other, please specify", provide a year for the timeframe used.
	 Year of cutoff date (column 5) This column appears if you selected "Since a specified cutoff date" in column "Reporting of deforestation and conversion". State the year for the cutoff date used.
	Known or estimated deforestation and conversion footprint in the reporting period (hectares) (column 6)
	 This column only appears if you selected "During the reporting period" in column "Reporting of deforestation and conversion".
	 Provide the known or estimated deforestation and conversion footprint that was being driven by the commodity within the reporting period. 0 (zero) should only be used for reporting zero bectares and not for an absence of data
	Known or estimated deforestation and conversion footprint since the specified cutoff date
	(hectares) (column 7)
	 Provide the known or estimated deforestation and conversion footprint that was being driven
	 by the commodity since the cutoff date. 0 (zero) should only be used for reporting zero hectares and not for an absence of data.
	Known or estimated deforestation and conversion footprint during the last five years (hectares) (column 8)
	• This column only appears if you selected "During the last five years" in column "Reporting of deforestation and conversion".
	• Provide the known or estimated deforestation and conversion footprint that was being driven by the commodity during the last five years.
	0 (zero) should only be used for reporting zero hectares and not for an absence of data.
	Known or estimated deforestation and conversion footprint since other specified point (hectares) (column 9)
	• This column only appears if you selected "Other, please specify" in column "Reporting of deforestation and conversion".

Requested	 Provide the known or estimated deforestation and conversion footprint that was being driven by the commodity since the timeframe you specified in column "Reporting of deforestation and conversion". 0 (zero) should only be used for reporting zero hectares and not for an absence of data. Describe the methods and data sources used to monitor or estimate your deforestation and conversion footprint (column 10) Describe the procedure used to monitor or estimate your deforestation and conversion footprint. Indicate how often you monitor or estimate your deforestation and conversion footprint. This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to 8.10.
content – [theme] (if applicable)	
Additional information	 For information on whether the conversion of different land types would violate no- deforestation or no-conversion commitments, see AFi's <u>Operational Guidance: Applying the</u> <u>Definitions Related to Deforestation and Conversion (2023)</u>. A useful diagram of what constitutes conversion of natural forest into planted area can be found on page 21. For further info on monitoring or estimating your deforestation/conversion, see AFI's <u>Guidance</u> <u>on Monitoring and Verification (2020)</u>.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F only
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

(8.11) For volumes not assessed and determined as deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF), indicate if you have taken actions in the reporting year to increase production or sourcing of DCF volumes.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears you select any options except "Yes, deforestation- and conversion- free (DCF) status assessed" in column "DF/DCF status assessed for this commodity", or if a value other than "100" is disclosed in column "% of disclosure volume determined as DF/DCF in reporting year" of 8.9.
Change from last year	New question
Rationale	This question allows organizations to disclose actions taken in the reporting year related to volumes that are not yet assessed and determined as DCF. Achieving deforestation- and conversion-free value chains may take longer for organizations engaging in transformative actions across sourcing landscapes. This question allows data users to understand the actions your organization is taking to address environmental or social issues related to commodity production/sourcing and if and how these actions contribute to determining the DCF status of commodity volumes or remediate past conversion.
Ambition	 Organizations are progressing towards achieving full DCF status in their direct operations and value chain. Organizations contribute to halting deforestation and conversion on the ground by actively working with non-compliant suppliers, ensuring smallholder inclusion, and working collaboratively in landscapes/jurisdictions.

Connection to other frameworks	AFi Core Principle 12
Response options	

0	1
Commodity	Actions taken to increase production or sourcing of DCF volumes
Timber products	Select from:
	• Yes
	 No, but we plan to within the next two years
	 No, and we do not plan to within the next two years
Palm oil	
Cattle products	
Soy	
Rubber	
Cocoa	
Coffee	

Requested content	 General Do not report on actions that have been taken to already determine volumes as DCF as this should be reported in questions 8.9, 8.9.1, 8.9.2, and 8.9.3. The focus of this question is on the proportion of your disclosure volume that has not yet been determined as DCF.
	 Actions taken to increase production or sourcing DCF volumes (column 1) Select "Yes" if you have taken actions to assess the DCF status or to address issues relating to non-compliant commodity volumes in the reporting year. For example; Improving value chain visibility through supplier mapping or traceability, Increasing the uptake of certification, working collaboratively with suppliers or working collaboratively in production/sourcing landscapes.

Authoring notes						
Tags						
Environmental Issue	Question level	F				
(Theme)						
Sector	Question level	All except FS				

(8.11.1) Provide details of actions taken in the reporting year to assess and increase production/sourcing of deforestation- and conversion-free (DCF) volumes.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears you select "Yes" in column "Actions taken to increase production or sourcing of DCF volumes" of 8.11.
Change from last year	New question

Rationale	Organizational approaches to achieving DCF status should support efforts to halt deforestation and conversion on the ground by working with non-compliant suppliers, ensuring smallholder inclusion, and working collaboratively in production landscapes. Achieving deforestation- and conversion-free value chains may take longer for organisations engaging in transformative actions across sourcing landscapes. This question allows data users to understand whether your organization is taking action to address environmental or social issues related to commodity production/sourcing and if and how these actions contribute to determining the DCF status of commodity volumes.
Ambition	Organizations disclose actions taken to assesses DCF status and achieve DCF production and sourcing in their direct operations and value chain.
	• Organizations contribute to halting deforestation and conversion on the ground by actively working with non-compliant suppliers, ensuring smallholder inclusion, and working collaboratively in landscapes/jurisdictions.
Connection to other frameworks	TNFD Risk & impact management A(ii)
	AFi Core Principle 1
	AFi Core Principle 4
	AFi Core Principle 5
	AFi Core Principle 6
	AFi Core Principle 9
	AFi Core Principle 10
	AFi Core Principle 11
	AFi Core Principle 12

1	2	3	4	5	6
Commodity	Action type	% of disclosure volume that is covered by this action	Indicate whether you had any major barriers or challenges related to this action in the reporting year	Main measures identified to manage or resolve the challenges	Provide further details on the actions taken, their contribution to achieving DCF status, and any related barriers or challenges
Timber products	 Select from: Increasing traceability Increasing physical certification Increasing production unit monitoring Increasing sourcing area level monitoring Increasing supplier control systems Working with non-compliant suppliers Working with smallholders Engaging and working collaboratively in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives Working collaboratively in sector initiatives Working to remediate past conversion Other, please specify 	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 3 decimal places]	Select from: • Yes • No	Select from response drop- down list below	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]
Dolm oil					
Cattle products					
Soy					
Rubber					
---	--	--	--		
Cocoa					
Coffee					
Select from:					
 Timber products 					
 Palm oil 					
Cattle products					
• Soy					
 Rubber 					
 Cocoa 					
 Coffee 					

[Fixed row, add row]

Requested	General					
content	• Do not report on actions that have been taken to determine volumes as DCF as this should be reported in questions 8.9/8.9.1/8.9.2/8.9.3/8.9.4. The focus of this question is on the proportion of your disclosure volume where DCF status has not yet been assessed or have been assessed but not determined as DCF.					
	% of disclosure volume that is covered by this action (column 3)					
	• This figure should be the percentage of your total disclosure volume that is covered by the action selected in column 2"Action type". Do not include volumes already reported in 8.9 as DCF.					
	• For example, if you worked on increasing production unit monitoring for 100% of your disclosure volume in the reporting year and reported 60% of it as DCF in 8.9, you should report on the remaining 40% here.					
	 Indicate whether you had any major barriers or challenges related to this action in the reporting year (column 4) Select "Yes" if your organization in the reporting year experienced major barriers or challenges to implementing your selection in column 2 "Action type". For example, if you selected "Increasing physical certification" in column 2 "Action type", your organization may have experienced major barriers or challenges if it found the certification requirements to be complex. 					
	 Main measures identified to manage or resolve the challenges (column 5) This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column 4 "Indicate whether you had any major barriers or challenges related to this action in the reporting year Select the option that best describes your measure for addressing barriers or challenges to achieving DCF value chains through the action selected in column 2 "Action type". If none of the options are suitable, select 'Other, please specify' and provide a label for your measure. 					

	anu any
related barriers or challenges (column 6)	
 Provide further details on the action taken in the reporting year. Explain how the action is helping your organization achieve DCF status and wh expect to reach DCF status for your produced or sourced volumes that the action to, including any interim milestones. If you experienced any barriers or challenges in assessing the DCF status or a non-compliance for these volumes, provide further details, including: Brief description of how the barrier/challenge impacted your organization progress. Measures that your organization has identified to resolve the barriers or challenges. Plans to implement these measures. 	en you on relates ddressing n's

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All except FS

Module 8: Forests

Guidance for companies reporting on Forests - 8.12-8.17.

The full reporting guidance including explanation of terms is available via the portal/public guidance page.

Certified commodity volumes sold

(8.12) Indicate if certification details are available for the commodity volumes sold to requesting CDP Supply Chain members.

Question details	
Change from last	Modified guestion (2023 F6.3, SF1.1, SF1.1b)
year	
Rationale	This information will provide clarity to CDP Supply Chain members on whether data is available for the percentage of the total commodity volume bought from your organization that is certified by a third party. This meets the transparency expectations from requesting members and allows organizations to disclose their progress on securing a supply of sustainable raw materials and/or products. Additionally, this question allows CDP Supply Chain members to understand the primary reasons for not disclosing certification details for the volumes sold by your organization. This provides insight into the main challenges in this area and informs members on plans to address these challenges.
Connection to other	AFi Core Principle 11
frameworks	AFi Core Principle 12
Response options	

r	1	1	r		1	
0	1	2	3	4	5	6
Commodity	Third-party certification scheme adopted	Certification details are available for the volumes sold to any requesting CDP Supply Chain members	Primary reason certification details are not available for the volumes sold to any requesting CDP Supply Chain members	Explain why certification details are not available for the volumes sold to any requesting CDP Supply Chain members	Primary reason that third-party certification has not been adopted	Explain why third-party certification has not been adopted
Timber products	 Select from: Yes No, but we plan to adopt third-party certification within the next two years No, and we do not plan 	Select from: • Yes • No • Unknown We do not supply requesting members with goods and services containing this commodity	 Select from: In the process of certifying this commodity Data is confidential Insufficient resources to complete collection of data No requirement from customers to track certification levels in the past 	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]	 Select from: Lack of internal resources, capabilities, or expertise (e.g., due to organization size) No standardized procedure Not an immediate strategic priority 	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]

	to adopt third-party certification within the next two years	 Levels of certification are not recorded at the corporate level Insufficient data on what is sold to requesting member Judged to be unimportant or not relevant Other, please specify 	 Judged to be unimportant or not relevant Other, please specify 	
Palm oil				
Cattle products				
Soy				
Rubber				
Cocoa				
Coffee				
[[]ive d. nevul				

[Fixed row]

General
 This question requests information on the third-party certified raw materials and/or products that your company sells to requesting CDP Supply Chain members.
Third-party certification scheme adopted (column 1)
 Select "Yes" if a proportion of the volumes sold to any requesting CDP Supply Chain members are certified. You will be able to provide details on which members you supply certified volumes to in the following question.
Certification details are available for the volumes sold to any requesting CDP Supply Chain members (column 2)
 Select "Yes" if you can provide the percentage of the total volume sold to any of your requesting members that is certified by a third party.
Explain why certification details are not available for the volumes sold to any requesting CDP Supply Chain members (column 4)
• If you select "In the process of certifying this commodity" in column 3 "Primary reason certification details are not available for the volumes sold to any requesting CDP Supply Chain members", specify which certifying body, the scheme, and the timeline for acquiring certification.
Explain why third-party certification has not been adopted (column 6)
 Provide details on the primary reason you have specified in column 5 "Primary reason that third-party certification has not been adopted". If applicable, include the products affected, regions and facilities.
 If you have plans to adopt certification in the next two years, provide details on the type of certification, the products, and regions to be covered.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	SC only	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All except FS

(8.12.1) Provide details of the certified volumes sold to each requesting CDP Supply Chain member.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to column 2 "Certification details are available for the volumes sold to any requesting CDP Supply Chain members" in 8.12.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 SF1.1a)
Rationale	This question gathers details on the percentage of the total commodity volume bought from your organization that is certified by a third party, the certification schemes used and forms of commodities that are certified.
Connection to other	AFi Core Principle 1
frameworks	AFi Core Principle 5
	AFi Core Principle 11
	AFi Core Principle 12

	Drop-downs appear based on commodities for which "Yes" is selected in column 2 of 8.12	Options appear depending on commodities selected in column 2		Options appear depending on commodities selected in column 2	Options appear depending on commodities selected in column 2	Does not appear if '0' is reported in column 4	
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
Requesting member	Commodity	Form of commodity	Total volume of commodity sold to requesting member	Metric	Third-party certification scheme	% of the total volume of commodity sold to requesting member that is certified	Comment (opti onal)
Select from: • Member drop down list	Select from: • Timber products • Palm oil • Cattle products • Soy • Rubber • Cocoa • Coffee	Select all that apply from response drop- down options below	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,99 9 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Select from: • Metric tons • Spend • Liters • Gallons • Round wood equivalent (RWE) • Wood raw material equivalent (WRME) • Cubic meters • Square meters • Other, please specify	Select from response drop- down options below	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Text field [maximum 1,000 characters]

[Add Row]

Timber products:	Cattle products:
 Boards, plywood, engineered wood 	• Beef
 Cellulose-based textile fiber 	 By-products (e.g. glycerin, gelatin)
 Goods not for resale (GNFR) 	• Cattle
 Hardwood logs 	Hides/ leather
• Paper	• Tallow
 Primary packaging 	Tallow biodiesel
• Pulp	 Other form of cattle products, please specify
 Sawn timber, veneer, chips 	
 Secondary packaging 	
Softwood logs	
 Tertiary packaging 	Soy:
 Unprocessed wood fiber 	Embedded soy
 Wood-based bioenergy 	• Soybean meal
 Other form of timber products, please specify 	• Soybean oil
	Soy biodiesel
	Soy derivatives
Palm oil:	Whole soybeans
 Crude palm kernel oil (CPKO) 	• Other form of soy, please specify
Crude palm oil (CPO)	
 Fresh fruit bunches (FFB) 	Other please specify
Palm biodiesel	
 Palm kernel meal (PKM) 	
 Palm kernel oil derivatives 	
 Palm oil derivatives 	
 Refined palm oil 	
 Other form of palm oil, please specify 	

Third-party certification scheme (column 6)		
Forest management unit/Producer certification	Chain-of-custody certification	
 FSC Forest Management certification [Timber products, 	• FSC Chain-of-Custody certification (any type) [Timber products,	
Rubber]	Rubber]	
 FSC Controlled Wood certification [Timber] 	 FSC Recycled certification [Timber products] 	
 RSPO producer/grower certification [Palm oil] 	 RSPO supply chain certification – Identity Preserved [Palm oil] 	
 Preferred by Nature Sustainability Framework RTRS 	 RSPO supply chain certification – Segregated [Palm oil] 	
standard for Responsible Soy Production [Soy]	Preferred by Nature Sustainability Framework Chain-of-Custody	
 RA Sustainable Agriculture standard: Farm certificate 	 Segregated 	
[Coffee, Cocoa]	 RTRS chain-of custody standard – Segregated [Soy] 	
 ProTerra certification [Soy, Coffee, Cocoa, Cattle 	• RA Sustainable Agriculture standard: Supply chain certificate –	
products, Palm oil]	Identity preserved [Coffee, Cocoa]	
ISCC CORSIA ISCC Japan FIT [Palm oil]ISCC EU [Palm	RA Sustainable Agriculture standard: Supply chain certificate –	
oil, Cattle products, Soy, Timber products, Coffee,	Segregated [Coffee, Cocoa]	
	ProTerra certification – Identity preserved [Soy, Coffee, Cocoa,	
RSB Japan FTT Biomass [Paim oil]	Cattle products, Palm oil	
RSB Global Fuels	ProTerra certification – Segregated [Soy, Coffee, Cocoa, Cattle products, Dalm cill]	
• RSB ICAO CORSIA	products, Palm oil	
Biosuisse organic [Palm oil, Cattle products, Soy, Coffee,	• ISCC Japan FIT – Identity preserved [Paim oil]	
Naturiand [Cattle products, Soy, Coffee, Cocoa]Soil Association Organia Farming & Crowing (CP and	• ISCC EU – Identity preserved [Paim oil, Cattle products, Soy,	
Northern Ireland) [Cattle products_Sov]	Infiber products, conee, cocoaj	
Europe Soia [Sov]	• ISCC ED - Segregated [Pain oil, Cattle products, Soy, Timber products, Coffee, Cocceal	
	 ISCC PLUS – Identity preserved 	
Donau Soja [Soy] DEEC Sustainable Forest Management	ISCC PLUS - Segregated	
• PERC Sustainable Polest Management	• ISCC COPSIA - Identity preserved	
SEL Forest Management standard [Timber products]	ISCC CORSIA = Identity preserved	
Suptainable Piemase Program [Timber products]	BSB Jopon FIT Piomono Jenetity Preserved [Polm oil]	
Sustainable Diomass Flogram [Imper products] Superint Timber products Date oil Soul	COD Japan FTT Diomass – Identity FTeserved [FalfIT 01]	
• SURE [TIMBER PRODUCTS, Paint on, Soy]	ROD Japan FIT Diomass – Segregaleu [Paim oii] ROD Clobal Advanced Products – Identity processed	
Other forest management/producer certification, please	ROD Global Advanced Products – Identity preserved	
specity	• KSB Global Advanced Products – Segregated	

 RSB Global Fuels – Identity preserved
 RSB Global Fuels – Segregated
 RSB ICAO CORSIA – Identity preserved
 RSB ICAO CORSIA – Segregated
 Europe Soja – Segregated [Soy]
 Donau Soja – Segregated [Soy]
 PEFC Chain-of-Custody (any type) [Timber products, Rubber]
 PEFC Recycled certification [Timber products, Rubber]
 SFI Chain-of-Custody – Physical separation [Timber products]
 SFI Chain-of-Custody – Percentage [Timber products]
 Sustainable Biomass Program Chain-of-Custody – Separation method [Timber products]
 SURE – Mass balance [Timber products, Palm oil, Soy]
 RTRS chain-of custody standard – Mass balance [Soy]
 ProTerra certification – Mass balance [Soy, Coffee, Cocoa, Cattle products, Palm oil]
 RA Sustainable Agriculture standard: Supply chain certificate – Mass balance [Coffee, Cocoa]
 Preferred by Nature Sustainability Framework Chain-of-Custody Mass Balance
 RSB Global Fuels - Controlled Blending
 RSB Global Fuels - Mass Balance
 RSB Global Advanced Products - Controlled Blending
 RSB Global Advanced Products - Mass Balance
 RSPO - Mass Balance [Palm oil]
 RSB EU RED Fuel - Mass balance
 RSB Global Advanced Products - Controlled Blending
 RSB Global Advanced Products - Mass Balance
 RSB Global Fuels - Controlled Blending
 RSB Global Fuels - Mass Balance
 RSB ICAO CORSIA - Mass Balance
• ISCC EU - Mass Balance [Palm oil, Cattle products, Soy, Timber
products, Coffee, Cocoa]
ISCC CORSIA - Mass Balance
ISCC PLUS - Mass Balance
 ISCC PLUS - Controlled blending
 Other chain-of-custody certification, please specify

Requested	Requesting member (column 1)
content	 Add a row for each CDP Supply Chain requesting member for which you can provide the percentage of products sold to requesting members that are third-party certified. You should not add rows for requesting members for which you cannot provide this percentage. Disclosers must check that the requesting members presented in this table are correct for their organization for the reporting period.
	Commodity (column 2)
	 Drop-down options will appear relating to the commodity you are disclosing information on. Add one row for each commodity that you can provide data on the percentage of the total volume of commodity sold to the requesting member selected in column 1 "Requesting member" that is certified.
	• You are expected to provide data for all commodities included in your disclosure.
	Total volume of commodity sold to member (column 4)
	 Provide a figure for the total volume of a specific commodity (either as raw materials or manufactured goods) sold to a specific requesting member. If the figure is an estimation, please state this in column 8 "Comment (optional)". You are able to report your figure in procurement spend instead of volume. This should be in
	the same currency selected in 1.2. % of the total volume of commodity sold to requesting member that is certified (column 7)

 Indicate the percentage that best represents how much of the disclosed commodity sold to the requesting member is currently certified by the scheme selected in column 6 "Third-party certification scheme". Note that the percentage disclosed in this column should refer to the percentage of total.
Note that the percentage disclosed in this country should refer to the percentage of total
volume that is sold to this specific member. For example:
% of total commodity volume sold to member that is certified Certified commodity volume sold to requesting memberr 100
Total volume of commodity sold to requesting member 7,100
Comment (optional) (column 8)
 You can use this column to provide further details if you wish.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	SC only	
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	F
Sector	Question level	All except FS

Emissions

(8.13) Does your organization calculate the GHG emission reductions and/or removals from land use management and land use change that have occurred in your direct operations and/or upstream value chain?

Question details	
Change from last	Modified question (2023 SF3.1)
year	
Rationale	Understanding the GHG emissions reductions/removals from land use management and land use change can inform mitigation strategies. This question enables requesting CDP Supply Chain members to understand progress towards emissions reduction targets and it allows organizations to assess progress with regards to reducing emissions beyond business-as-usual scenarios (beyond standard maintenance/ replacement activities).

Rows appear if corresponding disclosure tag present		Only appears if either "No" opti	ion selected in column 1
0	1	2	3
Commodity	GHG emissions reductions and removals from land use management and land use change calculated	Primary reason your organization does not calculate GHG emissions reductions and removals from land use management and land use change	Explain why your organization does not calculate GHG emissions reductions and removals from land use management and land use change
Timber products	Select from:	 Select from: Lack of internal resources, capabilities, or expertise 	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]

	 Yes, and willing to share details with requesting CDP Supply Chain members Yes, but not willing to share details with requesting CDP Supply Chain members No, but plan to do so in the next two years No, and do not plan to do so in the next two years 	 (e.g., due to organization size) No standardized procedure Not an immediate strategic priority Judged to be unimportant or not relevant Other, please specify 	
Palm oil			
Cattle products			
Soy			
Rubber			
Сосоа			
Coffee			
[Fixed row]	•	•	•

[Fixed row]

Dec. sets 1	
Requested	General
content	 The GHG Protocol is developing new Land Sector and Removals Guidance. This new guidance is currently in the pilot testing and review phase and will be finalized and published in 2024. Companies responding to the CDP 2024 climate change questionnaire should report in accordance with existing GHG Protocol corporate standards and are not required to adhere to the draft Land Sector and Removals Guidance, as it is still under development. Emissions reductions and removals from land use management and land use change could come from land use activities (forest management) and direct land use change (afforestation, reforestation, restoration) within the organization's direct operations and/or upstream value chain Select "Yes" if your organization has activities in its direct operations and/or upstream value chain that have been part of a defined program of emissions reduction activities or where additional investment beyond standard maintenance/replacement has been made to reduce GHG emissions or enhance GHG removals. This question does not include estimates of technological GHG removals and storage (e.g., carbon capture and storage, direct air capture, enhanced weathering/mineralization, etc.) Explain why your organization does not calculate the GHG emissions and removals from land use management and land use change (column 3) This column only appears if you select either of the "No" options in column 1 "GHG emissions reductions and removals from land use management and land use change calculated". Provide an explanation as to why you do not calculate the GHG emission reductions and/or removals from land use management and land use change including any plans to address this in the future.
	1

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	SC only	
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	F
Sector	Question level	All except FS

(8.13.1) Provide details on the actions your organization has taken in its direct operations and/or upstream value chain that have resulted in reduced GHG emissions and/or enhanced removals.

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes, and willing to share details with requesting CDP
dependencies	Supply Chain members" in response to column 1 "GHG emissions reductions and removals
	from land use management and land use change calculated" of 8.13.
Change from last	Minor change (2023 SF3.1a)
year	
Rationale	Understanding the GHG emissions/removals from land use management and land use change can inform mitigation strategies. This question enables CDP supply chain requesting members to understand progress towards emissions targets and it allows organizations to assess progress with regards to reducing emissions beyond business-as-usual scenarios (beyond standard maintenance/replacement activities).

1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
Commodity	Description of actions	CO2e reductions and removals achieved from base year (metric tons CO2e)	Base year	Emissions accounting boundary	Scope	Emissions accounting methodology and standards	Explain calculation
Select from: • Timber products • Palm oil • Cattle products • Soy • Rubber • Cocoa • Coffee	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number between 1900- 2024]	 Select from: Included in the corporate GHG inventory boundary Partly included in the corporate GHG inventory boundary Not included in the corporate GHG inventory Not included in the corporate GHG inventory Uncertain 	Select from drop-down list below	 Select all that apply: GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard Corporate Value Chain (Scope 3) Standard The GHG Protocol for Project Accounting LULUCF Guidance for GHG Project Accounting Value chain (scope 3) intervention guidance The GHG Protocol Agricultural Guidance Accounting for natural climate solutions guidance ISO 14064-1:2018 An established project-level methodology, please specify 	l ext field [maximum 1,000 characters]

[Add row]

Scope (column 6)

- Scope 1
- Scope 2 (location-based)
- Scope 2 (market-based)
- Scope 1+2 (location-based)
- Scope 1+2 (market-based)
- Scope 1+2 (location-based) +3 (upstream)
- Scope 1+2 (location-based) +3 (downstream);
- Scope 1+2 (location-based) +3 (upstream & downstream)
- Scope 1+2 (market-based) +3 (upstream)
- Scope 1+2 (market-based) +3 (downstream)
- Scope 1+2 (market-based) +3 (upstream & downstream)
- Scope 3 (upstream)
- Scope 3 (downstream)
- Scope 3 (upstream & downstream)
- Scope 3: Purchased goods & services
- Scope 3: Capital goods
- Scope 3: Fuel- and energy-related activities (not included in Scopes 1 or 2)
- Scope 3: Upstream transportation & distribution
- Scope 3: Waste generated in operations
- Scope 3: Business travel
- Scope 3: Employee commuting
- Scope 3: Upstream leased assets
- Scope 3: Investments
- Scope 3: Downstream transportation and distribution
- Scope 3: Processing of sold products
- Scope 3: Use of sold products
- Scope 3: End-of-life treatment of sold products
- Scope 3: Downstream leased assets
- Scope 3: Franchises
- Other, please specify

Requested	General
content	 You should answer this question in the context of the reporting year, for your disclosed commodities, and only for actions implemented related to land use management and land use change. The actions implemented could include any intervention that introduces a change to production, practice or switched supply to reduce emissions and/or enhance removals. The implementation may include several activities that reduce or remove emissions in different ways and that may or may not be included within the corporate GHG inventory.
	 Description of actions (column 2) Provide an explanation as to how the action implemented has resulted in GHG emissions
	 The company should be able to demonstrate that their actions substantively contributed to or enable the resulting emissions benefit. If it is a joint approach with other companies that have resulted in an emissions benefit, this should be stated here. Examples of actions implemented could include:
	 The increased procurement/production of commodities traceable to origin; The increased procurement/production of certified commodities;
	 A verifiable reduction in deforestation and conversion of other natural ecosystems;
	 The increased procurement/production of commodities compliant with no deforestation and or no conversion commitments, policies, goals, targets, or other obligations;
	 Ecosystem restoration/reforestation/afforestation projects.

	 CO2e reductions and removals achieved from base year (metric tons CO2e) (column 3) To understand the net change, it is important to report these reductions and removals in the context of the base year. The base year will be prior to any action being implemented. Enter the expected annual CO₂e reductions or removals in metric tons that have occurred. It is acknowledged that this figure is likely to be an estimate. Reductions should be reported compared to emissions in the base year. Removals should be reported compared to the cumulative rate of removal in the base year.
	 Base year (column 4) The base year is the year against which you are comparing your reductions or removals achieved. Enter your base year from which you are reporting your CO₂e reductions. This is prior to the action being implemented, or within a reasonable timeframe (i.e. where data is available and can be verified). You cannot have a base year that is in the future.
	 Emissions accounting boundary (column 5) In line with GHG Protocol, when companies implement internal projects that reduce GHG emissions from their operations, the resulting reductions are usually captured in their inventory's boundaries. If the claims to the emissions reductions are sold to third parties as carbon credits, then the reporting company shall not include them in the corporate inventory. If companies make changes to their own operations that result in GHG emissions changes at sources not included in their own inventory boundary, these reductions shall be reported separately from the GHG inventory.
	 Scope (column 6) If you have selected "Included in the corporate GHG inventory boundary" or "Partly included in the corporate GHG inventory boundary" you will need to select the relevant scopes. The scopes will depend on the operations owned or controlled by a particular company. For most processors, traders, distributors, manufacturers, and retailers, emissions would be considered scope 3 emissions from purchased goods and services (i.e. emissions embedded in the purchase of raw materials). However, these emissions may fall under scope 1 for vertically integrated food companies and producers.
	 Emissions accounting methodology and standards (column 7) Select the options that best describe the methods and standards used to calculate your emissions reduction figure reported in column 3 "CO₂e reductions". If none of the options are applicable to your organization, select "An established project-level methodology, please specify" and indicate the methodology you used to calculate the figure in column 3 "CO₂e reductions and removals achieved from base year (metric tons CO₂e)".
	 Explain calculation (column 8) If the reported emission reductions and removals are only partly included in the corporate GHG inventory, specify the share included and explain how it was defined.
Additional information	 The following GHG calculations tools can be used for assessing commodity-specific emissions: <u>RSPO PalmGHG Calculator</u> <u>GHG Protocol Pulp and Paper tool</u> <u>Cool Farm tool</u> <u>FAO EX-ACT tool</u> For practical examples of companies that are accounting for GHG emissions from land use and land use change, see the <u>Accounting for Natural Climate Solutions Guidance</u>.

Tags		
Corporate authority	SC only	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

Legal compliance

(8.14) Indicate if you assess your own compliance and/or the compliance of your suppliers with forest regulations and/or mandatory standards, and provide details.

Question details	
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F6.5, F6.6, F6.6a)
Rationale	This question gathers data on how your organization assessed compliance with forest laws and regulations in its direct operations and the rest of its value chain within the reporting year. Assessment of applicable laws is an important aspect of social and environmental due diligence, and good practice that promotes legal compliance in the countries/areas of origin of commodities, including when acquiring lands and resources. For those organizations with operations in Brazil, compliance with the Brazilian Forest Code indicates that organizations are working to ensure their production in Brazil is compliant with national legislation.
Ambition	 The organization is compliant with all applicable laws and regulations in their direct operations.
Connection to other frameworks	AFi Core Principle 6 AFi Core Principle 11

1	2	3	4	5
Assess legal compliance with forest regulations	Aspects of legislation considered	Procedure to ensure legal compliance	Indicate if you collect data regarding compliance with the Brazilian Forest Code	Please explain
Select from:	Select all that apply:	Select all that apply:	Select from:	Text field [maximum 5,000 characters]
 Yes, from suppliers Yes, from owned, managed and/or controlled land Yes, from both suppliers and owned/managed/controlled land No, but we plan to within the next two years No, and we do not plan to within the next two years 	 Land use rights Environmental protection Forest-related rules, including forest management and biodiversity conservation, where directly related to wood harvesting Third parties' rights Labor rights Human rights protected under international law 	 Certification First party audits Ground-based monitoring Remote sensing or other geospatial monitoring Second party audits Supplier self- declaration Third party tools Third party databases Third party audits 	 Yes No, but we plan to collect data on this indicator within the next two years No, and we do not plan to collect data on this indicator within the next two years 	

The principle of free prior and informed consent (FPIC), including as set out in the UN Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples Tax, anti-corruption, trade and customs regulations	e, • Other, please specify s
--	------------------------------------

[Fixed row]

Requested	General			
content	• This question requests information on the mechanisms your organization has in place to ensure legal compliance of the commodities you produce and/or source. This includes compliance with laws and regulations in owned or managed land, in the case of producers, or assessment of legal compliance of the suppliers in your value chain. This can relate to specific laws from the countries where the commodities are produced, laws from consumer countries/areas (e.g. US Lacey Act), or international laws (e.g. CITES).			
	Aspects of legislation considered (column 2)			
	• This column appears if any "Yes" option is selected in column 1 "Assess legal compliance with forest regulations".			
	• Select the aspects of legislation which are considered as part of the assessment process when determining compliance with forest regulations and mandatory standards.			
	Procedure to ensure legal compliance (column 3)			
	 This column appears if any "Yes" option is selected in column 1 "Assess legal compliance with forest regulations". 			
	• Select the tools and methods used by your organization to ensure that commodities you produce and/or source are compliant with forest regulations and mandatory standards from the respective countries/areas of origin or from consumer countries/areas (e.g. EU Timber Regulation).			
	Indicate if you collect data regarding compliance with the Brazilian Forest Code (column 4)			
	This column appears if:			
	 You assess legal compliance of the land you own, manage and/or control, and you own/manage/control land in Brazil. 			
	 You assess legal compliance of your suppliers, and you source volumes from Brazil. 			
	Data collection regarding compliance with the Brazilian Forest Code can include:			
	 % of owned and/or managed properties registered on the Rural Environmental Registry (CAR) database, with active status. 			
	 % of owned and/or managed properties with Legal Reserve (RL) and/or Permanent Protected Area (APP) deficit. 			
	 % of owned and/or managed properties with signed Terms of Commitment of the Environmental Regularization Program (PRA). 			
	 % of owned and/or managed properties with no gross deforestation after July 2008. 			
	Please explain (column 5)			
	• If your process for ensuring legal compliance focuses on specific laws, indicate which laws and/or mandatory standards your organization considers when assessing compliance aspects.			
	• Provide further details on the procedure, including the specific tools and methods, used by your organization to ensure that commodities you produce and/or source are compliant with forest regulations and mandatory standards from your respective countries/areas of origin or from consumer countries/areas (e.g. EU Timber Regulation).			

	 If your assessment prioritizes certain national or subnational jurisdictions based on higher deforestation risk, provide an explanation.
	• If applicable, provide details of the data collected for compliance with the Brazilian Forest Code, and the methods used to collect the data.
	 If you do not assess legal compliance with forest regulations, provide an explanation on the reasons why, and any plans to do so within the next two years.
	• If you source and/or produce volumes in Brazil, but do not collect data on the Brazilian Forest Code, provide an explanation on the reasons why, and any plans to do so within the next two years.
Additional	For an overview of the Brazilian Forest Code see WWF (2015), and for further information on
information	assessing compliance with the Forest Code consult Proforest (2017).

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F
(Theme)		
	Question level	All (except FS)
Sector		

Landscape and jurisdictional approaches and initiatives

(8.15) Do you engage in landscape (including jurisdictional) initiatives to progress shared sustainable land use goals?

Question details	
Change from last year	Minor change (2023 F6.10)
Rationale	A growing number of organizations, as well as platforms such as the Consumer Goods Forum and the Soft Commodities Forum, are incorporating landscape and jurisdictional approaches and initiatives as a part of corporate sustainability strategies. Working collaboratively with multiple actors at landscape and jurisdictional scale is increasingly accepted as a best practice approach to driving conservation and restoration impacts at scale, tackling deforestation and conversion commitments through a value chain and achieving sustainability goals, especially where there are systemic challenges in production landscapes. This question helps data users to understand which organizations are taking this approach and engaging in such landscape and jurisdictional initiatives.
Ambition	 The organization engages collaboratively to drive shared goals that contribute to positive outcomes in landscapes and jurisdictions.
Connection to other frameworks	AFi Core Principle 4 AFi Core Principle 10

1	2	3
Engagement in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives	Primary reason for not engaging in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives	Explain why your organization does not engage in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives
Select from:	Select from:	Text field [maximum 1,500 characters]
 Yes, we engage in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives 	 Benefits of engaging in landscapes/jurisdictions unclear Insufficient data on operations 	

•	No, we do not engage in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives, but we plan to in the next two years No, we do not engage in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives, and we do not plan to within the next	•	Lack of internal resources, capabilities, or expertise (e.g., due to organization size) Lack of knowledge or information on how to engage in landscape and/or jurisdictional initiatives	
	two years	••••	No standardized procedure No suitable initiatives to engage in Not an immediate strategic priority Judged to be unimportant or not relevant Other, please specify	

[Fixed row]

Requested	General
content	 Engagement in landscape approaches and initiatives differ from other local engagements in that the goals and outcomes are defined at the landscape level and reached collectively through a multi-stakeholder governance process and are jointly monitored and reported on through an integrated landscape management framework. Engagement can range from involvement in set-up and management of an initiative to preferential sourcing, or undertaking any activities that supports the goals of the landscape or jurisdictional initiative. Select "Yes, we engage in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives" if you have any engagement activities aligned with the collective goals of a landscape or jurisdictional initiative, regardless of whether these activities are linked to your own sourcing or production of commodities or the activities are separate to your own sourcing/production.
	 Primary reason for not engaging in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives (column 2) Only appears if "No, we do not engage in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives, but we plan to in the next two years" or "No, we do not engage in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives, and we do not plan to within the next two years" is selected in column "Engagement in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives". Select the option that best describes the primary reason why your organization is currently not engaging in landscape and/or jurisdictional initiatives. If you select "Other, please specify", provide a label for primary reason for not engaging in landscape and/or jurisdictional initiatives.
	 Explain why your organization does not engage in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives (column 3) Only appears if "No, we do not engage in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives, but we plan to in the next two years" or "No, we do not engage in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives, and we do not plan to within the next two years" is selected in column "Engagement in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives". Describe the reasons your organization does not currently engage in landscape/jurisdictions initiatives and briefly explain your selected criteria in column "Primary reason for not engage in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives". If you select "No, we do not engage in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives, but we plan in the next two years" in column "Engagement in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives, so the engagement in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives, so the engagement, timeframes, and investment.

Authoring notes						
Tags						
Corporate authority	Corporate authority Capital Markets					
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	F				
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)				

(8.15.1) Indicate the criteria you consider when prioritizing landscapes and jurisdictions for engagement in collaborative approaches to sustainable land use and provide an explanation.

Question details

Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes, we engage in landscape/				
dependencies	jurisdictional initiatives" in response to column "Engagement in				
	landscape/jurisdictional initiatives" of 8.15.				
Change from last	Minor change (2023 F6.10a)				
year					
Rationale	To effectively address deforestation, achieve sustainability targets, and to secure supply chain operations, organizations need to actively engage in the landscapes/jurisdictions they depend on. They will likely have key knowledge and expertise to share with existing initiatives and be able to progress shared goals effectively. Investors and other data users are interested in knowing how organizations identify collaborations that maximize value and positive impact. Prioritizing a landscape should go beyond a country/area level analysis to the regions within a value chain that pose the highest risk from deforestation and conversion. It will also identify landscapes that present opportunities for collaboration, such as governmental commitments and the presence of existing initiatives, including for production, conservation, and restoration activities. This requires an understanding of the overlay between footprint and risk/opportunity within these production landscapes.				
	It is critical that organizations establish a definition for the priority landscapes within their sourcing footprint, and a set of criteria for choosing which landscape to engage in – such as a risk of non-compliance with sourcing policies or the presence of conditions that foster meaningful engagement. This ensures that the engagement and type of intervention integrates with the organization's sustainability strategy and risk assessment approach. Prioritizing action is important to maximize the potential impact of the engagement. It is important to consider enabling conditions both in the landscape/jurisdiction and in the organization.				
Ambition	• The organization engages collaboratively to drive shared goals that contribute to positive outcomes in landscapes and jurisdictions.				
	 The organization prioritizes which landscapes or jurisdictions to engage in based on where they are well-placed to have positive impact. 				
Connection to other	AFi Core Principle 4				
frameworks	AFi Core Principle 10				

	1	2
	Criteria for prioritizing landscapes/jurisdictions for engagement	Explain your process for prioritizing landscapes/jurisdictions for engagement
Se	lect all that apply:	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]
•	Ability to contribute to/ build on existing landscape/jurisdictional initiatives	
•	Access to new markets	
	Organization has operational presence in area	
•	Current and future sourcing risk	
•	Local government's commitment to sustainable land use	
•	Opportunity to build resilience at scale	
•	Opportunity for increased human well-being in area	
•	Opportunity to increase market access for smallholders and local communities	
•	Opportunity to participate in new markets or financing mechanisms for the agricultural sector	
•	Opportunity to protect and restore natural ecosystems	
•	Presence of a neutral convener or implementer	
•	Recognized as priority landscape by credible multi-stakeholder groups or industry platforms	
•	Response to regulation	
•	Response to voluntary sectoral agreement	
•	Risk of biodiversity loss	

•	Risk of deforestation, forests/land degradation, or conversion of other natural ecosystems	
•	Risk of fires	
•	Risk of human rights issues	
•	Risk of issues related to land tenure rights	
•	Risk of supplier non-compliance in area	
•	Risk of water stress	
•	Stakeholder/investor request	
•	Supply of commodities strategically important	
•	Other, please specify	
•	No criteria considered	

Requested	Criteria for prioritizing landscapes/jurisdictions for engagement (column 1)
content	 Select all the criteria your organization considers when prioritizing landscapes/jurisdictions for engagement. If you select "Other, please specify", provide a label for criteria for prioritizing landscapes/jurisdictions for engagement.
	 Explain your process for prioritizing landscapes/jurisdictions for engagement (column 2) You may describe the process your organization followed for prioritizing landscapes/jurisdictions to engage collaboratively and briefly explain your selected criteria. If you selected "No criteria considered", explain why your organization does not consider any criteria when prioritizing landscapes/jurisdictions for engagement, and if there are plans to consider any of the criteria in the future.

Authoring notes						
Tags						
Corporate authority	Corporate authority Capital Markets					
Environmental Issue	Question level	F only				
(Theme)						
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)				

(8.15.2) Provide details of your engagement with landscape/jurisdictional initiatives to sustainable land use during the reporting year.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes, we engage in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives" in response to column "Engagement in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives" of 8.15.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F6.10b)
Rationale	This question allows data users to understand: the landscape/jurisdictional initiatives you engage with, the nature of the engagement, the sustainability goals supported by your organization's activities, the investment, and how progress is monitored. Working collaboratively with multiple actors at a landscape and jurisdictional scale is increasingly accepted as a best practice approach to driving conservation and restoration results at scale, transitioning towards deforestation and conversion free production and achieving sustainability goals, especially where there are systemic challenges in production landscapes. Responses will provide valuable insights into good practice for corporate involvement in landscape and jurisdictional initiatives.
Ambition	The organization engages collaboratively to drive shared goals that contribute to positive outcomes in landscapes and jurisdictions.
Connection to other frameworks	TNFD Governance C TNFD Strategy B
	AFi Core Principle 4

AFi Core Principle 10

1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
Landscape/jurisdiction	Name of	Country/area	Name of	Attach	Indicate if	Area covered	Type of
ID	initiative	· · · · · , · · · · ·	landscape	public	vou can	by the initiative	engagement
			or	information	provide the	(ha)	J.J.
			iurisdiction	about the	size of the	()	
			area	initiative	area		
				(optional)	covered by		
				(the initiative		
Select from: LJ1 – LJ25	Text field	Select from:	Text field	Attachment	Select from:	Numerical field	Select all that
	Imaximum	 List of Forests- 	Imaximum	functionality		lenter a number	apply:
	500	countries/areas	500			from 0-	Convener
	characters		characters			999 999 999 999	Leads or
			onaraotoroj		• No, area	using a	facilitates the
		specify			IS Under a sum	maximum of 4	design set-
					Unknown		up and high-
					• NO,		up, and nign≞ lovel
					other		management
					reason,		of the
					please		initiativo
					specity		Dortnor:
							 Partner. Shoree
							Sildles
							responsibility
							with other
							stakenoiders
							to manage
							anu
							implement
							actions.
							• Implementer:
							Executes
							actions based
							on the
							collective
							goals
							Funder:
							Provides full
							or partial
							financial
							resources
							 Other, please
							specify
				1			

9	10	11	12	13	14	
Engagement start Engagement end year year		Estimated Landscape goals investment over supported by the project period engagement		Organization actions supporting initiative	Type of partners engaged in the initiative design and implementation	
Numerical field [enter a number between 1900 – 2050]	Select from: • Please specify • Not defined	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places and no commas]	 Select all that apply: Response drop- down list below table 	 Select all that apply: Response drop- down list below table 	 Select all that apply: Financial institution National government Sub-national government Indigenous peoples Local communities NGO and/or civil society Producers Private sector 	

		 Other, please specify

15	16	17	18	19	20
Description of engagement	Collective monitoring framework used to measure progress towards landscape goals and actions	State the achievements of your engagement so far and how progress is monitored	Claims made	Type of claim made	Provide further details on your claim
Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	 Select from: Yes, progress is collectively monitored using a shared external framework, please specify Yes, progress is monitored using an internally defined framework No, but we are planning to monitor progress in the next two years No, and we do not plan to monitor progress in the next two years 	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	 Select from: Yes, we are making a claim No, we are not making any claims, but we plan to in the next two years No, we are not making any claims, and we do not plan to within the next two years 	Select from: Individual claim Collective claim Both individual and collective Other, please specify	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]

[Add row]

Landscape goals supported by engagement (column 12)	
 Environmental: Avoided deforestation/conversion of other natural ecosystems and/or decreased degradation rate Biodiversity protected and/or restored Carbon offsetting Decreased ecosystem degradation rate Ecosystem services maintained and/or enhanced Forest fires monitored and prevented Improved community resilience from climate adaptation plans or mitigation efforts Improved rate of carbon sequestration (e.g., through restoration) Increased and/or maintained protected areas Natural ecosystems conserved and/or restored Payments for Ecosystem Services (PES) scheme in place Reduced emissions from land use change and/or agricultural production Adequate water availability, water quality or access to WASH (Water, Sanitation and Hygiene) services Other environmental landscape goal supported by engagement, please specify 	 Improved business models that enable inclusion (including smallholders) Improved capacity for community engagement in multi-stakeholder processes Improved standard of living, especially for vulnerable and/or marginalized groups Income diversification amongst producers in area Increased rate of employment in the rural economy Respect, protect, and fulfil human rights Rights to land and resources recognized and protected, and related conflicts reduced Other social landscape goal supported by engagement, please specify Production: Improved and/or maintained soil health Increased uptake of certification Multi-commodity production promoted and farmer/supplier dependency on individual companies reduced Reliable commodity traceability and landscape monitoring/data collection system Sustainability of other natural resource-based production
place and maintained	sectors promoted to and recognized by relevant stakeholders (e.g. mining, natural forest management and non-extractive uses)

•	Promotion of transparency, participation, inclusion, and coordination in landscape policy, planning, and management Other governance landscape goal supported by engagement, please specify	 Uptake of regenerative agriculture (e.g., agroforestry) practic Other production landscape goal supported by engagement, please specify
		Other:
S		 Other, please specify
•	Credit available to family farms and/or local communities	
	outcomes of landscape/jurisdictional initiative	
•	Implementation of livelihood activities/practices that reduce pressure on forests	
	Organization actions supporting initiative (column 13)	
P	articipate in planning and multi-stakeholder alignment:	Enhance government and capacity:
•	with timebound targets and milestones for the initiative	 Support local governments (or equivalent) to enhance landscape governance structure, and provide them with
•	Collaborate on establishing and managing monitoring system for deforestation, natural ecosystem conversion and/or	resources to develop and implement sustainable landscape policies and/or management plan
	degradation	 Support enforcement of land-use and/or zoning plans Other actions relating to one provide an endormal and connection.
	for biodiversity, habitat fragmentation and/or threats to IUCN Red List species in priority areas	 Other actions relating to enhancing government and capacity please specify
•	Collaborate on establishing and managing monitoring system for livelihoods and human well-being	Support and incentivize sustainable production and community land use practices:
•	Collaborate on landscape sustainability assessments through participatory mapping	 Capacity building for farmers, smallholders and local communities to implement good agricultural practices (includ improved efficiency, erep diversification and adaption of
•	Collaborate on management/land use planning in the landscape/jurisdiction	certification)
•	stakeholders within governance structure of initiative	remediation activities
•	for managing the initiative and its activities with clear roles, responsibilities and balanced decision-making	 Provide financial support to fund FPIC processes and/or activities to halt systemic violations of workers' rights
•	Help establish effective mechanisms for undertaking human rights due diligence, risk management, monitoring, verification,	 Support Indigenous peoples and local communities to clarify and secure land tenure rights
•	Identify and act on opportunities for pre-competitive collaboration with your sector	 Other actions relating to supporting and incentivizing sustainable production and community land use practices, please specify
•	Identify and map stakeholders (including vulnerable and/or marginalized groups) and encourage their engagement in multi-	Link value chain action to landscape/jurisdictional initiativ
•	Share spatial data and land management plans with other	 Collaborate on commodity traceability
	stakeholders in the landscape/jurisdiction	• Use preferential sourcing to support landscape/jurisdictional
•	Other actions relating to participation in planning and multi-	initiatives that are demonstrating progress
B	stakenolder, please specify	 Other actions relating to linking value chain action to landscape/jurisdictional initiatives through private sector collaboration
	Communicate externally the business case for investing in	
	landscapes/jurisdiction	Support innovative financial mechanisms:
•	Engage stakeholders on importance of conservation, restoration and/or rehabilitation	 Finance carbon credits Other actions relating to supporting innovative financial
•	Implement REDD+ actions in the landscape/jurisdiction	mechanisms, please specify
•	mitigation activities	
•	Share information on supplier non-compliance, value chain mapping and traceability with other stakeholders in the landscape/jurisdiction	• Other, please specify
•	Support communities and smallholders in gaining access to incentives (e.g. support achieving certification, group formation, getting land title, packaging access to loans, preferential sourcing etc.)	
•	Support implementation of climate change vulnerability assessment	
•	Other actions relating to building community and multi- stakeholder capacities, please specify	

Requested	General
content	 When completing this question, you may report engagement activity that is in direct support of a landscape and/or jurisdictional initiative. Consider whether the landscape level initiative can be considered as a jurisdictional initiative. If it is setting and monitoring outcomes at the level of a political boundary (for example state/province/district/municipality), with direct engagement from the government in supporting the outcomes, then this is a jurisdictional initiative (see explanation of "Landscape and jurisdictional initiative" below). You must only report engagement that was active during the reporting period. Add a new row for each jurisdictional/landscape initiative you are engaged in.
	 Landscape/jurisdiction ID (column 1) Select a unique reference number for each disclosed landscape/jurisdictional initiative. This reference number will be used in 8.13.3 and should refer to the same initiative (e.g., LJ1 should refer to the same landscape/jurisdictional initiative in both questions).
	 Name of initiative (column 2) Provide details of the official name of the initiative. This name may be the same as the landscape or jurisdiction area name in which the initiative operates or a distinct name officially agreed upon by initiative stakeholders. If the initiative has yet to be given an official name, state "Not defined".
	 Country/area (column 3) Indicate the country/area in which the initiative is located.
	 Name of landscape or jurisdictional area (column 4) Provide details on the name of the landscape or jurisdictional area. Names may be the jurisdictional boundary e.g., the subnational state, municipality, province or district. Or the name may be the ecological region e.g., the river basin, seascape or biological corridor. It could also include the name that stakeholders have used to define the geographical boundary through collaboration.
	 Attach public information about the initiative (optional) (column 5) This request is optional. Where further details on the initiative are web-based (e.g., initiative webpage), you must produce a static document to attach, due to the need to maintain a fixed response over time that can be accessed in full at any time in the future; a URL is inherently dynamic and therefore cannot fulfil this requirement. This document may be the landscape/jurisdictional initiative webpage or details hosted on a platform. For example, you may provide a document of the initiative profile on LandScale or SourceUp platforms.
	 Indicate if you can provide the size of the area covered by the initiative (column 6) If you are able to provide the size of the area (in hectares) covered by the named initiative, select "Yes". If you cannot provide the area covered by the initiative, select "No, other reason, please specify" and provide a reason in the text box provided.
	 Area covered by the initiative (ha) (column 7) This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column "Indicate if you can provide the size of the area covered by the initiative". State the area in hectares covered by the named initiative.
	 Type of engagement (column 8) Organizations can engage in many ways with landscape and jurisdictional initiatives. The options specified are not mutually exclusive and an organization can select multiple types and give further details in column 15 "Description of engagement". Select convener if, for example, you participate in the design and overall planning and management of the initiative. Select funder if you provide full or partial monetary support towards the initiative. Select partner if, for example, you are responsible for the management and
	implementation of actions.

 Select implementer if, for example, you implement activities/actions that support the collective goals defined by the initiative.
 Engagement start year (column 9) and Engagement end year (column 10) Indicate the year that you started engaging in the initiative. This may not necessarily be the same year that the initiative started. If you have defined the end year for your engagement in the landscape/jurisdictional initiative, select "Please specify" to disclose it. If engagement has already ended, the end year is expected to correspond to the reporting year. If this is a long-term commitment with no anticipated year for your engagement to end, select "Not defined".
 Estimated investment over the project period (column 11) Using the currency selected in 1.2, provide an estimate of the investment to date and estimated future investment over the length of the project period (i.e. from engagement start year to engagement end year).
 Landscape goals supported by engagement (column 12) Select the options that best reflect the goals of the landscape/jurisdictional initiative that your engagement supports. If you select "Other, please specify", provide a label for goals supported by engagement.
 Organization actions supporting initiative (column 13) Select all the options that best reflect the actions you are taking to support the shared goals of the landscape/jurisdictional initiative. If you select "Other, please specify", provide a label for organization actions supporting the initiative.
 Types of partners engaged in the initiative design and implementation (column 14) Select all the relevant partners that are directly involved in the design, implementation, or monitoring process of the initiative. If you select "Other, please specify", provide a label for partner involved in the initiative.
 Description of engagement (column 15) Provide a brief description of the main characteristics of the collaborative initiative. Provide an explanation of how your organization engages with the landscape/jurisdictional initiative. Cover each engagement type selected in column 8 "Type of engagement". Describe the criteria used to prioritize the chosen goals in column 12 "Landscape goals supported by engagement" and actions in column 13 "Organization actions supporting initiative" and explain how the organization's actions contribute positively to addressing critical issues within the landscape/jurisdiction. Describe the governance mechanisms in place where multiple stakeholders define and take decisions over the landscape/jurisdictional initiative, including a description of your role. You may provide details on the name of the partners (e.g., partner organization name) and key stakeholders selected in column 14 "Type of partners engaged in the initiative design and implementation". Do not include the names of the individuals.
 Collective monitoring framework used to measure progress towards landscape goals and actions (column 16) Select "Yes, progress is collectively monitored using a shared external framework, please specify" if there is a system/framework (used collectively by the stakeholders involved in the approach) in place to monitor progress in the landscape/jurisdiction. Provide a label to specify the assessment framework that you use (e.g., LandScale, IDH SourceUp). If you monitor progress independently, select "Yes, progress is monitored using an internally defined framework".
 State the achievements of your engagement so far and how progress is monitored (column 17) This column only appears if "Yes, progress is collectively monitored using a shared external framework, please specify" is selected in column 16 "Collective monitoring framework used to measure progress towards landscape goals and actions". Explain how your organization's actions or support contributes to the landscape or jurisdictional initiative, providing an indication of progress made and how this has

	 benefited relevant stakeholders. You may state the verification or validation status of the approach here. Describe the achievements/outcomes of your engagement within the landscape/jurisdiction. This may relate to achievements with (but is not limited to) stakeholder engagement, governance, financing, policy influence, progress on commitments, and monitoring systems. Indicate how the progress of your approach is monitored (e.g., performance relative to the timeframe and scale of the approach).
	Claims made (column 18)
	or outcomes in the named landscape.
	 Type of claim made (column 19) This column is only presented if "Yes, we are making a claim" is selected in column 18 "Claims made".
	 Select the option that best reflects the type of claim you have made. Refer to the explanation of terms section for further detail on the types of claims. If you select "Other, please specify", provide a label for the type of claim you have made.
	 Provide further details on your claim (column 20) This column is only presented if "Yes, we are making a claim" is selected in column 18
	 Claims made". Provide further details on the claims that you have made including contextual information.
	 You may, for example, state the claim that you have made and detail where this claim has been made (e.g., organization website, organization policy document, initiative website). If the claim made is the same as the achievement stated in column 17 "State the achievements of your engagement so far and how progress is monitored", detail this here. If you selected "Other, please specify" in column 19 "Type of claim made", provide a brief description of what this category of claim refers to.
Additional information	 For information on good practices for engaging in landscape and jurisdictional initiatives and how to implement collective monitoring frameworks, see <u>ISEAL's Effective company</u> actions in landscapes and jurisdictions.
	 For further details on what constitutes an organization investment or action in a landscape, refer to: ISEAL (2022) <u>Position Paper</u> "01 Landscapes position paper on what constitutes a company landscape investment or action".
	• For further details on what minimum and supporting information an organization would need to include as part of making an effective claim about landscape investments and actions, refer to: ISEAL (2023) <u>Position Paper</u> "02 Landscapes position paper on making effective company claims about landscape investments and actions".
	• For further details on the claims an organization can make about their contributions to landscape performance outcomes, refer to: ISEAL (2023) <u>Position Paper</u> "03 Landscape position paper on making effective company claims about contributions to landscape outcomes".
	 Information on how CDP assesses the credibility of disclosed landscape and jurisdictional initiatives can be found <u>here</u>.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	F
Sector	Question level	All except FS

(8.15.3) For each of your disclosed commodities, provide details on the disclosure volume from each of the landscapes/jurisdictions you engage in.

Question details

Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes, we engage in landscape/ jurisdictional initiatives" in response to column "Do you engage in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives" of 8.15.
Change from last year	Minor change (2023 F6.10c)
Rationale	Disclosing your produced or sourced volumes from each landscape/jurisdiction demonstrates whether collaborative engagement contributes to your own strategy for increasing sustainable production/sourcing. It also helps data users to understand how your engagement in landscape/jurisdictional initiatives relate to your sourcing of commodities.
Ambition	• The organization reports volumes of the commodities produced and/or sourced from the landscapes and jurisdictions in which they engage.
Connection to other	AFi Core Principle 10
frameworks	AFi Core Principle 11
	AFi Core Principle 12

1	2	3	4
Landscape/jurisdiction ID	Does any of your produced and/or sourced commodity volume originate from this landscape/jurisdiction, and are you able/willing to disclose information on this volume?	Commodity	% of disclosure volume from this landscape/jurisdiction
Select from: LJ1 – LJ25	 Select from: Yes, we do produce/source from this landscape/jurisdiction, and we are able/willing to disclose volume data Yes, we do produce/source from this landscape/jurisdiction, but we are not able/willing to disclose volume data No, we do not produce/source from this landscape/jurisdiction 	Select from: • Timber products • Palm oil • Cattle products • Soy • Rubber • Cocoa • Coffee	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]

[Add row]

Requested	General
content	 If you are able to provide the volume produced/sourced from each of the landscapes/jurisdictions you engage in, ensure a row is added for each commodity produced/sourced from each initiative disclosed in 8.15.2.
	Landscape/jurisdiction ID (column 1)
	 When referring to a landscape/jurisdictional initiative, please make sure your response to this question matches the landscape/jurisdiction identifier in 8.15.2. For example, "LJ1" here should refer to the same initiative that was attributed to the "LJ1" identifier in 8.15.2.
	Commodity (column 3)
	 Only appears if "Yes, we do produce/source from this jurisdiction/landscape, and we are able/willing to disclose volume data" is selected in column "Does any of your commodity production/sourced volume originate from this landscape/jurisdiction, and are you able/willing to disclose information on this volume?".
	Select the disclosed commodity you produce/source from this landscape/jurisdiction. If you produce/source another disclosed commodity from the same jurisdiction, add another row.
	% of disclosure volume from this landscape/jurisdiction (column 4)
	 Only appears if "Yes, we do produce/source from this jurisdiction/landscape, and we are able/willing to disclose volume data" is selected in column "Does any of your commodity production/sourced volume originate from this landscape/jurisdiction, and are you able/willing to disclose information on this volume?".

• State the proportion of the commodity disclosure volume (as reported in question 8.2) that is produced/sourced from the given landscape/jurisdiction.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F only
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

External activities

(8.16) Do you participate in any other external activities to support the implementation of policies and commitments related to deforestation, ecosystem conversion, or human rights issues in commodity value chains?

Question details		
Change from last	Modified question (2023 F6.11)	
year		
Rationale	Beyond landscape and jurisdictional approaches, involvement in other external activities brings together actors in a sector to establish shared objectives, develop plans, and take action to overcome challenges that can help the organization improve its production/sourcing practices and address broader issues in sectors or production landscapes. There may also be opportunities for driving innovation in the market and finding solutions to the challenges associated with the production and sourcing of sustainable raw materials.	
Ambition	 Organizations participate in collaborative activities address challenges related to deforestation, ecosystem conversion, or human rights abuses in commodity value chains. 	
Connection to other	AFi Core Principle 4	
frameworks	AFi Core Principle 10	
Response options	Select one of the following options:	
	• Yes	
	No, but we plan to do so in the next two years	
	No, and we do not plan to do so in the next two years	

Requested content	 General This question requests information about if you participate in any external activities, that are not landscape/jurisdictional initiatives (refer to 8.15), which support the implementation of your policies and commitments related to the sustainable production/sourcing of your disclosed commodities.
-------------------	---

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	F

Sector Question level All except FS

(8.16.1) Provide details of the external activities to support the implementation of your policies and commitments related to deforestation, ecosystem conversion, or human rights issues in commodity value chains

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" to 8.16.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 F6.11)
Rationale	Beyond landscape and jurisdictional approaches, involvement in other external activities brings together actors in a sector to establish shared objectives, develop plans, and take action to overcome challenges that can help the organization improve its production/sourcing practices and address broader issues in sectors or production landscapes. There may also be opportunities for driving innovation in the market and finding solutions to the challenges associated with the production and sourcing of sustainable raw materials.
Ambition	Organizations participate in collaborative activities address challenges related to deforestation, ecosystem conversion, or human rights abuses in commodity value chains.
Connection to other frameworks	TNFD Governance C AFi Core Principle 4 AFi Core Principle 10

1	2	3	4	5
Commodity	Activities	Country/area	Subnational area	Provide further details of the activity
Select all that apply:	Select all that apply:	Select from:	Select from:	Text field [maximum 2,500
 Timber products 	 Involved in industry platforms 	 Not applicable 	 Not applicable 	characters]
 Palm oil 	 Engaging with communities 	 List of Forests- 	 Please specify 	
 Cattle products 	• Engaging with non-governmental organizations	countries/areas		
• Soy	 Funding research organizations 	 Other, please 		
 Rubber 	 Other, please specify 	specify		
 Cocoa 				
 Coffee 				
[Add row]				

Requested content	 General This question requests information about the external activities that are not landscape/jurisdictional initiatives (refer to 8.15), which support the implementation of your policies and commitments related to the sustainable production/sourcing of your disclosed commodities.
	 Activities (column 2) If you participate in several activities, select all that apply. If you select 'Other, please specify', provide a label for the activity.
	Country/area (column 3) Select the country/area that your external activities relate to
	 Select the country/area that your external activities relate to. Select "Not applicable" if there is no specific country/area to which your external activities relate.

 Subnational area (column 4) If there is a specific subnational area that your external activities relate to, select "Please specify" and provide a label for subnational area. Select "Not applicable" if there is no specific subnational area to which your external activities relates.
Provide further details of the activity (column 5)
• Provide additional information on your organization's role in each of the selected activities. Provide examples, if applicable.
 If you selected 'Other, please specify' in column 2 "activities", provide a brief description of the specified activities here.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All except FS

Ecosystem restoration projects

(8.17) Is your organization supporting or implementing project(s) focused on ecosystem restoration and long-term protection?

Question details		
Change from last	No change (2023 F6.12)	
year		
Rationale	This question gathers data on the projects your organization has supported or implemented, or plan to implement in two years, that are related to ecosystem restoration, reforestation and/or protection of forests and other ecosystems. This information demonstrates to investors and other data users that your organization is committed and proactive towards forests stewardship.	
Connection to other	AFi Core Principle 7	
frameworks	AFi Core Principle 8	
	AFi Core Principle 9	
Response options	Select from: Yes	
	 No, but we plan to implement a project(s) within the next two years 	
	No, and we do not plan to implement project(s) within the next two years	

Requested	General
content	This question is about projects your organization has in place for conserving or restoring natural ecosystems.
	• Please note that projects related to planted or natural forests used for commercial purposes, i.e., forests that will be eventually harvested after a regeneration period, should not be included here.
	• If your organization has no projects in place but has concrete plans to implement a project in the next 2 years, select "No, but we plan to implement a project(s) in two years".

Authoring notes	
Tags	
Corporate authority	Capital Markets
	Capital Markets

Environmental Issue	Question level	F
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

(8.17.1) Provide details on your project(s), including the extent, duration, and monitoring frequency. Please specify any measured outcome(s).

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select 'Yes' in response to 8.17.
Change from last	No change (2023 F6.12a)
year	
Rationale	This question gathers data on the projects your organization has supported or implemented, that are related to ecosystem restoration, reforestation and/or conservation of forests and other ecosystems. This information demonstrates to CDP's investors and other data users that your organization is strongly committed and proactive towards sustainable forests stewardship.
Connection to other	TNFD Metrics & targets B
frameworks	AFi Core Principle 7
	AFI Core Principle 9

1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Project reference	Project type	Expected benefits of project	Is this project originating any carbon credits?	Description of project	Where is the project taking place in relation to your value chain?	Start year
Select from: [Project 1 – Project 10]	 Select from: Forest ecosystem restoration Mangrove protection and restoration Peatland protection and restoration Other ecosystem restoration Other ecosystem restoration Reforestation Natural regeneration Agroforestry Afforestation Soil carbon sequestration Agriculture Biochar 	Select all that apply: Response drop-down list below table	Select from: • Yes • No	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]	 Select all that apply: Project based in area with direct operations Project based in sourcing area(s) Project based elsewhere 	Numerical field [enter a number between 1900 and 2023 with no decimal places]

 Threatened and protected species 			
 Set-aside land 			
 Biodiversity 			
offsetting			
 Other, please 			
specify			

8	9	10	11	12	13	14
Target year	Project area to date (Hectares)	Project area in the target year (Hectares)	Country/Are a	Latitude	Longitude	Monitoring frequency
Select from: < 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031- 2035 2036- 2040 2041- 2045 2046- 2050 >2050 Indefinitel y Other, please specify	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,99 9 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,99 9 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Select from: [List of Country/Area]	Numerical field [enter a number from - 90.00000 0 to 90.00000 0 using a maximum of six decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from - 180.00000 0 to 180.00000 0 using a maximum of six decimal places]	 Select from: Six- monthly or more frequentl y Annually Every two years Every five years Never

15	16	17
Total investment over the project period (currency)	For which of your expected benefits are you monitoring progress?	Please explain
Numerical field [enter a number from 0 – 999,999,999.999 using a maximum of 10 decimal places and no commas]	Select all that apply: Response drop-down list below table	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]

[Add row]

Expected benefits of project (column 3)

•	Carbon credits gained	•	Improvement to soil health
•	Compliance with certification	•	Improvement to sustainability of production practices
•	Compliance with regulation	•	Increase in carbon sequestration
•	Contribution to Net Zero goals	•	More inclusive, transparent, and empowering
•	Contribution to SBTi target(s)		governance processes
•	Creation of green jobs and sustainable livelihoods	•	Net gain in biodiversity and ecosystem integrity
•	Disaster risk reduction	•	Protection of human rights
•	Further transformative change through sharing of	•	Protection of land tenure
	project design, implementation and lessons learnt	•	Reduce/halt biodiversity loss
•	Improvement of standard of living, especially for	•	Reduction of air pollution
	vulnerable and/or marginalized groups	•	Reduction of GHG emissions
•	Improvement of water availability and quality	•	Restoration of natural ecosystem(s)
•	Improvement to environmental regulation	•	Securing continued supply of agricultural commodities
		•	Other, please specify
		•	No measured benefits

For which of your expected benefits of the project are you monitoring progress? (column 16)

•	Carbon credits gained	•	Improvement to soil health
•	Compliance with certification	•	Improvement to sustainability of production practice
•	Compliance with regulation	•	Increase in carbon sequestration
•	Contribution to Net Zero goals	•	More inclusive, transparent, and empowering
•	Contribution to SBTi target(s)		governance processes
•	Creation of green jobs and sustainable livelihoods	•	Net gain in biodiversity and ecosystem integrity
•	Disaster risk reduction	•	Protection of human rights
•	Further transformative change through sharing of	•	Protection of land tenure
	project design, implementation and lessons learnt	•	Reduce/halt biodiversity loss
•	Improvement of standard of living, especially for	•	Reduction of air pollution
	vulnerable and/or marginalized groups	•	Reduction of GHG emissions
•	Improvement of water availability and quality	•	Restoration of natural ecosystem(s)
•	Improvement to environmental regulation	•	Securing continued supply of agricultural commodities
		•	Other, please specify

Requested	Project reference (column 1)
content	 Please select a unique reference number for each project. You can provide a maximum of 10 different projects (Project 1 - Project 10). This reference number shall be used to track progress on your specific project in the following years.
	Project type (column 2)
	 The project can be focused on increasing the area of a protected habitat or on actions to improving the quality of the biological attributes of on a site impacted by your organization or within land owned/managed by your organization. See 'Explanation of terms' if further clarification is needed to define the project type. Only select "Biodiversity offsetting" if the project aims at compensating for impacts elsewhere. If none of the available options are appropriate to describe your project type, please select 'Other, please specify' and a text box will appear for you to inform the project type.
	Expected benefits of project (column 3)
	• Select all the benefits to the project area that you expect from the implementation of the project.

٠	If you select "Other, please specify", provide a label for any further forests and land use- related benefits that you expect to see.
Descrip	tion of project (column 5)
•	 Describe your project, including: If it is a regulatory requirement, indicate the reason why it was required and the legal basis; if it is related to certification, please specify the scheme and further information on criteria; or if voluntary, indicate reasons that have driven your company to take voluntary actions (e.g., financial incentives related to REDD+).
Start ye	ear (column 7)
•	Inform here the start year of the project, e.g., the year an area was designated as set aside land or the year when the restoration of the area has started.
Target _.	year (column 8)
•	Indicate the year when you plan to achieve, or have achieved, your target outcome(s). If the project involves long term and open-ended conservation of an area, select "Indefinitely".
•	If none of the available options are appropriate to describe your target year, please select 'Other, please specify' and a text box will appear for you to complete.
Project	area to date (Hectares) (column 9)
•	Indicate the area, in hectares, of the project in the reporting year.
Project	area in the target year (Hectares) (column 10)
•	If the project aims to increase the total area to be restored/afforested/reforested and/or under protection, please indicate the total area by the target year in hectares. If the project does not involve an increment of the total area, repeat here the same area already disclosed in column 9 ("Project area to date") and provide an explanation in column 17 (Please explain).
Country	//Area (column 11)
•	If you have projects located in more than one country/area, please add a row for each relevant country/area.
Latitude	e and Longitude (columns 12 and 13)
•	Provide geographical coordinates of the project in decimal degrees (WGS84). The coordinates can be of any point within the area of the project.
Monitor	ing frequency (column 14)
•	If the organization does not monitor the outcomes of the project, select "Never" and provide an explanation in column 17.
Total ir	nvestment over the project period (currency) (column 15)
•	Using the currency selected in 0.2, provide an estimate of the investment to date and estimated future investment over the length of the project period (i.e., from start year to target year).
For wi	hich of your expected benefits are you monitoring progress? (column 16)
•	For your selection(s) in column 3 (Expected benefits of project) disclose the benefits that you are currently monitoring the progress of. If you are monitoring the progress of expected benefits disclosed under "Other, please specify" in column 3 select "Other, please specify" and provide a label for those bonefits

Please explain (column 17)
 Provide further details on the project, including explanation on monitoring frequency, monitoring methods, indicators measured and details on measured outcomes. If you selected 'Never' in column 14 (Monitoring frequency), provide your explanation here. If available, provide here the baseline date against which progress on measured outcomes of the project is tracked. This would be a point in the past you can provide reliable data on aspects covered by the measured outcomes informed in column 16 (Measured outcomes to date).

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

Module 9: Environmental Performance – Water security

Guidance for companies reporting on Water Security on behalf of investors & supply chain members.

The full reporting guidance including explanation of terms is available via the portal/public guidance page.

Module Overview	The promotion of water security for all is supported when companies:
	 Reduce their dependency on freshwater sources and track their progress; Collect and share volumetric data on their interactions with water resources. Are aware of the water intensity of their value creation. Consider water throughout their value chain, beyond the fence-line of their direct operations.
	Clean freshwater is becoming increasingly scarce, and this can impact operations relying on large volumes of water. The information in this module enables CDP data users to understand an organization's exclusions, organization-wide water accounting, facility level water accounting & verification, water efficiency and water intensity, products and services, and water-related targets.
	The questions in this module allow your organization to demonstrate how well it understands its corporate hydrology by providing information on the monitoring of relevant water aspects. This includes volumetric data on withdrawals, including from water stressed areas, discharges by level of treatment, and consumption. CDP also requests companies to comment on their projections for water accounting data.
	In addition to volumetric data, in order to protect water quality, companies are requested to report on their emissions to water and their use of hazardous substances.
	For organizations responding to a request from a CDP Supply Chain member, this module also includes questions on the impact of facilities on requesting supply chain members (section 9.4).
	Note:
	Throughout the water security module, CDP has broadened the scope of questions about the supply chain to include other phases of the value chain. This will be particularly relevant to companies whose activities may be constrained or otherwise affected by water related issues beyond their direct operations and supply chains. It reflects a widening of company focus to, and greater investor interest in, risk exposure, opportunities and impacts within the value chain.
Disclosure note	CDP's approach to reporting water accounting data
	• When reporting volumetric data please read the guidance for each question as well as the CDP <u>Technical Note on water accounting definitions</u> .

Module overview

	 To reduce their impact on water ecosystems and resources as well as their need to manage water-related risks, organizations should minimize and be able to account for all their interaction with water. For this reason, CDP's focus is the collection of information to determine how well a company understands the flow of water into and out of its boundaries, and whether they have robust monitoring and accounting in place for all aspects of their water use. Definitions: CDP is looking for comparable data, reported against a standard methodology/definition. To ensure the quality of our data and a fair scoring methodology, CDP definitions should be used for all disclosures. This is particularly relevant where there is a lack of standardization. Companies must not provide water accounting data that does not align with the definitions given. Please refer to CDP's Technical Note on water accounting. Units: Volumes must be reported in megaliters per year (1 megaliter = 1 million liters or 1,000 m3) in all questions, unless otherwise stated. Blank cells: Please ensure when responding to these water accounting questions that cells are only intentionally left blank if you have no data to disclose. Blank cells are interpreted as non-disclosure, i.e. information is not available due to lack of measurement or choosing not to disclose, and are therefore awarded no points by the scoring methodology. Values of zero: entering a zero implies a measurement has been made, and the value is zero. For example, a value of zero consumption reported indicates that no water is incorporated into products or waste products or lost by evaporation from the company. Do not use a zero to indicate a lack of data. If a company enters a zero for discharge, it should provide an explanation. Data accuracy: CDP recognizes that there may be uncertainty linked to water accounting information that could impact on data accuracy. Uncertainty can arise from data gaps, assumptions, metering/measurement cons
Sector-specific content	 Additional questions on organization-wide water accounting and water efficiency and water intensity for the following high-impact sectors: Agricultural commodities, Coal, Chemicals, Electric Utilities, Food, Beverage & Tobacco, Oil & gas, Metals & Minning.
	 Additional response options are presented in: 9.2 for the Oil & Gas, Metals & Minning, and Coal sectors 9.2.5, 9.2.6, 9.8 and 9.9 for the Food, Beverage & Tobacco and Agricultural commodities sectors 9.2.1, 9.7 and 9.7.1 for the Electric utilities sector 9.6 and 9.6.1 for the Chemicals sector 9.10 and 9.10.1 for the Coal and Metals & Minning sectors 9.11 and 9.11.1 for the Oil & gas sector

Exclusions

(9.1) Are there any exclusions from your disclosure of water-related data?

Question details	
Change from last	Modified question (2023 W0.6)
year	
Rationale	CDP seeks to share comprehensive and representative water data. If organizations do need to exclude areas of their business from their disclosure, data users must be informed of the exclusions as this may affect their analysis.

Response options	Select one of the following options:		
	Yes		
	• No		
Requested content	General		
	 References throughout the questionnaire to "your organization" include all the entities within your reporting boundary reported in 1.5 for which you are providing information. Please apply this logic consistently when responding to questions. However, you may exclude particular geographies, business activities, and/or small facilities for which it is difficult to gather data when water impacts are sufficiently small. This also applies to selected water inputs/outputs. In all cases, the following principles of relevance and transparency must apply to all disclosures (<i>adapted from the GHG Protocol</i>): Relevance: Ensure the disclosure appropriately reflects the water use of the company and serves the decision-making needs of users – both internal and external to the company. Transparency: Address all relevant issues in a factual and coherent manner, based on a clear audit trail. Disclose any relevant assumptions and make appropriate references to the accounting and calculation methodologies and data sources used. Any groups, companies, businesses or organizations falling within your organizational boundary but <u>not</u> included in your disclosure should be reported in 9.1.1. Note that in some questions, e.g. in the facility level water accounting section, we will ask you to provide data only for facilities where substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks and opportunities have been identified, rather than all facilities within your reporting boundary. 		
Additional	The GHG Protocol states that an acknowledgement of all exclusions should be made each year		
information	to enhance transparency despite disclosure of the same exclusion in previous years. This		
	ensures all data users are always aware of what data has been included in your response.		
	For further information on allowable exclusions, please refer to the GHG Protocol and the CDP		
	Water Security Scoring Methodology.		

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	Water only
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

(9.1.1) Provide details on these exclusions.

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to 9.1.
dependencies	
Change from last	Modified question (2023 W0.6a)
year	
Rationale	An organization's disclosure must be comprehensive and representative to ensure data user confidence in the information reported. As such, organizations are encouraged to report on any exclusions to their disclosure including any geographies, facilities, and other water aspects
Ambition	• The organization reports on all exclusions from the reporting boundary and does not have any significant exclusions from their disclosure.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You are able to add rows by using the "Add Row" button at
------------------	--
	the bottom of the table

1	2	3	4	
Exclusion	Description of exclusion	Reason for exclusion	Primary reason why data is not available	
 Select from: Business activities Country/geographical area Facilities Specific groups, businesses, or organizations Water aspects Other, please specify 	exclusion Text field [maximum 1,500 characters]	 Select from: Data is not available Divestiture Recent acquisition or merger Small volume [rainwater] Shared premises Water used for internal WASH services Water supply network Other, please specify 	 data is not available Select from: Challenges associated with data collection and/or quality Data collection is in progress Judged to be unimportant or not relevant Lack of internal resources capabilities or expertise (e.g., due to organization size) No standardized procedure for collecting data Not an immediate strategic priority We are planning to collect the data within 	
			 Other, please specify 	

5	6	7	8
Completion date of acquisition or merger	Data from the merger/acquisition will be incorporated in the next reporting year	Percentage of water volume the exclusion represents	Please explain
[DD/MM/YYYY]	Select from: • Yes • No	Select from: Less than 1% 1-5% 6-10% 11-20% 21-30% 31-40% 41-50% 51-60% 61-70% 81-90% 91-99% 100% Unknown	Text field [maximum 1,500 characters]

[Add row]

Requested	Exclusion (column 1)
content	 Select the category that best describes the exclusion. Identify if any of the following are excluded from your disclosure: Business activities, e.g. a product line, type of business process, or type of supplier, may be excluded due to limited data or reporting feasibility.

 Organizations that have water supply networks as part of their activities under CDP's Activity Classification System may exclude water accounting data in relation to the production of drinking water in sections "Company-wide water accounting", "Facility-level water accounting", and "Water efficiency and water intensity". Country/geographical area, e.g. low water usage or data limitations may make reporting infeasible for operations in a country/area/region. Facilities may be excluded due to recent mergers, acquisitions, and divestitures (which have taken place during the reporting year), outsourcing and in-sourcing of activities (smaller facilities for which it is not currently possible to track water use may also be considered for exclusion). Specific groups, companies, businesses, or organizations that fall within your organizational boundary but are not included in your disclosure. Water aspects, e.g. a company may use rainwater at some facilities but it is a small volume andexcluding it causes less than a 5% error in the organization's water balance. In which case, the source may be considered for exclusion.
Description of exclusion (column 2)
Clearly outline your exclusion, including details such as the exact geographical location,
activity, and the name of the business unit, product line or facility.
• You will be able to specify the reason for your exclusion in column 3.
Reason for exclusion (column 3)
• Select the category that best describes the reason why the exclusion is not included in
your disclosure of water-related data.
Select "Water supply networks" if this is one of your organization's activities under CDP's
Activity Classification System, and you intend to exclude your data related to the
production of drinking water.
Select Small volume [rainwater] If you mend to exclude rainwater from your disclosure and this would cause less than a 5% error in your organization's water balance. Note that
if precipitation/rainwater volumes constitute a principal input of water at a site level, these volumes should not be excluded.
 Select "Recent acquisition or merger" if you intend to exclude data related to an
acquisition or merger which has taken place during the reporting year. Provide the year for
when the acquisition or merger took place and indicate if this data will be incorporated in
If "Data is not available" is selected, you will be asked in column 4 "Primary reason why
data is not available" why the data for your exclusion is not available.
Percentage of water volume the exclusion represents (column 7)
Select the percentage of the proportion of water volumes that the exclusion represents
e.g. % of total water withdrawal (or consumption).
• Use the "Please explain" column to specify if this percentage refers to water withdrawals,
discharges, or consumption volumes.
Please explain (column 8)
• Provide a reasonable explanation as to how you arrived at this exclusion, e.g., as a result
of a high-level risk scanning exercise.
• If you selected "Judged to be unimportant or not relevant" in the column "Primary reason
why data is not available", explain the criteria used to decide that data is not important or
relevant to your organization and therefore not available.

	 If you selected "Recent acquisition or merger" and do not plan to include this in the next reporting period, provide details on when you expect to include the water-related data of the acquired or merged company in your disclosure. If you selected "Small volume [rainwater]" due to rainwater harvesting where the resulting error in water balance would be less than 5%, provide details on this exclusion. Specify if the percentage disclosed in the previous column refers to water withdrawals, discharges, or consumption volumes. Indicate if the exclusion represents a significant portion of the total water used (or consumed) or the pollution load discharged.
Example response	See below

1	2	3	7	8
Exclusion	Description of exclusion	Reason for exclusion	Percentage of water volume the exclusion represents	Please explain
Facilities	The excluded facilities consist of non- production sites such as offices. The water used in our excluded facilities is primarily for water, sanitation, and hygiene (WASH) services for our employees such as drinking water, toilets, etc. The water used here for WASH services is extremely small compared to withdrawals for the organization's production sites.	Water used for internal WASH services	Less than 1%	Across all non- production sites, it is estimated that per year employees use 23 megaliters compared to total organization use of 65,778 megaliters <u>.</u>

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	W
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

Company-wide water accounting (including EU, OG, and FB/AC specific data points)

Monitoring

9.2 Across all your operations, what proportion of the following water aspects are regularly measured and monitored?

Question details	
Question dependencies	 Your response to 9.2 will determine which subsequent questions are presented. If your response to 9.2 is amended, data in those dependent questions may be erased. In this case, be sure to re-enter data for all relevant questions. If you select "Not monitored" or "Not relevant" in response to 9.2, you will not be able to disclose associated volumetric data in this section. The guidance for each question indicates if it is a dependent question.
Change from last year	No change (2023 W1.2)
Rationale	This question allows your company to indicate to investors, customers, and other data users the extent to which it monitors different aspects of its water use. Comprehensive water accounting is a first step in understanding the importance of water to your business and any potential water-related impacts to your business. This data may also be relevant to a company's regulatory compliance.
Connection to other frameworks	CEO Water Mandate Current state: Performance ESRS 2 ESRS E2 ESRS E3
Response options	Please complete the following table:

0	1	2	3	4
Water aspect	% of sites/facilities/ operations	Frequency of measurement	Method of measurement	Please explain
Water withdrawals – total volume	Select from: • Not monitored • Less than 1% • 1-25 • 26-50 • 51-75 • 76-99 • 100% • Not relevant	Select from: Continuously Daily Monthly Quarterly Yearly Unknown Other, please specify	Text field [maximum 500 characters]	Text field [maximum 1,000 characters]
Water withdrawals – volumes by source				
[METALS & MINING and COAL SECTORS ONLY] Entrained water associated with your metals & mining and/or coal sector activities - total volume				
[OIL & GAS SECTOR ONLY] Produced water associated with your oil & gas sector activities - total volume				
Water withdrawals quality				
Water discharges – total volume				
Water discharges – volumes by destination				
Water discharges – volumes by treatment method				

Water discharge quality – by standard effluent parameters		
Water discharge quality – emissions to water (nitrates, phosphates, pesticides, and/or other priority substances)		
Water discharge quality – temperature		
Water consumption – total volume		
Water recycled/reused		
The provision of fully- functioning, safely managed WASH services to all workers		

Requested content	Note: Organizations responding to an electric utilities, metals & mining, coal, or oil & gas sector request should refer to additional sector-specific guidance on this question at the end of the "Requested content" section.
	General
	• This question seeks a company-wide response about your monitoring of various water aspects. "Across all your operations" refers to all entities included in your reporting boundary, indicated in 1.5.
	Please refer to CDP's water accounting definitions (included in <u>CDP Technical Note –</u> <u>Water Accounting Definitions</u>) before completing this question.
	• You should only select "Not monitored" if you do not collect any data on these water aspects across your operations. If you have data from any information sources, you should reflect this in your response by indicating the percentage of sites/facilities/operations this represents in the "% of sites/facilities/operations" column.
	 If water accounting information cannot be provided for all operations within your reporting boundary, then use column 4 to explain the level of coverage.
	• The proportion of sites/facilities/operations reported in column 1 is not considered an indication of the proportion of total water volumes monitored in your organization. It provides organizational coverage of monitoring activity only.
	 Note that for column 1, 'sites/facilities/operations' could include a broad variety of groupings of business operations, assets, fixed buildings, factories or sites etc. A company-specific explanation may be provided in column 4.
	Water aspect (column 0)
	• Definitions for each type of water aspect are included in the 'Explanation of terms' for this question (and repeated in the Glossary).
	% of sites/facilities/operations (column 1)
	• Select the proportion of your organization's facilities that are regularly (at least annually) measured and monitored for each of the defined aspects; e.g. a company that has 100 facilities across its total operations and regularly measures and monitors total volumes of water withdrawals for 50% (50 facilities) would select "26-50".
	• If a water aspect is only relevant to a proportion of your facilities, report the percentage of these facilities for which you measure and monitor the given water aspect and provide your explanation in column 4. For example, a company has 100 facilities across its total operations out of which "water discharge quality by effluent parameters" is only relevant to the operation of 50% (50 facilities). If the company regularly measures and monitors water discharge quality by effluent parameters for all relevant facilities (50 facilities), they would select "100%" and state in column 4 that the relevance of this water aspect was considered.

 Select 'Not relevant' if it is not technically feasible or technically desirable for your organization to monitor this aspect; e.g. your operations do not consume water so measurement of this is not required, your company does not recycle/reuse water because it is not considered cost effective. Provide your explanation in column 4. Select 'Not monitored' if your company does not monitor this aspect, though it would be technically possible or desirable; e.g. your company does recycle/reuse water but it is not yet monitored at the corporate level. Provide your explanation in column 4.
Frequency of measurement (column 2)
 This column is not presented for the rows of any water aspects where 'Not monitored' or 'Not relevant' is selected in column 1.
 If you have multiple frequencies of measurement across different sites/facilities/operations, select the one that applies to the majority of your sites/facilities/operations.
 Note that this column requests data on your frequency of measurement, not frequency of reporting or compiling of information.
Method of measurement (column 3)
 This column is not presented for the rows of any water aspects where 'Not monitored' or 'Not relevant' is selected in column 1.
 Explain the method of measurement of your water aspects, e.g., through direct monitoring, estimation from a hydrological model, or other secondary source of information.
• If you indicated that you monitor 'Water withdrawals quality' to determine the suitability of the water for its intended use, you may include a list of parameters measured in this column. This row supports the aims of the UN Environment Global Environment Monitoring System for Freshwater (GEMS/Water), a long-term project to generate data flows on global water quality.
Please explain (column 4)
 If you selected 'Not relevant' in column 1, provide a brief explanation of why this water aspect is not relevant for your company and whether this water aspect is expected to be relevant in the future.
 If you selected 'Not monitored' in column 1, provide a brief explanation of why this water aspect is not monitored in your company.
If you selected a percentage in column 1:
 Provide an explanation for your response in column 1; such as why your organization measures/monitors the water aspect at this proportion of its operations, and explain which sites/facilities/operations are excluded and why.
• State if your response in column 1 relates to facilities, sites or operations, or another kind of grouping, and explain how you are using the term; e.g. "For our company, 'facilities' refers to our warehouses and retail outlets"; "Our response in this row relates to our different geographic operations. We do not have facilities or sites because we provide a range of services that are not tied to a specific location".
Sector-specific guidance for electric utilities sector
Conorol
 This guidance is specific to companies responding to an electric utilities sector request. You should first read the guidance for this question that applies to all companies. This is additional to the general guidance and does not replace it.
Water aspect (column 0)
 Water withdrawals – total volume: CDP recognizes the difficulty in accounting for some elements of the hydropower operations' water balance, specifically surface runoff or elements that are outside the organization's control such as third-party discharges into the reservoir. Water withdrawals into hydropower operations include river inflow.

surface runoff and precipitation onto the reservoir surface, as well as third-party discharges into the reservoir:
W = Precipitation+ River Inflow + Runoff + Third-party discharges into reservoir
Note that estimation or modelling are valid sources of data.
• Water withdrawals – volumes by source: Water withdrawals into hydropower operations include river inflow, surface runoff and precipitation onto the reservoir surface, as well as third-party discharges into the reservoir. Organizations should strive to monitor those sources if they would result in an estimated error in the water balance of more than 5%. Note that estimation or modelling are valid sources of data.
 Water withdrawals – quality data: In hydropower operations please consider the monitoring of reservoir water quality when responding to this question.
• Water recycling & reuse: CDP recognizes that water recycling and reuse practices in wind, solar and hydropower operations are less common and less relevant. In hydropower operations, only pumped-storage operations can be considered for water reuse. It is expected that most organizations will report 0 for their hydropower operations in this question. In light of this:
 Organizations with more than 70% of their power generation coming from these sources may select "Not relevant".
 Organizations with less than 70% of their power generation coming from these sources should select the response that best reflects their company's monitoring activity in their operations outside the hydropower, wind or solar generation sources. Indicate in column 4 (Please explain) how the use of these sources affects the proportion of sites monitored that you are reporting.
• Water discharges – total volume: CDP recognizes the difficulty in accounting for some elements of the hydropower operations' water balance, specifically seepage or those that are outside the organization's control such as third-party withdrawals.
In hydropower operations, water discharge includes the dam outlet and the spillway, underground seepage and third-party withdrawals from the reservoir (for example a municipal water plant abstracting from the reservoir).
D = Dam outlet + Spillway + Seepage + Third-party withdrawals from the reservoir
Note that estimation or modelling are valid sources of data.
• Water discharges – volumes by destination: In hydropower operations, water discharge includes the dam outlet and the spillway, underground seepage and third-party withdrawals from the reservoir (for example a municipal water plant abstracting from the reservoir). Organizations should strive to monitor those destinations if they would result in an estimated error in their water balance of more than 5%. Note that estimation or modelling are valid sources of data.
Water discharges – volumes by treatment method: CDP recognizes that discharge quality data is rarely measured in organizations operating with wind, solar and hydropower generation sources. In light of this:
 Organizations with more than 70% of their power generation coming from these sources may select "Not relevant".
 Organizations with less than 70% of their power generation coming from these sources should select the response that best reflects their company's monitoring activity in their operations outside the hydropower, wind or solar generation sources. Indicate in column 4 (Please explain) how the use of these sources affects the proportion of sites monitored that you are reporting.
Water discharge quality data – by standard effluent parameters: CDP recognizes that discharge quality data is rarely measured in organizations operating with wind, solar and hydropower generation sources. In light of this:
these sources may select "Not relevant".

 Organizations with less than 70% of their power generation coming from these sources should select the response that best reflects their company's monitoring activity in their operations outside the hydropower, wind or solar generation sources. Indicate in column 4 (Please explain) how the use of these sources affects the proportion of sites monitored that you are reporting.
• Water discharge quality data – temperature: CDP recognizes that discharge quality data is rarely measured in organizations operating with wind, solar and hydropower generation sources. In light of this:
 Organizations with more than 70% of their power generation coming from these sources may select "Not relevant".
 Organizations with less than 70% of their power generation coming from these sources should select the response that best reflects their company's monitoring activity in their operations outside the hydropower, wind or solar generation sources. Indicate in column 4 (Please explain) how the use of these sources affects the proportion of sites monitored that you are reporting.
• Water consumption – total volume: Water consumption in hydropower operations includes evaporation from the reservoir surface as well as the balance between withdrawals and discharges. Organizations should strive to estimate evaporated volumes if they would result in an estimated error in their water balance of more than 5%.
Sector-specific guidance for metals & mining and coal sectors
General
• This guidance is specific to companies responding to a metals & mining or coal sector request. You should first read the guidance for this question that applies to all companies. This is additional to the general guidance and does not replace it.
• Monitoring produced water volumes is common practice in the mining industry. This information is requested as it indicates that an organization is striving for comprehensive water accounting and aiming to manage all types of water entering its company boundaries.
Water aspect (column 0)
• Water withdrawals – total volume: In line with CDP's definition of water withdrawal, for the mining industry water withdrawals include water diversions to enable comparability – because it is water that crosses the company boundary.
• Water discharges – total volume: In line with CDP's definition of water discharges, for the mining industry sector discharges comprise all water outputs including water diversions– because it is water that crosses the company boundary.
 Evaporation and water entrained in waste material should not be considered discharges but as part of the consumption volumes.
• Water consumption – total volume: Organizations in the mining industry should report on the volumes of water lost to evaporation from open water surfaces, entrained in remaining waste material (such as tailings, coarse rejects, and concentrates), or water stored over the reporting year.
• Water withdrawals - quality: This water aspect is particularly relevant for companies with mining activities. Monitoring this parameter is in line with ICMM's and WAF of the Mineral Council of Australia recommendation of monitoring the quality of water. Companies with mining activities may select the appropriate percentage.
• Water discharges - temperature: This water aspect is particularly relevant for companies with metallurgy activities and smelters, who have cooling operations. Companies with processing activities may select the appropriate percentage.
Sector-specific guidance for oil & gas sector

	General
	• This guidance is specific to companies responding to an oil & gas sector request. You should first read the guidance for this question that applies to all companies. This is additional to the general guidance and does not replace it.
	 Monitoring produced water volumes is common practice in the oil & gas industry. This information is requested as it indicates that an organization is striving for comprehensive water accounting and aiming to manage all types of water entering its company boundaries.
	Water aspect (column 0)
	• Water withdrawals – total volume: In the oil & gas sector, the reporting of water withdrawals volumes typically does not include produced water. To enable comparability, CDP requires all companies to include produced water volumes in their withdrawals disclosure.
	• Water discharges – total volume: In oil production, as part of secondary and tertiary recovery operations, water-based fluids (from various sources) may be used to maintain the pressure, and to displace the hydrocarbons and move them towards the production wells. For CDP disclosure, organizations must consider these volumes as part of their discharges to groundwater bodies in order to have an accurate water balance.
	 Produced water associated with your oil & gas sector activities - total volume: Select "not applicable" only if your organization does not include an "upstream" business division.
Example response	See below

Example response

0	1	2	3	4
Water aspect	% of sites/facilities /operations	Frequency of measurement*	Method of measurement*	Please explain
Water withdrawals – total volume	100%	Continuously	We measure water withdrawals in real- time, using "in- place" flow meters.	Total water withdrawal volume is one of our environmental key performance indicators and is used to track improvements in water efficiency. We report this information at an internal global level quarterly, and report data externally on an annual basis.
				Our responses in this question refer to our sites, and for our company, 'sites' refer to where our mining, processing, and R&D operations take place. All of our sites are monitored for water withdrawal volumes.
Water withdrawals – volumes by source	100%	Continuously	The water sources are known and recorded for all of our sites. The majority of sites measure water withdrawal volumes in real time through "in-place" flow meters. For a few of our sites, water withdrawal volumes and sources data is obtained from water utility providers.	Water withdrawal volumes by source are monitored at 100% of our operations. Measuring this aspect allows us to identify priority areas and to further refine water- related targets and performance improvements. In addition, overall exposure to potential water risks (source dependency) can be quickly evaluated on a site by site basis with detailed information on water withdrawal volumes by source.
[METALS & MINING and COAL SECTORS	100%	Monthly	We measure the moisture content of the ore milled and the volumes of ore	Entrained water volumes are not relevant to all our operations. They are only relevant to

ONLY] Entrained water associated with your metals & mining and/or coal sector activities - total volume			milled. The entrained water volumes can then be calculated using these two parameters.	our mining sites, and we monitor entrained water at 100% of these sites.
[OIL & GAS SECTOR ONLY] Produced water associated with your oil & gas sector activities - total volume	Question not applicable	Question not applicable	Question not applicable	Question not applicable
Water withdrawals quality	100%	Daily	Water withdrawals quality is monitored at the site level using automatic water samplers and lab testing. Parameters measured include BOD, TSS, and temperature.	100% of our operational sites are monitored for this water aspect. The data is consolidated into local databases on a monthly basis. Due to environmental and water permits, figures are reported on an annual basis to the authorities.
Water discharges – total volume	100%	Continuously	We use flow meters to measure discharge volumes in real-time.	100% of our operational sites are monitored for this water aspect and this is considered part of the usual management for our sites.
Water discharges – volumes by destination	100%	Continuously	We use flow meters to measure discharge volumes in real time. The destination of the discharge is known and recorded for all sites.	100% of our operational sites are monitored for this water aspect and this is considered part of the usual management for our sites. This aspect is relevant because our sites treat and discharge water volumes to freshwater bodies. We are committed to reducing water pollution. As part of our compliance with standards and regulations, we monitor the volumes of our discharges by destination.
Water discharges – volumes by treatment method	100%	Monthly	We keep detailed records of the discharge treatment level and methods at all sites.	100% of our operational sites are monitored for this water aspect and this is considered part of the usual facility management for our sites. Our discharges are treated to secondary level or tertiary level, depending on the operations of the site. This aspect is relevant because our sites treat and discharge water volumes to freshwater bodies. We are committed to reducing water pollution. For this, we are required to ensure that quality and quantity of discharged water complies with standards and regulations.
Water discharge quality – by standard effluent parameters	100%	Daily	We monitor water discharge quality by standard effluent parameters at the site level using automatic water samplers and lab testing. Key measures such as pH are monitored	These parameters are monitored daily/continuously (pH is monitored continuously and samples for other parameters are taken on a daily basis). It is considered part of the usual management for our sites. This aspect is relevant because our sites treat and discharge water volumes to freshwater bodies. We are committed to reducing water pollution. For this, we are required to ensure that quality and quantity

			continuously through on-site monitoring systems and samples are collected on a daily basis to analyse metal concentration and load, 5-day biological oxygen demand (BOD), and total suspended solids (TSS).	of discharged water complies with standards and regulations.
Water discharge quality – emissions to water (nitrates, phosphates, pesticides, and/or other priority substances)	Not monitored	Question not applicable	Question not applicable	This water aspect is not monitored in our sites; discharge quality is only monitored by standard effluent parameters and temperature. We are planning to monitor this aspect in the next reporting year.
Water discharge quality – temperature	100%	Daily	We use sensors specifically designed to monitor temperature in wastewater and industrial effluent treatment applications at all of our sites. The online sensors (thermometers) are factory calibrated and regularly maintained.	Each site controls the quality data of water discharged locally and measures this on a daily basis.
Water consumption – total volume	100%	Monthly	We measure our water consumption monthly using a water balance which considers water withdrawals and water discharges. Withdrawals and discharges are measured with flow meters.	Total water consumption is calculated monthly from water withdrawals volumes minus water discharges in all our operational sites and this is reported through our global performance reporting system.
Water recycled/reused	100%	Monthly	The method of measurement will vary depending on the site. Some sites use flow meters and others estimate the amount reused based on the reduction of water withdrawals.	Volumes of recycled/reused water are monitored at all of our sites and the annual inventory of water usage volumes is executed based on ISO 14046:2014 to confirm the data.
The provision of fully-functioning, safely managed WASH services to all workers	100%	Monthly	We use an internal audit excel tool to measure progress towards WASH services for employees.	This aspect is relevant because our company recognizes the importance of closing the gap on access to WASH and we are recognized as a WASH Pledge signatory. We are committed to implementing access to safe water, sanitation and hygiene at the workplace at

				an appropriate level of standard for all employees in all sites.
--	--	--	--	--

Additional	The provision of safely managed WASH services at the workplace, and respecting the
information	human rights to water and sanitation
	The provision of safely managed WASH services at the workplace (and extending such
	expectations to other actors within its value chain) is aligned with the aims of the
	Sustainable Development Goals (SDG 6.1 and 6.2) and the UN Human Rights Council
	endorsed Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights. These are established and
	authomative global reference points of now companies should respect numan rights in their own activities and business relationships, focusing on the risks to people rather than the
	risks to the business. Provision requirements may also be linked to Health and Safety
	regulations applicable to your operations.
	In practice, companies need to implement due diligence to identify actual and potential
	impacts on human rights and to prevent, mitigate, and remediate them. This could mean a
	company may need to collaborate with others in the basin to reduce their collective water
	use when withdrawals limit the water availability for local communities in a way that impacts
	their right to water.
	The <u>Guide to Business and Human Rights (2014)</u> published by the UK Equality and Human
	Rights Commission states that a business can respect the right to a safe environment for
	employees by 'ensuring access to clean toilet facilities and drinking water' amongst other
	The <u>WASH Pledge</u> provides resources for companies looking to implement WASH in the
	workplace, including a reference for what represents <u>best practice in providing WASH</u>
	services in different workplaces.
	Guidance for companies on Integrating gender equality into water, sanitation and hygiene
	projects is available from waterAid.
	Water withdrawals quality and GEMS
	The UN Environment Global Environment Monitoring System for Freshwater (GEMS/Water)
	provides the world community with sound data on water quality to support scientific
	assessments and decision-making on the subject. Surface and groundwater quality
	monitoring data collected from the global GEMS/Water monitoring network is shared
	through the GENIStat Information system.
	Within UN Environment, GEMS/Water was identified as being the mechanism to support
	countries/areas to fulfill their reporting obligations for the UN Sustainable Development
	Goals. GEMS/Water provides appropriate support, based on capacity needs at national and
	regional levels, and develops training for delivery in countries/areas all over the world.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	W
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

9.2.1 For your hydropower operations, what proportion of the following water aspects are regularly measured and monitored?

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you have any hydropower operations disclosed in 1.16.1
dependencies	

Change from last	No change (2023 W-EU1.2a)
Rationale	Dam operation implies an alteration of the natural river flow and sediment movement. Changes to river hydrology may affect instream and streamside habitats and affect local biodiversity. Ensuring appropriate environmental flows and sediment loadings helps to maintain water ecosystems and their basic functions. Sediments can collect behind a dam because the dam itself is a physical barrier. Eventually they can reduce the operative capacity of dams. When sediments collect, ecosystems upstream and downstream can be affected. CDP acknowledges that there is no universally accepted methodology for establishing environmental flows. In their simplest form, they can include low- and high-water regimes, and in their most complex, they may consider biodiversity and socioeconomic factors. Environmental flows may be established in national, regional or local legislation and there may be a legal requirement for hydropower operations to maintain those flows. In many countries/areas, however, they are not legally established and organizations looking to maintain environmental flows would need to rely on available literature or data. This question allows organizations to demonstrate their leadership in evaluating the environmental impacts of their operations, especially where legal and regulatory frameworks in this area are weak
Response options	Please complete the following table:

0	1	2
Water aspect	% of sites/facilities/operations measured and monitored	Please explain
Fulfilment of downstream environmental flows	Select from: • Not monitored • Less than 1% • 1-25 • 26-50 • 51-75 • 76-99 • 100% • Not relevant	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]
Sediment loading		
Other, please specify		

Requested content	General
	 This question seeks a company-wide response about the monitoring of various water aspects. "Across all your operations" refers to all entities included in your reporting boundary indicated in 1.5.
	 In row 3 "Other, please specify" organizations may indicate water aspects that are measured/monitored because they are deemed relevant for understanding the importance and impacts of water for your business
	• You should only select "Not monitored" if you do not collect any data on these water aspects. If you have data or collect data from any information sources, you should reflect this in your response by indicating the percentage of sites/facilities/operations this represents in the "% of sites/facilities/operations" column.
	 If monitoring information cannot be provided for all operations within your reporting boundary, then please explain why not in column 3 and describe the exclusions.
	 Note that for column 2, (% sites/facilities/operations) may include a broad variety of groupings of business operations, assets, fixed buildings, factories or sites etc. A company-specific explanation may be provided in column 3.

% of sites/facilities/operations measured and monitored (column 2)
 Select the proportion of your organization's facilities that are regularly (at least annually) measured and monitored for each of the defined aspects. For example, company A has 100 facilities across its total operations and quarterly measures and monitors sediment loading for 50% (50 facilities), so they would select "26-50".
 Select "Not relevant" only if it is not technically feasible or technically desirable to monitor this aspect. Provide your explanation in column 3.
 Select "Not monitored" if your company does not monitor this aspect, though it would be technically possible or desirable. Provide your explanation in column 3.
Please explain (column 3)
 You should provide an explanation for your response to column 2; such as why your organization measures/monitors these water aspects at this proportion of its operations and explain any exclusions.
 If desired, you may indicate the approach taken to define environmental flows, e.g. "environmental flows are defined by local legislation" or "they are defined by scientific studies promoted by our organization".
• Please state if your response in column 2 relates to facilities, sites or operations, or another kind of grouping, and explain how you are using the term; for example, "For our company, 'facilities' refers to several small run of the river operations"; "Our response in this row relates to our different geographic operations. We operate conjunctly several consecutive dams".
Other, please specify (row 3)
 Report other water aspects that are measured/monitored because they are deemed relevant for understanding the importance and impacts of water for your business. Select the percentage that best applies to your organization in column 2 and describe the water aspect in column 3 (Please explain).
 If you have no other water aspects that are deemed relevant you may select the option "Not relevant".

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental	Question level	W
Issue (Theme)		
Sector	Question level	EU

Total Volumes

(9.2.2) What are the total volumes of water withdrawn, discharged, and consumed across all your operations, how do they compare to the previous reporting year, and how are they forecasted to change?

Question details		
Change from last year	No change (2023 W1.2b)	
Rationale	This question incentivizes companies to have a complete view of their water balance at the corporate level and to assess anticipated forward trends in water demand, encouraging a transition towards business models which do not pose threats to rivers, lakes, aquifers, and streams. Total volumes can indicate the organization's relative significance as a user of water and provide a baseline figure for other calculations. Along with trend data, these volumes can also	

	suggest the level of risk posed by future disruptions to water supplies or increases in the cost of water. Water consumption measures water that is no longer available for use by the ecosystem or local community in the reporting period. Reporting the volume of water consumption contributes to an organization's understanding of the overall scale of its impact due to water withdrawal on downstream water availability.
Connection to other	CEO Water Mandate
frameworks	Current state: Performance GRI Disclosure 303-3 GRI Disclosure 303-4 GRI Disclosure 303-5
	TNFD Metrics & targets B
	ESRS 2
	ESRS E3
Response options	Please complete the following table:

0	1	2	3	4	5	6
Water	Volume	Comparison with	Primary reason for	Five-year	Primary reason for	Please
aspect	(megaliters /vear)	previous reporting vear	previous reporting year	forecast	forecast	explain
Total withdrawals	Numerical field [enter a range of 0 to +/- 999,999,999,999 9 using a maximum of two decimal places]	Select from: • Much Lower • Lower • About the same • Higher • Much Higher • This is our first year of measurement	 Select from: Change in accounting methodology Divestment from water intensive technology/process Facility closure Facility closure Facility expansion Increase/decrease in business activity Increase/decrease in efficiency Investment in watersmart technology/process Maximum potential volume reduction already achieved Mergers and acquisitions Unknown Other, please specify 	Select from: • Much lower • Lower • About the same • Higher • Much higher • Unknown	 Select from: Change in accounting methodology Divestment from water intensive technology/process Facility closure Facility expansion Increase/decrease in business activity Increase/decrease in efficiency Investment in watersmart technology/process Maximum potential volume reduction already achieved Mergers and acquisitions Unknown Other, please specify 	Text field [maximum 2,000 characters]
Total discharges						
Total consumptio n						

Requested content	Note: Organizations responding to an electric utilities, metals & mining, coal, or oil & gas sector request should refer to additional sector-specific guidance on this question at the end of the "Requested content" section.
	• This question is asking you to report aggregated company-wide volumetric data. If you do not have the aggregated data, if you are estimating or extrapolating to provide complete coverage, give an explanation in column 6 (Please explain).

•	Note that a zero should only be used for reporting zero volumes and not for an absence of data
•	Please refer to CDP's water accounting definitions before completing this question. Report volumetric data in megaliters per year for the reporting year (the time period you stated in response to 1.4). (1 megaliter = 1 million liters or 1,000 m3).
•	Cooling water : Cooling water (freshwater or sea water) is often withdrawn in large quantities and discharged back to its original source with negligible losses or variation in quality. However, this should be included in your water accounts.
•	Rainwater : If a company is managing rainwater (for example, by harvesting for use or storage, or to prevent flooding), or is dependent on it for production of goods or the delivery of services, it should try to estimate and disclose it as a withdrawal from the hydrological system into the company boundary. Note that in some jurisdictions rainwater is considered a withdrawal source and organizations are required to report its collection and use.
	 Companies may choose to exclude collected rainwater and domestic sewage from their water withdrawal/discharge volumes only if the resulting error in their water balance would be less than 5%. (This avoids your discharge volumes being larger than your withdrawals).
	 Including rainwater helps companies better understand their water dependency and risks. For some companies, precipitation/rainwater volumes may constitute a principal input of water at site level. This includes run-off where it has to be managed. In these cases, excluding rainwater from water accounting – withdrawal and discharge - would not be a true reflection of site water balance. In addition, there may be reduced impacts from using rainwater in place of other local freshwater sources.
Volume	es (column 1)
•	Report volumetric data in megaliters per year for the reporting year (the time period you stated in response to 1.4). (1 megaliter = 1 million liters or 1000 m3).
•	For withdrawals, data may be collected from several sources, including water meters, water bills, calculations derived from other available water data or the organization's own estimates (if neither water meters, nor bills, or reference data exist).
•	Before deciding whether your withdrawals, discharges or consumption can be reported as zero (0), please refer to CDP's <u>Technical Note on Water Accounting</u> <u>Definitions</u> .
•	If reporting "zero consumption", remember to check your discharge volumes. Scorers will check that discharge and withdrawals volumes balance (approximately).
Compa	rison with previous reporting year / Five-year forecast (columns 2, 4)
•	CDP does not define the threshold for considering a value as "much higher" rather than simply "higher" (or "much lower"/"lower"). CDP requests this information from many different industries with huge variations in water use, and it would therefore be difficult to provide a universal threshold that is meaningful (as proportions will equate to different absolute values and impacts).
•	CDP recommends that you define your own threshold for what is "much higher" (and "much lower") and apply it consistently so that the reported data for this question is comparable and data users can track your water accounts more effectively each year. A company-specific explanation for these thresholds should be provided in column 6 (Please explain).
•	The threshold defined for "much higher"/"higher" (and "much lower"/"lower") should be the same for column 2 and column 4.
•	Comparison with previous reporting year: If the data was not previously reported, but was collected, you may choose to indicate a comparison with the previous year or select "This is our first year of measurement". In either case, use the "Please explain" column to provide details about the information reported.
Primary	/ reason for comparison with previous reporting year / Primary reason for forecast
columi •	ns 3, 5) Select the most significant reason.

	• 'Maximum potential volume reduction already achieved' refers to situations where water saving limits have been reached – for example where a closed-loop water recycling system has been put in place and further water reductions are not feasible.	
	Please explain (column 6)	
	 Include any contextual information necessary to understand your primary reason for the comparison with previous reporting year and the five-year forecast, and how the volumetric data have been compiled, such as any standards, methodologies, and assumptions used. 	
	 If you have left column 1 blank because you do not have the data, describe the barriers to reporting that data and any plans to collect and report it. Describe the thresholds for what is "much higher" and "much lower" for the change in 	
	 volumes from previous reporting year and the five-year forecasts. If you provide an estimated figure or there is any level of uncertainty in your "Total" 	
	in this field and give the range of uncertainty. Uncertainty can arise from data gaps, assumptions, metering/measurement constraints including equipment accuracy, data management, etc.	
	 Note: CDP expects withdrawals, discharges and consumption figures to balance (approximately; +/- 5%) so if there is a good reason why this cannot happen, it should be explained in here. 	
	Please explain – additional guidance for consumption volume (row 3)	
	 For the "water consumption" row, you should indicate if your figure is based on an aggregation of local measurements, an aggregation of local calculations, or is a company-wide calculation (for example using withdrawals minus discharges). 	
	 If known, please provide a breakdown of this figure (with reference to CDP's definition of consumption) and a brief explanation. Breakdowns include: 	
	 Volume incorporated into products, crops or waste; 	
	 Volume evaporated or transpired; 	
	 Volume consumed by humans or livestock; 	
	 Net volume stored in a controlled manner; 	
	 Net volume stored for future use, Volumes otherwise excluded from discharges out of the organization's boundary. 	
	• It is important that you explain a negative consumption figure where this is the case. This would indicate that your discharges are larger than your withdrawals for the reporting year - due to a net release of water from storage, for example.	
Requested content –	Sector-specific guidance for electric utilities sector	
[Sector] (if applicable)	Canami I	
	 This guidance is specific to companies responding to an electric utilities sector request. You should first read the guidance for this question that applies to all companies. This is additional to the general guidance and does not replace it. 	
	Water aspect (column 0)	
	• Total withdrawals: CDP recognizes the difficulty in accounting for some elements of the hydropower operations' water balance, specifically surface runoff or elements that are outside the organization's control such as third-party discharges into the	
	reservoir. Water withdrawals into hydropower operations include river inflow, surface runoff and precipitation onto the reservoir surface, as well as third-party discharges into the reservoir:	
	W = Precipitation + River Inflow + Runoff + Third-party discharges into reservoir	
	Organizations should strive to include volumes for those sources if they would result in an estimated error in the water balance of more than 5% and take a consistent approach throughout the questionnaire. In column 6 (Please explain), you should explain which sources you have included or excluded. Note that estimation or modelling are valid sources of data.	

Total discharges: CDP recognizes the difficulty in accounting for some elements of the hydropower operations' water balance, specifically seepage or those that are outside the organization's control such as third-party withdrawals. In hydropower operations, water discharge includes the dam outlet and the spillway, underground seepage and third-party withdrawals from the reservoir (for example a municipal water plant abstracting from the reservoir).
D = Dam outlet + Spillway + Seepage + Third-party withdrawals from the reservoir
 Organizations should strive to include volumes for those destinations and explain which of these elements are included or excluded if they would result in an estimated error in the water balance of more than 5%. In column 6, you should explain which destinations you have included or excluded and take a consistent approach throughout the questionnaire. Note that estimation or modelling are valid sources of data. Total consumption: Water consumption in hydropower operations includes evaporation from the reservoir surface as well as the balance between withdrawals and discharges. Although organizations should estimate evaporated volumes if they would result in an estimated error in the water balance of more than 5%, you may consider variations in storage as a valid measure of your consumption volumes rather than calculating evaporation and the balance between all withdrawals and discharges. This information is usually easily derived from water level measurements. In column 6 (Please explain) provide your approach to reporting a total consumption figure.
 Please explain (column 6) In the case of hydropower operations, indicate which elements of water withdrawals (river inflow, surface runoff, precipitation onto the reservoir surface and third-party discharges into the reservoir), discharges (spillway, underground seepage, and third-party withdrawals from the reservoir) and consumption are you taking into account when providing your response to column 1 (Volume). You may indicate the method followed to obtain it, e.g. direct monitoring, estimation from a hydrological model, or other secondary source of information. Additionally, you may choose to specify the evaporated volumes if your organization collects this data.
Sector-specific guidance for metals & mining and coal sectors
General
• This guidance is specific to companies responding to a metals & mining or coal sector request. You should first read the guidance for this question that applies to all companies. This is additional to the general guidance and does not replace it.
 Water aspect (column 0) Water withdrawals: In line with CDP's definition of water withdrawal, for the mining industry water withdrawals include water diversions to enable comparability – because it is water that crosses the company boundary. Water discharges: In line with CDP's definition of water discharges, for the mining industry discharges comprise all water outputs including water diversions – because it is water that crosses the company boundary. Evaporation and water entrained in waste material should not be considered discharges but as part of the consumption volumes. Water consumption: Water consumption in the mining industry should report on the volumes of water lost to evaporation from open water surfaces, entrained in remaining waste material (such as tailings, coarse rejects, and concentrates), or water stored
over the reporting year.
Sector-specific guidance for on a gas sector
 General This guidance is specific to companies responding to an oil & gas sector request. You should first read the guidance for this question that applies to all companies. This is additional to the general guidance and does not replace it.
Water aspect (column 0)

 Total withdrawals: In the oil & gas sector, the reporting of water withdrawals volumes typically does not include produced water. To enable comparability, CDP requires all companies to include produced water volumes in their withdrawals disclosure, in order to have an accurate water balance. As part of groundwater withdrawal volumes (be it from renewable or non-renewable sources), organizations should include all withdrawals from aquifers (other than the formation being exploited). These withdrawals may be intended for any use in the organization, including injection to maintain well pressure or as part of the fracture fluids. Total discharges: In oil production, as part of secondary and tertiary recovery operations, water-based fluids (from various sources) may be used to maintain the pressure, and to displace the hydrocarbons and move them towards the production wells. For CDP disclosure, organizations must report these volumes as discharges to groundwater bodies, to enable comparability and have an accurate water balance.

0	1	2	3	4	5	6
Water aspect	Volume (megaliters /year)	Comparison with previous reporting year	Primary reason for comparison with previous reporting year	Five- year forecast	Primary reason for forecast	Please explain
Total	32,596,140	About the same	Increase/decrease	Lower	Investment in water- smart technology/process	Description for "comparison with previous reporting year" and "five-year forecast" thresholds: Deviation +/- 5% = about the same; Deviation between +/- 5-15% = higher / lower; Deviation > +/- 15% = much higher / lower; Deviation > +/- 15% = much higher / lower. Water withdrawals remained about the same compared to the previous year despite an increase in production thanks to water efficiency measures and divestment from thermal coal operations. These actions form part of our 2020-2025 sustainability strategy. In the future, we expect withdrawals to decrease with increased investments in water-smart technologies, water efficiency measures, and water circularity.
discharges	20,027,000		in efficiency		smart technology/process	"comparison with previous reporting year" and "five-year forecast" thresholds: Deviation +/- 5% = about the same; Deviation between +/- 5-15% = higher / lower: Deviation > ±/-

						15% = much higher / lower. The increase in total discharges can be explained by a decrease in water consumption as well as improved water efficiency. In the future, we expect water discharges to decrease with increased investments in water water-smart technologies, efficiency measures, and water circularity.
Total consumption	8,779,710	Lower	Divestment from water intensive technology/process	Lower	Investment in water- smart technology/process	Description for "comparison with previous reporting year" and "five-year forecast" thresholds: Deviation +/- 5% = about the same; Deviation between +/- 5-15% = higher / lower; Deviation > +/- 15% = much higher / lower; Deviation > +/- 15% = much higher / lower; Deviation sigures are based on measured primary data on water withdrawal and water discharge at all operations (C= W – D). The lower consumption volume can be primarily attributed to divestment from thermal coal operations. Increases in water efficiency measures have also contributed to the decrease in water consumption. We expect water consumption to continue decreasing with the implementation of the remainder of our 2020-2025 sustainability strategy, including water-smart processes, water circularity and an optimized water management to achieve a continuous improvement of the water usage ration.

Tags					
Corporate	Capital Markets				
authority					
Environmental	Question level	W			
Issue (Theme)					
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)			

9.2.3 In your oil & gas sector operations, what are the total volumes of water withdrawn, discharged, and consumed (by business division), how do they compare to the previous reporting year, and how are they forecasted to change?

Question details	
Question dependencies	Rows in this question will be presented according to the business divisions reported in 1.19
Change from last year	No change (2023 W-OG1.2c)
Rationale	This question incentivizes companies to have a complete view of their water balance at the business division level and to assess anticipated forward trends in water demand, encouraging a transition towards business models which do not pose threats to rivers, lakes, aquifers, and streams. Volumes of water withdrawals, discharges, and consumption typically differ significantly between business divisions. Detailing the water balance at this scale provides data users with an understanding of the key phases that determine the organization's water balance and allow a better interpretation of answers provided in other sections of the questionnaire.
Response options	Please complete the following table:

0	1	2	3	4	5	6
Water aspect by business division	Volume (megaliters /year)	Comparison with previous reporting year	Primary reason for comparison with previous reporting year	Five-year forecast	Primary reason for forecast	Please explain
Total withdrawals - upstream	Numerical field [enter a number from 0 to +/- 999,999,999,99 99 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	 Select from: Much Lower Lower About the same Higher Much Higher This is our first year of measurem ent 	 Select from: Change in accounting methodology Divestment from water intensive technology/proc ess Facility closure Facility closure Facility expansion Increase/decrea se in business activity Increase/decrea se in efficiency Investment in water-smart technology/proc ess Maximum potential volume reduction already achieved Mergers and acquisitions 	Select from: • Much lower • Lower • About the same • Higher • Much higher • Unkno wn	 Select from: Change in accounting methodology Divestment from water intensive technology/proc ess Facility closure Facility closure Facility expansion Increase/decrea se in business activity Increase/decrea se in efficiency Investment in water-smart technology/proc ess Maximum potential volume reduction already achieved Mergers and acquisitions 	Text field [maximu m 2,500 character s]

		 Unknown Other, please specify 	 Unknown Other, please specify 	
Total discharges – upstream				
Total consumption – upstream				
Total withdrawals – midstream/downstre am				
Total discharges – midstream/downstre am				
Total consumption – midstream/downstre am				
Total withdrawals – chemicals				
Total discharges – chemicals				
Total consumption – chemicals				
Total withdrawals – other business division				
Total discharges – other business division				
Total consumption – other business division				

[Fixed	row]
--------	------

Requested content	General
	• IPIECA's " <u>Oil and gas industry guidance on voluntary sustainability reporting</u> " guidelines recommend reporting in m ³ . However, due to the large volumes of water involved in the oil & gas industry, and to allow for comparability, CDP's preferred metric is megaliters (1 megaliter = 1 million liters or 1000 m3)
	 If you are estimating or extrapolating to provide complete coverage, please give an explanation in column 6 ("Please explain").
	 Note that a zero should only be used for reporting zero volumes and not for an absence of data.
	 In the case of integrated plants combining one or more business divisions organizations may choose to report the withdrawn, discharged, and consumption volumes in either one of the business division rows. You should then clarify this in column 6 ("Please explain").
	• Total withdrawals - Upstream (row 1): In the oil & gas sector, the reporting of water withdrawals volumes typically does not include produced water. To enable comparability, CDP requires all companies to include produced water volumes in their withdrawals disclosure, in order to have an accurate water balance.
	• Total discharges – Upstream (row 2): In oil production, as part of secondary and
	tertiary recovery operations, water-based fluids (from various sources) may be used
	to maintain the pressure, and to displace the hydrocarbons and move them towards the production wells. For CDP disclosure, organizations must report these volumes

as discharges to groundwater bodies, to enable comparability and have an accurate water balance.
Comparison with previous reporting year / Five-year forecast (columns 2, 4):
 If you left column 1 blank because you are unable to report a calculated or estimate figure this year, you may give an estimate for the change if possible. CDP does not define the threshold for considering a value as "much higher" rather than simply "higher" (or "much lower"/"lower"). CDP requests this information from many different industries with huge variations in water use, and it would therefore be difficult to provide a universal threshold that is meaningful (as proportions will equate to different absolute values and impacts). CDP recommends that you define your own threshold for what is "much higher" (and "much lower") and apply it consistently so that each year the reported data for this question is comparable and data users can track your water accounts more effectively. A company-specific explanation for these thresholds should be provided in column 6 (Please explain). The threshold defined for "much higher"/"higher" (and "much lower") should be the same for column 2 and column 4. Comparison with previous reporting year: If the data was not previously reported, but was collected, you may choose to indicate a comparison with the previous year or select "This is our first year of measurement". In either case, use the "Please explain" column to provide details about the information reported.
Primary reason for comparison with previous reporting year / Primary reason for forecast (columns 3, 5)
Select the most significant reason.
 "Maximum potential volume reduction already achieved" refers to situations where water saving limits have been reached – for example where a closed-loop water recycling system has been put in place and further water reductions are not feasible.
Please explain (column 6):
 If you have reported combined data for business divisions, please explain your approach here. Briefly explain your response for column 1 including any zero (0) volumes. Describe the thresholds for what is "much higher" and "much lower" for the change in volumes from the previous reporting year and the five-year forecasts. Include any contextual information necessary to understand your primary reason for the comparison with previous reporting year and the five-year forecast.

Authoring notes					
Tags					
Corporate authority	Capital Markets				
Environmental	Question level	W			
Issue (Theme)					
Sector	Question level	OG			

Withdrawals from water stressed areas

(9.2.4) Indicate whether water is withdrawn from areas with water stress, provide the volume, how it compares with the previous reporting year, and how it is forecasted to change.

Question details				
Change from last	Modified question (2023 W1.2d)			
year				
Rationale	Since water is a shared resource, and water-related impacts are localized, organizations are increasingly encouraged to prioritize action in areas with water stress and to understand and respond to local contexts.			
	This question on water from stressed areas supports a trend towards metrics for corporate water reporting and target setting informed by local context, and in addition, the TCFD recommends disclosure of reliance on water from areas of water stress. This question also incentivizes organizations to assess anticipated forward trends in withdrawals from water stressed areas, encouraging a transition towards business models which do not pose threats to rivers, lakes, aquifers, and streams.			
	The data requested assists the assessment of your organization's dependence on potentially contested sources (regardless of whether your facility itself is located in a stressed area), as well as your potential impact on sensitive locations.			
	Water stress is a driver of business risk and, as stress is likely to worsen, transparency is critical. Understanding elevated business risk due to operations in water stressed areas is important for the investor community, and this question allows data users to review the trend in dependency on water from stressed basins.			
	Knowledge of water-related hot spots helps your organization identify where water stress may be affecting its operations, now or in the future, as well as to prioritize your sustainable water management practices.			
Connection to	GRI			
other frameworks	Standard 303-3: Water withdrawal			
	CEO Water Mandate			
	Current state: Performance			
	TNFD Metrics & targets B			
	ESRS 2			
	ESRS E3			

1	2	3	4	5	
Withdrawals are from areas with water stress	Volume withdrawn from areas with water stress (megaliters)	Comparison with previous reporting year	Primary reason for comparison with previous reporting year	Five-year forecast	
Select from: • Yes • No • Unknown	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of two decimal places]	Select from: Much lower Lower About the same Higher Much higher This is our first year of measurement	 Select from: Change in accounting methodology Divestment from water intensive technology/process Facility closure Facility closure Facility expansion Increase/decrease in business activity Increase/decrease in efficiency Investment in water-smart technology/process Maximum potential volume 	Select from: Much lower Lower About the same Higher Much higher Unknown	

	•	reduction already achieved Mergers and acquisitions Unknown Other, please	
	•	other, please specify	

6	7	8	9
Primary reason for forecast	% of total withdrawals that are withdrawn from areas with water stress	Identification tool	Please explain
 Select from: Change in accounting methodology Divestment from water intensive technology/process Facility closure Facility expansion Increase/decrease in business activity Increase/decrease in efficiency Investment in watersmart technology/process Maximum potential volume reduction already achieved Mergers and acquisitions Unknown Other plage specify 	[Auto-calculated]	Select all that apply: • WRI Aqueduct • WWF Water Risk Filter • Other, please specify	Text field [maximum 5,000 characters]

 General Refer to CDP's water accounting definitions and the Explanation of terms for this question before completing the table. Organizations should report which approach/tool they use to assess whether their
 Refer to CDP's water accounting definitions and the Explanation of terms for this question before completing the table. Organizations should report which approach/tool they use to assess whether their
Organizations should report which approach/tool they use to assess whether their
withdrawals are from a "stressed area". They should explain the approach taken and which data sets were used to assess "water stress".
• As good practice, a water-stressed area should be measured, at the catchment level as a minimum.
 Credible, publicly available tools for assessing levels of water stress include WRI <u>Aqueduct Water Risk Atlas</u>, WWF <u>Water Risk Filter</u>, (see Additional information for more details about these tools).
 Commonly accepted global risk indicators to assess areas as water stressed in terms of quantity and their thresholds for reporting to CDP include:
 Water availability - equal to/greater than 'High risk': 3.4 (<u>WWF Water Risk</u> <u>Filter</u>). WWF recommends that users also take into consideration 'Medium risk': >2.6.
 The WWF Water Risk Filter's risk category 'Water Availability' integrates the State of Nature layer for Water Availability recommended for the Science-based Targets for Nature (SBTN) Step 1: Assess and Step 2: Interpret & Prioritize. The SBTN's State of Nature layer for Water Availability is calculated based on a multi- model approach which integrates the best available global water scarcity risk indicators: Water depletion, Baseline water stress, and

 Baseline water stress - equal to/greater than 'High': 40-80% (<u>WRI</u> <u>Aqueduct Water Risk Atlas</u>). This refers to the ratio of total annual water withdrawals to available renewable water supply.
 Baseline water depletion - equal to/greater than 'High': 50-75% (<u>WRI</u> <u>Aqueduct Water Risk Atlas</u>). This refers to the ratio of total annual water consumption to available renewable water supply.
 Organizations can complement the results of these tools with their own assessments or by using other methodologies. Some companies will use more granular level data and local knowledge of the basins in which they operate to assess which withdrawals are from stressed areas. For example, an organization may consider its facility to be in a water-stressed sub basin or other smaller geographic level, though a global data set suggests that the particular catchment is not stressed.
 Many national and regional water authorities will also have suitable maps, databases and environmental assessments available. (These may be included in the <u>FAO/AquaStat database</u>, or in reports of progress against <u>SDG 6.4.2</u>.)
• Note that this question asks about the location of withdrawal sources rather than your facilities. In most cases, these will not be different at a catchment level. If supplying data based on the location of facilities because the exact location of withdrawal sources is unknown, indicate this in column 9 "Please explain".
Withdrawals are from areas with water stress (column 1)
 If you select "No", columns 2 "Volume withdrawn from areas with water stress (megaliters)" to 7 "% of total withdrawals that are withdrawn from areas of water stress" will not be presented. If you select "Unknown, columns 2 "Volume withdrawn from areas with water stress
(megaliters)" to 8 "Identification tool" will not be presented.
Volume withdrawn from areas with water stress (megaliters) (column 2)
• Your disclosure should include all withdrawals within stressed areas and all sources listed in 9.2.7, including third party suppliers. Do not include produced water or desalinated water.
 Report volumetric data in megaliters per year for the reporting year (1 megaliter = 1 million liters or 1,000m³). You may provide an estimate and explain why in column 9 "Please explain".
 Note that a zero should only be used for reporting zero volumes and not for an absence of data.
Comparison with previous reporting year / Five-year forecast (columns 3, 5)
• CDP does not define the threshold for considering a value as "much higher" rather than simply "higher" (or "much lower" "lower"). CDP requests this information from many different industries with huge variations in water use, and it would therefore be difficult to provide a universal threshold that is meaningful (as proportions will equate to different absolute values and impacts). CDP recommends that you define your own threshold for what is "much higher" (and "much lower") and apply it consistently so that each year the reported data for this question is comparable and data users can track your water accounts more effectively. A company-specific explanation for these thresholds should be provided in column 9 "Please explain".
 The threshold defined for "much higher" "higher" (or "much lower" "lower") should be the same for column 3 "Comparison with previous reporting year" and column 5 "Five-year forecast".
• Comparison with previous reporting year: If the data was not previously reported, but was collected, you may choose to indicate a comparison with the previous year or select "This is our first year of measurement". In either case, use the "Please explain" column to provide details about the information reported.
 In some cases, the "Comparison with previous reporting year" for the % withdrawn from areas with water stress may be different to the net change in volume withdrawn from water stressed areas compared to the previous reporting year. In these cases, the organization should state the volumetric comparison between the current and previous reporting year in column 9 "Please explain"). This would be applicable, for example, when an organization has "much higher" total company-wide withdrawals

 compared to the previous reporting year, but their absolute withdrawals from areas with water stress are about the same or higher. In this example, the response to column 3 "Comparison with previous reporting year" would be "lower" although their absolute withdrawals from areas with water stress have not been reduced. Primary reason for comparison with previous reporting year / Primary reason for forecast (columns 4, 6) Select the most significant reason. "Maximum potential volume reduction already achieved" refers to situations where water saving limits have been reached – for example where a closed-loop water recycling system has been put in place and further water reductions are not feasible.
 % of total withdrawals that are withdrawn from areas with water stress (column 7) This column will be auto-calculated in the disclosure platform. The % of total withdrawals from areas with water stress will be calculated using the volume withdrawn from areas with water stress figure (column 2) and the volume of total withdrawals figure given in 9.2.2 (column 1, row 1). Ensure that you have entered data into these columns. Volume withdrawn from areas with water stress × 100
 Identification tool (column 8) Select the tool(s) your organization uses to identify whether its withdrawals are located in geographic areas of water stress. If you have used a different tool, methodology or data set, select "Other, please specify" and provide a label for the tool/approach in the text field provided and give details in column 9 "Please explain".
 Please explain (column 9) If you have used an estimate, you may provide an explanation why. Use this field to give more details about: The volume you reported in column 2 "Volume withdrawn from areas with water stress (megaliters)" Any exclusions in your reporting Scope of assessments (full coverage or partial based on geographies, business units, etc.)
 If your responses to columns 2, 3 or 5 are partially or wholly estimated, explain your approach to estimation. If you have selected a recommended tool in column 8 "Identification tool", briefly describe how the selected tool was applied to evaluate whether water is withdrawn from stressed areas, including: Which data sets are used; and Frequency of assessments. If you have not used one of the tools recommended, briefly describe: The tool used; How "areas with water stress" are defined and identified, including the threshold applied; and
 If possible, the methodology used such as the data sets that your assessment is based on. This question asks about the location of withdrawal sources rather than your facilities. Indicate if you are only able to supply data based on the location of facilities and give your reason. You may explain your organizations management response to the exposure to business risks associated with the volume disclosed in column 2 "Volume withdrawn from areas with water stress (megaliters)", and your experience of working in water stressed areas. This is optional but may provide data users with context to better interpret the significance of the figures reported.

	 If you selected "Unknown" in column 1"Withdrawals are from areas with water stress", explain why you have not assessed if any of your water withdrawals are from stressed areas, and if relevant, any plans for future assessment.
Additional	See below:
information	

WRI Aqueduct Water Risk Atl	as Tool
Risk indicator	Description
Baseline water stress = withdrawals as a percentage of available flow Baseline water depletion = consumption as a percentage of available flow	A customizable global atlas used to evaluate how water risk (and water stress) may affect operations (at watershed level). The global map can be tailored specifically for nine water-intense industry sectors including Oil & Gas, Agriculture and Chemicals. Note that the categories of "Overall water risk" are based on a weighted selection of various physical, regulatory and reputational indicators. One of the "Physical risk quantity" indicators is a water stress indicator ("Baseline water stress") and another is a water depletion indicator ("Baseline water depletion"). The Aqueduct interface allows users to easily change the settings so that just particular indicators are shown. "The Baseline water stress" and "Baseline water depletion" indicators are based on a global dataset developed by the World Resources Institute and are also available as risk indicators in the WWF Water Risk Filter. For CDP disclosure, companies using Aqueduct should consider areas as "water
	stressed" where baseline water stress equals or exceeds 40%, or baseline water
MIME Motor Diak Filter	depletion equals or exceeds 50%.
Risk indicator	Description
Water depletion = the ratio	Description
of consumptive use to renewable available water	As part of the WWF Risk Filter Suite, the WWF Water Risk Filter is a free online tool enabling organizations to assess and respond to water risks in their operations and upstream value chain. More specifically, organizations can map and evaluate their
Baseline water stress = withdrawals as a	(basin) water risk, including water scarcity risk (water stress in terms of quantity only).
percentage of available flow	One risk category of physical risk is 'Water Availability' using the WWF Water Risk Filter should consider areas as "water stressed" where the "Water Availability" risk score is equal to/greater than 'High risk': 3.4. WWF recommends that users also
Blue water scarcity = the ratio of the blue water	take into consideration facilities facing 'Medium risk': >2.6.
footprint to the total blue water availability, considering intra-annual variability	The WWF Water Risk Filter's risk category 'Water Availability' integrates the <u>State</u> of Nature layer for Water Availability recommended for the Science-based Targets for Nature (SBTN) Step 1: Assess and Step 2: Interpret & Prioritize. The SBTN's State of Nature layer for Water Availability is calculated based on a multi-model approach which integrates the best available global water scarcity risk indicators: Water depletion, Baseline water stress, and Blue water scarcity. In addition, WWF is planning to incorporate an indicator on groundwater availability in the WWF Water Risk Filter's risk category 'Water Availability'. As every global water scarcity dataset is based on models using different assumptions and limitations, WWF recommends using the WWF Water Risk Filter risk category "Water Availability" – which integrates multiple, reliable, peer-reviewed global datasets for a robust assessment of water scarcity risk at a global scale. For further information, see WWF's Methodology documentation, <u>"How to" PDF</u>

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate	Capital Markets	
authority		
Environmental	Question level	W
Issue (Theme)		

Sector Question level All (ex	cept FS)
-------------------------------	----------

(9.2.5) What proportion of the produced agricultural commodities that are significant to your organization originate from areas with water stress?

Question text	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Produced" or "Produced and sourced" in column "Produced and/or sourced" and "Yes" in response to the column "Is this commodity considered significant to your business in terms of revenue?" for any row of 1.22 or 1.23.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 W-FB1.2e/W-AC1.2e, W-FB1.2f/W-AC1.2f)
Rationale	This question provides data users with information on the exposure that the organization may have to scarce resources in their direct operations. This metric will also allow data users to better understand the answers provided in other sections of the questionnaire.
Response options	Please complete the following table.

1	2	3	4
Agricultural commodities	The proportion of this commodity <u>produced</u> in areas with water stress is known	% of total agricultural commodity <u>produced</u> in areas with water stress	Please explain
Fixed rows based on selections of commodities in 1.22 and 1.23	 Select from: Yes No, but we intend to obtain this data within the next two years No, we do not have this data and have no plans to obtain it 	Select from: • 0% • Less than 1% • 1-10 • 11-25 • 26-50 • 51-75 • 76-99 • 100%	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]

Requested content	General
	 The rows presented in this table depend on your response to 1.22 (if applicable) and 1.23. Respond to all rows individually. Note that credible, publicly available tools for assessing levels of water stress include WRI Aqueduct Water Risk Atlas and WWF Water Risk Filter (see guidance for 9.2.4 for more details about these tools).

Agricultural commodity (column 0)
 Note that only the <u>produced</u> agricultural commodities which you indicated are significant in terms of revenue in 1.22 and 1.23 will appear in the list.
% of total agricultural commodity produced in areas with water stress (column 2)
 This column is only presented if "Yes" is selected in column 1 "The proportion of this commodity produced in areas with water stress is known".
 Provide the percentage of your commodity produced in water stressed areas out of the total amount of the commodity produced. If none of your commodities are produced in areas with water stress in the current
 reporting year, select zero (0) and explain in column 3 "Please explain". The percentage relates to weight, volume, or other relevant unit of production for the commodity.
Please explain (column 3)
 Provide details of the tool used to identify areas with water stress. Indicate if the approach is different for produced or sourced products and add the rationale for choosing these approaches.
 If you used the "Other commodity" row to report a different commodity in 1.23, specify the name of the commodity produced by your organization. If you selected any option other than "Yes" in column 1 "The proportion of
this commodity produced in areas with water stress is known", explain your reasons for this.
 If you selected any "Yes" option in column 1, briefly explain the percentage reported in column 2, indicating any key factors such as:
 The unit of production used to calculate it;
 How the proportion has changed over the last year and indicate the anticipated future trends for the proportion, if known (note that future trends should be at least one year after the end of the reporting year provided in 1.4).
 How the metric is used within your organization; e.g., to inform targets, strategy or investments.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	W
Sector	Question level	AC, FB

(9.2.6) What proportion of the sourced agricultural commodities that are significant to your organization originate from areas with water stress?

Question text	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Sourced" or "Produced and sourced" in column "Produced and/or sourced" and "Yes" in response to the column "Is this commodity considered significant to your business in terms of revenue?" for any row of 1.22 or 1.23.

Change from last year	Modified question (2023 W-FB1.2e/W-AC1.2e, W-FB1.2g/W-AC1.2g)
Rationale	This question provides data users with information on an organization's exposure to scarce resources in their value chain. This metric will also allow data users to better understand the answers provided in other sections of the questionnaire.
Response options	Please complete the following table.

1	2	3	4
Agricultural commodities	The proportion of this commodity <u>sourced</u> in areas with water stress is known	% of total agricultural commodity <u>sources</u> in areas with water stress	Please explain
Fixed rows based on selections of commodities in 1.22 and 1.23	 Select from: Yes No, but we intend to obtain this data within the next two years No, we do not have this data and have no plans to obtain it 	Select from: 0% Less than 1% 1-10 11-25 26-50 51-75 76-99 100%	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]

Requested content	General
	 The rows presented in this table depend on your response to 1.22 and 1.23. Respond to all rows individually.
	Agricultural commodity (column 0)
	 Note that only the <u>sourced</u> agricultural commodities that you indicated are significant in terms of revenue in 1.22 and 1.23 will appear in the list.
	% of total agricultural commodity <u>sourced</u> from areas with water stress (column 2)
	 This column is only presented if "Yes" is selected in column 1 "The proportion of this commodity sourced in areas with water stress is known".
	 Provide the percentage of your commodity sourced from areas with water stress over the total amount of the commodity sourced.
	 If none of your commodities are sourced from areas with water stress in the current reporting year, select zero (0) and explain in column 3 "Please explain".
	I he percentage relates to weight, volume, or other relevant unit of production for the commodity.
	Please explain (column 3)
	 Provide details of the tool used to identify areas with water stress. Indicate if the approach is different for produced or sourced products and add the rationale for choosing these approaches.
	 If you used the "Other commodity" row to report a different commodity in
	 If you selected any option other than "Yes" in column 1 "The proportion of this commodity produced in areas with water stress is known", explain your reasons for this.
	 If you selected any "Yes" option in column 1, briefly explain the percentage reported in column 2, "% of total agricultural commodity sourced in areas with water stress" including key factors such as The unit of production used to calculate it;

0	How the proportion has changed over the last year and indicate the anticipated future trends for these proportions, if known (note that future trends should be at least one year after the end of the reporting year provided in 1.4). How the metric is used within your organization; e.g., to inform targets, strategy
	or investments.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental	Question level	Water
Issue (Theme)		
Sector	Question level	AC. FB

Withdrawals by source

(9.2.7) Provide total water withdrawal data by source.

Question text	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you indicate in 9.2 that you monitor the following water aspect(s): Water withdrawals – volume by source
Change from last year	No change (2023 W1.2h)
Rationale	Distinguishing between source types and reporting volume of water withdrawn by source contributes to an understanding of the potential risks and impacts associated with an organization's water use as this level of detail can be significant. For example, withdrawing water from an overdrawn aquifer will have different consequences for local water stress and a company's water security than does withdrawing seawater. Clean freshwater is becoming increasingly scarce, and this can impact production processes that rely on large volumes of water. In regions where water sources are highly restricted, the organization's water consumption patterns can also influence relations with other stakeholders.
Connection to other	CEO Water Mandate
frameworks	Current state: Performance
	GRI Disclosure 303-3
	TNFD Metrics & targets B
Response options	Please complete the following table:

0	1	2	3	4	5
Source	Relevance	Volume (megaliters/year)	Comparison with previous reporting year	Primary reason for comparison with previous reporting year	Please explain
Fresh surface water, including rainwater, water from wetlands, rivers, and lakes	 Select from: Relevant Relevant but volume unknown Not relevant 	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Select from: Much lower Lower About the same Higher Much higher This is our first year of measurement	 Select from: Change in accounting methodology Divestment from water intensive technology/process Facility closure Facility expansion Increase/decrease in business activity Increase/decrease in efficiency 	Text field [maximum 1,000 characters]

		 Investment in water- smart technology/process Maximum potential volume reduction already achieved Mergers and acquisitions Unknown Other, please specify 	
Brackish surface water/Seawater			
Groundwater – renewable			
Groundwater – non- renewable			
Produced/Entrained water			
Third party sources			

Requested content	Note: Organizations responding to an electric utilities, metals & mining, or coal sector request
	"Requested content" section.
	Conorol
	General
	 For the different sources, this question is requesting a figure for aggregated withdrawal volumes from across your organization. Information about your withdrawals by their source allows a better understanding of your company's dependency on different sources, the trend in that dependency, and your risk exposure from different water sources. If you do not have aggregated company-wide volumetric data, you may provide an estimate and give an explanation in column 5 (Please explain). Cooling water: Cooling water (freshwater or sea water) is often withdrawn in large quantities and discharged back to its original source with negligible losses or variation in quality. However, this should be included in your water accounts. For example, a utility company may use large volumes of surface water for cooling purposes, and the water quality may not need to be fresh. Companies should report this information by selecting 'Brackish surface water/seawater', to demonstrate to investors that they are not dependent on potentially scarce fresh surface water sources and therefore their risk exposure is likely to be less than if they were dependent on freshwater resources. Rainwater: If a company is managing rainwater (for example, by harvesting for use or
	storage, or to prevent flooding) or is dependent on it for production of goods or the delivery of services, it should try to estimate and disclose it as a withdrawal from the bydrological system into the company boundary.
	 Companies may choose to exclude collected rainwater and domestic sewage from their water withdrawal/discharge volumes only if this would result in less than 5% error in their water balance.
	 Including rainwater helps companies better understand their water dependency and risks. For some companies, precipitation/rainwater volumes may constitute a principal input of water at site level. In these cases, excluding rainwater from water accounting – withdrawal and discharge - would not be a true reflection of site water balance. In addition, there may be reduced impacts from using rainwater in place of other local freshwater sources.
	Oil & gas sector only: Groundwater - As part of groundwater withdrawal volumes (be it from renewable or non-renewable sources), organizations should include all withdrawals from aquifers (other than the formation being exploited). These

withdrawals may be intended for any use in the organization, including injection to maintain well pressure or as part of the fracture fluids.

Source (column 0)

• Fresh surface water: For the purposes of this disclosure you should include all surface water sources of a higher quality than brackish (i.e. a TDS lower than 10,000 mg/l).

Relevance (column 1)

- Select:
 - **'Relevant'** if your company uses, has used or plans to use the source, even if the withdrawal is zero for this reporting year.
 - 'Relevant but volume unknown' if your company uses, has used or plans to use the source, but the volume for this year is unknown and cannot be estimated. Columns 2, 3 and 4 will then be disabled and you should provide further explanation in column 5 (Please explain).
 - 'Not relevant' if your company does not withdraw from the source. Columns 2, 3 and 4 will then be disabled. You may provide further explanation in column 5 (Please explain).

Volume (megaliters/year) (column 2)

- Volumes should be reported in megaliters per year (1 megaliter = 1 million liters or 1000 m³). Your reporting year is the time period you stated in response to question 1.4.
- If you do have volumetric data for the current reporting year you may provide an estimate and explain why this is the case in column 5.
- Note that a zero (0) should only be used for reporting zero volumes and not for an absence of data.
- If reporting zero withdrawals, provide an explanation in column 5. Before deciding whether your withdrawals should be reported as "zero", please refer to CDP's definition of water withdrawals.

Comparison with previous reporting year (column 3)

- CDP does not define the threshold for considering a value as 'much higher' rather than simply 'higher' (or 'much lower'/'lower'). CDP requests this information from many different industries with huge variations in water use, and it would therefore be difficult to provide a universal threshold that is meaningful (as proportions will equate to different absolute values and impacts).
- CDP recommends that you define your own threshold for what is 'much higher' (and 'much lower') and apply it consistently so that each year the reported data for this question is comparable and data users can track your water accounts more effectively. A company-specific explanation for these thresholds should be provided in column 5 for each source.
- If the data was not previously reported, but was collected, you may choose to indicate a comparison with the previous year or select "This is our first year of measurement". In either case, use the "Please explain" column to provide details about the information reported.

Primary reason for comparison with previous reporting year (column 4)

Select the most significant reason for the comparison with previous reporting year.
 'Maximum potential volume reduction already achieved' refers to situations where water saving limits have been reached – for example where a closed-loop water recycling system has been put in place and further water reductions are not feasible.

Please explain (column 5)

- To assist CDP data users to understand a company's water use, you should explain your selections for 'Relevance' (column 1) and 'Primary reason for comparison with previous reporting year' (column 4), including any company-specific contextual information.
- Report whether your volumes for each source are estimated, modelled, or sourced from direct measurements. If estimation or modelling has been used, report the estimation or modelling methods.

	• Please explain any zero volumes for relevant sources. For example, "we sometimes withdraw water from this source but the volume for the reporting year was zero".				
	 Describe the thresholds for what is 'much higher' and 'much lower' for the change in volumes compared to the previous reporting year 				
	 Indicate the anticipated future trends for these volumes, if known (note that future 				
	trends would be at least one year after the end of the reporting year provided in 1.4).				
	• For Fresh surface water (row 1), it is important that you state which of the sources apply (rainwater, water from wetlands, rivers and lakes etc.). Also state whether those				
	sources are monitored and if you know whether the withdrawal volume for each				
	source is increasing or decreasing. If you are using and managing rainwater and the volume equates to more than 5% of your water balance, please explain if it is				
	harvested, treated etc. and the benefits and impacts of using it.				
	• For 'Third party' (row 6), if possible, specify whether the third party is a municipal supplier or another type of third party organization. This is particularly important if the				
	third party is known to be located in a water stressed area.				
Requested content –	Sector-specific guidance for electric utilities sector				
Sector-specific	This guidance is specific to companies responding to an electric utilities sector				
	request. You should first read the guidance for this question that applies to all				
	 companies. This is additional to the general guidance and does not replace it. CDP recognizes the difficulty in accounting for some elements of the hydropower. 				
	operations' water balance, specifically surface runoff or elements that are outside the				
	organization's control such as third-party discharges into the reservoir (for example a				
	 Water withdrawals into hydropower operations include river inflow, surface runoff and 				
	precipitation onto the reservoir surface, as well as third-party discharges into the reservoir:				
	W = Precipitation + River Inflow + Runoff + Third-party discharges into reservoir				
	Organizations should strive to include volumes for those sources if they would result in an estimated error in their water balance of more than 5% (specifically the total water withdrawals figure you report in 9.2.2) and take a consistent approach throughout the questionnaire. In the last column (Please explain) you should indicate which sources you have included or excluded. Note that estimation or modelling are valid sources of data.				
	Relevance (column 1)				
	• For your hydropower operations - if the data for third-party discharges to the reservoir or the surface runoff volumes are not available, you may select "Relevant but volume unknown" or "Not relevant" depending on which best applies to your organization. You may consider water volumes to be relevant if the resulting error in the organization's water balance would be more than 5%.				
	Please explain (column 5)				
	Indicate which elements of water withdrawals (river inflow, surface runoff,				
	vou taking into account when providing your response, as well as the method followed				
	to obtain it, e.g. direct monitoring, estimation from a hydrological model, or other secondary source of information.				
	Sector-specific guidance for metals & mining and coal sectors				
	General				
	• This guidance is specific to companies responding to a metals & mining or coal sector request. You should first read the guidance for this question that applies to all companies. This is additional to the general guidance and does not replace it.				
	Source (column 0)				
	• Rainwater: Please note that in the mining industry precipitation/rainwater volumes may constitute a principal input of water at site level. Excluding rainwater from water accounting would not be a true reflection of site water balance.				
	Groundwater: Groundwater withdrawais are linked to extraction from bore holes and aguifer interception, i.e. groundwater is water that is extracted as part of ore				

 body dewatering during mining operations. Water entrained in ore should be reported as produced water. Brackish water/seawater: Organizations sourcing freshwater of low water quality (categories 2 and 3 of the <u>Water Accounting Framework from the Mineral Council of Australia</u>) and using it in their operations without significant treatment may report these resources as part of row 3 "Brackish water/seawater" sources, despite being a different type of resource. Produced/Entrained water: Water entrained in ore should be reported in this row
 Please explain (column 5) You may provide additional information to describe your organization's water use. Consider providing an explanation of factors like local landscape, geology, climate or hydrogeology, commodity type, or ore grade.

Authoring notes							
Tags							
Corporate	Capital Markets						
authority							
Environmental	Question level	W					
Issue (Theme)							
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)					

Discharges by destination

(9.2.8) Provide total water discharge data by destination.

Question details						
Question	This question only appears if you indicate in 9.2 that you monitor the following water aspect(s):					
dependencies	Water discharges – volumes by destination					
Change from last	No change (2023 W1.2i)					
year						
Rationale	Reporting volume of water discharged to specific destinations contributes to an understanding					
	of the specific risks and impacts associated with an organization's water discharges.					
Connection to other	CEO Water Mandate					
frameworks	Current state: Performance					
	GRI Disclosure 303-4					
	TNED Metrics & targets B					
Response options	Please complete the following table:					

0	1	2	3	4	5
Destination	Relevance	Volume (megaliters/year)	Comparison with previous reporting year	Primary reason for comparison with previous reporting year	Please explain
Fresh surface water	Select from: Relevant Relevant but volume unknown Not relevant	Numerical field [enter a range of 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Select from: Much lower Lower About the same Higher Much higher	 Select from: Change in accounting methodology Divestment from water intensive technology/process Facility closure Facility expansion Increase/decrease in business activity 	Text field [maximum 1,000 characters]
		 This is our first year of measurement 	 Increase/decrease in efficiency Investment in watersmart technology/process Maximum potential volume reduction already achieved Mergers and acquisitions Unknown Other, please specify 		
---------------------------------------	--	---	---	--	
Brackish surface water/seawater					
Groundwater					
Third-party destinations					

Requested content	Note: Organizations responding to an electric utilities, metals & mining or coal sector request should refer to additional sector-specific guidance on this question at the end of the "Requested content" section.
	General
	• This question is requesting an aggregated figure for your discharge volumes across your organization. If you do not have aggregated company-wide volumetric data, you may provide an estimate and give an explanation in column 5 (Please explain).
	• Zero discharge permit: If your company has a zero discharge permit, please consider any discharges that may exist outside this permit and may still be relevant to CDP's definition of discharges.
	 Rainwater: Rainwater/run-off that enters the site/facility boundary and is captured could also be counted as an output or discharge (even if not used in operations) if returned to the water environment via a dedicated discharge destination; e.g. river or groundwater via soakaway/filtration pond. You may choose to exclude collected rainwater from your discharge accounting, unless this would result in an error in your balance of more than 5%. Note that in the mining industry precipitation/rainwater volumes may constitute a principal input of water at site level and excluding rainwater would not be a true reflection of their site water balance. Companies in this sector (and others to which this is relevant) should report rainwater/runoff drawn into the boundaries of their operations and then discharged and explain this in column 5.
	• Cooling water : Cooling water (freshwater or sea water) is often withdrawn in large quantities and discharged back to its original source with negligible losses or variation in quality. However, this should be included in your water accounts.
	• Domestic sources : Domestic sewage is not regarded as water discharge. However, if wastewater comes from domestic sources but is pre-dominantly generated from sector business activities e.g. healthcare residential properties, this should be reported if it would result in an error in your balance of more than 5%.
	• Aquifer reinjection: reinjection to aquifers should be considered as a discharge to groundwater.

• Soakaway: Water returning to a groundwater source via a soakaway should be considered as a discharge.
• Groundwater (oil & gas sector only): In oil production, as part of secondary and tertiary recovery operations, water-based fluids (from various sources) may be used to maintain the pressure, and to displace the hydrocarbons and move them towards the production wells. For CDP disclosure, organizations must report these volumes as discharges to groundwater bodies, to enable comparability and have an accurate water balance.
Relevance (column 1)
Select:
 'Relevant' if your company uses, has used or plans to use the source, even if the discharge is zero for this reporting year. 'Relevant but volume unknown' if your company uses, has used or plans to use the source, but the volume for this year is unknown. Columns 2, 3 and 4 will then be disabled. You should provide further explanation in column 5 (Please explain). 'Not relevant' if your company does not discharge to the destination. Columns 2, 3 and 4 will then be disabled. You should provide further explanation in column 5 (Please explain).
Volume (megaliters/year) (column 2)
• Volumes should be reported in megaliters per year (1 megaliter = 1 million liters or 1000 m ³). Your reporting year is the time period you stated in response to question 1.4.
 If you do have volumetric data for the current reporting year you may provide an estimate and explain why this is the case in column 5.
 Note that a zero should only be used for reporting zero volumes and not for an absence of data.
 If reporting zero discharges, provide an explanation in column 5.
• Before deciding whether your discharges should be reported as "zero", please refer to CDP's definition of water discharges. This may be the case, for example, if a closed water circuit, or zero liquid effluent discharge complex, is in operation and a facility does not discharge water as all water is reused by the operation(s) during processing/production.
Comparison with previous reporting year (column 3)
• CDP does not define the threshold for considering a value as 'much higher' rather than simply 'higher' (or 'much lower'/'lower'). CDP requests this information from many different industries with huge variations in water use, and it would therefore be difficult to provide a universal threshold that is meaningful (as proportions will equate to different absolute values and impacts).
• CDP recommends that you define your own threshold for what is 'much higher' (and 'much lower') and apply it consistently so that each year the reported data for this question is comparable and data users can track your water accounts more effectively. A company-specific explanation for these thresholds should be provided in column 5 for each destination.
• If the data was not previously reported, but was collected, you may choose to indicate a comparison with the previous year or select "This is our first year of measurement". In either case, use the "Please explain" column to provide details about the information reported.
Primary reason for comparison with previous reporting year (column 4)
• Select the most significant reason for the comparison with previous reporting year.
• 'Maximum potential volume reduction already achieved' refers to situations where water saving limits have been reached – for example where a closed-loop water recycling system has been put in place and further water reductions are not feasible.
Please explain (column 5)

	• To assist CDP data users to understand a company's water use, you should explain your selections for 'Relevance' (column 1) and 'Primary reason for comparison with previous reporting year' (column 4), including any company-specific contextual information.
	• Report whether your volumes for each destination are estimated, modelled, or sourced from direct measurements. If estimation or modelling has been used, report the estimation or modelling methods.
	• To give data users confidence in your response, please explain any zero volumes for relevant destinations; e.g. if a completely closed loop cooling system has been introduced. Remember to report any discharged water that exceeds site storage capacity, e.g. excessive rainfall, as a separate discharge.
	• Describe the thresholds for what is 'much higher' and 'much lower' for the change in volumes compared to the previous reporting year.
	• Indicate the anticipated future trends for these volumes, if known (note that future trends would be at least one year after the end of the reporting year provided in 1.4).
	• For discharges to a Third-party, it is important to state if this includes water supplied to other organizations for their use.
Requested content – Sector specific	Sector-specific guidance for electric utilities sector
	General
	• This guidance is specific to companies responding to an electric utilities sector request. You should first read the guidance for this question that applies to all companies. This is additional to the general guidance and does not replace it.
	CDP recognizes the difficulty in accounting for some elements of the hydropower operations' water balance, specifically seepage or those that are outside the organization's control such as third-party withdrawals.
	 In hydropower operations, water discharge includes the dam outlet and the spillway, underground seepage and third-party withdrawals from the reservoir (for example a municipal water plant abstracting from the reservoir):
	D = Dam outlet + Spillway + Seepage + Third-party withdrawals from the reservoir
	 Organizations should strive to include volumes for those destinations if they would result in an estimated error in their water balance of more than 5% (specifically the total discharge figure you report in 9.2.2) and take a consistent approach throughout the questionnaire. In the last column (Please explain), you should explain which destinations you have included or excluded. Note that estimation or modelling are valid sources of data.
	Relevance (column 1)
	• For your hydropower operations - if the data for third-party withdrawals from the reservoir or the seepage volumes are not available, you may select "Relevant but volume unknown" or "Not relevant" depending on which best applies to your organization. You may consider water volumes to be relevant if the resulting error in the organization's water balance would be more than 5%.
	Please explain (column 5)
	• For hydropower operations explain if any changes in the water discharge volumes are related to higher/lower electricity production or other reasons related to water resources management such as flood control, satisfaction of downstream water demand, etc.
	• Indicate which elements of water discharges (dam outlet and spillway, seepage and third-party withdrawals from the reservoir) you are taking into account when providing your response.
	Sector-specific guidance for metals & mining and coal sectors
	General

• This guidance is specific to companies responding to a metals & mining or coal sector request. You should first read the guidance for this question that applies to all companies. This is additional to the general guidance and does not replace it.
Destination (column 0)
Brackish water/seawater: Discharges to brackish or seawater refer to the controlled discharge to estuary or to sea discharge volumes. This aligns with the <u>Water</u> Accounting Framework from the Mineral Council of Australia.
Groundwater: Discharges to groundwater refer to seepage or aquifer reinjection discharge volumes. This aligns with the <u>Water Accounting Framework from the Mineral</u> <u>Council of Australia</u> .

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	W
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

Discharges by level(s) of treatment

(9.2.9) Within your direct operations, indicate the highest level(s) to which you treat your discharge.

Question text	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you indicate in 9.2 that you monitor the following water aspect(s): Water discharges – volumes by treatment method
Change from last year	No change (2023 W1.2j)
Rationale	Reporting on levels of treatment demonstrates that the organization is monitoring its discharges and is able to understand the extent to which its activities impact water quality. Pollution is a driver of business risk and a potential threat to public health, food security, and economic resilience – as well as a cause of degradation of freshwater biodiversity. Treatment of discharge is therefore critical and transparency on this will aid investors, customers, and other data users to assess the risks and opportunities.
Connection to other	CEO Water Mandate
frameworks	Current state: Performance
	GRI
	Standard 303-4: Water discharge (clause 2.4.2)
	TNFD Metrics & targets B
Response options	Please complete the following table:

0	1	2	3	4	5
Highest level of treatment within direct operations	Relevance of treatment level to discharge	Volume (megaliters/year)	Comparison of treated volume with previous reporting year	Primary reason for comparison with previous reporting year	% of your sites/facilities/operation s this volume applies to
Tertiary treatment	Select from: • Relevant	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999	Select from: • Much lower • Lower	Select from: • Change in accounting methodology	Select from: • Not monitored • Less than 1% • 1-10

	 Relevant but volume unknown Not relevant 	using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	 About the same Higher Much higher This is our first year of measurement 	 Divestment from water intensive technology/process Facility closure Facility expansion Increase/decrease in business activity Increase/decrease in efficiency Investment in water-smart technology/process Maximum potential volume reduction already achieved Mergers and acquisitions Unknown Other, please specify 	 11-20 21-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 61-70 71-80 81-90 91-99 100% Unknown
Secondary treatment					
Primary					
treatment only					
Discharge to the natural environmen t without treatment					
Discharge to a third					
party					
without					
Other					

Requested content	General				
	• This question requests a figure for your discharge volumes by treatment level aggregated across your direct operations. If you do not have company-wide volumetric data, you may provide an estimate and state this in column 6 (Please explain). You should account for 100% of the total discharge volume disclosed in 9.2.2.				
	Highest level of treatment within direct operations (column 0)				
	• This refers to the level of treatment applied by your organization to water at the point of discharge. If water has been treated to multiple levels, report the volume in the row for the highest level of treatment only. For example, if the total discharge reported in 9.2.2 is 10,000 megaliters, and 9,000 megaliters of this are treated to primary, secondary, and tertiary levels, but the remaining 1,000 megaliters are only treated to primary level, then:				
	 9,000 megaliters should be reported in the "Tertiary treatment" row, 0 megaliters should be reported in the "Secondary treatment" row, and, 1,000 megaliters should be reported in the "Primary treatment only" row. 				
	• Discharge to the natural environment without treatment: This row is for the volume of water you discharge from your company boundary without treatment, and to a destination other than a third party.				
	• Discharge to a third party without treatment : This row is for the volume of water you discharge from your company boundary to a third party which may then treat it.				

•	Other treatment: If you treat water using specific treatment techniques, disclose this volume in this row and provide details in column 6 (Please explain), i.e. a description of each technique used and the volumes treated; for example, nature-based solutions such as a constructed wetland, managed by the organization and designed to treat discharge.
Rel	evance of treatment level to discharge (column 1)
•	Select:
	 'Relevant' if this level of treatment is relevant to your business activities and the nature of your discharge, (even if the volume is reported as zero for this reporting year because this is not the highest level of treatment).
	 'Relevant but volume unknown' if your company uses, has used, or plans to treat discharge to this level, but the volume for this year is unknown and cannot be estimated. Columns 2, 3, 4 and 5 will not be presented and you should provide further explanation in column 6 (Please explain).
	 'Not relevant" ONLY if this level of treatment is not relevant to your business activities and the nature of your discharge. Columns 2, 3, 4, and 5 will not be presented. Your selection here should not be impacted by your use, or relevance, of other levels of treatment. should provide further explanation in column 6 for your selection in column 1.
Vol	ume (megaliters/year) (column 2)
•	Volumes should be reported in megaliters per year (1 megaliter = 1 million liters or 1000 m ³). Your reporting year is the time period you stated in response to question 1.4.
•	If you do not have volumetric data for the current reporting year you may provide an estimate and explain why this is the case in column 6 (Please explain).
•	Note that a zero should only be used for reporting zero volumes and not for absence of data.
•	If reporting zero discharges for a level of treatment, provide an explanation in column 6. Before deciding whether your discharges should be reported as "zero", please refer to CDP's definition of water discharges.
Cor	nparison of treated volume with previous reporting year (column 3)
•	CDP does not define the threshold for considering a value as 'much higher' rather than simply 'higher' (or 'much lower'/'lower'). CDP requests information from many different industries with huge variations in water use, and it would therefore be difficult to provide a universal threshold that is meaningful (as proportions will equate to different absolute values and impacts).
•	CDP recommends that you define your own threshold for what is 'much higher' (and 'much lower') and apply it consistently so that the reported data for this question is comparable and data users can track your water accounts more effectively each year. A company-specific explanation for these thresholds should be provided in column 6 (Please explain).
•	If the data was not previously reported, but was collected, you may choose to indicate a comparison with the previous year or select "This is our first year of measurement". In either case, use the "Please explain" column to provide details about the information reported.
Prin	nary reason for comparison with previous reporting year (column 4)
•	Select the most significant reason for the comparison with previous reporting year.
•	'Maximum potential volume reduction already achieved' refers to situations where water saving limits have been reached – for example where a closed-loop water recycling system has been put in place and further water reductions are not feasible.
% c	f your sites/facilities/operations this volume applies to (column 5)

	• Select the proportion of your organization's facilities for which the volume reported in column 2(Volume) accounts for, or indicate if this is unknown. For example, a company that has 100 facilities across its total operations and treats the volume of water provided in column 2 at 45% of its facilities (45 facilities) would select "41-50" in column 5 for that row.
	Please explain (column 6)
	• Explain why this level of treatment has been applied to your discharge. Refer to specific business activities and associated hazardous waste types, and any regulatory or voluntary standards that apply.
	• Indicate the anticipated future trends for these volumes, if known (note that the future trends would be at least one year after the end of the reporting year provided in 1.4)
	• Describe the thresholds for what is 'much higher' and 'much lower' for the change in volumes compared to the previous reporting year.
	• To assist CDP data users to understand a company's water use, you should explain your selections for 'Relevance' (column 1) and 'Primary reason for comparison with previous reporting year' (column 4), including any company-specific contextual information.
	• If you indicated that a level of treatment is "Not relevant" or "Relevant but volume unknown" provide the reason here.
	• If you indicated that volumes are discharged to third party destinations, state the highest level of treatment the third party applies, or state unknown if that is the case.
Example response	See below:
	demonstrate the relevance of different treatment levels to several business types.

0	1	2	3	4
Highest level of treatment within direct operations	Relevance of treatment level to discharge	Volume (megaliters/year)	Comparison of treated volume with previous reporting year	Primary reason for comparison with previous reporting year
Tertiary treatment	Relevant	29500.0	About the same	Increase/decrease in efficiency
Secondary treatment	Relevant	11151.0	About the same	Increase/decrease in business activity
Primary treatment only	Relevant	32175.0	About the same	Facility closure
Discharge to the natural environment without treatment	Not relevant	Question not applicable	Question not applicable	Question not applicable
Discharge to a third party without treatment	Relevant	25277.0	Lower	Increase/decrease in business activity
Other	Relevant	5286.0	About the same	Other, please specify: slight increase in total precipitation

0	5	6
Highest level of treatment within direc operations	% of your stsites/facilities/operations this volume applies to	Please explain
Tertiary treatment	100%	Relevant: At all our plants, we treat discharge to remove nitrogen and phosphorus, along with other dissolved inorganic substances through coagulation, sedimentation, activated carbon absorption and ion exchange methods. Tertiary treatment was applied to 100% of our total discharges this reporting year. All discharge volumes were subject to strict water quality controls before being released to receiving water bodies. Change in volume: 29,980 megalitres were treated to tertiary level in the previous year and 29,500 megalitres were treated to tertiary level this year. Therefore, the volume has decreased by 480 megalitres (equivalent to a decrease of 1.6%). This decrease is due to reduced quantities of domestic

		water use in some of our plants after implementing efficiency measures. Our definition of change: Much higher: >+10%, Higher: >+5%, About the same: <+/-5%, Lower: >-5%, Much lower: >-10%. Anticipated future trend: Discharge volumes treated to tertiary level are expected to remain the same in the upcoming years as no significant
Secondary treatment	100%	alterations are being planned for the production processes. Relevant: All discharge volumes were treated to secondary level this year. Discharge containing organic compounds is generated at our facilities that clean and process natural rubber. We monitor water discharge quality (e.g., pH, BOD, COD, SS, harmful substances, etc.) based on applicable regulations by continuous real time monitoring or third-party sampling analysis at all of our facilities (mostly on a monthly basis). Our facilities have implemented water effluent standards that meet or tighten applicable government standards.
		Change in volume: There has been a 69 megaliter increase in this volume from the previous year (equivalent to an increase of 0.62%). The discharge volume treated to secondary level last reporting year was 11,082 megaliters, and for the current reporting year it was 11,151 megaliters. This was due to a slight increase in production, resulting in higher water withdrawals. Our definition for change: Much higher: >+10%, Higher: >+5%, About the same: <+/-5%, Lower: >-5%, Much lower: >-10%.
		Anticipated future trend: it is expected that the volume of discharge (and the volume treated to a secondary treatment level) will increase slightly in the next few years due to increases in production, relating to COVID-19 recovery.
Primary treatment only	11-20	Relevant: 15% of the company's discharge is pre-treated to primary level before discharge to local treatment facilities under municipal discharge permits. Primary treatment of manufacturing and R&D discharge varies depending on the characteristics of the sub-operation's discharge, and may include pH adjustment, flocculation, sedimentation and filtration.
		Change in volume: This treatment accounted for 15% of total discharges this year, a decrease of 2% from last year given one of our plants idled and later sold. Our definition of change: About the same: <4%, Lower/Higher: <8%, Much lower/higher: >8%. This threshold is also used for the future trend.
		Anticipated future trend: Given that our company has a target to reduce process water use / tonne by 30% between 2020 and 2030, it is expected that the discharge volumes requiring treatment will sightly decrease due to more efficient water use.
Discharge to the natural environment without treatment	Question not applicable	Not relevant: In all our plants, discharge is not released to the natural environment without treatment. Water volumes are discharged either after on-site treatment/purification or after treatment by a third party.
Discharge to a third party without treatment	71-80	Relevant: In our sites, water is primarily used for cooling molds. In addition, water is used for drinking water and sanitation/hygiene services. These volumes are discharged to a third party without treatment.
		Change in volume: The discharge volume (25,277 megaliters) in the reporting year is slightly lower than the previous year (26,350 megaliters) due to the COVID-19 crisis which resulted in lower production.
		Our definition for change: Much higher: >+10%, Higher: >+5%, About the same: <+/-5%, Lower: >-5%, Much lower: >-10%.
		Anticipated future trend: The discharge volume is expected to increase due to post COVID-19 market expectations (growth).
		treatment applied by third party: The third party (municipal sewage treatment plant) applies a conventional secondary treatment, and the treatment plant publicly states compliance with local water regulations.
Other	Less than 1%	Relevant: Some of our sites treat high-quality surface runoff volumes (predominantly stormwater) utilizing natural filtration zones such as wetlands, rather than processing through a wastewater treatment plant.

Monitoring of these discharges for potential pollutants occurs.
Change in volume: The discharge volume (5,286 megaliters) in the reporting year increased by about 3% from the previous year (5,120 megaliters) due to a slight increase in total precipitation over the reporting year.
Our definition for change: About the same is within +/- <5%, Lower or Higher +/- 5% to 9%, and Much lower or Much higher +/- >10%.
Anticipated future trend: This volume depends largely on precipitation and other weather patterns. The volume may be larger or smaller depending on the amount of precipitation received and the resulting stormwater runoff.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental	Question level	W
Issue (Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

Emissions to water

(9.2.10) Provide details of your organization's emissions of nitrates, phosphates, pesticides, and other priority substances to water in the reporting year.

Question text	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select any response other than "Not monitored" or "Not relevant" in column "% of sites/facilities/operations" for the row "Water discharge quality – emissions to water (nitrates, phosphates, pesticides, and/or other priority substances)" of 9.2.
Change from last year	Additional guidance (2023 W1.2k)
Rationale	This question allows organizations to indicate their emissions to water of priority substances, helping them understand, manage, and reduce the use of nitrates, phosphates, pesticides, and other priority substances.
Ambition	 Companies monitor and reduce their emissions to water to protect water bodies against pollution from nitrates, phosphates, pesticides, and other priority substances.
Connection to other frameworks	TNFD Metrics & targets B ESRS 2 ESRS E2 ESRS E3
Response options	Please complete the following table:

1	2	3	4
Emissions to water in the reporting year (metric tons)	Categories of substances included	List the specific substances included	Please explain
Numerical field [enter a number from 0-999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Select all that apply:NitratesPhosphatesPesticides	Text field [maximum 1,000 characters]	Text field [maximum 1,500 characters]

 Priority substances listed under the EU Water Framework Directive 	

Requested content	General
	 CDP requests nitrates and phosphates as opposed to nitrogen and phosphorus in compliance with SFDR indicators and common practice across global water quality indices. If your organization measures phosphorus instead of phosphates, you are expected to re-calculate the total figure based on the substances requested in this question. You may use the "Please explain" column to provide contextual information.
	 Emissions to water in the reporting year (metric tons) (column 1) Enter a figure for total emissions to water in the reporting year. Emissions to water should be reported in metric tons (1 metric ton = 1,000 kilograms). Your reporting year is the time period you stated in response to 1.4. Entering a zero implies that measurements have been taken, and the value is zero. Do not enter a zero if no data is available.
	 Categories of substances included (column 2) Select all the substances that are included in your calculation of the figure in column 1.
	 For 'Priority substances listed under the <u>EU Water Framework Directive'</u>, refer to <u>this list</u>. See 'Explanation of terms' for more information. If your emissions to water include pesticides which are also part of the EU Water Framework Directive's list of Priority Substances, select both 'Pesticides' and 'Priority substances listed under the EU Water Framework Directive'.
	 List the specific substances included (column 3) This column is only presented if 'Priority substances listed under the EU Water Framework Directive' is selected in column 2. List any substances from the 'Priority substances listed under the EU Water Framework Directive' included in your calculation. See 'Explanation of terms' for more information.
	 Please explain (column 4) Briefly explain which parts of your business are emitting these pollutants and why. Indicate whether the emissions to water are nearby to any vulnerable communities or within water stressed areas and if there is a plan to reduce or manage these pollutants (details on pollutant management plans can be provided in 2.5.1). You may use this field to provide any other contextual information, for example, the geographical areas implicated.
Additional information	In water, nitrogen and phosphorus commonly exist in the form of nitrates and phosphates. Nitrates, the most water-soluble form of nitrogen, and phosphates, a chemical compound containing phosphorus, are commonly detected pollutants in ground and surface water sources. Both are significant contributors to eutrophication and can lead to harmful algae blooms. They are commonly found in untreated or insufficiently treated wastewater as well as in agricultural runoff, alongside pesticides. These pollutants can have significant impacts on ecological and human health.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental	Question level	W
Issue (Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

Facility-level water accounting & Verification

Section overview

Section Overview	This section asks organizations to identify the number of facilities with substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities, and report the water accounting data from these.
	Data users are interested in an organization's ability to measure, monitor, and disclose this granular accounting data as a proxy for sound assessment and management at the facility and organization level. Limiting this disclosure to facilities with substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities helps a company to focus its understanding of how it uses and impacts water resources at 'hotspot' locations. Given the local nature of water risks, reporting at this level is considered as good practice.
	For any facilities for which you do not have data, please leave the field blank. Emphasis should be placed on reporting transparently and providing an explanation for lack of measured data, uncertainty in your data or estimated data.
Sector-specific content	Additional response options presented in 9.3.1 for the Electric utilities and Oil & gas sectors.

(9.3) In your direct operations and upstream value chain, what is the number of facilities where you have identified substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities?

Question details	
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 W4.1, W4.1b)
Rationale	Water is a local issue, and data users want to know that organizations are considering dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities at the facility level. Reporting the total count of facilities where substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities have been identified provides a basic but useful indication of the organization's reliance on these areas. Reporting the proportion of total facilities in your direct operations that have been identified allows data users to understand the importance of these facilities relative to the size of your organization.
Connection to other	CEO Water Mandate
frameworks	Implications: Business risks
	TNFD Metrics & targets A
	ESRS 2
	ESRS E3
Response options	Please complete the following table:

0	1	2	3	4
Value chain stage	Identification of facilities in the value chain stage	Total number of facilities identified	% facilities in direct operations that this represents	Please explain
Direct operations	 Select from: Yes, we have assessed this value chain stage and identified facilities with water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities No, we have assessed this value chain stage but did not identify any facilities with water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities 	Numerical Field [enter a number from 0-1,000 using no decimals or commas]	Select from: Less than 1% 1-25 26-50 51-75 76-99 100% Unknown	Text field [maximum 2,000]

 No, we have not assessed this value chain stage for facilities with water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities, and are not planning to do so in the next 2 years 		
 No, we have not assessed this value chain stage for facilities with water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities, but we are planning to do so in the next 2 years 		

Requested content	General					
	• This question only requests information about facilities with substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks and/or opportunities. Do not count local dependencies, impacts, risks and/or opportunities unless they are substantive for the organization as a whole.					
	 Note that you are requested to disclose inherent dependencies, impacts, risks and/or opportunities – so include those that your organization is exposed to prior to the implementation of any response strategies. 					
	 Facilities where opportunities have been identified should only be included where the facility has also been identified to have water-related dependencies, impacts and/or risks. 					
	• Facilities disclosed in this question may be situated within or near the priority locations reported in 2.3.					
	Total number of facilities exposed to water risk (column 2)					
	 The definition of facility may vary between organizations or sectors. See the Explanation of terms for more information. 					
	 You may aggregate facilities. For example, a hotel chain may wish to group hotels by grade or resort type. Rather than assess each of its 20 hotels individually it may be more appropriate to combine 20 hotels within the same river basin into one "facility". The organization can then assess this against its threshold for substantive effect on the organization as described in 2.4. 					
	Note the following on the aggregation of facilities:					
	 Due to the local nature of water dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities, only facilities in the same river basin and the same jurisdiction may be aggregated. In the case of very large river basins, facilities in a single basin may face different regulatory as well as local physical risks so that aggregation would obscure an understanding of the organization's water dependency and risk exposure in the region. 					
	 Organizations should consider aggregating facilities within a river basin if the dependencies, impacts, risks and/or opportunities of a single local facility are not substantive but would be substantive in aggregate with other similar local facilities. For example, a single factory with low water use may not have a substantive dependency on a river. However, when aggregated together with other local facilities, the cumulative effect on the river basin could be substantial. 					
	 Aggregation of facilities should not be used where information on the risk exposure, or water accounting data, of the single facility would be meaningful and specific to that facility. 					
	• There is a limit of 1,000 on the total number of facilities that you may report as being at risk. This is because you should only count facilities, or groups of facilities, that expose your organization to substantive risk according to your definition in 2.4. If you have more than 1,000 it may be that your definition of substantive risk in question 2.4 is extreme. You should If you have identified more than 1,000 facilities, consider aggregating some facilities in line with the above note and use the "Please explain" column to describe the aggregation.					
	% of facilities this represents (column 3)					

	 This column is only presented if "Yes, we have assessed this value chain stage and identified facilities with water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities" is selected in the "Direct operations" row. Within your direct operations, detail the proportion of your organization's facilities with substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks and opportunities, as represented by the number given in column 2 "Total number of facilities identified". For example, the 11 facilities that are exposed to substantive water risk reported in column 2 "Total number of facilities identified" may comprise 26-50% of your organization's total facilities company-wide. You may estimate this data and use column 4 "Please explain" to state that this is the case. If you cannot provide this figure, select "Unknown" and explain your response in column 4 "Please explain".
	 Please explain (column 4) You may comment on how you have defined "facility". If your organization does aggregate for reporting purposes, please state that this approach has been taken and briefly describe the methodology for aggregation. To help data users understand the number of facilities you have reported, please provide any further context. For example, you may wish to give a general, organization-specific comment on the nature, severity and location of the corporate-level dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities that your organization is exposed to, whether they result from any particular business activity, and the relationship between the inherent risk and your residual risk exposure. You may have reported that 60% of your facilities are exposed to inherent risks due to their location, but this represents only 30% of your total output and the residual risk has been much reduced due to the introduction of new controls. It is helpful to data-users if you give organization-specific information. Note that river basin level information about facilities at risk should be disclosed in 3.2. If you have not carried out an assessment, briefly explain why.
Explanation of terms	See below

Value chain stage	Identification of facilities in the value chain stage	Total number of facilities exposed to water risk	% company-wide facilities this represents	Please explain
Direct Operations	Yes, we have assessed this value chain stage and identified facilities with water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities	7	1-25	7/35 of our sites, representing 13% of global production, have been identified as being exposed to substantive water risk. These facilities are within a region of water stress. They specialize in producing an important component linked to our technology hardware business unit due to close links with suppliers of necessary raw materials. We classified all our substantive risk sites using WRI's Aqueduct. The facilities included here (detailed further in 9.3.1) are the facilities that pose the biggest financial/strategic risk of impact to our organization based on the definition we have given in 2.4. We set a 7.5% threshold of national production as a proxy for revenue given a full year of lost production. Note that for the purpose of reporting, our definition for a site i.e. for which there could be several different types of factory operating in the same location.

uthoring notes	
lgs	

Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental	Question level	W
Issue (Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

(9.3.1) For each facility referenced in 9.3, provide coordinates, water accounting data, and a comparison with the previous reporting year.

Question text	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you have selected "Yes, we have assessed this value chain stage and identified facilities with substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities" in column "Identification of facilities in this value chain stage" in one or both rows of 9.3.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 W5.1)
Rationale	Reporting information on facilities where you have identified substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities helps data users have confidence that your organization is monitoring local water aspects. It provides insight to dependency on different sources and potential impacts associated with water withdrawals and discharges. For example, withdrawing from an overdrawn freshwater aquifer rather than from seawater will have significantly different consequences for local areas with water stress and an organization's water security. In regions where water sources are highly restricted, the organization's water consumption patterns can influence relations with other stakeholders. Providing facility-level information is useful for demonstrating regulatory compliance (e.g., discharges to the local environment), for risk assessments and for providing insight to risk responses (e.g., tracking water efficiency improvements). Geo-location coordinates for your facilities with substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities enables data users to analyze geographically linked dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities and to do so across multiple companies.
	data.
Connection to other frameworks	CEO WM Current state: Context
	GRI
	Standard 303-3: Water withdrawal
	TNFD Metrics & targets B
	ESRS 2
	ESRS E2
	ESRS E3
Response options	Please complete the following table. You are able to add rows using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4	5	6	7a	7b	8	9	10
Facilit y refere nce numbe r	Facility name (optional)	Value chain stage	Depende ncies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunit	Withdraw als or discharge s in the reporting year	Reason for no withdrawa Is and/or discharge s	Country/ Area	Riv er ba sin	Latitu de	Longit ude	Located in area with water stress

			ies identified at this facility							
Select from: • Facil ity refer ence num bers : Facil ity 1- 100	Text field [maximu m 500 character s]	Select from: • Dire ct oper ation s • Upst ream valu e chai n	Select all that apply: Dep end enci es Imp acts Risk s Opportuni ties	Select from: • Yes, with dra wals and disc harg es • Yes, with dra wals only • Yes, disc harg es only • No	Text field [maximu m 1,000 character s]	Select from: Country/a rea drop down list	Sel ect fro m: Riv er bas in dro p- do wn list Oth er, ple ase spe cify	Nume rical field [enter a numb er from 0 to +/- 90.00 0000 using a maxi mum of six decim al place s]	Numer ical field enter a numbe r from 0 to +/- 180.00 0000 using a maxim um of six decim al places]	Select from: • Yes • No • Unkn own

11	12	13		
Primary power generation source for your electricity generation at this facility	Oil & gas sector business division	Total water withdrawals at this facility (megaliters)		
 Select from: Coal – Hard Lignite Oil Gas Sustainable biomass Other biomass Other biomass Waste (non-biomass) Nuclear Fossil-fuel plants fitted with carbon capture and storage Geothermal Hydropower Wind Solar Marine Other renewable Other non-renewable Not applicable 	 Select all that apply: Chemicals Upstream Midstream Downstream Other, please specify Not applicable 	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of two decimal places]		

14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22
Comparis on of total withdraw	Withdrawa Is from fresh surface	Withdrawal s from brackish surface	Withdrawa Is from groundwa ter -	Withdrawal s from groundwat er - non-	Withdrawals from produced/ent rained water	Withdrawa Is from third party sources	Total water discharges at this facility	Comparis on of total discharge
als with	water,		renewable	renewable			-	s with

previous reporting year	including rainwater, water from wetlands, rivers, and lakes	water /seawater					(megaliters)	previous reporting year
Select from: Much lower Lower About the same Higher Much higher This is our first year of measur ement	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,99 9,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,99 9,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999, 999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,99 9,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999 using a maximum of two decimal places]	Select from: Much lower Lower About the same Higher Much higher This is our first year of measur ement

23	24	25	26	27	28	29
Discharg es to fresh surface water	Discharges to brackish surface water/seawater	Discharges to groundwater	Discharges to third party destinations	Total water consumpt ion at this facility (megaliter s)	Compari son of total consum ption with previous reporting year	Please explain
Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,9 99,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0 to +/- 999,999,999 using a maximum of two decimal places]	Select from: Much lower Lower About the same Higher Higher Much higher This is our first year of measu rement	Text field [maximu m 1,500 character s]

[Add row]

Requested content	 Note: Organizations responding to an electric utilities, metals & mining, coal, or oil & gas sector request should refer to additional sector-specific guidance on this question at the end of the "Requested content" section. General This question asks for water accounting data only for your facilities with substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities – not for all your facilities. Refer to CDP's water accounting definitions before completing this question. Enter data for each facility (or groups of facilities) you identified in 9.3 with substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities. The table has a maximum of 100 rows. If your organization has over 100 facilities with substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities, report the 100 facilities with the highest levels of dependencies, impacts, risks, or opportunities. This may be based on facilities located in areas with water stress, facilities with the highest risk exposure, or other factors. The data reported in this question should be based on the relevant facility boundary (see Explanations of terms).
	 exposure, or other factors. The data reported in this question should be based on the relevant facility boundary (see Explanations of terms).
	 The appearance of columns in this question is driven by your selection in column 3 "Value chain stage" and column 5 "Withdrawals or discharges in the reporting year". Only report Tier 1 supplier facilities if relevant to your colorities in column 2 "Value chain stage".
	 Report volumetric data in megaliters per year for the reporting year you stated in response to 1.4. (1 megaliter = 1 million liters or 1000 m3).
	 If estimating or extrapolating to provide complete coverage, give an explanation in column 29 "Please explain". Remember that a zero should only be used for reporting zero volumes and not for an absence of data.
	 If you do not have a figure for any of the facilities you disclose here, you may provide an estimate. Explain this in column "Please explain". For withdrawals, data may be collected from several sources, including water meters, water bills, calculations derived from other available water data or the organization's own estimates if neither water meters nor bills or reference data exist.
	• Cooling water: Cooling water (freshwater or sea water) is often withdrawn in large quantities and discharged back to its original source with negligible losses or variation in quality. However, this volume should be included in your water accounts.
	 Rainwater: If a company is managing rainwater (for example, by harvesting for use or storage, or to prevent flooding), or is dependent on it for production of goods or the delivery of services, it should try to estimate and disclose it as a withdrawal from the hydrological system into the company boundary. Note that in some jurisdictions rainwater

 is considered a withdrawal source and organizations are required to report its collection and use. Companies may choose to exclude collected rainwater and domestic sewage from their water withdrawal/discharge volumes only if the resulting error in their water balance would be less than 5%. This avoids your discharge volumes being larger than your withdrawals. Including rainwater helps companies better understand their water dependency and risks. For some companies, precipitation/rainwater volumes may constitute a principal input of water at site level. This includes run-off where it must be managed. In these cases, excluding rainwater from water accounting – withdrawal and discharge - would not be a true reflection of site water balance. In addition, there may be reduced impacts from using rainwater in place of other local freshwater sources.
Facility reference number (column 1)
 This CDP facility reference number is used to track information related to the same facility in subsequent questions. It is not specific to your organization, however it does prevent you from having to repeat contextual information e.g., river basin and facility name.
Facility name (column 2)
 You may use the text box to provide a name for the facility to ease reporting and analysis. The same facility name should be used throughout the questionnaire
Value chain stage (column 3)
 Indicate in which stages of your value chain the facility or facilities with substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities are located. If "Direct operations" is selected, all following columns will be
 If "Upstream value chain" is selected, columns 15-20 and 23-26 will not be presented
 Note: the presentation of the columns specified above will also depend on your selection in column 5 "Withdrawals or discharges in the reporting year".
 Withdrawals or discharges in the reporting year (column 5) Select any "Yes" option if the facility has withdrawals and/or discharges.
 Select "No" if there are no withdrawals and discharges by this facility.
 If either "No" or "Yes, withdrawals only" is selected, columns 21- 26 will not be presented.
 If either "No" or "Yes, discharges only" is selected, columns 13- 20 will not be presented.

 Note: the presentation of the columns specified above will also depend on your selection in column 3 "Value chain stage". If the facility has withdrawals or discharges, but you do not have figures for this data, you may provide an estimate and explain in the last column "Please explain".
 Reason for no withdrawals and/or discharges (column 6) This column will only be presented if "Yes, withdrawals only", "Yes, discharges only" or "No" is selected in column 5 "Withdrawals or discharges in the reporting year". Explain why the facility has substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities with no withdrawals and/or discharges. If your organization has both zero withdrawals and discharges, clearly indicate the reason for each.
 From the drop-down options provided, select the river basin where the facility is located. If you do not see the basin required, select "Other, please specify" and write in one river basin only using the text box provided.
 For organizations withdrawing water from large confined aquifers that may not discharge to the river basin they are located in e.g., Ogallala aquifer in the United States, please select "Other, please specify" and type in the name of the local aquifer source. Ensure that the correct country/area name is selected in column 7a "Country/Area".
 You may want to put the sub-basin of a bigger river basin identified in the drop-down menu. In this case use the "Other, please specify" option in the following format: "Putumayo, Amazon". If you select "Other, please specify", provide a label for the
 river basin. For full instructions see the overview of CDP's full corporate questionnaire, available in the <u>guidance tool</u>.<i>Latitude (column 8)</i> This column is only presented if "Direct operations" is selected in column 3 "Value chain stage". Enter the latitude coordinates for the facility reported in
 column 1. Your response should be in the format of decimal degrees and can range from 0 to +/-90.000000. If you are disclosing for a cluster of facilities in accordance with the guidance for 9.3, you may provide the coordinates for the facility with the largest total withdrawal volumes.
 Longitude (column 9) This column is only presented if "Direct operations" is selected in column 3 "Value chain stage". Enter the longitude coordinates for the facility reported in this row. Your response should be in the format of decimal degrees and can range from 0 to +/-180.000000. If you are disclosing for a cluster of facilities in accordance with the guidance for 9.3, you may provide the coordinates for the facility with the largest total withdrawal volumes.
Located in area with water stress (column 10)

Credible, publicly available methodologies for classifying an
area as water stressed include the W/PL Aqueduct Water
Rick Atlas and WWE Water Rick Filter, Refer to the guidance
for 0.2.4 for more details
101 9.2.4 101 more details.
 As good practice, a water-stressed area should be measured
at the catchment level as a minimum.
 Commonly accepted global indicators to assess areas as
water stressed and their thresholds for reporting to CDP
include:
 Water availability – category equal to/greater than 'High risk': 3.4 (<u>WWF Water Risk Filter</u>). WWF recommends that users also take into consideration 'Medium risk': >2.6.
 The WWF Water Risk Filter's risk category
'Water Availability' integrates the State of
Nature layer for Water Availability
recommended for the Science-based Targets
for Nature (SBTN) Step 1: Assess and Step
2: Interpret & Prioritize. The SBTN's State of
Nature layer for Water Availability is
calculated based on a multi-model approach
which integrates the best available global
water scarcity risk indicators: Water
depletion, Baseline water stress, and Blue
water scarcity.
 Baseline water stress –indicator equal to/greater
than 'High': 40-80% (WRI Aqueduct Water Risk
Atlas). This refers to the ratio of total annual water
withdrawals to available renewable water supply.
 Baseline water depletion –indicator equal
to/greater than 'High': 50-75% (<u>WRI Aqueduct Water</u>
Risk Atlas). This refers to the ratio of total annual
water consumption to available renewable water
supply.
Comparison with previous reporting year (columns 14, 22, 28)
 CDP does not define the threshold for considering a value as
"much higher" rather than simply "higher" or "much
lower"/"lower". CDP requests this information from many
different industries with huge variations in water use, and it
would therefore be difficult to provide a universal threshold
that is meaningful as proportions will equate to different
absolute values and impacts.
 You should define your own threshold for what is "much
higher" and "much lower" and apply it consistently so that
each year the reported data for this question is comparable
and data users can track your water accounts more
effectively. A company-specific explanation for these
thresholds should be provided in column "Please explain".
 If your response is an estimate, please explain why in
column "Please explain".
 If the data was not previously reported, but was collected,
you may choose to indicate a comparison with the previous
reporting year or select "This is our first year of
measurement". In either case, use the "Please explain"
column to provide details about the information reported.

 Withdrawals from fresh surface water, including rainwater, water from wetlands, rivers, and lakes (column 15) This column is only presented if "Direct operations" is selected in column 3 and "Yes, withdrawals and discharges" or "Yes, withdrawals only" are selected in column 5 "Withdrawals or discharges in the reporting year". For the purposes of this disclosure you should include all surface water sources of a higher quality than brackish i.e., a TDS lower than 10,000 mg/l.
 Total water discharges at this facility (megaliters) (column 21) This column is only presented if "Yes, withdrawals and discharges" or "Yes, discharges only" are selected in column 5 "Withdrawals or discharges in the reporting year". Zero discharge permit: If your organization has a zero discharge permit, please consider any discharges that may exist outside this permit and may still be relevant to CDP's definition of discharges. Domestic sewage: Domestic sewage is only regarded as water discharge if excluding it would result in an error in your balance of more than 5%. This may be significant for healthcare residential properties or hotels, for example. Aquifer reinjection: Reinjection to aquifers should be considered as a discharge to groundwater. Soakaway: Water returning to a groundwater source via a soakaway should be considered as a discharge.
 Please explain (column 29) If the facility is an aggregate of multiple locations, explain how your methodology for aggregating facilities was applied here. To assist CDP data users to understand a facility's water use: Explain the volumetric data and trends that you report for withdrawals, discharges and consumption
 Indicate the thresholds for what is "much higher" and "much lower" for the change in volume for each water aspect compared to the previous year. You should account for the change compared to last year and indicate the anticipated future trends for these volumes if known. Note that future
 trends should be at least one year after the end of the reporting year provided in 1.4. Report whether your volumes for each facility are estimated, modelled, or sourced from direct measurements. If estimation or modelling has been used, report the estimation or modelling methods. If there is any level of uncertainty in your response, or if there is an estimated figure, you should explain it in this field and give the range of uncertainty.

	 Include any contextual momination necessary to understand how the volumetric data have been compiled, such as any standard methodologies used and any assumptions made. If you have left any column blank because you do not have the data, describe the barriers to reporting that data and any plans to collect and report it. For "Withdrawals from fresh surface water", it is important that you state which sources apply, e.g. rainwater, water from wetlands, rivers and lakes, etc Also state if the withdrawal volume for each source is increasing or decreasing. Note: if your use of rainwater equates to more than 5% of your water balance explain if it is harvested, treated, etc. For "Third party sources", specify whether the third party is a municipal supplier or another type of third party organization. For discharges to "Third party destinations", state if this includes water to other organizations for further use. Note: CDP expects withdrawals, discharges and consumption figures to balance (approximately; +/- 5%), so if there is a good reason why this cannot happen, explain here. Please explain – additional guidance for consumption volume Regarding your water consumption figure, indicate if your figure is based on local measurements or is a calculation (for example using withdrawals minus discharges). If known, you may provide breakdown of this figure (with reference to CDP's definition of consumption) including: Volume consumed by humans or livestock; Net volume stored for future use; Volume consumed by humans or livestock; Net volume stored for future use; Volume stored for future use;
Requested content – [sector]	Sector-specific guidance for electric utilities sector
	 This guidance is specific to companies responding to an electric utilities sector request. You should first read the guidance for this question that applies to all companies. This is additional to the general guidance and does not replace it.
	Primary power generation source for your electricity generation at this facility (column 11)
	 Choose "Not applicable" if this facility is not an electricity generation facility.
	 Total water withdrawals at this facility (megaliters/year) (column 13) CDP recognizes the difficulty in accounting for some elements of the hydropower operations' water balance,

 specifically surface runoff or elements that are outside the organization's control such as third-party discharges into the reservoir (for example a municipal waste water treatment plant discharging into the reservoir). Water withdrawals into hydropower operations includes river inflow, surface runoff and precipitation onto the reservoir surface, as well as third-party discharges into the reservoir: W = Precipitation + River Inflow + Runoff + Third-party discharges into reservoir
Organizations should strive to include volumes for those sources if they would result in an estimated error in their water balance of more than 5% (specifically the sum of the withdrawals you report) and take a consistent approach throughout the questionnaire. In the last column (Please explain) you should indicate which sources you have included or excluded. Note that estimation or modelling are valid sources of data.
 Total water discharges at this facility (megaliters/year) (column 21) CDP recognizes the difficulty in accounting for some elements of the hydropower operations' water balance, specifically seepage or those that are outside the organization's control such as third-party withdrawals. In hydropower operations, water discharge includes the dam outlet and the spillway, underground seepage and third-party withdrawals from the reservoir (for example a municipal water plant abstracting from the reservoir).
D = Dam outlet + Spillway + Seepage + Third-party withdrawals from the reservoir
Organizations should strive to include volumes for those destinations if they would result in an estimated error in their water balance of more than 5% (specifically the sum of the discharges) and take a consistent approach throughout the questionnaire. In the last column ("Please explain") you should indicate which destinations you have included or excluded. Note that estimation or modelling are valid sources of data.
 Total water consumption at this facility (megaliters/year) (column 27) Water consumption in hydropower operations includes evaporation from the reservoir surface as well as the balance between withdrawals and discharges. Although organizations should estimate evaporated volumes, you may consider variations in storage as a valid measure of your consumption volumes rather than calculating evaporation and the balance between all withdrawals and discharges. This information is usually easily derived from water level measurements. In the last column ("Please explain") provide your approach to reporting a total consumption figure.
 Please explain (column 29) If any of the facilities reported are hydropower operations, indicate which elements of water withdrawals (river inflow)

 surface runoff, precipitation onto the reservoir surface and third-party discharges into the reservoir), discharges (spillway, underground seepage and third-party withdrawals from the reservoir) and consumption are you taking into account when providing your response. Indicate the method followed to obtain it, e.g. direct monitoring, estimation from a hydrological model or other secondary source of information. Explain if any changes in the water discharge volumes are related to higher/lower electricity production or other reasons related to water resources management such as flood control, satisfaction of downstream demand, etc. Additionally, you may choose to specify the total evaporated volumes from the reservoir if your organization collects this data.
Sector-specific guidance for metals & mining and coal sectors <i>General</i>
 This guidance is specific to organizations responding to a metals & mining or coal sector request. You should first read the guidance for this question that applies to all organizations. This is additional to the general guidance and does not replace it. Data on the production value associated with these facilities will provide further information on the potential implications of the water risk exposure and assist with the assessment of the organization's response. Rainwater: Please note that in the mining industry precipitation/rainwater volumes may constitute a principal input of water at site level. Excluding rainwater from water
accounting would not be a true reflection of site water balance.
 Brackish water/seawater withdrawals or discharges: Low quality water withdrawals or discharges (categories 2 and 3 of the <u>Water Accounting Framework from the Mineral</u> <u>Council of Australia</u>) should be reported in columns 16 and 24 (Brackish water) respectively.
 Groundwater withdrawals: Groundwater withdrawals are linked to extraction from bore holes and aquifer interception, i.e. groundwater is water that is extracted as part of ore body dewatering during mining operations.
 Produced/entrained water withdrawals: In the mining industry, entrained water refers to the volumes of water in the raw material, typically ore to be processed.
 Groundwater discharges: Discharges to groundwater refer to seepage or aquifer reinjection discharge volumes. This aligns with the <u>Water Accounting Framework from the</u> Mineral Council of Australia.
 Water diversions: In line with CDP's definition of water withdrawals and discharges, for the mining industry, water withdrawals and discharges include water diversions to enable comparability – because it is water that crosses the company boundary.

 Evaporation: In line with CDP's definition of water consumption, evaporation from open water surfaces should be reported as part of the water consumption volumes. Water entrained in waste material: In line with CDP's definition of water consumption, water entrained in waste
material (such as tailings, coarse rejects, and concentrates) that leaves the company boundary should not be considered discharges but as part of the consumption volumes.
 General This guidance is specific to companies responding to an oil & gas sector request. You should first read the guidance for this question that applies to all companies. This is additional to the general guidance and does not replace it. As water withdrawals, consumption, and discharges will vary according to business division, a business division column has been added to provide data users on the type of facility being reported on. This provides useful context for the
 volumes reported. Groundwater withdrawals: As part of groundwater withdrawal volumes (be it from renewable or non-renewable sources), organizations should include all withdrawals from aquifers (other than the formation being exploited). These withdrawals may be intended for any use in the organization, including its reinjection to maintain well pressure or as part of the fracture fluids.
 Produced water: In the oil & gas sector, the reporting of water withdrawals volumes typically does not include produced water. To enable comparability, CDP requires all companies to include produced water volumes in their withdrawals disclosure, in order to have an accurate water balance.
 Groundwater discharges: In oil production, as part of secondary and tertiary recovery operations, water-based fluids (from various sources) may be used to maintain the pressure, and to displace the hydrocarbons and move them towards the production wells. For CDP disclosure, organizations must report these volumes as discharges to groundwater bodies, to enable comparability and have an accurate water balance.
 Oil & gas sector business division (column 12) Select the option "Not applicable" for any facilities not belonging to the oil & gas sector. If you select "Other, please specify", please provide a label for the business division in the text field provided.

Authoring notes	
Tags	
Corporate authority Capital Markets	

Environmental Issue	Question level	Water
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

(9.3.2) For the facilities in your direct operations referenced in 9.3.1, what proportion of water accounting data has been third party verified?

Question text	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you have selected "Yes, we have assessed this value chain stage and identified facilities with substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities" in column "Identification of facilities in this value chain stage" in the "Direct operations" row of 9.3.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 W5.1a)
Rationale	Providing third party verification for water accounting data at facilities with substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities gives CDP data users increased confidence in the data you are reporting.
Response options	Please complete the following table:

0	1	2	3
Water aspect	% verified	Verification standard used	Please explain
Water withdrawals – total volumes	Select from: • Not verified • 1-25 • 26-50 • 51-75 • 76-100 • Not relevant	Text field [maximum 1,500 characters]	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]
Water withdrawals – volume by source			
Water withdrawals – quality by standard water quality parameters			
Water discharges – total volumes			
Water discharges – volume by destination			
Water discharges – volume by final treatment level			
Water discharges- quality by standard water quality parameters			

Water consumption – total volume		

Requested content	General
	 CDP recognizes the lack of universally applied verification standards for water accounting and therefore requests that you disclose the extent of any current verification practices and the standards used.
	 Note, in this question we are not asking about verification of water accounting data across your entire organization but only for the facilities within your direct operations.
	% verified (column 1)
	 For the facilities within your direct operations reported on in 9.3.1 (facilities with substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities), select the proportion that have third party verified the water accounting aspect in column 0. Select "Not relevant" if a water aspect is not relevant to any of your facilities. For example, if all of your facilities have zero withdrawals and therefore there is no water accounting data to verify for withdrawals-related rows. If a water aspect is only relevant to a proportion of your facilities, the calculation of the % verified should be done considering only the facilities the water aspect is relevant to. For example, if you have 5 facilities with substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks and/or opportunities, and one of those does not have any withdrawals or discharges, but the other 4 do, you should calculate the % of the facilities that are verified out of those 4. If the accounting data at all facilities in your organization are verified, then you would be able to select 76-100% here. However, if only a sample of your facilities are verified, then you will need to check with your verifier on how many of the facilities at risk were included and then calculate the proportion of all facilities within your direct operations reported in 9.3.1 that this represents. If you select "Not verified" or "Not relevant", column 2 will not be presented.
	Please explain (column 3)
	r lease explain (column 3)
	Only presented if 'Not verified or 'Not relevant is selected in column 1.
	• If "Not verified" is selected, state the primary reasons for not verifying this water accounting data related to this water aspect and your plans to do so within the next two years.
	 If 'Not relevant' is selected, state the primary reasons that data verification of this water aspect is not relevant to your organization.

Authoring notes	
Tags	
Corporate authority	Capital Markets

Environmental	Question level	W
Issue (Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

Impacts of facilities on CDP supply chain members

(9.4) Could any of your facilities reported in 9.3.1 have an impact on a requesting CDP supply chain member?

Question text	
Question dependencies	Your response to 9.4 will determine if subsequent questions are presented in this section. If your response to 9.4 is amended, data in those dependent questions may be erased. In this case, be sure to re-enter data for all relevant questions. The guidance for each question indicates if it is a dependent question.
Change from last year	No change (2023 SW1.1)
Rationale	In 9.3 you were asked to identify the number of your facilities with substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities. In 9.3.1 you then reported water accounting data for these facilities.
	This question asks whether any of these facilities could have an impact on a requesting CDP supply chain member.
Response options	 Select one of the following options: Yes, CDP supply chain members buy goods or services from facilities listed in 9.3.1 No, CDP supply chain members do not buy goods or services from facilities listed in 9.3.1 No facilities were reported in 9.3.1 We do not have this data but we intend to collect it within two years We do not have this data and have no intentions to collect it This is confidential

Authoring notes				
Tags	Tags			
Corporate authority	Supply chain			
Environmental Issue	Question level	W		
(Theme)				
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)		

(9.4.1) Indicate which of the facilities referenced in 9.3.1 could impact a requesting CDP supply chain member.

Question text	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes, CDP supply chain members buy goods or
dependencies	services from facilities listed in 9.3.1" in response to 9.4.

Change from last year	No change (2023 SW1.1a)
Rationale	Indicating which of your customers use goods or services produced by facilities referenced in 9.3.1 will help them understand and take action to respond to their substantive water-related dependencies, impacts, risks and/or opportunities.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You are able to add rows using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4	5
Facility reference number	Facility name	Requesting member	Description of potential impact on member	Comment
Select from: Reference number drop down	Text field [maximum 500 characters]	Select from: Member drop down list	Text field [maximum 1,000 characters]	Text field [maximum 1,000 characters]
[Add Row]				

Requested content	 General For each facility identified in 9.3.1, consider whether goods or services produced there are used by a requesting CDP supply chain member. For example, if you reported on 10 facilities exposed to substantive waterrelated dependencies, impacts, risks, and/or opportunities in 9.3.1 and only "Facility 3" (as labelled in 9.3.1) produces goods or services used by a CDP supply chain program that requests your disclosure, select "Facility 3" from column 1 (Facility reference number) and the requesting member from column 3. Note: Disclosers must check that the Requesting members presented in this table are correct for their organization for the reporting period.
	 Facility reference number (column 1) The facility reference number is used by CDP to track information related to the same facility in your disclosure. It is not specific to your organization, however it does prevent you from having to repeat contextual information e.g. country/area and river basin in multiple questions. Ensure that the facility reference numbers used here correspond to the numbers you allocated these facilities in 9.3.1).
	 Facility name (column 2) This is optional. You can use this field to add a facility name provided in 9.3.1 if one exists.
	 Requesting member (column 3) Select from this column a requesting CDP supply chain member that could potentially be impacted by water-related dependencies, impacts,

 risks, and opportunities at a facility identified in 9.3.1. If there are more than one for the facility indicated in column 1, please add a row to this table. Only select a member that uses goods or services produced at the facility indicated in column 1 (Facility reference number) Note that the information you give in each row will only be visible to the member you select in column 3. No other members will be able to see the data. If you enter any information without selecting a requesting member here, your answer will not be viewable at all.
 Comment (column 5) (optional) Please state of the facility is an aggregate of multiple locations, and ensure you explain how your methodology for aggregating facilities was applied.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	SC	
Environmental Issue	Question level	W
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

Module 9: Environmental Performance – Water security

Guidance for companies reporting on Water Security on behalf of investors & supply chain members

The full reporting guidance including explanation of terms is available via the portal/public guidance page.

V1 Created: 25/10/2023

Comments	Date, initials

Water efficiency and water intensity (CH, EU, FB, AC, MM, CO, OG only)

(9.5) Provide a figure for your organization's total water withdrawal efficiency.

Question details	
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 W1.3)
Rationale	A water withdrawal efficiency metric enables organizations to track the water-dependency of their revenue, as well as bench mark their water use. Awareness of water efficiency can drive cost savings, increased brand value, and product or service innovation.
	This metric helps data users track an organization's transition towards a water secure future.
Connection to other frameworks	TNFD Metrics & targets A
Response options	Please complete the following table:

1	2	3
Revenue (currency)	Total water withdrawal efficiency	Anticipated forward trend
Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999,999 using a maximum of two decimal places]	[Auto-calculated]	Text field [maximum 500 characters]

Requested content	General:
Requested content	This matrix is informed by SDC Indicator 6.4.1 Water use officiency
	• This method is morned by SDG indicator 0.4.1 – Water use enciency.
	 Revenue (column 1) This figure should be in the same currency that you selected for all financial information disclosed throughout your response in 1.2. Enter a numerical value for the revenue generated by your organization during the reporting period disclosed in 1.4.
	The figure should align with the total revenue reported in your questionneirs set up but
	• This figure should align with the total revenue reported in your questionnaire set-up, but it should be converted to the currency you selected in 1.2 if this was not USD.
	Total water withdrawal efficiency (column 2)
	This column will be auto-calculated
	The total withdrawal efficiency will be calculated using the revenue figure (column 1) and the
	volume of total withdrawals figure given in 9.2.2 (column 1, row 1). Ensure you have
	Revenue
	Volume of total withdrawals
	Anticipated forward trend (column 4)
	• Indicate the anticipated future trend of this figure, if known. Note that future trends should be at least one year after the end of the reporting year provided in 1.4.
Additional information	'Revenue' in this calculation for water withdrawal efficiency refers to income arising in the
	course of an entity's ordinary activities (less discounts, allowances and returns)
	- before deducting costs for the goods/services sold and operating expenses to arrive at

profit. This marks a departure from SDG 6.4.1 and the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development's guidance for corporate reporting against the SDG efficiency indicator, which asks for Net Value Added – or revenue *after* deducting costs. This difference is to align with the definition of revenue across CDP's questionnaires, based on the <u>International Financial Reporting Standard</u>.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	W
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

(9.6) Do you calculate water intensity for your activities in the chemical sector?

Question details	
Question dependencies	Your response to 9.6 will determine whether 9.6.1 is presented. If your response to 9.6 is amended, data in 9.6.1 may be erased. In this case, be sure to re-enter data 9.6.1.
Change from last year	No change (2023 W-CH1.3)
Rationale	This metric encourages organizations with activities in the chemical sector to monitor water intensity data and improve efficiency. In addition to total water volumes, water intensity metrics provide a complementary indicator to help identify efficiencies and opportunities for the reduction in water withdrawals or consumption. Data users seek improved transparency around the calculation of such metrics to enable performance monitoring and high-level benchmarking. This question aligns with public policy goals related to water at all levels, such as the <u>Sustainable Development Goal 6.4.1</u> .
Response options	 Select one of the following options: Yes No, but we intend to do so within the next two years No, and we have no plans to do so in the next two years
Requested content	 General Only select a 'No' option if you do not currently calculate any water intensity data in your activities in the chemical sector.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	Water
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	СН

(9.6.1) For your top five products **by** production weight/volume, provide the following water intensity information associated with your activities in the chemical sector.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select 'Yes' to question 9.6.
Change from last year	Minor change (2023 W-CH1.3a)
Rationale	This question provides data users with information on how organizations are monitoring the water intensity of their key products and the underlying factors that determine their trend for this metric. It is acknowledged that water intensities will naturally vary according to facility-specific factors like final product obtained, cooling technology or processes used. Specifying a type of metric also helps data users to understand common practice in the industry.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You are able to add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

Product type Product name Water intensity value Numerator: water aspect Denominator Comparison with previous reporting year Please e	explain
(m³/denomi nator)	
Select from: Text field (maximu n mber nomber from 0- 999,999,999 (maximun of 2 decimal places] Select from: Select from: Select from: Select from: Text field (maximu 2,500 (haracte maximun of 2 decimal places] • Aromatics • Ethanol • Aromatics naximun of 2 decimal places] • Freshwater withdrawal s • m³ • Ton • Much lower • About the same • Lower olefins (cracking) • Methanol • Total water (cracking) • Total water consumptio n • Total water consumptio n • Total water please specify • This is our first year of measure ment Bulk inorganic chemicals • Ammonia • Carbon black • Fertilizers • Hydrogen • Nitric acid • Other industrial gases • Higher • This is our first year of measure ment • Mitric acid • Other industrial gases • Hydrogen • Soda ash • Higher • This is our first vear of endet • Higher	ld um ers]

 Titanium dioxide 			
Other chemicals			
 Specialty inorganic chemicals 			
 Specialty organic chemicals 			
• Other, please specify			

[Add Row]

Requested content	General
	 Organizations are expected to report intensity information for their top five products. If reporting 5 products is not possible, an explanation should be provided in column 7 (Please explain).
	 Note that your selection in 1.14 will determine the product type that appears in column 1.
	Product type (column 1)
	• Please add up to five rows to provide a type for your top 5 products.
	Product name (column 2)
	 Provide the product name. For the purpose of this question, 'product' may refer to categories of products that encompass several individual products, for example NPK fertilizers. In column 7 you may give a reason for the grouping, e.g. they are produced in integrated plants.
	Water intensity value (m3/denominator) (column 3)
	 Provide your water intensity value. You should use cubic meters (m³) for the water aspect.
	Comparison with previous reporting year (column 6)
	 CDP does not define the threshold for considering a value as "much higher" rather than simply "higher" (or "much lower"/"lower"). CDP requests this information from many different organizations with significant variations in water intensity.
	• Please define your own threshold for what is "much higher" (and "much lower") and apply it consistently so that each year the reported data for this question is comparable and data users can track your water accounts more effectively. A company-specific explanation for these thresholds should be provided in column 7 (Please explain).
	 If the data was not previously reported, but was collected, you may choose to indicate a comparison with the previous year or select "This is our first year of measurement". In either case, use the "Please explain" column to provide details about the information reported.
	Please explain (column 7)
	Provide any clarification needed for data users to understand your response.
	Please explain:
	 Your choice of numerator for this product;

	 Your choice of denominator for this product; and
	 The trend reported in column 6 and give a company-specific explanation of the thresholds used to provide the trend.
•	Indicate the anticipated future trends, if known (note that future trends should be at least one year after the end of the reporting year provided in 1.4).
•	If the intensity metric is restricted to a specific area/boundary, e.g. company-wide, value-chain, joint ventures, country/area, etc. please include this boundary and the explanation for it.
•	For your calculation of the intensity value, you may wish to include any weighting you use to arrive at a more precise intensity value for an aggregate of countries/areas, business units, substances, etc. Additionally, you may also explain how the metric is used within your organization, for example to set specific targets relating to water efficiency, to guide water strategy, to set remuneration incentives, etc.

Authoring notes			
Tags			
Corporate authority	Capital Markets		
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	W	
Sector	Question level	CH	

(9.7) Do you calculate water intensity for your electricity generation activities?

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question appears only if "Electricity generation" is selected in response to 1.16.
	Your response to 9.7 will determine whether 9.7.1 is presented. If your response to 9.7 is amended, data in 9.7.1 may be erased. In this case, be sure to re-enter data for 9.7.
Change from last year	No change (2023 W-EU1.3)
Rationale	This metric encourages organizations with electricity generation activities to monitor water intensity data and improve efficiency.
	Data users seek improved transparency around the calculation of such metrics to enable performance monitoring and high-level benchmarking.
	In addition to total water volumes, water intensity metrics provide a complementary indicator to help identify efficiencies and opportunities in water withdrawals or consumption.
	This aligns with public policy goals related to water at all levels, including such as the <u>Sustainable Development Goal 6.4.1</u> .
Response options	Select one of the following options:
	• Yes
	 No, but we intend to do so within the next two years
	 No, and we have no plans to do so in the next two years
Requested content	General
	 Only select a "No" option if you do not currently calculate and collect any water intensity data in your electricity generation activities.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	W
---------------------	----------------	----
Sector	Question level	EU

(9.7.1) Provide the following intensity information associated with your electricity generation activities.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" to question 9.7
Change from last year	No change (2023 W-EU1.3a)
Rationale	This question provides data users with information on how organizations are monitoring their water intensity and the underlying factors that determine their trend for this metric. CDP acknowledges that water intensities will vary according to power generation source and technologies used. Specifying a type of metric also helps data users to understand common practice in the industry.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You are able to add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4	5
Water intensity value (m ³ /denominator)	Numerator: water aspect	Denominator	Comparison with previous reporting year	Please explain
Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	 Select from: Freshwater withdrawals Freshwater consumption Total water withdrawals Total water consumption Other, please specify 	Select from: MWh Other, please specify	Select from: Much lower Lower About the same Higher Much higher This is our first year of measurement	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]

[Add Row]

Requested content	General
	• Provide details of your water intensity metrics. If you have several metrics for each of the power generation sources or for various products you may add rows for each of them and indicate in column 5 which source/product the metric applies to.
	Water intensity value (m ³ /denominator) (column 1)
	 Provide your water intensity value. You should use cubic meters (m³) for the water aspect.
	Comparison with previous reporting year (column 4)
	• CDP does not define the threshold for considering a value as "much higher" rather than simply "higher" (or "much lower"/'lower"). CDP requests this information from many different organizations with significant variations in water intensity.
	• Please define your own threshold for what is "much higher" (and "much lower") and apply it consistently so that each year the reported data for this question is comparable and data users can track your water accounts more effectively. A

company-specific explanation for these thresholds should be provided in column 5 (Please explain).
• If the data was not previously reported, but was collected, you may choose to indicate a comparison with the previous year or select "This is our first year of measurement". In either case, use the "Please explain" column to provide details about the information reported.
Please explain (column 5)
• Provide any clarification needed for data users to understand your response including indication of any factors affecting your water intensity and the trend you reported, for example arising from local context, variations in production, river basin water management, etc.
Please explain:
 Your choice of numerator for this product. If you excluded any water source (e.g. rainwater, water) include this consideration and explain your rationale for doing so;
 Your choice of denominator for this product; for example, which production figures you are referring to, e.g. nameplate capacity, gross production, net production, etc;
 The trend reported in column 4 and give a company-specific explanation of the thresholds used to provide the trend; and.
 If the information provided is based on collected data, is calculated using models or other secondary information, or is otherwise estimated, and provide details of the methodology used.
• Indicate the anticipated future trends, if known (note that future trends should be at least one year after the end of the reporting year provided in1.4).
• If the intensity metric is restricted to a specific area/boundary, e.g. company-wide, power generation source, value-chain, joint ventures, country/area, etc. please include this boundary and the explanation for it.
• Explain how the metric is used within your organization, for example to set specific targets relating to water efficiency, to guide water strategy, to set remuneration incentives etc.
• Additionally, you may also wish to include any weighting you use in your calculation of the intensity value to arrive at a more precise intensity value for an aggregate of countries/areas, business units, products, etc. For example, this may be because of large variations in intensity between different areas.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	W
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	EU

(9.8) Provide water intensity information for each of the agricultural commodities significant to your organization that you produce.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Produced" or "Produced and sourced" in column "Produced and/or sourced" and "Yes" in response to the column "Is this commodity considered significant to your business in terms of revenue?" for any row of 1.22 or 1.23

Change from last year	Modified question (2023 W-FB1.3/W-AC1.3, W-FB1.3a/W-AC1.3a)
Rationale	The focus of this question is to ensure that organizations are monitoring the water intensity of their key produced commodities and that they are aware of the underlying factors that determine trends in product water intensity. It is acknowledged that water intensities will naturally vary according to local context factors like climate, soil, agricultural practices, crop varieties, or water management factors.
	Additionally, it may clarify how this metric is calculated including what water aspects were accounted for, how such factors may affect the metrics, or what company boundaries were used. Specifying a type of metric allows data users to understand common practice in the industry.
Response options	Please complete the following table.

0	1	2	3	4	5	6
Agricultural commodity	Water intensity information for this <u>produced</u> commodity is collected/calculated	Water intensity value (m³/denominator)	Numerator: water aspect	Denominator	Comparison with previous reporting year	Please explain
Fixed rows based on selections of commodities in 1.22 and 1.23	 Select from: Yes No, not currently but we intend to collect/calculate this data within the next two years No, not currently and we have no plans to collect/calculate this data within the next two years 	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	 Select from: Freshwater withdrawals Freshwater consumption Total water withdrawals Total water consumption Other, please specify 	 Select from: Dozens Kilograms Liters Metric tons Other, please specify 	 Select from: Much lower Lower About the same Higher Much higher This is our first year of measurement 	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]

[Fixed Row]

Requested content	General
	• The rows presented in this table depend on your response to 1.22 and 1.23. Respond to all rows individually.
	Columns 2 to 5 are only presented if "Yes" is selected in column 1.
	• Provide details of the water intensity for the agricultural commodities that you produce. This should be an organization-wide average value for each of the products. For a single commodity, an organization may, however, have reasons to use different metrics across their operations. Provide the most relevant metric for a product and a justification of your choice in column 6 "Please explain".
	Agricultural commodity (column 0)
	• Note that only the <i>produced</i> agricultural commodities that you indicated are significant in terms of revenue in 1.22 and 1.23 will appear in the list.
	Water intensity value (m3/denominator) (column 2)
	• Provide your water intensity value. You should use cubic meters (m3) for the water aspect.
	• Note that this question requests a figure specific to your organization and the produced commodity in column 0 (Agricultural commodity). This may be

calculated by your organization or by a third party. Do not report generic
Comparison with previous reporting year (column 5)
 CDP does not define the threshold for considering a value as "much higher" rather than simply "higher" (or "much lower"/"lower"). CDP requests this information from many different organizations with significant variations in water use. Define your own threshold for what is "much higher" (and "much lower") and apply it consistently so that each year the reported data for this question is comparable and data users can track your water accounts more effectively. You should provide an explanation for these thresholds that is specific to your organization in column 6 "Please explain". If the data was not previously reported, but was collected, you may choose to indicate a comparison with the previous year or select "This is our first year of measurement". In either case, use the "Please explain" column to provide details about the information reported.
Please explain (column 6)
 Provide details about the tools or methods used to collect/calculate water intensity. If you used the "Other commodity" row to report a different commodity in 1.23, specify the name of the commodity produced by your organization. Provide any clarification needed for data users to understand your response:
 Please explain: Your choice of numerator for this product. If you excluded any water source (e.g. rainwater) include this consideration and explain your rationale for doing so; Your choice of denominator for this product; and The trend reported in column 5 and give an organization specific explanation of the thresholds used to provide the trend. Indicate the anticipated future trends, if known (note that future trends should and the trend).
 be at least one year after the end of reporting year provided in 1.4). Explain how the metric is used within your organization, e.g. to set specific targets relating to water efficiency, to guide water strategy, to set remuneration incentives etc.
 Additionally, you may also wish to include any weighting you use in your calculation of the intensity value to arrive at a more precise intensity value for an aggregate of countries/areas, business units, products, etc. For example, this could be because of large variations in intensity between different areas.

0	1	2	3	4	5	
Agricultural commodity	Water intensity information for this <u>produced</u> commodity is collected/calculated	Water intensity value (m³/denominator)	Numerator: water aspect	Denominator	Comparison with previous reporting year	Plea
Maize/corn	Yes	1706	Freshwater consumed	Metric tons	About the same	The aver eval from field acco proc our repo driel year redu aver m ³ /r that wate was We deci in w valu be n total cons inclu cons in cons cons inclu cons i cons cons i cons i cons i cons i cons i c

Sugar	Yes	146	Freshwater	Metric tons	Higher	The
			consumed		U -	ave
						eva
						for o
						irrig
						wei
						the
						volu
						Ave
						wat
						m ³ /i
						irrig
						inte
						This
						was
						ave
						lead
						irrig
						our
						inte
						nigi
						pre
						doo
						in w
						vali
						ho r
						Irric
						to a
						$m^{3/2}$
						to 7
						nre
						tota
						con
						incl
						con
						and
						use
						sug
						incl
						figu
						Ŵe
						data
						irrig
						ben
						faci
						prio
						mai
						inve
						nelp
						tigh
						red
						den
0//	Vaa	1222			A h. e. 1 (1	Stre
Other,	res	1323	Freshwater	Metric tons	About the	ine
please			consumed		same	ave
specity:						eva
Deans						
						The
						from

		m³/t
		dep
		and
		con
		bea
		use
		irria
		vea
		vea
		thar
		hvd
		This
		wat
		proc
		sinc
		1%
		inte
		use
		int _P
		onti
		opu

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	W
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	FB/AC

(9.9) Provide water intensity information for each of the agricultural commodities significant to your organization that you source.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Sourced" or "Produced and sourced" in column "Produced and/or sourced" and "Yes" in response to the column "Is this commodity considered significant to your business in terms of revenue?" for any row of 1.22 or 1.23
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 W-FB1.3/W-AC1.3, W-FB1.3b/W-AC1.3b)
Rationale	The focus of this question is to ensure that organizations are monitoring the water intensity of their key sourced commodities and that they are aware of the underlying factors that determine their trend for this metric. It is acknowledged that water intensities will naturally vary according to local context factors like climate, soil, agricultural practices, crop varieties or water management factors.
	Additionally, it may clarify how this metric is calculated including what water aspects were accounted for, how such factors may affect the metrics, or what organization boundaries were used. Specifying a type of metric allows data users to understand common practice in the industry.
Response options	Please complete the following table.

0	1	2	3	4	5	6
Agricultura I commoditi es	Water intensity information for this <u>sourced</u> commodity is collected/calcula ted	Water intensity value (m³/denominat or)	Numerator: Water aspect	Denominato r	Comparison with previous reporting year	Please explain
Fixed rows based on selections of commoditie s in 1.22 and 1.23	 Select from: Yes No, not currently but we intend to collect/calcula te this data within the next two years No, not currently and we have no plans to collect/calcula te this data within the next two years 	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,99 9 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	 Select from: Freshwat er withdrawa ls Freshwat er consumpti on Total water withdrawa ls Total water consumpti on Other, please specify 	 Select from: Dozens Kilogra ms Liters Metric tons Other, please specify 	 Select from: Much lower Lower About the same Higher Much higher This is our first year of measurem ent 	Text field [maximu m 2,500 character s]

[Add Row]

Requested content	General
	 The rows presented in this table depend on your response to 1.22 and 1.23. Respond to all rows individually.
	Columns 2 to 5 are only presented if "Yes" is selected in column 1
	 Provide details of the water intensity from the agricultural commodities that you source. This should be an organization-wide average value. For a single commodity, an organization may, however, have reasons to use different metrics. Provide the most relevant metric for a sourced commodity and a justification of your choice in column 6 "Please explain".
	Agricultural commodity (column 0)
	 Note that only the <u>sourced</u> agricultural commodities that you indicated are significant in terms of revenue in 1.22 and 1.23 will appear in the list.
	Water intensity value (m3/denominator) (column 2)
	 Provide your water intensity value. You should use cubic meters (m3) for the water aspect.
	 Note that this question requests a calculated figure specific to your organization and the sourced commodity in column 0 "Agricultural commodity". This may be calculated by your organization or by a third party. Do not report generic industry values.
	 Comparison with previous reporting year (column 5) CDP does not define the threshold for considering a value as "much higher" rather than simply "higher" (or "much lower"/"lower"). CDP requests

this information from many different organizations with significant
Define your own threshold for what is "much higher" (and "much lower")
 Define your own threshold for what is "much higher" (and "much lower") and apply it consistently so that each year the reported data for this question is comparable and data users can track your water accounts more effectively. You should provide an explanation for these thresholds that is specific to your organization in column 6 "Please explain". If the data was not previously reported, but was collected, you may choose to indicate a comparison with the previous year or select "This is our first year of measurement". In either case, use the "Please explain" column to provide details about the information reported.
Please explain (column 6)
 Provide details about the tools or methods used to collect/calculate water intensity.
 If you used the "Other commodity" row to report a different commodity in
1.23, specify the name of the commodity sourced by your organization.
 Provide any clarification needed for data users to understand your
response, including its scope:
 Please explain: Your choice of numerator for this product If you excluded any water source (e.g. rainwater) include this consideration and explain your rationale for doing so;
 Your choice of denominator for this commodity; and The trend reported in column 5 and give an organization-specific explanation of the thresholds used to provide the trend
 Indicate the anticipated future trends, if known (note that future trends)
should be at least one year after the end of the reporting year provided in 1.4).
• Explain how the metric is used within your organization, e.g. to set specific targets relating to water efficiency, to guide water strategy, to set remuneration incentives etc.
 Additionally, you may also wish to include any weighting you use in your calculation of the intensity value to arrive at a more precise intensity value for an aggregate of countries/areas, business units, products, etc. This may be because of large variations in intensity between different areas.

L.							
	0	1	2	3	4	5	6
	Agricultural commodities	Water intensity information for this <u>sourced</u> commodity is collected/calculated	Water intensity value (m³/denominator)	Numerator: Water aspect	Denominator	Comparison with previous reporting year	Please explain
	• Maize/corn	Yes	1810	Total water consumption	Metric tons	About the same	The value is the a maize evapotran a normal hydrolog in the areas when suppliers, weight according to the tons. Hence this not vary from yea until we develop engagement with suppliers. The da obtained from da regional research The total freshwa consumed value the consideration irrigation water us data considers in the area to avera m ³ /ha. We collec to internally benc facilities against f average and set irrigation manage investments.
	• Sugar	Yes	160	Total water consumption	Metric tons	About the same	The value is the a sugarcane evapotranspiratic normal hydrologii the areas where suppliers, weight according to the tons from each o regions. Hence th does not vary mu year to year until develop further e with our suppliers was obtained from regional research The total freshwa consumed value the consideration rainwater since ir not common in lo Water use in the is not included in We collect these internally benchm facilities against f average and set irrigation manage investments.

Г	D. I 'I	Maa	70.7	Tatal	M. (.'. (Ma have made
	Paim oii	res	121	Total Water	Metric tons	About the	we have made a
				consumption		same	preliminary asses
							water risk in our
							chain and used t
							intensity values t
							hotspots of high
							consumption in a
							lower availability,
							interannual varia
							land use issues.
							carried out a sup
							assessment and
							product comes fr
							and central Kalin
							While 24% come
							Cauca valley in (
							The value provid
							column 2 is the r
							average water co
							for oil paim produ
							west Kalimantan,
							The water consul
							oil paim in the Ca
							is 623 m³/t on av
							Hence this value
							vary significantly
							to year until we d
							further engagem
							suppliers. Additio
							part of our engag
							the suppliers to a
							other ESG issues
							deforestation we
							focusing engage
							suppliers sourcin
							Indonesia In futu
							we will work furth
							the assessment (
							intensity and vali
							more local inform
							crop, not conside
							use or pollution II
- 1	1					1	processing of the

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	W
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	FB, AC

(9.10) Do you calculate water intensity information for your metals and mining activities?

Question details	
Question dependencies	Your response to 9.10 will determine whether 9.10.1 is presented. If your response to 9.10 is amended, data in 9.10.1 may be erased. In this case, be sure to re-enter data for 9.10.1.
Change from last year	No change (2023 W-MM1.3/W-CO1.3)
Rationale	This metric encourages organizations with activities in the metals & mining and coal sectors to monitor water intensity data and improve efficiency. Data users seek improved transparency around the calculation of such metrics to enable performance monitoring and high-level benchmarking.
	In addition to total water volumes, water intensity metrics provide a complementary indicator to help identify efficiencies and opportunities for the reduction of water withdrawals and consumption.
	This aligns with public policy goals related to water at all levels, such as the <u>Sustainable</u> <u>Development Goal 6.4.1</u> .
Response options	Select one of the following options:
	 Yes No, but we intend to do so within the next two years No, and we have no plans to do so in the next two years
Requested content	General
	 Only select a "No" option if you do not currently calculate and collect any water intensity data in your metals & mining and/or coal sector activities.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	W
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	MM, CO

(9.10.1) For your top 5 products by revenue, provide the following intensity information associated with your metals and mining activities.

Question de	tails					
Question dependencies		This question only appears if you select "Yes" to question 9.10.				
Change from	last year	No change (20	23 W-MM1.3a/W-CO1.3a)		
Rationale		Various methods exist for calculating water intensity in the metals & mining and coal sectors, and it is acknowledged that water intensities will naturally vary according to local context factors like geology, landscape, hydrology, the mining methods used, or ore grades. Specifying a type of metric allows data users to understand common practice in the industry. This question provides them with information on how organizations determine a				
		water intensity metric and are aware of the underlying factors that affects their trend.				
		 Note that the question does not ask for an organization to provide water intensity data. CDP is taking a staged approach to this disclosure. 				
Response options		Please complete the following table. You are able to add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.				
1		2	3	4	5	

Product name	Numerator: water aspect	Denominator	Comparison with previous reporting year	Please explain
Text field [maximum 100 characters]	 Select from: Freshwater withdrawals Freshwater consumption Total water withdrawals Total water consumption Freshwater use Total water use Other, please specify 	 Select from: Ton of material moved Ton of ore mined Ton of ore processed Ton of final product Ounce of final product Thousand carats of final product Other, please specify 	Select from: Much lower Lower About the same Higher Much higher This is our first year of measurement	Text field [maximum 2,000 characters]

[Add Row]

Requested content	General
	• Provide details of your water intensity metric(s) for up to 5 products. The question does not ask for water intensity data. If reporting 5 products is not possible, an explanation should be provided in column 5 (Please explain).
	Product name (column 1)
	• Please add up to five rows to provide up to 5 products in terms of revenue for which you calculate a water intensity metric.
	• The description provided should allow data users to identify the product it refers to, e.g., gold or platinum group metals.
	Comparison with previous reporting year (column 4)
	• CDP does not define the threshold for considering a value as 'much higher' rather than simply 'higher' (or 'much lower'/'lower'). CDP requests this information from many different industries with huge variations in water use, and it would therefore be difficult to provide a universal threshold that is meaningful (as proportions will equate to different absolute values and impacts).
	• CDP recommends that you define your own threshold for what is 'much higher' (and 'much lower') and apply it consistently so that each year the reported data for this question is comparable and data users can track your water accounts more effectively. A company-specific explanation for these thresholds should be provided in column 5 (Please explain).
	• If the data was not previously reported, but was collected, you may choose to indicate a comparison with the previous year or select "This is our first year of measurement". In either case, use the "Please explain" column to provide details about the information reported.
	Please explain (column 5)
	• Provide any clarification needed for data users to understand your response including indication of any factors affecting your water intensity and the trend you reported, for example arising from local context or geological factors, like ore grade variations.
	Please explain:
	 Your choice of numerator for this product. If you excluded any water source (e.g. rainwater) include this consideration and explain your rationale for doing so;
	 Your choice of denominator for this product;

	 The trend reported in column 4 and give a company-specific explanation of the thresholds used to provide the trend.
	• Indicate the anticipated future trends, if known (note that future trends should be at least one year after the end of the reporting year provided in 1.4).
	 If the intensity metric is restricted to a specific area/boundary, e.g. company-wide, value chain, joint ventures, country/area, etc. please include this boundary and the explanation for it.
	 Explain how the metric is used within your organization, for example to set specific targets relating to water efficiency, to guide water strategy, to set remuneration incentives etc.
	• Additionally, you may also wish to include any weighting you use in your calculation of the intensity value to arrive at a more precise intensity value for an aggregate of countries/areas, business units, products, etc. This may be because of large variations in intensity between different areas.
	 If you wish to provide a specific intensity figure you may do so here.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	Water
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	Metals & mining and Coal

(9.11) Do you calculate water intensity for your activities associated with the oil & gas sector?

Question details	
Question dependencies	Your response to 9.11 will determine whether 9.11.1 is presented. If your response to 9.11 is amended, data in 9.11.1 may be erased. In this case, be sure to re-enter data for 9.11.1.
Change from last year	No change (2023 W-OG1.3)
Rationale	This metric encourages organizations to monitor water intensity data and improve efficiency. In addition to total water volumes, water intensity metrics provide a complementary indicator to help identify efficiencies and reduction opportunities in water withdrawals or consumption. Data users also seek improved transparency around the calculation of such metrics to enable performance monitoring and high-level benchmarking. This aligns with public policy goals at all levels, including <u>Sustainable Development Goal</u> <u>6.4.1.</u>
Response options	 Select one of the following options: Yes No, but we intend to do so within the next two years No, and we have no plans to do so in the next two years
Requested content	 General Only select a "No" option if you do not currently calculate and collect any water intensity data in your oil & gas activities.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	Water

Sector	Question level	Oil & Gas

(9.11.1) Provide water intensity information associated with your activities in the oil & gas sector.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" to question 9.11.
Change from last year	No change (2023 W-OG1.3a)
Rationale	The focus of this question is to determine which metric organizations are using to monitor their water intensity, and that they are aware of the underlying factors that determine their trend in this metric. Specifying a type of metric also allows data users to understand common practice in the industry. Various methods exist for calculating water intensity for the oil & gas sector. It is acknowledged that water intensities will naturally vary according to local context factors like geology, hydrology, or technology used.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You are able to add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4	5	6
Business division	Water intensity value (m ³ /denomin ator)	Numerator: water aspect	Denominator	Comparison with previous reporting year	Please explain
Select all that apply: Upstream Midstream Downstrea m Chemicals Other, please specify	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,9 99 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	 Select from: Freshwater withdrawals Total water withdrawals Freshwater consumption Total water consumption Other, please specify 	 Select from: Barrel of oil equivalent Barrel of crude oil throughput Barrel of petrochemica l product Other, please specify 	Select from: Much lower Lower About the same Higher Much higher This is our first year of measur ement	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]

[Add Row]

Requested content	General		
	• Provide details of your water intensity metrics. If you have several metrics for each of the business divisions or for various products you may add rows for each of them.		
	Water intensity value (m³/denominator) (column 2)		
	 Provide your water intensity value. You should use cubic meters (m³) for the water aspect. 		

Comparison with previous reporting year (column 5)
• CDP does not define the threshold for considering a value as 'much higher' rather than simply 'higher' (or 'much lower'/'lower'). CDP requests this information from many different industries with huge variations in water use, and it would therefore be difficult to provide a universal threshold that is meaningful (as proportions will equate to different absolute values and impacts).
• CDP recommends that you define your own threshold for what is 'much higher' (and 'much lower') and apply it consistently so that each year the reported data for this question is comparable and data users can track your water accounts more effectively. A company-specific explanation for these thresholds should be provided in column 6 (Please explain).
 If the data was not previously reported, but was collected, you may choose to indicate a comparison with the previous year or select "This is our first year of measurement". In either case, use the "Please explain" column to provide details about the information reported.
Please explain (column 6)
• Provide any clarification needed for data users to understand your response including indication of any factors affecting your water intensity and the trend you reported, for example arising from local context or geological factors.
Please explain:
 Your choice of numerator for this product;
 Your choice of denominator for this product; and
• The trend reported in column 5 and give a company-specific explanation of the thresholds used to provide the trend. Indicate the anticipated future trends, if known (note that future trends should be at least one year after the end of the reporting year provided in 1.4).
 If the intensity metric is restricted to a specific area/boundary, e.g. company-wide, value-chain, joint ventures, country/area, etc. please include this boundary and the explanation for it.
 Explain how the metric is used within your organization, for example to set specific targets relating to water efficiency, to guide water strategy, to set remuneration incentives etc.
 Additionally, you may also wish to include any weighting you use in your calculation of the intensity value to arrive at a more precise intensity value for an aggregate of countries/areas, business units, products, etc. This may be because of large variations in intensity between different areas, for example.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	Water
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	Oil & Gas

(9.12) Provide any available water intensity values for your organization's products or services.

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 SW3.1)

Rationale	Methodologies for calculating and reporting water intensity are currently becoming more standardized, particularly with the development of ISO 14046. CDP supply chain members are increasingly interested in the water use of their purchased products (goods or services). In particular, they are interested in the water intensity of the goods and services they purchase that are produced in facilities exposed to water risk (where that risk is related to access to water or physical scarcity).
Response options	Please complete the following table. You are able to add rows to this table using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4	5
Product name	Water intensity value	Numerator: Water aspect	Denominator	Comment
Text field [maximum 500 characters]	Numerical field [up to 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of four decimal places]	 Select from: Water withdrawn Water consumed Other, please specify 	Text field [maximum 100 characters]	Text field [maximum 1,000 characters]

[Add row]

Requested content	General		
	• This question refers to water intensity figures for goods and services produced by your company. You do not have to provide water intensity figures for all your products, but figures for goods or services that you provide to requesting CDP supply chain members should be included here if possible.		
	 You may wish to prioritize those located in water stressed regions, or those representing the largest proportion of spend. 		
	 If you reported sector-specific water intensity information in section 9.5, you may report the same figures here. 		
	Product name (column 1)		
	 A brief description of the product should be provided e.g. "soft drink", and the product data disclosed should include (though not be limited to) <u>the products of</u> <u>most interest to requesting CDP supply chain members</u>. 		
	Water intensity value (column 2)		
	 Provide your water intensity value. You must use m³ for the water aspect. For example, water intensity = volume of water consumption in m³ / annual revenue in \$. 		
	Please state this in values of up to 4 decimal places.		
	Numerator: Water aspect (column 3)		
	• If you select "Other, please specify", provide a label for the water aspect.		
	Denominator (column 4)		
	• You should provide a label for the denominator used in your calculation of the water intensity value in column 2.		

	 Denominators vary by organization. For example, mining companies may use "tonne of ore mined", whereas for chemicals producers "m³ produced" may be more appropriate.
	Comment (column 5) (optional)
	 Use this field to provide the units of your Numerator: Water aspect given in column 3.
	 You can also give contextual information to support your water intensity calculation. This may include explanations of:
	 Organizational boundaries e.g. whether it is a company-wide value or an alternative scope. Include your approach to this calculation and its rationale and exclusions; such as how the data is collected/calculated, if there is any weighing in the calculation of the average, etc.
	 Relevant exclusions e.g. any exclusions to your selection in column 3 (Numerator: Water aspect), e.g. consideration only of freshwater use, exclusion of rainwater use, and rationale for this.
	• You can also provide a rationale for your choice of denominator (column 4) in this column, as well as further describing the product you refer to in column 1.
	 Requesting members may find it useful to understand how this data is used within your organization e.g. in setting water efficiency targets, guiding water strategy, or setting remuneration incentives.
Additional information	See CDP's Technical Note on <u>Water Accounting Definitions</u> for additional information about the terms used in this question.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Supply chain	
Environmental Issue	Question level	Water
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

Hazardous substances

(9.13) Do any of your products contain substances classified as hazardous by a regulatory authority?

Question details	
Question dependencies	Your response to 9.13 prompts subsequent questions. If your response to 9.13 is amended, data in those dependent questions may be erased. In this case, be sure to re-enter data for all relevant questions.
Change from last year	No change (2023 W1.4)
Rationale	Tracing and eliminating the use of hazardous substances in all sectors is pivotal in safeguarding the quality of water bodies and by extension the effects on humans and ecosystems. Keeping track of the hazardous substances present in their products allows companies to work systematically to phase out these substances.
Ambition	 Companies track their use of hazardous substances and transition away from sourcing/using hazardous substances in their products.
Response options	Please complete the following table:

1	2
Products contain hazardous substances	Comment
Select from:	Text field [1,000 characters]
• Yes	
• No	
Unknown	

Requested content	 General If you select 'Yes', you will be presented with a question on details about hazardous substances in your products.
	 Comment (column 2) (optional) You may use this column to provide information that will help CDP data users to understand your selection. For example, you may wish to explain:
	 If you selected 'No', how you know that your products do not contain hazardous substances.
	\circ If you selected 'Unknown', any future plans to assess this.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	W
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

(9.13.1) What percentage of your company's revenue is associated with products containing substances classified as hazardous by a regulatory authority?

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if "Yes" is selected in 9.13.
Change from last year	No change (2023 W1.4a)
Rationale	This question assesses whether your company monitors hazardous substances in your products, with the aim to improve the protection of human health and the environment from the risks posed by hazardous substances.
Ambition	 Companies track their use of hazardous substances and transition away from sourcing/using hazardous substances in their products.
Connection to other frameworks	ESRS E2
Response options	Please complete the following table. You are able to add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3
Regulatory classification of hazardous substances	% of revenue associated with products containing substances in this list	Please explain
 Select from: Annex XVII of EU REACH Regulation Candidate List of Substances of Very High Concern for Authorisation above 0.1% by weight (EU Regulation) EU Persistent Organic Pollutants (POPs) Regulation Annex XIV of UK REACH Regulation Candidate List of Substances of Very High Concern (UK Regulation) Federal Water Pollution Control Act / Clean Water Act (United States Regulation) Water Pollution Prevention Act (Japan Regulation) Guidelines for Controlling the Use of Key Chemical Substances in Consumer Products (China Regulation) Brazilian Regulatory Standards Official Mexican Standards (NOMs) / National Inventory of Chemical Substances List of substances (Canadian Environmental Protection Act) Other, please specify 	Select from: • Don't know • Less than 10% • 10-20 • 21-40 • 41-60 • 61-80 • More than 80%	Text field [maximum 1,500 characters]

Requested	General
content	• This question refers to the whole company's product portfolio and it is not restricted to the products that could potentially contain restricted substances or substances of very high concern (SVHC).
	 If there are several regulations relevant to your business, you may add rows for each of these regulations.
	Note that some substances are included in multiple lists within a jurisdiction.
	Regulatory classification of hazardous substances (column 1)
	 Select the regulation in which your substances are included.
	 If your substances are classified as hazardous in several regulations, select the regulation that corresponds to the location of your operations and for which you are able to provide a % of revenue associated with products containing substances in this regulation.
	 If your products contain substances which are classified as hazardous as part of a regulation that includes several lists, use the 'Please explain' column to specify which list.
	% of revenue associated with products containing substances in this list (column 2)
	• Select the percentage that best applies to your organization for each of the Regulations you selected in column 1.
	• Note that revenue relates to the products sold by the company.
	Please explain (column 3)
	You may use this column to specify Regulatory lists not included in column 1.

Briefly explain why your products contain hazardous substances, including any company- specific context.
 Indicate if there are opportunities to reduce the % of your revenue associated with hazardous substances, for example, if there are less harmful substances which could be substituted for the hazardous substances in your products.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level W	
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

Products and services

(9.14) Do you classify any of your current products and/or services as low water impact?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 W7.5)
Rationale	Reducing the water impact of products, in the production or use phase of the value chain, will hasten the transition to a water-secure future. This question informs investors and other data users on the action that companies are taking towards this. There is no common definition of what constitutes a low water impact product and/or service, so companies are asked to explain the criteria and threshold used for classifying products and/or services as low water impact.
Response options	Please complete the following table:
	(*column/row appearance is dependent on selections in this or other questions)

1 2		3	4	
Pro cla	oducts and/or services ssified as low water impact	Definition used to classify low water impact*	Primary reason for not classifying any of your current products and/or services as low water impact*	Please explain
Se	lect from:	Text field	Select from:	Text field
•	Yes No, but we plan to address this within the next two years	[maximum 5,000 characters]	 Important but not an immediate business priority Judged to be unimportant, explanation provided 	[maximum 1,000 characters]
•	No, and we do not plan to address this within the next two years		Lack of internal resourcesNo instruction from managementOther, please specify	

[Fixed row]

Requested	Definition used to classify low water impact (column 2)		
content	 State the criteria and thresholds used to classify your products/services as low wate impact. 		

• State which part of your company's value chain (e.g., product use or production) the criteria apply to, which water aspects are considered (e.g., quality, quantity, or intensity), and which international standards are considered.
Primary reason for not classifying any of your current products and/or services as low water impact (column 3)
Only presented if a 'No' option is selected in column 1.
• If you select "Other, please specify", provide a label for your primary reason.
Please explain (column 4)
 Provide an explanation for your responses in previous columns. You may provide further information to help data users understand your approach to classifying products and/or services.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level W	
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

Water-related targets: water quantity, water quality, WASH, Other

Section overview

Section	This section collects information on your organization's water-related quantitative targets to demonstrate your commitment to progressing water stewardship and security, and to improving water management.
Overview	In particular, setting and progressing targets to reduce water withdrawals, reduce water pollution, and improve access to water, sanitation, and hygiene (WASH) services is important for the transition to a water secure future.
Sector specific content	 Additional response options presented in 9.15.2 for the Food, Beverage & Tobacco and Agricultural Commodities sectors.

(9.15) Do you have any water-related targets?

Question details

Question dependencies	 Your response to 9.15 will prompt which subsequent questions in this section are presented. If your response to 9.15 is amended, data in those dependent questions may be erased. In this case, be sure to re-enter data for all relevant questions. The guidance for each question indicates if it is a dependent question. If you select "Yes", you will be presented with 9.15.1 and 9.15.2. If you select any "No" response, you will be presented with 9.15.3. 		
Change from last	No change (2023 W8.1)		
Rationale	Target setting plays a vital role in water management and assists the successful execution of corporate strategies. Setting and making progress against targets helps decouple growth from dependence on water. CDP data users wish to know about your organization's tracked, timebound, quantitative targets for achieving its water policy and commitments, improving water management, and responding to current and future water risks.		
Ambition	 Companies have timebound, tracked, quantitative water-related targets for critical aspects of their business operations, including water pollution, water withdrawals, and access to WASH services. 		
Connection to other frameworks	CEO Water Mandate: Response: Policies, Governance and Targets ESRS 2 ESRS E3		
Response options	Select from: • Yes		
	No, but we plan to within the next two years		
	No, and we do not plan to within the next two years		
Requested content	 General Consider the range of water-related targets set within your organization and the processes you have in place to ensure that they are meaningful and that their progress and impact is monitored. Targets should have specific, measurable, quantitative outcomes. They may be related to your organization's direct operations or other parts of its value chain. 		
Additional information	• The case for meaningful water targets that account for local context has been set out in the following publication: Exploring the case for context-based water targets (2017).		
	 Guidance for companies on how to set site-level water targets that reflect both the local context and global shared goals for water use has been described in the following publication: <u>Setting Site Water Targets Informed by Catchment Context: A Guide for Companies (2019).</u> This is the result of a collaborative effort between CDP, the CEO Water Mandate, the 		
	Pacific Institute, the Nature Conservancy, UNEP-DHI, the World Resources Institute and WWF.		
	 CDP is a partner of the Science Based Targets Network, responsible for developing science-based targets for nature, including freshwater. This follows the successful work of the Science-Based Targets initiative for greenhouse gas emissions in mobilizing companies towards robust environmental impact reduction. Details can be found here: <u>Freshwater - Science Based Targets Network</u>. 		
	 This module of our questionnaire will evolve to reflect developments in good practice in target setting. 		

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level Water	
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (Except FS)

(9.15.1) Indicate whether you have targets relating to water pollution, water withdrawals, WASH, or other water-related categories.

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to 9.15.
dependencies	
Change from last	No change (2023 W8.1a)
year	
Rationale	It is good practice for companies to set targets to reduce water withdrawals, reduce water pollution, and improve water, sanitation, and hygiene (WASH) services where these water aspects are relevant to the impact of their business activities on water security.
Ambition	• Companies have timebound, tracked, quantitative targets which are informed by science to eliminate pollution, reduce water withdrawals, and improve access to WASH services across their value chain.
Connection to	CEO Water Mandate
other frameworks	Response: Policies, governance and targets
	GRI Disclosure 303-1
	TNFD Metrics & targets C
	ESRS 2
	ESRS E3
Response options	Please complete the following table:
	(*column/row appearance is dependent on selections in this or other questions)

0	1	2
Category of target	Target set in this category	Please explain
Water pollution	 Select from: Yes No, but we plan to within the next two years No, and we do not plan to within the next two years 	Text field [maximum 1,000 characters]
Water withdrawals		
Water, Sanitation, and Hygiene (WASH) services		
Other		

[Fixed row]

Requested content	General
	 A target may be related to your organization's direct operations or other parts of its value chain.
	Target set in this category (column 1)

 Select 'Yes' in column 1 if your organization has a water-related target in this category. Note that for every category where you select 'Yes', at least one target corresponding to that category should be detailed in 9.15.2.
 Please explain (column 2) This column is only presented if one of the "No" options is selected in column 1. If you selected 'No, but we plan to in the next two years', indicate the nature of the target you intend to set (e.g., reduction of total withdrawals), the anticipated timeline, and any other relevant plans. If you selected 'No, and we do not plan to in the next two years', explain why, e.g., lack of internal resources, no instruction from management, or the category of target is not relevant to your operations.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	Water
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (Except FS)

(9.15.2) Provide details of your water-related targets and the progress made.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to 9.15."
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 W8.1b)
Rationale	Data users wish to understand whether your water-related targets are relevant to the dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities associated with your activities, and the progress you are making towards these targets.
Ambition	• Companies have timebound, tracked, quantitative water-related targets which are informed by science to eliminate water pollution, reduce water withdrawals, and improve access to WASH services across their value chain.
Connection to other frameworks	CEO Water Mandate Response: Policies, governance and targets CEO WM Response: External Engagement GRI Disclosure 303-1 TNFD Strategy B TNFD Metrics & targets C ESRS 2 ESRS E2 ESRS E3
Response options	Please complete the following table. The table is displayed over several rows for readability. If you have multiple targets, you are able to add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Target reference	Category of target	Target coverage	Quantitative	Date target was set	End date of base	Base year figure
number			metric		year	
Select from: • Reference number drop down	 Select from: Water pollution Water withdrawals Water, Sanitation and Hygiene (WASH) services Water consumption Product water intensity Water recycling/reuse Water use efficiency Monitoring of water use Product use phase Community engagement Supplier engagement Watershed remediation and habitat restoration, ecosystem preservation Procurement/productio n of sustainable raw materials [food, beverage & tobacco and agricultural commodities sectors only] 	 Select from: Organization-wide (direct operations only) Organization-wide (including suppliers) Business division Business activity Site/facility Product level Country/area/region Basin level Suppliers Other, please specify 	Select from: • Response drop- down options below table	[DD/MM/YYY]	[DD/MM/YYY]	Numerical field [enter a number between 0 and 999,999,999,999,999 9 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]

8	9	10	11	12	13
End date of target year	Target year figure	Reporting year figure	Target status in reporting year	% of target achieved relative to base year	Global environmental treaties/initiatives/ frameworks aligned with or supported by this target

[DD/MM/YYY]	Numerical field [enter a	Numerical field [enter a number between 0 and	Select from:	[Auto-calculated]	Select all that apply:
	999,999,999,999,999,999 usin a maximum of 2 decimal	g999,999,999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal	 New Underway Achieved 		Fair Water Footprints
	places]	places]	 Achieved and maintained Expired Revised Replaced Poticod 		 Kunming-Montreal Global Biodiversity Framework
					Planetary Boundaries
					Science Based Targets for Nature
					 Sustainable Development Goal 6
					Water Resilience Coalition
					Wastewater Zero Commitment
					Zero Discharge of Hazardous Chemicals (ZDHC)
					 None, alignment not assessed
					 None, no alignment after assessment
					Other, please specify

14	15	16	17
Explain target coverage and identify any exclusions	Plan for achieving target, and progress made to the end of the reporting year	Actions which contributed most to achieving or maintaining this target	Further details of target
Text field [maximum 1,000 characters]	Text field [maximum 1,000 characters]	Text field [maximum 1,000 characters]	Text field [maximum 1,500 characters]

[Add row]

	Quantitative metric (column 4)			
Con	nmunity engagement	Water pollution		
•	Increase in number of population participating in community engagement activities	 Increase in the proportion of wastewater that is safely treated 		
•	Increase in investment in community engagement initiatives	Reduction in water discharge volumes		
•	Other community engagement, please specify	Reduction in water discharges per business unit		
Mor	litering of water use	Reduction in water discharges per revenue		
	Increase in the proportion of sites monitoring water withdrawals total volumes	Reduction in water discharges per product		
	Increase in the proportion of sites monitoring water withdrawals total volumes	 Reduction in water discharges per unit of production 		
	Increase in the proportion of sites monitoring water withdrawar by source	Reduction in concentration of pollutants		
•	Increase in the proportion of sites monitoring water recycled/reused	Reduction of hazardous substance use		
•	Increase in the proportion of sites monitoring water discharge total volumes	 Substitution of hazardous substances with less harmful substances 		
•	Increase in the proportion of sites monitoring water discharges by destination	 Increase in water use met through recycling/reuse 		
•	Increase in the proportion of sites monitoring water discharge quality – by treatment method	 Increase in investment related to reducing water pollution 		
•	Increase in the proportion of sites monitoring water discharge quality – by standard effluent parameter	Other water pollution, please specify		
•	Increase in the proportion of sites monitoring water discharge quality - temperature	Water recycling/reuse		
•	Increase in the proportion of sites monitoring water consumption total volumes	Increase in water use met through recycling/reuse		
•	Increase in the proportion of sites monitoring employee access to safely managed drinking water and sanitation services around our facilities and operations	 Increase in investment related to water recycling/reuse 		
•	Increase in the proportion of sites monitoring population access to safely managed drinking water and sanitation services around our facilities and operations	Other water recycling/reuse, please specify		
		Water use efficiency		
•	Other monitoring water use, please specify	Reduction in total water withdrawals		
Pro	curement/production of sustainable raw materials (food beverage & tobacco and	 Reduction of water withdrawals from surface water 		
agri	cultural commodities sectors only)	Reduction of water withdrawals from groundwater		
•	Reduction in procurement/production of high water impact commodities (food, beverage & tobacco and agricultural commodities sectors only)	 Reduction of water withdrawals from municipal supply or other third party sources 		
•	Increase in procurement/production of certified crops (food, beverage & tobacco and agricultural commodities sectors only)	 Increase in water withdrawal efficiency (i.e. revenue generation per water withdrawal volume) 		
•	Increase in procurement/production of crops using sustainable agriculture practices (food,	Reduction in total water discharge		
	beverage & tobacco and agricultural commodities sectors only)	 Increase water use met through recycling/reuse 		
•	Reduction in procurement/production of commodities from water-stressed areas (food, beverage & tobacco and agricultural commodities sectors only)	Other water use efficiency, please specify		
•	Increase in procurement/production of commodities with improved water management practices (food, beverage & tobacco and agricultural commodities sectors only)	Water withdrawals		

Other Procurement/production of sustainable raw materials (food beverage & tobacco and agricultural commodities sectors only), please specify Product use phase	 Reduction in total water withdrawals Reduction of water withdrawals from surface water Reduction of water withdrawals from groundwater
nounce use phase	Reduction of water withdrawals from municipal supply or other third party
Decrease in total revenue associated with water-polluting products	sources
Other product use phase please specify	Increase in rainwater harvesting
• Other product use phase, please specify	Increase in water use met through recycling/reuse
Product water intensity	Reduction in withdrawals per business unit
Reduction per business unit	Reduction in withdrawals per revenue
Reduction per revenue	Reduction in withdrawals per product
Reduction per product	Reduction in withdrawals per unit of production
Reduction per unit of production	Increase in investment related to reducing water withdrawals
Increase in investment related to product water intensity	Other water withdrawals, please specify
Increase in water use met through recycling/reuse	Water Senitation and Hygione (WASH) convises
Other product water intensity, please specify	Increase in the properties of employees using safely managed drinking water
	services
Supplier engagement	 Increase in the proportion of employees using safely managed sanitation
Increase in the proportion of suppliers engaged	services, including a hand-washing facility with soap and water
Increase in number of suppliers engaged	Increase in the proportion of local population using safely managed drinking
Increase in investment in supplier engagement initiatives	water services around our facilities and operations
Increase in the proportion of suppliers in compliance with water-related requirements	 Increase in the proportion of local population using safely managed sanitation services, including a hand-washing facility with soap and water around our
• Other supplier engagement, please specify	facilities and operations
Water consumption	Other WASH, please specify
Reduction in total water consumption	
Reduction per business unit	Watershed remediation and habitat restoration, ecosystem preservation
Reduction per revenue	 Increase in watershed remediation and habitat restoration, ecosystem preservation activities
Reduction per product	Improvement in health of water-related ecosystems over time
Reduction per unit of production	Increase in investment in watershed remediation and habitat restoration
Increase in investment related to reducing water consumption	ecosystem preservation activities
Other water consumption, please specify	Other Watershed remediation and habitat restoration, ecosystem preservation
	please specify
	Other
	Other, please specify

@cdp|<u>www.cdp.net</u> @cdp|<u>www.cdp.net</u>

Requested	General
content	 This question requests information about your quantitative targets, which may or may not be organization-wide. For example, a organization may have a commitment to improve water efficiency that is implemented through locally specific targets and activities that together contribute to a organization-wide target.
	 Only report active targets or targets that have been achieved, expired, replaced, or retired during the reporting year.
	 To add targets, use the "Add Row" button. You may report up to 25 targets.
	• Your base year figure, target year figure, and reporting year figure should be reported as absolute numeric values in the unit used by your organization to monitor the target (e.g., megalitres, mg/L of chemical oxygen demand, proportion of suppliers etc.). The unit used should be consistent in all three figures columns.
	Target reference number (column 1)
	• Select a target reference number [!] from the drop-down list to allocate a unique identifier to your target. This will allow you to track and report progress for this target in future disclosures to CDP, until the target is retired. The target reference number is not specific to your organization.
	• When providing information from previously disclosed targets, be sure to use the same reference number as in previous years. Targets should keep their reference number in subsequent years. A target reference number may only apply to a single row.
	Category of target (column 2)
	 Select the type of target you wish to report. The drop-down options in this column are presented based on your selections in 9.15.1.
	• Your selection will drive the metrics presented in column 4, where you are able to provide more details on the target. Refer to the metrics list under the question table to see which quantitative metrics are linked to each category of targets listed (column 4). For example, the category "Water pollution" includes metrics on hazardous substances, water discharge volumes, quality of discharges, etc.
	• Note that "category of target" refers to broad areas of water action in which targets can be set and is not meant to capture further details of the target. Only select "Other, please specify" if the category of target cannot be captured through any other response options.
	Target coverage (column 3)
	• Select "Organization-wide (direct operations only)", if a target applies to your entire reporting boundary, but is limited to your direct operations. Note that 'organization-wide' refers collectively to all the companies, businesses, organizations, other entities or groups that fall within your definition of the reporting boundary.
	 If a target applies to both your direct operations and upstream value chain, select "Organization-wide (including suppliers)".
	• If the target does not apply to the whole organization, select the option that best describes the target coverage, and provide further details in the "Please explain" column. For example, if your target applies only to your European operations, select "Country/area/region" in this column and specify the country/area/region in the 'Please explain' column.
	Quantitative metric (column 4)
	• The drop-down list presented will depend on the category of target you selected in column 2. Some metrics are linked to more than one category.
	• Select the metric used to quantitatively track your progress against the target, or how your organization measures the success of this target. If you select "Other, please specify," provide a label for the metric.
	Date target was set (column 5)
	Enter the date in which your organization set the target.

This must be either be or after the end date of	Fore or during the reporting year, but cannot be after the reporting year of the target year.
If you have a year-on the target. This can b	year rolling target or a maintenance target, enter the date you first set e before the base year.
If you set the target b	ased on financial years, enter the year that applies to the end of your
If you do not know the year that the target w	exact date on which your company set the target, enter the end of the as set.
d date of base vear (col	umn 6)
The base year is the	year against which you are comparing your target.
The base year canno	be after your reporting year.
If you have a year-on previous reporting year	year rolling target or a maintenance target, the base year will be the ar.
If you set the target b financial year	ased on financial years, enter the year that applies to the end of your
If you have a target b the year that applies t	ased on an average over a period of time (e.g., 5-year average), enter o the end of the average period.
se year figure (column 7	")
Indicate the figure that obtained during the b	t you use as a baseline for your target. This should correspond to data ase year and is the figure against which progress is measured.
This figure will be use column 12.	d to auto-calculate the '% of target achieved relative to base year' in
d date of target year (co	lumn 8)
This date represents	when you expect to achieve your target.
Enter the end date of withdrawals by 20% b 2030.	the year that the target ends. For example, if the target is to reduce y the end of 2030, the end date of the target year is 31 st December
If you have a year-on reporting year.	year rolling target or a maintenance target, the target year will be the
If you have a target b the end of your financ	ased on financial years, enter the end date of the year that applies to ial year
You should not report	any target that was completed before the start of the reporting year.
arget year figure (colum	n 9)
Enter the figure that y	ou are aiming to have achieve d in the target year.
This should not repre- for the metric in the u for a reduction of tota of 800 megaliters con 'Target year figure' we	sent the metric's percent increase or reduction, but the targeted figure nit used to monitor it. For example, an organization has a target aiming water withdrawals by 20%, which translates to achieving withdrawals pared to the 'Base year figure' of 1,000 megaliters. In this case, the buld be 800 megaliters, not 20%.
This figure will be use column 12.	d to auto-calculate the '% of target achieved relative to base year' in
eporting year figure (col	umn 10)
Enter the figure achie	ved in the reporting year.
This figure should be	in the same units as the 'Base year figure' and 'Target year figure'.
This figure will be use column 12.	d to auto-calculate the '% of target achieved relative to base year' in

Target status in reporting year (column 11)
 New - Select this option for targets that have been set in the reporting year and are still in progress.
• Underway - Select this option for targets that were set before the reporting year, with an end date in the future, that have not been achieved and continue to be pursued.
• Achieved - Select this option for targets that are in place to achieve a certain level of performance (e.g., to achieve 100% suppliers in compliance with water-related requirements) and have been achieved or exceeded in the reporting year.
• Achieved and maintained - Select this option for targets that are in place to maintain a certain level of performance (e.g., to maintain 100% of suppliers in compliance with water related requirements) and this has been achieved in the reporting year.
• Expired - Select this option for targets with an end date within the reporting year, that have not been achieved or maintained and have therefore expired in the reporting year.
• Revised - Select this option for targets that were set before the reporting year but a revision has been made to any of the elements in columns 2 to 10 in the reporting year, for example due to a recalculation or a change to the end date of the target.
• Replaced - Select this option for previously reported targets that have been replaced with another target in the reporting year, for example where a facility target has been incorporated into an organization-wide target.
• Retired - Select this option for targets with an end date in the future, that have not been achieved, but will no longer be pursued. Provide more information as to why this target was retired in the "Please explain" column.
% of target achieved relative to base year (column 12)
• This column only appears if you have selected any option except "Achieved and maintained" in response to column 11 "Target status in reporting year".
This column will be auto-calculated in the portal.
• The % of target achieved relative to the base year will be calculated using the base year figure (column 7), the target year figure (column 9), and the reporting year figure (column 10). Ensure that you have entered data into these columns.
Reporting year figure (column 10) – Base year figure (column 7)
Target year figure (column 9 – Base year figure (column 7)
• For example, if "Reduction of total water withdrawals" is selected as the "Quantitative metric", and your reporting year figure is 800 megaliters, your base year figure is 1,000 megaliters, and your target year figure is 500 megaliters, this column will display 40%.
Global environmental treaties/initiatives/frameworks aligned with or supported by this target (column 13)
 Select any of the global environmental treaties/initiatives/frameworks for which you have assessed that achieving the target you are disclosing will contribute to your organization aligning with or supporting the goals of them.
 If you have assessed this but found no alignment, select "None, no alignment after assessment".
 If you have not assessed this, select "None, alignment not assessed".
 If you have assessed alignment with any other global environmental treaties/initiatives/frameworks, select "Other, please specify" and provide a label to indicate which global environmental treaties/initiatives/frameworks are aligned.
Explain target coverage and identify any exclusions (column 14)
• If the target is not organization-wide (i.e., it does not apply to the whole organization in line with your definition of the reporting boundary), provide further details of your target coverage in this column. For example, if you have selected "Country/area/region" in column 3, please specify which countries/areas/regions your target covers.

• If the target is set in or covers any priority locations, state this and provide details of the priority location types; i.e., whether it is in a sensitive location and/or whether it is in a location with substantive dependencies, impacts, risks and/or opportunities relating to water.
 If certain parts of your business or value chain are excluded from your target coverage, briefly explain why and whether you plan to include these in the future.
Plan for achieving target, and progress made to the end of the reporting year (column 15)
• This column only appears if you select "Underway", "Revised", or "New" in column 11 "Target status in reporting year".
• Describe how you plan to achieve the target and any planned milestones you have to monitor progress towards achieving your target.
• If possible, specify your anticipated and/or observed progress curve in this column, i.e.:
 Linear – the rate of progress towards the target is anticipated and/or observed to be steady over time.
 Logarithmic – the rate of progress towards the target is anticipated and/or observed to be faster at the start.
 Exponential – the rate of progress towards the target is anticipated and/or observed to be faster at the end.
 Variable – the rate of progress towards the target is anticipated and/or observed to change from year to year.
• If you are not on track to achieve the target, explain how you plan to get back on track.
List the actions which contributed most to achieving or maintaining this target (column 16)
• This column is only presented if "Achieved" is selected in column 11 "Target status in reporting year" OR "Achieved and maintained" is selected in column 11 "Target status in the reporting year" AND column 7 "Base year figure" is equal to column 10 "Reporting year figure".
 If you have achieved your target in this reporting year, indicate the key actions your organization took to achieve the target.
 If your target was to maintain a certain level of performance in the reporting year, and your organization was successful in doing so, indicate the key actions taken to maintain the target.
Further details of target (column 17)
 Use this column to provide any further details or context that may be relevant for understanding this target.
 If you are disclosing a maintenance target and you have not been able to maintain your reported base year figure in the reporting year, explain why this was the case.
• You can use this column to identify whether you have a financial year or average year-based target.
 Provide a brief explanation of the level of progress reported in column 12 "% of target achieved relative to base year", whether this matches anticipated progress, if the original target has been revised in any way, and if so, why.
• If your target is part of a wider goal, a regulatory requirement, or a longer-term target, you can also explain this here.
• If relevant, explain how this target intends to help your organization manage its water-related dependencies, impacts, risks and/or opportunities.
• Provide details of the methodology used to set the target and baseline, including whether you have used any external standards when setting the target and whether these use a science-based approach.
I

Page 216 of 356
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
Target referen ce number	Catego ry of target	Targ et cove rage	Quantitati ve metric	Year target was set	Base year	Base year figur e	Targ et year	Tar get yea r figu re	Rep ortin g year figur e	% achieve d relative to base year	Target status in reporting year	Please explain
Target 1	Water withdra wals	Com pany -wide (dire ct oper ation s only)	Reducti on in total water withdra wals	2020	2019	1,00 0	2030	500	675	65	Underway	In 2020, our organization set a target to reduce our total water withdrawals by 50% by 2030. Progress is monitored using megaliters as the unit of measurement. This target applies company-wide with no exclusions in our direct operations, and is expected to extend to our Tier 1 (direct) suppliers with a substantive impact on water security as a contractual obligation within the next 2 years. The motivation for the target stemmed from a corporate objective on maximizing future cost savings (reduced water bills, operational costs, and regulatory costs), while the target is also in alignment with our water policy commitment to increase freshwater availability in key river basins. As we have achieved 65% already, we are on track to meet this target as long as progress maintains present pace.
Target 2	Water pollutio n	Basi n level	Reducti on in concen tration	2019	2017	2.5	2029	0.5	1.0	75	Underway	In order to protect our brand value, in 2019 we set a target to reduce the release of metal emissions to water in our operations in the Ohio river basin.

			of polluta nts									This target only applies to our sites with direct discharges into water bodies, which are limited to our operations in this basin. We are aiming to reduce the concentration of metal emissions to 20% of the 2017 level by 2029, aka from 2.5g to 0.5g per ton of copper output. Until this reporting year, we have achieved 75% of this target, and are on track to achieve the target by 2029.
Targe	t 3 Product use phase	Prod uct level	Increas e in revenu e from product s design ed for use phase efficien cy	2017	2017	100, 560, 000	2027	120, 672, 000	112, 562, 000	60	Underway	Our company set a target in 2017, aiming to increase our revenue from water efficient products by 20% within the next decade. Our motivation lied in increasing our revenue and brand value through the sales and promotion of water smart products. In 2017 our 'smart appliances' range comprised 7 different products of which 1 was equipped with a networked meter. By the current reporting year, our 'smart appliances' range has been expanded to 15 products. Additionally, new models with improved efficiency have been released for several of the products. Our revenues from 'smart appliances' have already increased by 12%, putting us at 60% of the target achieved We predict that by 2027 we will have 23 smart appliances on the market and plan to have 10 of these equipped with

						monitoring technology. In addition, 4 current products will be retired before 2027, giving us good confidence in our abilities as a company to evolve and improve our smart appliances and to meet our target by 2027
						meet our target by 2027.

Authoring notes							
Tags	Fags						
Corporate authority	Capital Markets						
Environmental Issue	Question level	Water					
(Theme)							
Sector	Question level	All (Except FS)					

(9.15.3) Why do you not have water-related target(s) and what are your plans to develop these in the future?

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select any "No" response in 9.15.
dependencies	
Change from last	No change (2023 W8.1c)
vear	
J U	
Rationale	Investors need an explanation as to why you do not have water-related targets in place, especially
	if your organization has a dependency on water or substantive water risks.
Connection to	ESRS 2
other frameworks	
	ESRS E2
	ESRS E3
Response options	Please complete the following table:

1	2
Primary reason	Please explain
 Select from: We are planning to introduce a target within the next two years Important but not an immediate business priority Judged to be unimportant, explanation provided Lack of internal resources Insufficient data on operations No instruction from management 	Text field [maximum 1,500 characters]
No instruction from managementOther, please specify	

Requested content	 <i>Primary reason (column 1)</i> If you select "Other, please specify", provide a label for the primary reason. 			
	 Please explain (column 2) Use this open text field to provide any relevant details explaining why your organization does not have any water-related targets for the reporting year. 			

• If your organization has plans to develop these in the future, indicate the nature of the target you intend to set (e.g., reduction of total withdrawals), the anticipated timeline, and any other relevant plans.

Authoring notes							
Tags	Fags						
Corporate authority	Capital Markets						
Environmental Issue	Question level	Water					
(Theme)							
Sector	Question level	All (Except FS)					

Module 10: Environmental Performance – Plastics

Guidance for companies reporting on Plastics on behalf of investors & supply chain members

The full reporting guidance including explanation of terms is available via the portal/public guidance page.

Module overview

Module	Tackling plastic pollution and waste is important for safeguarding our global marine, freshwater and					
Overview	terrestrial ecosystems, as well as our economies and communities.					
	This module includes questions on plastics-related targets and activities. There are also metrics for					
	plastic polymers, durable goods and components and plastics packaging on total weight, raw					
	material content and circularity potential (for packaging only). To cover the entire lifecycle of					
	plastics, there is also a question on the End-of-Life management.					
	These questions are informed by existing plastics disclosure frameworks, standards and guidelines					
	including the Ellen MacArthur Foundation and the UN Environment Programme's Global					
	Commitment framework, WWF ReSource Tracker, ESRS and GRI 306: Waste.					
	This provides decision makers with clear, comprehensive, and comparable data on the production,					
	commercialization, usage, and disposal of plastics across the global economy.					

Targets

(10.1) Do you have plastics-related targets, and if so what type?

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to column "Plastics mapping" of
dependencies	1.24.1.
Change from last	Modified question (2023 W10.4)
year	
Rationale	Organizations need to set and progress targets that address their plastics-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities. This question allows organizations to demonstrate to data users their commitment to reduce plastic usage, reduce or eliminate virgin content in plastics, eliminate problematic and unnecessary plastics, transition to reuse systems, reduce microplastic emissions, and increase circularity.
Ambition	• Organizations set and take action towards timebound, measurable plastics-related targets.
Connection to other frameworks	 EMF Global Commitment TNFD Strategy B TNFD Metrics & targets C ESRS 2 ESRS E5
Response options	Please complete the following table:

1	2a	2b	3
Targets in place	Target type	Target metric	Please explain
 Select from: Yes No, but we plan to within the next two years No, and we do not plan to within the next two years 	Select all that apply: Plastic polymers Plastic packaging Plastic goods/products Microplastics End-of-life management Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) Other	 Select all that apply: Plastic polymers Reduce the total weight of virgin content in plastic polymers produced and/or sold Increase the proportion of post-consumer recycled content in plastic polymers produced and/or sold Reduce or eliminate the use of hazardous substances Reduce the use of polymers with properties that may hinder their reusability, 	Text field [maximum 5,000 characters]

recyclability and disposal
please specify
Plastic packaging
Reduce the total
weight of plastic
packaging used
and/or produced
Eliminate problematic
and unnecessary
plastic packaging
Eliminate single-use plastic packaging
Produce the total
weight of virgin
content in plastic
packaging
Increase the
proportion of post-
consumer recycled
content in plastic
packaging
Increase the properties of
proportion or renewable content
from responsibly
managed sources in
plastic packaging
Increase the
proportion of plastic
packaging that is
recyclable in practice
Inclease the proportion of plastic
packaging that is
reusable
Increase the
proportion of plastic
packaging that is
compostable Reduce or climinate
the use of bazardous
substances
Other plastic
packaging target,
please specify
Plastic goods/products
Eliminate single-use
plastic products
Reduce the total
weight of plastics in
our goods/products

 Increase the proportion of plastic goods/products which are reusable Eliminate problematic and unnecessary plastics within our goods/products Reduce the total weight of virgin content in plastic goods/products Increase the proportion of post-consumer recycled content in plastic goods/products Increase the proportion of renewable content from responsibly managed sources in plastic goods/products Increase the proportion of our goods/products Increase the proportion of our goods/products Increase the proportion of renewable content in plastic goods/products Increase the proportion of renewable content from responsibly managed sources in plastic goods/products Increase the proportion of our goods/products that are recyclable in practice and at scale Increase the proportion of our goods/products that are compostable
 Eliminate the use of primary microplastics and plastic particles Reduce the potential release of microplastics and plastic particles Other microplastics target, please specify
 End-of-life management Increase the proportion of recyclable plastic waste that we collect, sort, and recycle Increase the proportion of recyclable plastic waste that is

collected, sorted, and recycled Increase the proportion of plastic waste which is prepared for reuse or composted Reduce the proportion of plastic waste which is sent to landfill and/or incinerated Reduce the proportion of plastic waste which is mismanaged Other end-of-life management target, please specify
 Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) Ensure compliance with EPR policies and schemes Adhere to eco-design requirements Other Extended Producer Responsibility target, please specify
Other • Other, please specify

[Fixed row]

Requested	General	
content	• Only report active targets or targets that have been achieved during the reporting year.	
	Target type and metric (column 2)	
	• This column only appears if you select "Yes" in column 1 "Targets in place".	
	Please explain (column 3)	
	 You may provide any further details useful to CDP data users, including: 	
	 The quantitative metric of the target and the quantitative baseline that progress is measured against, e.g., a target to increase the proportion of plastic packaging that is recyclable in practice and at scale from 65% to 95%; 	
	 Rationale/motivation for setting the targets; 	
	 Timeline for achievement of the targets; 	
	 Coverage of the target, e.g., company-wide or limited to a geographic area, business line etc.; 	

 Actions taken to deliver the targets and the progress achieved so far;
 How your targets relate to your long-term business strategy;
 How your targets relate to any extended producer responsibility schemes or other external frameworks e.g., EMF and UN Environment Programme's Global Commitment.
• If you select a "No" response in column 1 "Targets in place", explain why you have not set plastics-related targets and any plans for future targets.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	Р
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

Activities

(10.2) Indicate whether your organization engages in the following activities.

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to column "Plastics mapping" of
dependencies	1.24.1.
	Your response to this question will determine which subsequent questions are presented. If
	your response to 10.2 is amended, data in those dependent questions may be erased.
Change from last	Modified question (2023 W10.5)
year	
Rationale	Different activities related to the production, commercialization, and use of plastics may result in different dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities. This question enables data users to contextualize the information you provide in this module.
Response options	Please complete the following table:

0	1	2
Activity	Activity applies	Comment
Production/commercialization	Select from:	Text field [maximum
of plastic polymers (including	 Yes 	2,000 characters]
plastic converters)	• No	
Production/commercialization		
of durable plastic goods		
and/or components		
(including mixed materials)		
Usage of durable plastics		
goods and/or components		
(including mixed materials)		
Production/commercialization		
of plastic packaging		

Production/commercialization	
of goods/products packaged	
in plastics	
Provision/commercialization	
of services that use plastic	
packaging (e.g. food	
services)	
Provision of waste	
management and/or water	
management services	
Provision of financial	
products and/or services for	
plastics-related activities	
Other activities not specified	

[Fixed row]

Requested	Comment (column 2) (optional)
content	You may provide any further details useful to CDP data users, including contextual
	information on your organization's plastics-related activities.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	Р
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (Except FS)

Metrics for plastic polymers

(10.3) Provide the total weight of plastic polymers sold and indicate the raw material content.

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to column "Activity applies" for the
dependencies	row "Production/commercialization of plastic polymers (including plastic converters)" of 10.2.
Change from last	Modified question (2023 W10.6)
year	
Rationale	Organizations monitoring the types and amounts of raw materials they use to produce plastic polymers are better able to understand their plastics-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities, and thus take action to increase the circularity of plastics sold.
Ambition	Organizations monitor the raw materials they use to produce their plastic polymers, and work towards reducing the use of virgin fossil-based content.
Connection to other	EMF Global Commitment
frameworks	SDG Goal 12: Responsible consumption and production
	TNFD Metrics and Targets B
	ESRS 2

	ESRS E2
Response options	Please complete the following table:

1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Total weight of Raw ma	aterial	% virgin	% virgin	% pre-	% post-	Please explain
plastic content	t	fossil-based	renewable	consumer	consumer	
polymers sold percent	tages	content	content	recycled	recycled	
during the availab	le to report			content	content	
reporting year						
(Metric tons)						
Numerical field Select a	all that	Percentage	Percentage	Percentage	Percentage	Text field
[enter a number apply:		field [enter a	field [enter a	field [enter a	field [enter a	[maximum
from 0- •	% virgin	number from 0-	number from 0-	number from 0-	number from 0-	1,000
999,999,999,999	fossil-	100 using a	100 using a	100 using a	100 using a	characters]
using a	based	maximum of 2	maximum of 2	maximum of 2	maximum of 2	
maximum of 2	content	decimal places]	decimal places]	decimal places]	decimal places]	
decimal places]	% virgin					
	renewable					
	content					
•	% pre-					
	consumer					
	recycled					
•	% post-					
	recycled					
	content					
	None					

[Fixed row]

Requested	Total weight of plastic polymers sold during the reporting year (column 1)
content	• The value entered must be in metric tons (1 metric ton = 1,000 kg).
	CDP recognizes that this figure may be estimated rather than exact.
	Raw material content percentages available to report (column 2)
	• Select the types of content in your plastic polymers for which you are able to report the percentage they comprise of your total plastic polymers.
	• Selections in this column determine the presentation of columns 3, 4, 5, and 6.
	Please explain (column 7)
	Explain any exclusions to the data reported.
	You may provide any further details useful to CDP data users, including:
	 How the percentages were determined, e.g., by estimation or by calculating the weighted average of all plastics sold.
	 Any third-party verification of the data reported.
	 Whether any of the percentages are expected to change, and why.
	If applicable, explain why data is not collected and any plans for future data collection.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	Р
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (Except FS)

Metrics for durable goods and durable components

(10.4) Provide the total weight of plastic durable goods and durable components produced, sold and/or used, and indicate the raw material content.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to column "Activity applies" for the rows "Production/commercialization of durable plastic goods and/or components (including mixed materials)" and "Usage of durable plastic goods and/or components (including mixed materials)" of 10.2.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 W10.7)
Rationale	Organizations monitoring the amounts and contents of plastic durable goods and durable components they sell and/or use are better able to understand their plastics-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities, and increase their potential to reduce the use of virgin fossil-based content.
Ambition	 Organizations measure the weight of plastic durable goods and components sold and/or used, made wholly or partially of plastic, and work towards eliminating the use of virgin fossil-based content.
Connection to other frameworks	TNFD Metrics and Targets B
	WWF ReSource Tracker ESRS 2
	ESRS E2
	ESRS E5
Response options	Please complete the following table:
	("column/row appearance is dependent on selections in this or other questions)

0	1	2	3	4	5
Activity	Total weight	Raw material	% virgin	% virgin	% pre-
	during the	content	fossil-	renewable	consumer
	reporting year	percentages	based	content	recycled
	(Metric tons)	available to report	content		content
Durable	Numerical field	Select all that apply:	Percentage	Percentage	Percentage
goods and	[enter a number	• % virgin	field [enter	field [enter	field [enter
durable	from 0-	fossil-	a number	a number	a number
components	999,999,999,999	based	from 0-100	from 0-100	from 0-100
sold*	using a	content	using a	using a	using a
	maximum of 2		maximum	maximum	maximum
	decimal places]		of 2	of 2	of 2

	•	% virgin renewable content	decimal places]	decimal places]	decimal places]
	•	% pre- consumer recycled content			
	•	% post- consumer recycled content None			
Durable goods and durable components used*					

Table continued ...

6	7
% post-	Please explain
consumer	
recycled	
content	
Percentage field	Text field
[enter a number	[maximum 1,000
from 0-100	characters]
using a	
maximum of 2	
decimal places]	

[Fixed row]

Requested content	General
	• The rows "Durable goods and durable components sold" and "Durable goods and durable components used" are presented based on selections in 10.2.
	 If you select "Yes" to the row "Production/commercialization of durable plastic goods and/or components (including mixed materials)" in 10.2, you will be presented with Row 1 "Durable goods and durable components sold".
	 If you select "Yes" to the row "Usage of durable plastic goods and/or components (including mixed materials)" in 10.2, you will be presented with Row 2 "Durable goods and durable components used".
	 For durable goods/components made from mixed materials, only report those which are primarily plastic (corresponding to 50% of weight).
	Total weight during the reporting year (Metric tons) (column 1)

• The value entered must be in metric tons (1 metric ton = 1,000 kg).
 For mixed materials, only report the total weight of the plastic element of the durable goods and durable components. For example, if a durable good weighs 200g and contains half plastic by weight, only include the 100g of plastic in your reported figure.
• CDP recognizes that this figure may be estimated rather than exact.
Raw material content percentages available to report (column 2)
• Select the types of content in your plastic durable goods and durable components for which you're able to report the percentage they comprise of your total plastic durable goods/components.
• Selections in this column determine the presentation of columns 3, 4, 5 and 6.
Please explain (column 7)
Explain any exclusions to the data reported.
 You may provide any further details useful to CDP data users, including:
 How the percentages were determined, e.g., by estimation or by calculating the weighted average of all plastic durable goods and durable components sold and/or used.
 Any third-party verification of the data reported.
 Whether any of the percentages are expected to change, and why.
 If applicable, explain why data is not collected and any plans for future data collection.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	Р
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (Except FS)

Metrics for plastic packaging

(10.5) Provide the total weight of plastic packaging sold and/or used and indicate the raw material content.

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to column "Activity applies" for the
dependencies	rows: "Production/commercialization of plastic packaging", "Production/commercialization of
	goods/products packaged in plastics", and/or "Provision/commercialization of services that use
	plastic packaging (e.g., lood services) of 10.2.
Change from last	Modified question (2023 W10.8)
year	
Rationale	Organizations monitoring the amounts and contents of plastic packaging that they use or sell are better able to understand their plastics-related dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities, and increase their potential to reduce the use of virgin fossil-based content.
Ambition	 Organizations measure the weight of plastic packaging they sell, and work towards reducing the use of virgin fossil-based content.

Connection to other frameworks	 EMF Global Commitment TNFD Metrics and Targets B
	 ESRS 2 ESRS E2
Response options	Please complete the following table: (*column/row appearance is dependent on selections in this or other questions)

0	1	2	3	4	5
Activity	Total weight	Raw material	% virgin	% virgin	% pre-
	during the	content	fossil-	renewable	consumer
	reporting year	percentages	based	content	recycled
	(Metric tons)	available to	content		content
		report			
Plastic packaging sold*	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Select all that apply: % virgin fossil- based content % virgin renewable content % pre- consumer recycled content % post- consumer recycled content % post- consumer recycled content % post- consumer recycled content % post- consumer recycled content	Percentage field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Percentage field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Percentage field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]
Plastic packaging used*					

Table continued ...

6	7
% post-	Please explain
consumer	
recycled	
content	
Percentage field	Text field
[enter a number	[maximum 1,000
from 0-100	characters]
using a	
maximum of 2	
decimal places]	

[Fixed row]	
[FIXed IOW]	

Requested	General
content	 The rows "Plastic packaging sold" and "Plastic packaging used" are presented based on selections in 10.2.
	 If you select "Yes" to the row "Production/commercialization of plastic packaging" in 10.2, you will be presented with Row 1 "Plastic packaging sold".
	 If you select "Yes" to the row "Production/commercialization of goods/products packaged in plastics" and/or "Provision/commercialization of services that use plastic packaging (e.g., food services)" in 10.2, you will be presented with Row 2 "Plastic packaging used".
	 For packaging made from mixed materials, only report packaging whose main structural element is plastic (corresponding to 50% of packaging weight).
	Total weight of plastic packaging sold/used during the reporting year (column 1)
	 The value entered must be in metric tons (1 metric ton = 1,000 kg).
	• For mixed materials, only report the total weight of the plastic element of the packaging. For example, if the packaging weighs 100g and contains half plastic by weight, only include the 50g of plastic in your reported figure.
	CDP recognizes that this figure may be estimated rather than exact.
	Raw material content percentages available to report (column 2)
	 Select the types of content in your plastic packaging for which you're able to report the percentage they comprise of your total plastic packaging.
	• Selections in this column determine the presentation of columns 3, 4, 5 and 6.
	Please explain (column 7)
	Explain any exclusions to the data reported.
	You may provide any further details useful to CDP data users, including:
	 How the percentages were determined, e.g., by estimation or by calculating the weighted average of all plastic packaging sold or used.
	 Any third-party verification of the data reported.
	 Whether any of the percentages are expected to change, and why.
	 Any additional information about the data, such as whether the plastic packaging is in compliance with any mandatory or voluntary eco-design requirements, incentives on recycled content or any payment of a virgin plastic tax.
	• If applicable, explain why data is not collected and any plans for future data collection.

Tags	
Corporate authority	Capital markets

Environmental Issue	Question level	Р
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (Except FS)

(10.5.1) Indicate the circularity potential of the plastic packaging you sold and/or used.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to column "Activity applies" for the rows: "Production/commercialization of plastic packaging", "Production/commercialization of goods/products packaged in plastics", and/or "Provision/commercialization of services that use
Change from last year	No change (2023 W10.8a)
Rationale	Companies that monitor reusability and recyclability of their plastic packaging demonstrate a commitment to increasing the share of their packaging that has circularity potential and to tackling the plastic pollution crisis.
Ambition	• Companies maximize the potential circularity of the plastic packaging they use and/or sell.
Connection to other frameworks	 EMF Global Commitment TNFD Metrics and Targets B ESRS 2 ESRS E5
Response options	Please complete the following table: (*column/row appearance is dependent on selections in this or other questions)

0	1	2	3	4	5
Activity	Percentages available to report for circularity potential	% of plastic packaging that is reusable*	% of plastic packaging that is technically recyclable*	% of plastic packaging that is recyclable in practice at scale*	Please explain
Plastic packaging sold*	Select all that apply: % reusable % technically recyclable % recyclable in practice and at scale None	Percentage field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Percentage field [enter a number from 0- 100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Percentage field [enter a number from 0- 100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Text field [maximum 1,000 characters]
Plastic packaging used*					

Requested	General
content	 The rows 'Plastic packaging sold' and 'Plastic packaging used' are presented based on selections in 10.2.
	 If you selected 'Yes' to the row 'Production / commercialization of plastic packaging' in 10.2, you will be presented with Row 1 'Plastic packaging sold'.
	 If you selected 'Yes' to the row 'Production of good/products packaged in plastics' and/or 'Provision / commercialization of services that use plastic packaging (e.g. food services)' in 10.2, you will be presented with Row 2 'Plastic packaging used'.
	 For packaging made from mixed materials, only report packaging whose main structural element is plastic (corresponding to 50% of packaging weight).
	Percentages available to report for circularity potential (column 1)
	 Select the types of circularity potential for which you're able to report the percentage of your plastic packaging that it applies to.
	• Selections in this column determine the presentation of columns 2, 3, and 4.
	% of plastic packaging that is technically recyclable / % of plastic packaging that is recyclable in practice at scale (columns 3 and 4)
	• See the 'Explanation of Terms' for what is considered 'technically recyclable' compared to 'recyclable in practice and at scale'.
	 Organizations should report the approach/tool they use to assess whether their plastic packaging is 'technically recyclable' or 'recyclable in practice and at scale' in column 5.
	 A publicly available, credible tool for distinguishing between plastic goods that are 'technically recyclable' and 'recyclable in practice and at scale' is the Ellen MacArthur Foundation's <u>Recyclability Assessment Tool</u>.
	Please explain (column 5)

 If relevant, explain how you have assessed the recyclability 'in practice and at scale' of your packaging - whether you used the Ellen MacArthur Foundation's Recyclability Assessment Tool or another tool.
 You may provide any further details useful to CDP data users, including: How the percentages were determined, e.g., weighted average of all plastics produced/used or estimated amounts.
 Any third party verification of the data reported.
• If applicable, explain why data is not collected and any plans for future data collection.

Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	Р
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All sectors (except FS)

Metrics for end-of-life management

(10.6) Provide the total weight of waste generated by the plastic you produce, commercialize, use and/or process and indicate the end-of-life management pathways.

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "End-of-life management" in column "Value chain
dependencies	stages covered in mapping" of 1.24.1.
Change from last	New question
year	
Rationale	For organizations that produce, commercialize, use, and/or process plastics, a crucial step in tackling plastics pollution is to understand their end-of-life management of plastics. This question allows organizations to indicate the amount of plastic waste that their organization generates, and how it is managed to drive progress in line with the waste hierarchy.
Ambition	Organizations maximize the percentage of waste being reused, recycled or composted.
Connection to other frameworks	GRI 306: Waste
	TNFD Metrics and Targets B
	WWF ReSource Tracker
	ESRS 2
	ESRS E5
Response options	Please complete the following table:
	(*column/row appearance is dependent on selections in this or other questions)

0	1	2	3	4	5
Activity	Total weight of waste generated	End-of-life management	% prepared for reuse	% recycling	% composting (industrial/home)

	during the reporting year (Metric tons)	pathways available to report			
Production of plastic*	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	 Select all that apply: Preparation for reuse Recycling Composting (industrial/home) Waste to Energy Incineration Landfill Mismanaged waste Leakage Other end-of-life management pathway, please specify 	Percentage field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Percentage field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Percentage field [enter a number from 0-100 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]
Commercialization of plastic*					
Usage of plastic*					
Processing of plastic waste*					

Table continued ...

6	7	8	9	10	11	12
% waste to	% incineration	% landfill	%	% leakage	% other	Please
energy			mismanaged			explain
-	-		waste	-	-	oxptain
Percentage	Percentage	Percentage field	Percentage	Percentage	Percentage	Text field
field [enter a	field [enter a	[enter a number	field [enter a	field [enter a	field [enter a	[maximum
number from 0-	number from 0-	from 0-100 using	number from 0-	number from 0-	number from 0-	1,000
100 using a	100 using a	a maximum of 2	100 using a	100 using a	100 using a	characters]
maximum of 2	maximum of 2	decimal places]	maximum of 2	maximum of 2	maximum of 2	
decimal places]	decimal places]		decimal places]	decimal places]	decimal places]	

[Fixed row]

Requested	General
content	Plastic waste is any plastic material or goods which has reached end-of-life and is no longer in use.

•	The appropriateness of a methodology for calculating the end-of-life management pathway percentages should be determined on a case-by-case basis.
•	CDP makes no judgments on the methodologies applied by companies to produce this data.
Total v	veight of waste generated during the reporting year (column 1)
•	The value entered must be in metric tons (1 metric ton = 1,000 kg).
•	CDP recognizes that this figure may be estimated rather than exact.
End-of	-life pathways percentages available to report (column 2)
• Se	lect the end-of-life pathways for which you can report the % of total weight of waste.
• Se col	lections in this column determine the presentation of columns 3 "% prepared for reuse" to lumn 11 "% other".
Please	explain (column 12)
• Ex	plain any exclusions to the data reported.
• Yo	u may provide any further details useful to CDP data users, including:
0	How the percentages were determined, e.g., by estimation or by calculating the weighted average of all plastic waste.
0	Which tool or database was used to determine the percentages, for example, <u>WWF</u> <u>ReSource Tracker, What A Waste Global Database</u> or <u>Plastic Footprint Network</u> .
0	Any third-party verification of the data reported.
0	Whether any of the percentages are expected to change, and why.
0	Any collection systems you wish to highlight which contribute to the percentages of waste going to specific end-of-life management pathways. For example, Deposit Return Systems or separate collection, and any relevant incentives or leverages.
• If a	applicable, explain why data is not collected and any plans for future data collection.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	Р
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All (except FS)

Module 11: Environmental Performance - Biodiversity

Guidance for companies reporting on Biodiversity on behalf of investors & supply chain members.

The full reporting guidance including explanation of terms is available via the portal/public guidance page.

Module overview

Module Overview	 The data disclosed in this module will help with the understanding of the interdependence between biodiversity and business resilience. Demand is increasing for biodiversity-related data that will enable financial institutions to develop investment strategies, and to engage effectively with organizations to address the loss of forests and biodiversity that is exposing them to risk throughout their value chains.
	 Disclosure on actions to preserve or improve biodiversity will help organizations to evaluate the relevancy and efficacy of their commitments and consider the biodiversity-related risks and impacts of their business practices.
	 The module includes questions on exclusions, actions on commitments related to biodiversity, biodiversity indicators, areas important for biodiversity, and land resourced and land disturbed.
Sector-specific content	• Additional questions on exclusions, resourced and disturbed land, artisanal and small-scale mining (ASM), biodiversity action plans (BAP), impacts on biodiversity, strategic business plans, biodiversity-related targets, mitigation hierarchy, additional conservation actions, closure and rehabilitation of mining projects and engagement activities for the Coal and Metals & Minning sectors.

Exclusions

11.1 Within your reporting boundary, are there any geographical areas, business units or mining projects excluded from your disclosure?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM0.10/F-CO0.10)
Rationale	CDP seeks to share comprehensive and representative biodiversity-related data. If companies need to exclude areas of their business from their disclosure, data users must be informed of the exclusions as this may affect their analysis.
Ambition	• The organization reports on all exclusions from the reporting boundary and does not have any significant exclusions from their disclosure.
Response options	Select one of the following options: • Yes • No

Requested	Contract
content	General
	• You may exclude particular geographies, business activities, and/or small projects for which it is difficult to gather data when biodiversity impacts are sufficiently small.
	 Any groups, companies, businesses or organizations falling within your organizational boundary but not included in your disclosure should be reported in 11.1.1.
	 In all cases, the following principles of relevance and transparency must apply to all disclosures (adapted from the GHG Protocol):
	 Relevance: ensure the disclosure appropriately reflects the biodiversity impacts of the organization and serves the decision-making needs of users – both internal and external to the company.
	 Transparency: address all relevant issues in a factual and coherent manner, based on a clear audit trail. Disclose any relevant assumptions and make appropriate references to the accounting and calculation methodologies and data sources used.
	References throughout the questionnaire to "your organization" include all the entities within your reporting boundary for which you are providing information. Please apply this logic consistently when responding to questions.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.1.1 Please report your exclusions and describe their potential for biodiversity-related risk.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to 11.1.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM0.10a/F-CO0.10a)
Rationale	CDP seeks to share comprehensive and representative biodiversity-related data. Data users need to be informed of exclusions that may affect their analysis.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You are able to add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4
Exclusion	Description of exclusion	Potential for biodiversity-related risk	Please explain
Select from: • Country/area • Business units • Mining projects • Other, please specify	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]	Select from: • No potential • Potential for biodiversity-related risks but not evaluated • Potential for biodiversity-related risks evaluated, but not disclosing to CDP • Don't know	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]

[Add row]

Requested	General			
content	 Any exclusions of your business can be highlighted here and duly explained. 			
	•			
	Exclusion (column 1)			
	• Select the category that best describes the part of your business that is being excluded from your disclosure.			
	Description of exclusion (column 2)			
	• Clearly outline these exclusions, including details such as the exact geographical location, activity, and/or name of the business unit, mining project, or facility.			
	•			
	Potential for biodiversity-related risk (column 3)			
	 Potential for biodiversity-related risk refers to any operation that may directly or indirectly impact biodiversity. Please indicate whether you have evaluated 			

whether there is potential for such a risk for the excluded location, activity, project, etc. and whether there is potential risk present or not.
 Please explain (column 4) Use this column to explain your exclusions and their (potential) linkage to biodiversity and provide an indication of the percentage of revenue that these represent.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

Actions on biodiversity-related commitments

11.2 What actions has your organization taken in the reporting year to progress your biodiversity-related commitments?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 C15.5)
Rationale	This question enables organisations to demonstrate how they are achieving their vision and ambition for biodiversity through addressing the issues they have identified and committed to addressing. Your response to this question aligns with requirements of "Stage 2: Ambitions" in IUCN's <u>Guidelines for planning and</u> <u>monitoring corporate biodiversity performance</u> , which recommends that companies develop and deliver biodiversity goals and objectives.
Connection to other frameworks	 ESRS 2 ESRS E4
Response options	Please complete the following table: *column/row appearance is dependent on selections in this or other questions.

	1	2
Ac pro rel	tions taken in the reporting period to ogress your biodiversity- ated commitments	Type of action taken to progress biodiversity- related commitments
	Select from:	Select all that apply:
•	Yes, we are taking actions to progress our biodiversity-related commitments	Land/water protectionLand/water managementSpecies management

•	No, we are not taking any actions to progress our biodiversity- related commitments No, we are not taking any actions to progress our biodiversity- related commitments, but we plan to within the next two years	•	Education & awareness Law & policy Livelihood, economic & other incentives Other, please specify	
•	No, and we do not plan to undertake any biodiversity-related actions			

Requested	General			
content	 Select the options that best describe the actions your organization is taking to progress your biodiversity-related commitments. 			
	 Type of actions taken to progress biodiversity-related commitments (column 2) This column is presented only if "Yes, we are taking actions to progress biodiversity-related commitments" is selected in column 1 "Actions taken in the reporting period". Ensure that the options you select are consistent with and relevant to commitments selected in column "Environmental policy content" of question 4.6.1 "Provide details of your environmental policies", for any "Biodiversity" rows that were added. Select: Land/Water protection: for actions taken to identify, establish or expand parks and other legally protected areas. For example, expanding national parks or identifying and establishing a nature reserve. 			
	 Land/Water Management: for actions directed at conserving or restoring sites, habitats and the wider environment e.g. controlling poacher activity within protected areas. 			
	 Species management: for actions directed at managing or restoring species, focused on the species itself. E.g. setting harvest quotas or selective culling to manage population size within a protected area. 			
	 Education and Awareness: for actions directed at people to improve understanding and skills, and influence behavior. E.g. engaging with park managers to exchange knowledge on species identification or raising environmental awareness through company social media. 			
	 Law and Policy: for actions to develop, change, influence and help implement formal legislation, regulations, and voluntary standards. This could include the promotion of conventions on biodiversity. 			
	 Livelihood, Economic and other incentives: for actions to use economic and other incentives to influence behavior such as the use of certification, or positive incentives. 			
Additional information	 For guidelines on setting company ambitions on biodiversity performance, see IUCN's <u>Guideline for planning and monitoring corporate biodiversity</u> <u>performance</u>. 			
	 For further information on different conservation actions, see IUCN's <u>Conservation Actions Classification Scheme (Version 2.0)</u>. 			

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All sectors (except FS)

Biodiversity indicator

11.3 Does your organization use biodiversity indicators to monitor performance across its activities?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 C15.6)
Rationale	Robust indicators are critical for a corporate-level assessment of biodiversity impact, by allowing the aggregation of data from different activities and geographies. This question allows an organization to demonstrate its use of indicators to track progress against its biodiversity goals and objectives and evaluate the success of its intervention/s. Your response to this question aligns with requirements of "Stage 3: Indicators" in IUCN's <u>Guidelines for planning and monitoring corporate biodiversity performance</u> , which recommends that companies collect, share and analyse biodiversity data that encourages learning and improvement.
Connection to other frameworks	 ESRS 2 ESRS E4
Response options	Please complete the following table:

Does your organization use indicators to monitor biodiversity performance?	Indicators used to monitor biodiversity performance	
 Select from: Yes, we use indicators No, we do not use indicators, but plan to within the next two years No 	 Select all that apply: State and benefit indicators Pressure indicators Response indicators Other, please specify 	

Requested content	Indicators used to monitor biodiversity performance (column 2) Select:		
	0	: State and Benefit indicators: for state indicators focusing on improving habitats and species and benefit indicators that monito ecosystem services goals. Pressure indicators: for pressure indicators that are effective for tracking objectives. For example, a focus of a company objective loss of habitats could have the indicator 'habitat cover change' w data collected on trends in habitat cover loss.	

	 Response indicators: for response indicators that are informed by the company strategy. For example, to establish the coverage of protected areas.
Additional information	 For information on using indicators to assess biodiversity performance across company activities, see IUCN's <u>Guideline for planning and monitoring corporate biodiversity performance</u>. For indicator(s) to be useful in a business application, they will need to take into consideration an understanding of the natural system, and an idea of how the system will respond to management (i.e., the indicator will provide a signal that can be attributed to a business). Biodiversity indicators help us measure and monitor a) pressures or threats, such as trends in land and water use, habitat loss or invasive species, b) the state of species and ecosystems, such as the health of species or integrity of ecosystems, c) the conservation response, such as the protection of important biodiversity areas, and/or d) benefits to people, such as the ecosystem services that freshwater provides. Fine scale indicators may be developed to inform local decisions on the ground, such as determining the degree to which restoration or management practices are working. Broad scale indicators that aggregate information may be developed to report on the benefits of national environmental policy and conservation investments (IUCN, 2021). Note: Organizations do not need to develop new indicators. There are several existing indicators used by conservationists. Examples of good biodiversity indicators include those developed for monitoring Aichi targets and the SDGs. Existing indicators can be reviewed and appropriate ones selected.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All sectors (except FS)

Areas important for biodiversity

11.4 Does your organization have activities located in or near to areas important for biodiversity in the reporting year?

Question details	
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 C15.4, C15.4a, F-MM9.3/F-CO9.3)
Rationale	Awareness of the proximity of your organization's activities to areas important for biodiversity demonstrates an understanding of the relationship between the two. This awareness allows organizations to mitigate the potential negative effects of their activities on areas important for biodiversity.
Ambition	Organizations have accessed their activities and are aware of any that are located in or near to areas important for biodiversity.
Connection to other	ESRS 2
frameworks	ESRS E4
Response options	Please complete the following table:

0	1	2
0	I	Ζ
Type of area important for biodiversity	Indicate whether any of your organization's activities are located in or near to this type of area important for biodiversity	Comment
Legally protected areas	Select from:	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]
	• Yes	
	 Yes (partial assessment) 	
	• No	
	 Not assessed 	
	Data not available	
UNESCO World Heritage sites		
UNESCO Man and the Biosphere Reserves		
Ramsar sites		
Key Biodiversity Areas		
Other areas important for biodiversity		

Requested	General
content	 Activities are considered to be located within an area important for biodiversity if there is total or partial overlap of the activities and an area important for biodiversity. You will be able to indicate the extent of the overlap in 11.5.1. Activities are considered to be located near an area important for biodiversity if the area is within the site/operation's area of influence i.e., the area within which the activities may directly and/or indirectly cause impacts. For some sectors, such as metals and mining, it is possible for impacts to be felt as far as 70km away (Sonter, L.J., Herrera, D., Barrett, D.J. et al., 2017). You will be able to indicate the distance in 11.4.1.
	Indicate whether any of your activities are located in or near this type of area important for biodiversity (column 1)
	 Select "Yes (partial assessment)" if there is at least one activity in or near, but proximity has not been assessed for all your activities.

Additional	 Select "Not assessed" if proximity is not assessed by your organization. Select "Data not available" if data on proximity is not collected by your organization at the corporate level. Comment (column 2) If you selected "Not assessed" or "Yes (partial assessment)" in column 1 "Indicate whether any of your activities are located in or near this type of area important for biodiversity", you may explain the reasons why the issue has not been assessed or why the assessment was not done for all your projects. If you selected "Yes" or "No" in column 1 "Indicate whether any of your activities are located in or near this type of areativities are located in or near this type of areas important for biodiversity", you may explain the reasons why the issue has not been assessed or why the assessment was not done for all your projects. If you selected "Yes" or "No" in column 1 "Indicate whether any of your activities are located in or near this type of areas important for biodiversity", you may provide information on the methods and tools used by your organization to assess the proximity to areas important for biodiversity. If you selected "Data not available" in column 1 "Indicate whether any of your activities are located in or near this type of areas important for biodiversity", you may provide further details on the difficulties obtaining data and what data you would need to perform an assessment.
Additional information	 For spatial information and reports on areas important for biodiversity overlapped by mining concessions, refer to <u>WWF-Sight</u>. For more details on the IUCN Protected Area Categories System, refer to the relevant <u>IUCN webpage</u>. For more details on Key Biodiversity Areas (KBAs), refer to the <u>KBA homepage</u>.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Captial Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All sectors (Except FS) + M-B

11.4.1 Provide details of your organization's activities in the reporting year located in or near to areas important for biodiversity.

Question details	
Question dependencies	 This question only appears if you select "Yes" or "Yes (partial assessment)" in column 1 "Indicate whether any of your organization's activities are located in or near to this type of area important for biodiversity" for any row of 11.4
Change from last year	 Modified question (2023 C15.4a, F-MM9.3a/F-CO9.3a)
Rationale	 Awareness of the proximity of your organization's activities to areas important for biodiversity demonstrates an understanding of the relationship between the two. Information on your activities' proximity to such areas provide insights to investors and other data users on potential risks. It also facilitates better understanding of what to expect from your organization in terms of commitments and actions

	related to this issue. This awareness allows organizations to mitigate potential negative effects of their activities on areas important for biodiversity.			
Ambition	 Organizations implement mitigation measures to ensure their activities do not have negative impacts on areas important for biodiversity. 			
Connection to other frameworks	 TNFD Strategy B ESRS 2 ESRS E4 			
Response options	• Please complete the following table. You are able to add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.			

1	2	3	4	5	6
Mining project ID	Types of area important for biodiversity	Protected area category (IUCN classification)	Country/area	Name of the area important for biodiversity	Proximity
Select from: • Project 1-70	Select all that apply: Legally protected areas UNESCO World Heritage sites UNESCO Man and the Biosphere Reserves Ramsar sites Key Biodiversity Areas Other areas	Select from: Category Ia-III Category IV-VI Unknown Not applicable	Select from: [List of countries/areas]	Text field [maximum 500 characters]	Select from: Overlap Adjacent Up to 5 km Up to 10 km Up to 25 km Up to 50 km Up to 70 km Data not available

7	8	9	10	11	12
Area of overlap (hectares)	Briefly describe your organization's activities in the reporting year located in or near to the selected area	Indicate whether any of your organization's activities located in or near to the selected area could negatively affect biodiversity	Mitigation measures implemented within the selected area	Explain how your organization's activities located in or near to the selected area could negatively affect biodiversity, how this was assessed, and describe any mitigation measures implemented	Further context for mining projects
Numerical field [enter a number from 0-999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	Select from: • Yes, but mitigation measures have been implemented • Yes, and no mitigation measures have been implemented	Select all that apply: Site selection Project design Scheduling Physical controls Operational controls	Text field [maximum 3,000 characters]	Text field [maximum 1,500 characters]

	•	No	•	Abatement controls	
	•	Not assessed	•	Restoration	
			•	Biodiversity offsets	
			•	Other, please	
			specify		

Requested	General
content	 Add a row to provide information for each area important for biodiversity that your activities (i.e., sites and/or operations) are located within or near to.
	• If you have activities located in or near multiple areas important for biodiversity within a classification system listed in column 2 "Types of area important for biodiversity", add a separate row to report information for each area within that classification.
	 Protected area category (IUCN classification) (column 3) If you selected "Legally protected areas" in column 2 "Types of area important for biodiversity", specify its category based on the IUCN protected area category framework. Select "Unknown" only if you are unsure about the correct classification of the area.
	 Country/area (column 4) If the area important for biodiversity spans across more than one country/area, select the country/area within which the area falls primarily.
	 Name of the area important for biodiversity (column 5) Enter the name of the area/site, as specified in the types of area important for biodiversity selected in column 2.
	 Proximity (column 6) Select the option that best describes the distance from your organization's sites/operations to the areas important for biodiversity specified in column 5 "Name of the area important for biodiversity". Note that the specified distance in the "Up to [] km" options represent the maximum distance from the biodiversity- sensitive area that impacts may be detected. Select "Adjacent" if your organization's sites/operations are located side-by-side (i.e., share borders) with the biodiversity- sensitive area. Select "Data not available" if you are unable to determine the proximity.
	 Area of overlap (hectares) (column 7) This column is only presented if "Overlap" is selected in column 6 "Proximity". If calculating the overlap for a mining project, consider the whole mining project area and not only the existing mine footprint.
	 Briefly describe your organization's activities in the reporting year located in or near to the selected area (column 8) Provide details that contextualize the interaction between your organization's sites/operations and the area important for biodiversity. Include details of how the proximity selected in column 6 was determined.

 Indicate whether any of your organization's activities located in or near to the selected area could negatively affect biodiversity (column 9) Activities negatively affecting areas important for biodiversity refers to activities: Leading to the deterioration of natural habitats and the habitats of species, and to disturbance of the species for which the protected area has been designated; and Where mitigation measures have not been implemented accordingly. When assessing whether your activities could negatively affect biodiversity, you should consider both: The direct impacts of physical sites, power transmission corridors, pipelines, disposal areas, and associated facilities that would not have been constructed in the absence of the sites/operations; and The indirect impacts of any other activities associated with the sites/operations.
 Mitigation measures implemented within the selected area (column 10) This column is presented only if "Yes, but mitigation measures have been implemented" is selected in column 9 "Indicate whether any of your organization"s". The drop-down options are based on the mitigation hierarchy referred to in the guide prepared by The Biodiversity Consultancy to the Cross-Sector Biodiversity Initiative (CSBI, 2015): Site selection – relocation of the site or site components away from an area recognized for its high biodiversity and ecosystem services value. Project design – selection of the type of infrastructure, and its placing and mode of operation on the site. Scheduling – changes in the timing of operational activities. Physical controls – adaptation of the physical design of the infrastructure to reduce potential impacts, such as installing culverts on roads, or bird flight diverters on transmission lines. Operational controls – management and regulation of the actions of people associated with the site/operations — including staff, contractors or (where feasible) project affected people and migrants. Abatement controls – reduction of the levels of pollutants (e.g. emissions of dust, light, noise, gases, or liquids) that could have negative impacts on biodiversity and ecosystem services. Restoration – the process of assisting the recovery of an ecosystem, that has been degraded, damaged, or destroyed (SER, 2002). Biodiversity offsets – measures take nto compensate for any residual significant, adverse impacts that cannot be avoided, minimized and / or rehabilitated or restored, in order to achieve no net loss or a net gain of biodiversity. Offsets can take the form of positive management interventions such as restoration of degraded habitat, arrested degradation or averted risk, protecting areas where there is imminent or projected loss of biodiversity (BBOP, 2012).

	Explain how your organization's activities located in or poor to the selected area could
	Explain now your organization's activities located in or hear to the selected area could negatively affect biodiversity, how this was accessed, and describe any mitigation
	megatively affect blockersity, now tills was assessed, and describe any miligation
	This column is presented if anything other than "Not assessed" is
	selected in column 9 "Indicate whether any of your organization's "
	Provide further details and context regarding your selection in column
	9 Indicate whether any of your organization's activities located in or near to
	the selected area could negatively affect".
	\sim If you selected "No" indicate the types of impacts included in
	your assessment and how you reached the conclusion that none
	of your sites/operations within this area important for biodiversity
	could negatively affect biodiversity.
	 If you selected "Yes, but mitigation measures have been
	implemented", describe the mitigation measures implemented and
	how they mitigate negative direct and indirect impacts of your
	activities on biodiversity.
	 If you selected "Yes, and no mitigation measures have been
	implemented", describe the potential negative impacts of your
	activities and explain why mitigation measures have not been
	implemented.
	 Where possible, provide sector-specific details of the nature of the
	potential negative impacts and how this has informed the scope of your
	assessment and chosen mitigation measures. For example, you may wish
	to indicate if the nature of your sector activities impacts your organization's
	ability to avoid areas important for biodiversity (e.g., a utility organization
	that provides services to communities within an area important for
	blodiversity would need to consider mitigation methods that allow the
	organization to continue to provide their services).
	 There is no need to describe the impacts of your mining project on the area impactant for biodiversity in this question. You will have the
	area important for biodiversity in this question. Fou will have the
Requested	Mining project ID (column 1)
content [sector]	• Add a row for each mining project located in or near areas important
	for biodiversity
(ii applicable)	 A mining project is considered to be in an area important for
[M-B only]	biodiversity if there is total or partial overlap.
	 A mining project is considered to be near areas important for
	biodiversity if it is within the project's area of influence.
	 If a mining project is in or near more than one area important for
	biodiversity, add multiple rows for this project.
	 When referring to a specific mining project, make sure you select the
	same mining project identifier as in 1.18. For example, "Project 1" here
	should refer to the same mining project that was attributed to the "Project
	1" identifier in 1.18.
	Further content for mining mariants (achieve 40)
	Further context for mining projects (column 12)
	 Provide details that contextualize interactions between the mining project and the area important for biodiversity, if any. This may include
	project and the area important for biodiversity, if any. This may include
	other relevant information
	 Drovide details on how distance and area of overlap were calculated
	 Frovide details of now distance and area of overlap were calculated. If the area of overlap specified in column 7 is not planned to be
	used for your activities, provide further details here.
 If you selected "Not applicable" in column 3, provide an explanation on why you consider that IUCN protected area categories do not apply to this 	

specific protected area.	
 If you selected "Unknown" in column 3, explain why here 	

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All sectors (Except FS)

Land resourced and land disturbed

11.5 Can you disclose the mining project area and the area of land disturbed for each of your mining projects?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM9.2/F-CO9.2)
Rationale	Mining organizations usually own, lease or manage large tracts of land, including areas that are not disturbed by mining-related activities. While land disturbed by mining-related activities represents a useful proxy for biodiversity-related impacts, information about the total area of land involved in the project allows understanding of what this disturbance represents in relative terms. This question provides investors and other data users with insights into your responsibilities as a land manager and the challenges associated with the future rehabilitation of the land disturbed.
Response options	Please complete the following table:

1	2
Disclosing mining project area and area of land disturbed	Comment
Select from:	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]
• Yes	
Partially	
• No	

Requested	General
content	• Select "Yes" if you are disclosing mining project area and area of land disturbed for all the
	mining projects listed in 1.18

If data is only partially available, select "Partially".
• If "Yes" or "Partially" is selected, you will be asked to provide details in the following 11.5.1
• If you select "No" or "Partially", use column 2 "Comment" to provide an explanation on why

Authoring notes			
Tags			
Corporate authority	Capital Markets		
Environmental Issue	Question level	В	
(Theme)			
Sector	Question level	M-B only	

11.5.1 Provide details on the mining project area and the area of land disturbed for each of your mining projects.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" or "Partially" in response to 11.5
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM9.2a/F-CO9.2a)
Rationale	CDP is encouraging disclosure of asset-level data for land resources and land disturbed. Only project- level data provides the necessary granularity to relate the disclosed data to the environmental context within which the organization operates.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You are able to add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4	5	6
Mining project ID	Total area of owned land/lease/project area (hectares)	Total area disturbed to date (hectares)	Area disturbed in the reporting year (hectares)	Type(s) of habitat disturbed in the reporting year	Comment
Select from: • Project 1-70	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Select all that apply: • Modified habitat • Natural habitat	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]

		 Data not 	
		available	

Requested	General				
content	 This question asks for project-level data on land resources (land owned, leased or managed) and land disturbed. 				
	Add a single row for each mining project your will be disclosing data on.				
	Mining project ID (column 1)				
	• When referring to a specific mining project, please make sure you select the same mining project identifier as in 1.18. For example, "Project 1" here should refer to the same mining project that was attributed to the "Project 1" identifier in 1.18.				
	• Total area of owned land/lease/project area (hectares) (column 2)				
	 Inform the mining project area (in hectares), including the total area of land owned, leased and/or managed by your company for the specified mining project. 				
	 Use column 6 "Comment" to provide any relevant information on how the figure was calculated. If the figure provided is known to be incomplete or to have some level of imprecision, explain why this is the case. 				
	Total area disturbed to date (hectares) (column 3)				
	 Inform the total area of land disturbed by mining-related activities during its lifetime, excluding the area of land that has already been restored/rehabilitated. 				
	 Use column 6 "Comment" to provide any relevant information on how the figure was calculated. If the figure provided is known to be incomplete or to have some level of imprecision, explain why this is the case. 				
	Area disturbed in the reporting year (hectares) (column 4)				
	 Inform the total area of land disturbed by mining-related activities during the reporting year. 				
	 Use column 6 "Comment" to provide any relevant information on how the figure was calculated. If the figure provided is known to be incomplete or to have some level of imprecision, explain why this is the case. 				
	Type(s) of habitat disturbed in the reporting year (column 5)				
	 If your company does not collect this data at the corporate level, or if a different classification is used, select 'Data not available'. In this case, you can use column 6 "Comment" to provide further explanation. 				

Authoring notes

Tags			
Corporate authority	Capital Markets		
Environmental Issue	Question level	В	
(Theme)			
Sector	Question level	M-B only	

Artisanal and small-scale mining (ASM)

11.6 Are there artisanal and small-scale mining (ASM) operations active in your mining project areas or in their area of influence?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM9.4/F-CO9.4)
Rationale	It is not unusual that large-scale mining projects come across artisanal and small-scale miners within their area of influence. Artisanal and small-scale mining (ASM) provides a source of livelihood for thousands of people but might also be associated with conflicts and environmental degradation, such as tropical deforestation. This data informs investors and other data users about potential challenges and risks you may be facing.
Response options	Select one of the following options: • Yes
	No Data not available

Requested	General
content	• If artisanal and small-scale mining (ASM) operations occur in your mining project areas or in their areas of influence, select "Yes". You will be able to provide details in the following question 11.6.1 and in 11.19.
	 Select "No" if there are no ASM operations active in your mining project areas or in their areas of influence.
	 Also select "No" if ASM operations in the area of influence of your projects are small and/or occasional, with no potential to affect or be affected by your mining projects.
	 Select "Data not available" if data on ASM is not collected by your organization at the corporate level.
Additional information	• The following publications provide further guidance on the interaction between large-scale mining and artisanal and small-scale mining (ASM):
	- World Bank. 2009. <u>Mining Together: Large-Scale Mining Meets Artisanal Mining, A Guide for</u> <u>Action</u> . Washington, DC.
	- OECD (2017), <u>OECD Due Diligence Guidance for Meaningful Stakeholder Engagement in</u> the Extractive Sector, OECD Publishing, Paris.

- OECD (2016), OECD Due Diligence Guidance for Responsible Supply Chains of Minerals
from Conflict-Affected and High-Risk Areas: Third Edition, OECD Publishing, Paris.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.6.1 Provide details on artisanal and small-scale mining operations active in your mining project areas or in their area of influence. Indicate the associated challenges, if there are any.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to 11.6.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM9.4a/F-CO9.4a)
Rationale	This question gathers details on artisanal and small-scale mining operations active in your mining project areas or in their area of influence, as well as the associated challenges. It is important that this information is disclosed at asset-level, as it is unlikely that all projects face this issue.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You are able to add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4	5
Mining project ID	Where does artisanal/small- scale mining operations occur?	Legal status of artisanal and small- scale mining activity	Type of challenges	Please explain
Select from: • Project 1-70	 Select from: Inside mining project area/lease Adjacent to mining project area/lease In the area of influence of the mining project 	 Select from: Legal / formalised Illegal/informal Both, legal and illegal Data not available 	 Select all that apply: Deforestation and/or forest degradation Natural habitat conversion Pollution Poaching 	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]

Other, please specify	•	Opposition to the mining	
	•	project Human right	
	•	issues	
	•	No challenge	
		identified	
	•	Other,	
		specify	



Requested	General
content	• This question asks for project-level data on potential issues between your mining projects and artisanal and small-scale mining (ASM).
	• Add a new row for each mining project facing issues related to ASM. Add a single row for each mining project.
	 Occasional and/or insignificant ASM operations in the area of influence that have no potential to affect or to be affected by your mining projects don't need to be included.
	Mining project ID (column 1)
	• When referring to a specific mining project, please make sure you select the same mining project identifier as in 1.18. For example, "Project 1" here should refer to the same mining project that was attributed to the "Project 1" identifier in 1.18.
	Where does artisanal/small-scale mining operations occur? (column 2)
	• Select "Adjacent" if the mining project area is located side-by-side (i.e. share borders) with ASM operations. If it is sufficiently near to the ASM operations for you to be unsure whether it shares borders, also select "Adjacent".
	• If you select "Other, please specify", provide a label indicating where ASM operations occur. Further details can be provided in column 5 "Please explain".
	Type of challenges (column 4)
	 The list of options provided exemplifies types of challenges.
	• If any other challenges are being faced, select "Other, please specify" and provide a label. Further details can be provided in column 5 "Please explain".
	Please explain (column 5)
	• Provide information that contextualizes the relationship between the mining project and artisanal and small-scale mining operations. This may include historical context, details on existence/absence of conflicts, regulatory aspects and other relevant information.
	Describe the challenges specified in column 4 "Type of challenge", if any.
	• There is no need to describe engagement with ASM in your response to this question. You will have the opportunity to disclose engagement activities in response to question 11.19.1.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP)

11.7 Do you adopt biodiversity action plans to manage your impacts on biodiversity?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM10.3/F-CO10.3)
Rationale	The number of mining organizations adopting Biodiversity Action Plans (BAPs) in sites with high biodiversity risk is increasing. Developing BAPs in such cases can be seen as good practice and it might also be needed to demonstrate compliance with lender standards/requirements. BAPs complement existing environmental management systems, focusing on the organization's biodiversity management strategy. Developing BAPs for high-risk sites provides an indication to investors and other data users that the organization is tackling its biodiversity risks.
Response options	Select one of the following options:
	 res No

Requested	General		
content	 If your organization adopts a BAP as an instrument to manage biodiversity impacts and risks, select "Yes". 		
	 If your organization adopts different terminology (e.g., Biodiversity Management Plan or Ecological Management Plan) but it still fits the definition adopted by CDP for BAP, also select "Yes". 		
	• Select "No" if your organization does not adopt BAPs. This option should be selected even		
	if none of your sites are considered to face relevant biodiversity risks.		
Additional	Further information on BAPs can be found in the following publications:		
information			
	Cross-Sector Biodiversity Initiative (2015) <u>A cross-sector guide for implementing the Mitigation Hierarchy</u> .		
	• IFC (2012) Performance Standard 6 – Biodiversity Conservation and Sustainable		
	Management of Living Natural Resources.		
	IFC (2012). Guidance Note 6.		

Authoring notes	
Tags	
Corporate authority	Capital Markets

Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.7.1 Describe your criteria for defining which sites are required to produce biodiversity action plans.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to 11.7.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM10.3a/F-CO10.3a)
Rationale	As there is not a unique standard or guideline defining when Biodiversity Action Plans (BAPs) are required, organizations might adopt different criteria. This information provides clarity to investors and other data users on your criteria for when BAPs are required.
Response options	This is an open text question with a limit of 5,000 characters.
	Please note that when copying from another document to the disclosure platform, formatting is not retained.

Requested content General • Provide a description of the criteria your organization adopts to define which mining projects are required to produce BAPs. • If BAPs are only required for sites where there is a lender or regulatory requirement to c so, this should be stated here as a criterion.	do
---	----

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B (Except FS)

11.8 Provide details on mining projects that are required to produce Biodiversity Action Plans.

Question details

Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to 11.7.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM14.2/F-CO14.2)
Rationale	This question asks details about the Biodiversity Action Plans (BAPs) your organization has in place. The number of mining organizations adopting BAPs for sites with high biodiversity risk is increasing. Developing BAPs in such cases is seen as a good practice and it might also be needed to demonstrate compliance with lender standards. BAPs complement existing environmental management systems, focusing the organization's biodiversity management strategy. Developing BAPs for high-risk sites provides an indication to investors and other data users that the organization is actively dealing with biodiversity risks associated with the business.
Response options	Please complete the following table:

1	2	3	4	5
Number of mining projects required to produce a BAP	% of mining projects required to produce a BAP that have one in place	Format	Frequency BAPs are reviewed	Please explain
Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100]	 Select all that apply: Stand-alone document Part of general Environmental Management System Other, please specify 	Select all that apply: • Regularly • Eventually • Not reviewed	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]

Requested content	 General This question is only presented if you indicated in 11.7 that BAPs are adopted by your organization. This information is requested at the corporate-level, i.e., you are not requested to disclose project-level data in this question.
	Number of mining projects required to produce a BAP (column 1)

• Specify the number of mining projects required to produce a BAP according to the criteria you described in 11.7.1.
% of mining projects required to produce a BAP or projects that have one in place (column 2)
When calculating your percentage, only consider mining projects where the BAP is already under implementation.
Format (column 3)
• Indicate if your BAP is a stand-alone document or is part of your environmental management system.
• If none of the available options are suitable, select "Other, please specify" and a text box will appear for you to complete.
Frequency BAPs are reviewed (column 4)
• Select "Regularly" if there is an established timeframe for BAP review (e.g., every 3 years).
Select "Eventually" if BAPs are reviewed but there is no specified timeframe.
• If different approaches for BAP review are adopted across your projects, select all applicable options. Provide further details and examples in column 5 "Please explain".
Please explain (column 5)
• If BAPs are not under implementation in all projects where they are required, i.e. the percentage in column 2 "% of total" is less than 100%, provide an explanation on why this is the case and on your plans for developing BAPs for the remaining sites.
Describe, providing company-specific examples, how BAPs have helped your company to better manage environmental impacts and risks.
• Provide details and rationale for the frequency your organization revises their BAPs.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

Impacts on biodiversity

11.9 Have any of your projects caused, or have the potential to cause, significant adverse impact(s) on biodiversity?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM11.1/F-CO11.1)

Rationale	This question elicits information on whether your projects have caused or are expected to cause significant impacts on biodiversity. Large-scale mining projects have the potential to cause significant impacts on biodiversity, and these are not always avoidable. This information provides insights to investors and other data users on the primary challenges you face regarding biodiversity-related issues.
Response options	Please complete the following table

1 Any projects caused, or have the potential to cause, significant adverse impact(s) on biodiversity	2 Comment	
Select from:	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]	
• Yes		
• No		
Data not available		
Data available but not disclosing		

Requested content	General
	• Select "Yes" if any of your mining projects have caused, or have the potential to cause significant adverse impact(s) on biodiversity. You will be able to provide details in the following question.
	 Select "No" if none of your projects have caused, or have the potential to cause, significant adverse impact(s) on biodiversity.
	 If data on significant impacts on biodiversity is not collected by your organization at corporate level, select "Data not available".
	• If data on significant impacts on biodiversity is available but your organization is not able to disclose it, select "Data available but not disclosing". Use column 2 "Comment" to provide an explanation.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.9.1 For your disclosed mining projects, provide details of the significant adverse impacts on biodiversity, with the respective response to the impact.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select 'Yes' in response to 11.9.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM11.1a/F-CO11.1a)
Rationale	By disclosing significant biodiversity impacts you allow investors and other data users to better understand the biodiversity risks your organization faces, as well as the level of ambition of the response.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You can add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Mining project ID	Type of impact	Impact	Descripti on of the impact	Consequenc e	Likelihoo d	Describe respons e
Select from: • Proj ect 1-70	Select from: Direct Cumulati ve	 Select from: Deforestati on and/or forest degradation Conversion and/or degradation of natural habitats (other than forests) Negative impacts on legally or internationa lly recognized areas Fragmentati on of ecosystems Loss of rare and threatened species Effects on sensitive or migratory species 	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]	 Select from: Moderate Serious Extreme Catastrop hic Other, please specify 	Select from: Almos t certain Likely Possib le Unlikel y Rare	Text field [maximu m 2,400 character s]

Negative impacts on ecosystem service provision
Other, please specify

Requested	General
content	• This question asks for project-level data on the significant impacts on biodiversity, which will usually be informed by your project's environmental impact assessment (EIA).
	Add a new row for each significant impact on biodiversity being disclosed.
	Mining project ID (column 1)
	 When referring to a specific mining project, please make sure you select the same mining project identifier as in 1.18. For example, "Project 1" here should refer to the same mining project that was attributed to the "Project 1" identifier in 1.18. If multiple significant impacts on biodiversity are being disclosed for a single mining project, add one row for each significant impact and repeat the same mining project ID.
	Impact (column 3)
	• The list includes examples of impacts that can lead to significant effects on biodiversity, depending on the local context and/or project characteristics.
	 Select the option that best describes the significant impact on biodiversity you are disclosing
	 If none of the available options are suitable, please select "Other, please specify".
	 If you select "Other, please specify", provide a label for the type of impact.
	Description of the impact (column 4)
	• Provide further contextual information on the significant adverse impact on biodiversity selected in column 3 "Impact". The description is expected to be project-specific (i.e., not a generic description of the impact).
	 If you have selected 'Loss of rare and endangered species' or 'Effects on sensitive or migratory species' in column 3 "Impact", indicate which species are affected and how they are affected.
	 If you have selected 'Negative impacts on legally or internationally recognized areas', name the area and provide details on the nature of the negative effects.
	Consequence (column 5)
	• Indicate the severity of the (potential) consequences of the impact, in accordance with the description provided in column 4 "Description of the impact".
	• If needed, use the following examples as a reference for selecting the most suitable option (based on Hardner et. al., 2015):
	 Moderate: e.g., small-scale loss of natural habitat and net loss of species with a conservation status of Least Concern – LC, Near Threatened - NT or Vulnerable - VU:
	 Serious: e.g., large-scale loss of natural habitat; small-scale conversion of critical habitat; net loss of species with a conservation status of Endangered - EN; or conservation status of species changes to EN due to project impacts;

 Extreme: large-scale loss of critical habitat (with species with a conservation status of EN); small-scale loss of critical habitat (with species with a conservation status of Critically Endangered - CR); net loss in species with a conservation status of CR; or conservation status of species changes to CR due to project impacts; Catastrophic: Large-scale loss of critical habitat or conservation status of species to Extinct in the Wild - EW due to project impacts. If none of the available options are suitable or in case you use a different and non-comparable impact assessment approach, please select "Other, please specify".
 Likelihood (column 6) Indicate how likely is it that the impact will occur, in accordance with the description provided in column 4 "Description of the impact". Use the following description as a reference for selecting the most suitable option (based on Hardner et. al., 2015): Almost certain: expected to occur in project plan; Likely: probably will occur in project plan; Possible: might occur in some circumstances; Unlikely: may occur at some time; Rare: only in exceptional circumstances.
 Describe response (column 7) Use this section to provide details on how your organization has managed the impact, detailing your approach, stakeholders involved and outcomes to date.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

Strategic business plan

11.10 Are biodiversity issues integrated into any aspects of your long-term strategic business plan, and if so how?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM13.1/F-CO13.1)
Rationale	This question allows organizations to explain if and how they have considered and acted upon biodiversity-related issues at a high level. This question is not asking simply about your organization's response to biodiversity-related issues. Investors and other data users are interested in forward-looking strategic innovations and financial decisions that have been driven by market opportunities, public policy objectives, and corporate responsibility commitments related to biodiversity.

Response options	Please complete the following table:

0	1	2	3
Aspect of strategy	Are biodiversity- related issues integrated?	Long-term time horizon (years)	Please explain
Long-term business objectives	 Select from: Yes, biodiversity-related issues are integrated No, biodiversity-related issues were reviewed but not considered as strategically relevant/significant No, biodiversity-related issues not yet reviewed, but there are plans to do so in the next two years No, biodiversity-related issues were not reviewed and there are no plans to do so 	Select from: • 5-10 • 11-15 • 16-20 • 21-30 • >30	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]
Strategy for long-term objectives			
Financial planning			

Requested content	General		
	 When responding to this question, organizations should consider if, what and how biodiversity-related issues have affected the 3 aspects of their business planning at the corporate level for a time horizon beyond 5 years. Primarily, consider if the following issues have affected your long-term strategic business plan: Avoiding, reducing, restoring or compensating biodiversity impacts; 		
	 Costs of compliance to biodiversity-related regulation; Biodiversity-related land use restrictions (e.g., protected areas). 		
	• This could be in response to existing risks or future risks, but could also include other considerations, inside and outside of the organization, such as current and future market opportunities, public policy agendas, and corporate responsibility commitments.		

Are biodiversity-related issues integrated? (column 1)
• You should answer "Yes, biodiversity-related issues are integrated" if they have been included in your organization's long-term objectives, strategy to realize these objectives and its long-term financial planning.
Long-term time horizon (column 2)
 Select the option that best describes how far into the future your organization considers biodiversity-related issues in each aspect of its business strategy.
Please explain (column 3)
• Provide further details on how biodiversity-related issues are integrated into each aspect of the strategy, using company-specific examples.
• Explain why you have chosen the time horizon indicated in column 2 "Long-term time horizon".
• Specify whether these plans apply to all of your disclosed commodities or to only a selection of them. If your plans do not apply to all your commodities, please provide your reasons here.
• If you indicated in column 1 "Are biodiversity-related issues integrated" that you have plans to review biodiversity-related issues in the next two years, provide details of your plans.
• If you have not integrated these issues in any aspects of your business plans, indicate your primary reason for not doing so and provide an explanation.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

Biodiversity-related targets

11.11 Have you specified any measurable and time-bound targets related to your commitments to reduce or avoid impacts on biodiversity?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM14.1/F-CO14.1)
Rationale	This question asks about specific targets on avoiding or reducing biodiversity-related impacts and risks. Effective implementation of policies and commitments requires specific targets to be set. Ambitious targets reflect how urgent biodiversity issues are being addressed by organizations. Information disclosed about your targets provides CDP data users with a way of tracking your progress towards sustainability. Organizations also benefit from setting targets by having clear indicators of their progress towards better biodiversity stewardship.
Response options	Select one of the following options:

• Yes
• No

Requested content	 General Select "Yes" if biodiversity-related targets were active during the reporting year, including
	targets that have been reached during this period.
	• Note that these targets should be in line with your policy and commitments and refer to specific, measurable, achievable and timebound actions. For example, you may have targets for reaching 'No Net Loss' by a certain date or to increase the percentage of mines with a Biodiversity Action Plan.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.11.1 Provide details of your targets related to your commitments to reduce or avoid impacts on biodiversity, and progress made.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to 11.11.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM14.1a/F-CO14.1a)
Rationale	This question asks about specific biodiversity-related targets. Effective implementation of policies and commitments requires specific, measurable and time-bound targets to be set. Ambitious targets reflect how urgent biodiversity issues are being addressed by organizations. Information disclosed about your targets provides CDP data users with a way of tracking progress towards sustainability. Organizations also benefit from setting specific and measurable targets by having clear indicators of their progress towards better biodiversity stewardship.
Response options	Please complete the following table. The table is displayed over several rows for readability. You can add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table

1	2	3	4	5	6
Target reference number	Target label	Base year	Target year	% of target achieved	Please explain

Se	lect from:	Text field	Numerical field	Numerical field	Select from:	Text field
See	lect from: Target 1 Target 2 Target 3 Target 4 Target 5 Target 6 Target 6 Target 7 Target 8 Target 9 Target 10 Target 11 Target 12 Target 13 Target 14	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]	Numerical field [enter a number between 1900 and 2024 with no decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number between 2019 and 2100 with no decimal places]	Select from: 0% 1-10% 11-20% 21-30% 31-40% 41-50% 51-60% 61-70% 71-80% 81-90% 91-99% 100% Data not available	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]
	Torgot 11				• 01 00%	
٠	Target 10				• 81-90%	
•	Target 11				• 91-99%	
•	Target 12				• 100%	
•	Target 13				 Data not 	
•	Target 14				available	
•	Target 15					
•	Target 16					
•	Target 17					
•	Target 18					
•	Target 19					
•	Target 20					

Deguastad	Consul
Requested	
content	Prease disclose your main blodiversity-related targets that were active during the reporting
	year.
	Targets that have been achieved during the reporting year should also be disclosed.
	Target reference number (column 1)
	Please select a single unique reference number for each target.
	You can provide a maximum of 20 different targets (Target 1- Target 20).
	• Each reference number shall be used to track progress on the specific target in the following
	years.
	Target label (column 2)
	• Transcribe your target, ideally in the exact terms in which the target is presented by your
	organization in internal and/or external documents.
	• You will be asked to provide details about the target in column 6 ('Please explain').
	Base year (column 3)
	I his date is a reference point in the past for which your organization is able to provide reliable
	baseline data regarding a specific target.
	• This is not necessarily the year the commitment was established, but rather the year against
	which you will track your progress towards the target.
	Transferration (1)
	Target year (column 4)
	This date represents when you expect to achieve your target.

% of target achieved (column 5)
• Indicate how much progress your organization has made so far towards achieving the target.
Please explain (column 6)
Use this column to provide additional information on your targets, including:
 why has the target been chosen;
 how it relates to your commitments;
 how the company is planning to meet the target.
 Provide company-specific examples of the outcomes achieved so far.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

Mitigation hierarchy

11.12 Has your organization adopted avoidance and/or minimization as strategies to prevent or mitigate significant adverse impacts on biodiversity?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM14.3/F-CO14.3)
Rationale	Actions to mitigate impacts on biodiversity can be more effective and efficient if adopted at the early stages of the project. Later, mitigation measures are often more limited, costly and involve a higher degree of uncertainty about expected outcomes. Managing relevant impacts and risks by means of avoidance and minimization indicates to investor and other data users that your organization is aligned with sector best practices, as well as being more likely to prevent unforeseen risks.
Response options	Select one of the following options:
	• Yes
	• No

Requested content	General
	• In this question, your organization is asked to disclose whether you have adopted at least one of the first two steps of the mitigation hierarchy framework: avoidance and minimization.
	• Select 'Yes' if you are able to provide relevant examples of avoidance and/or minimization actions, even if your organization has not made a public commitment specifically on the mitigation hierarchy.
	• Organizations that have committed to implement the mitigation hierarchy framework in 11.10 are expected to indicate that avoidance and/or minimization have been adopted as strategies to mitigate biodiversity impacts and risks.

Additional	For more information on the mitigation hierarchy, refer to the guide prepared by The Biodiversity
information	Consultancy to the Cross-Sector Biodiversity Initiative – CSBI (<u>CSBI, 2015</u>).

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.12.1 Provide relevant company-specific examples of your implementation of avoidance and minimization actions to manage adverse impacts on biodiversity.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select 'Yes' in response to 11.12.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM14.3a/F-CO14.3a)
Rationale	This question asks for relevant examples that provide evidence that significant biodiversity-related impacts and risks were managed by adopting avoidance and/or minimization actions.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You can add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4
Mining project ID	Approach	Type of measure	Description
Select from:	Select from:	Select from:	Text field
Project 1-70	AvoidanceMinimization	Avoidance	[maximum 2,400 characters]
	Later	 Site selection 	
		 Project design 	
		 Scheduling 	
		 Other avoidance measure, please specify 	

	Minimization	
	 Physical controls Operational controls Abatement controls Other minimization measure, please specify 	

Requested	General		
content	• This question asks for relevant examples of avoidance and/or minimization measures adopted by your organization in the process of managing adverse impacts on biodiversity. It is not necessary to provide data on all instances these strategies were adopted.		
	 If you have operations in countries/areas of high-deforestation risk, it is desirable that you disclose avoidance and/or minimization examples related to deforestation and forest degradation. 		
	Mining project ID (column 1)		
	• When referring to a specific mining project, please make sure you select the same mining project identifier as in 1.18. For example, "Project 1" here should refer to the same mining project that was attributed to the 'Project 1' identifier in 1.18.		
	Type of measure (column 3)		
	 Please consider the following when selecting the most suitable option (CSBI, 2015): Avoidance through site selection: involves the relocation of the project site or components away from an area recognized for its high biodiversity and ecosystem services value. Avoidance through project design: takes place when selecting the type of infrastructure, and its placing and mode of operation on the project site. Avoidance through scheduling: is achieved through changes in the timing of project activities. Minimization through physical controls: adapting the physical design of project infrastructure to reduce potential impacts, such as installing culverts on roads, or bird flight diverters on transmission lines. Minimization through operational controls: managing and regulating the actions of people associated with the project — including staff, contractors or (where feasible) project-affected people and migrants. Minimization through abatement controls: taking steps to reduce levels of pollutants (e.g. emissions of dust, light, noise, gases or liquids) that could have negative impacts on biodiversity and ecosystem services. 		
	 Avoidance/minimization measures adopted by your organization might involve an overlap between the options listed. If that is the case, select the most relevant option and provide further details in column 4 "Description". 		
	• If you would like to add another type of measure, select "Other avoidance measure, please specify" or "Other minimization measure, please specify" and a text box will appear for you to complete.		
	Description (column 4)		

• Describe the avoidance/minimization measure adopted in the mining project, including information on how it allowed your company to avoid/minimize biodiversity-related impacts and risks.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.13 Have significant impacts on biodiversity been mitigated through restoration?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM14.4/F-CO14.4)
Rationale	Restoration of biodiversity features is an option for compensating impacts that could not be avoided or minimized. It is an important step for organizations to achieve their commitments regarding reducing their impact on biodiversity (e.g. 'No Net Loss' or 'Net Positive Impact'), and to manage regulatory and reputational risks. By indicating that you are taking action to reduce residual impacts, you provide an indication to investors and other stakeholders that your organization is adopting biodiversity management best practices.
Response options	Please complete the following table:

	1	2
Have significant impacts on biodiversity been mitigated through restoration?		Comment
Sele	ect from:	Text field [maximum 2,400
•	Yes	characters]
•	Partially	
•	No	
•	Data not available	

• You will be able to disclose restoration that occurred in other contexts in the following questions (e.g., 11.13.1 and 11.14.1).
Have significant impacts on biodiversity been mitigated through restoration? (column 1)
• Select "Yes" if restoration is regularly applied throughout your mining projects to reduce significant residual impacts on biodiversity that could not be avoided or minimized.
• If restoration occurs only in selected projects or if you only have data available on restoration for selected projects, select "Partially". In this case, you may use column 2 "Comment" to provide details on why this is the case.
• Select "Data not available" if data on biodiversity restoration is not collected by your organization at the corporate level. In this case, you may use column 2 "Comment" to provide details on why this is the case.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.13.1 Provide details on restoration actions you have in place in your sites.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" and "Partially" in response 11.13.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM14.4a/ F-CO14.4a)
Rationale	By disclosing biodiversity restoration actions, you provide evidence to investors and other data users on your actions for implementing the mitigation hierarchy framework across your mining project(s).
Response options	Please complete the following table. You can add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Mining project ID	Description of the impact being mitigated	Type of ecosystem restored	Total area restored to date (hectares)	Total area to be restored (hectares)	Target year	Describe restoration actions

	by restoration					
Select from:Project 1-70	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]	 Select from: Forest ecosystems Other ecosystems Data not available 	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number with no decimal places]	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]

Requested	General
content	• This question asks for project-level data on restoration measures implemented to mitigate significant impacts on biodiversity and reduce the residual impacts of your projects.
	• Disclose all restoration projects your organization implemented as part of the application of the mitigation hierarchy framework. Add a new row for each restoration project.
	Mining project ID (column 1)
	 When referring to a specific mining project, please make sure you select the same mining project identifier as in 1.18. For example, "Project 1" here should refer to the same mining project that was attributed to the "Project 1" identifier in 1.18.
	Description of the impact being mitigated by restoration (column 2)
	 Describe the significant impact on biodiversity your restoration actions aim at mitigating, including the methods used to assess the impact.
	• Provide an explanation on why avoidance and/or minimization have not prevented this impact.
	Total area restored to date (hectares) (column 4)
	This refers to the total area restored up to the reporting year.
	 If area is not a metric that applies to the kind project you are implementing, then input '0' (zero). Further details can be provided in column 7 "Describe restoration actions".
	Total area to be restored (hectares) (column 5)
	• This refers to the total area that will be restored when the biodiversity restoration is fully accomplished, i.e. by the target year, disclosed in column 6 "Target year".
	 If area is not a metric that applies to the kind project you are implementing, then input '0' (zero). Further details can be provided in column 7 "Describe restoration actions".
	Target year (column 6)
	• This represents the year you expect to accomplish the restoration of the area, i.e., when the natural ecosystem has recovered from disturbance and does not need human intervention anymore (see 'Additional information' for further details on attributes of restored ecosystems).

 Describe restoration actions (column 7) Describe relevant aspects of the restoration project, including: biodiversity features targeted (species, habitats and/or ecosystems), objectives, performance indicators, monitoring approach, as well as any relevant legal/regulatory aspects.
See <u>"The SER Primer on Ecological Restoration</u> " (SER, 2002), Section 3, for a description of the attributes of restored ecosystems.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

Additional conservation actions

11.14 Have significant residual impacts of your projects been compensated through biodiversity offsets?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM14.5/F-CO14.5)
Rationale	Biodiversity offsetting is a mechanism to compensate impacts on biodiversity that could not be otherwise mitigated. Offsets are usually essential to achieve "No Net Loss" or "Net Positive Impact" commitments. Financial institutions or governmental regulation might also require biodiversity offsets to be implemented by your organization. By disclosing the biodiversity offset projects, organizations demonstrate to investors and other data users that commitments are taken seriously.
Response options	Please complete the following table:

	1	2
Ha off	ive residual impacts been compensated through biodiversity sets?	Comment
Se	ect from:	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]
٠	Yes	
•	Partially	
•	No	

Data not available

Requested	General			
content	• Select "Yes" if biodiversity offsets are applied throughout your mining projects to compensate for significant residual impacts on biodiversity that could not be avoided, minimized or restored.			
	 If offsets are applied only in selected projects, select "Partially". In this case, use column 2 "Comment" to provide an explanation. 			
	• If "Yes" or "Partially" are selected, you will be asked to provide details in the following question 11.14.1.			
	• Select "Data not available" if data on biodiversity offsets is not collected by your organization at the corporate level. In this case, use column 2 ('Comment') to provide an explanation.			
Additional	The <u>Business and Biodiversity Offsets Program – BBOP</u> represents a core source of information			
information	and guidelines related to biodiversity offsets.			

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.14.1 Provide details on the biodiversity offsets you have in place.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" or "Partially" in response to 11.14.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM14.5a/F-CO14.5a)
Rationale	This question looks for evidence that your organization is adopting biodiversity offsetting.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You can add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4	5	6
Mining project ID	Description of the	Motivation	Type of offset	Area (hectares)	Describe the offset

	impact being offset				
Select from: • Project 1-70	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]	 Select from: Voluntary Lender requirements Legal requirements Other, please specify 	 Select from: Restoration offset (forests) Restoration offset (other) Averted loss offset (forests) Averted loss offset (other) Compensation agreements Other, please specify 	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]

Requested	General
content	• This question asks for project-level data on the use of biodiversity offsets to compensate for significant residual impacts on biodiversity.
	Add a new row for each biodiversity offset being disclosed.
	Mining project ID (column 1)
	• When referring to a specific mining project, please make sure you select the same mining project identifier as in 11.18. For example, "Project 1" here should refer to the same mining project that was attributed to the "Project 1" identifier in 11.18.
	Description of the impact being offset (column 2)
	• Describe the residual impact on biodiversity your offset aims at compensating, including methods used to quantify and characterize the impact.
	• Provide an explanation on why avoidance, minimization and restoration have not prevented the residual impact.
	Motivation (column 3)
	• Select the primary factor that motivated the implementation of the biodiversity offset.
	• If none of the available options are suitable, select "Other, please specify" and a text box will appear for you to add a label that describes your motivation. You'll be able provide further details on your approach in column 6 "Describe the offset".
	Type of offset (column 4)
	• See the description of each type of offset in the "Explanation of terms".
	• Note that in the case of "averted loss" and "restoration" offsets there is a breakdown by type of ecosystem, so that offsets in forest ecosystems are expected to be identified by the selection of the appropriate response option.

	• If none of the available options are suitable, select "Other, please specify" and a text box will appear for you to add a label that describes your motivation. You'll be able provide further details on your approach in column 6 "Describe the offset".
	Area (hectares) (column 5)
	 If the offset being disclosed is not area-based, input "0" (zero) in this column and make sure an explanation is provided in column 6.
	Describe the offset (column 6)
	• Describe relevant aspects of the offset design and implementation, including: scope, activities, legal/regulatory aspects, monitoring and evaluation.
Additional information	The <u>Business and Biodiversity Offsets Program – BBOP</u> represents a core source of information and guidelines related to biodiversity offsets.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.15 Is your organization implementing or supporting additional conservation actions?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM14.6/F-CO14.6)
Rationale	Some organizations have implemented Additional Conservation Actions (ACAs), which benefit biodiversity but do not aim at mitigating specific impacts. This question aims at providing a comprehensive picture of your organization's biodiversity-related actions. By implementing ACAs, your organization sends a signal to investors and other data users that it is going beyond regulatory compliance when dealing with biodiversity-related issues.
Response options	Please complete the following table

1	2
Implementing or supporting additional conservation actions?	Comment
Select from:	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]

٠	Yes	
•	No	
•	Data not available	

Requested content	 General This question is about actions that bring benefit to biodiversity but cannot be directly associated with the compensation of residual impacts caused by your projects. ACAs may or may not be linked to a mining project.
	 Implementing or supporting additional conservation actions? (column 1) Select "Yes" if you are able to provide relevant examples of ACAs implemented or supported by your organization. You will be able to provide details in the following question 11.15.1. Select "No" if your organization is not implementing or supporting ACAs. In this case, use column 2 "Comment" to provide an explanation. Select "Data not available" if data on ACAs is not collected by your organization at the corporate level. In this case, use column 2 "Comment" to provide an explanation.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.15.1 Provide details on the main ACAs you are implementing or supporting.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to 11.15.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM14.6a/F-CO14.6a)
Rationale	This question asks for evidence that your organization is supporting or implementing ACAs.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You can add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4	5

Project title	Project theme	Country/Area	Location	Primary motivation
Text field [maximum 500 characters]	 Select from: Forest conservation Protected areas Threatened species Restoration (forests) Restoration (other) Community development Other, please specify 	Select from: [List of countries/areas]	 Select from: In the area of influence of mining project Outside the area of influence of mining project 	 Select from: Voluntary Lender requirements Legal requirements Other, please specify

6	7	8	9	10
Timeframe	Start year	End year	Description of project	Description of outcome to date
Select from: • Defined • Undefined	Numerical field [enter a number with no decimal places]	Numerical field [enter a number with no decimal places]	Text field [maximum 500 characters]	Text field [maximum 500 characters]

Requested content	 General This question asks for relevant examples of ACAs supported or implemented by your organization during the reporting year. It is not necessary to provide data on all projects/actions implemented or supported. If you have operations in countries/areas of high-deforestation risk, it is desirable that you disclose examples related to deforestation and forests degradation.
	 Primary motivation (column 5) Select the primary factor that motivated the implementation of ACAs. If none of the available options are suitable, select "Other, please specify" and a text box will appear for you to add a label that describes your motivation. You'll be able provide further details on your approach in column 9 "Description of the project". <i>Timeframe (column 6)</i>

 Select "Defined" if the ACA has defined start and end dates.
 If the ACA has no established timeframe, select "Undefined" and explain why in column 9 "Description of the project".
Start year (column 7)
Indicate the year the project implementation has started.
End year (column 8)
 Indicate the year the project is planned to be terminated. If the project has already been terminated, the end year is expected to correspond to the reporting year.
Description of project (column 9)
 Describe relevant aspects of the project design and implementation, including scope, activities, legal/regulatory aspects, monitoring and evaluation.
Description of outcome to date (column 10)
• Describe relevant positive outcomes to biodiversity achieved to date, including any indicators and associated benefits to local communities.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

Closure and rehabilitation

11.16 Do your mining projects have closure plans in place?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM14.7/F-CO14.7)
Rationale	Planning for mine closure helps prevent negative legacies and allows benefits to biodiversity to be maximized. By disclosing details on your closure plans, you provide evidence to investors and other data users that the impacts and risks associated with mine closure have been taken into consideration.
Response options	Please complete the following table:

1	2
Are there closure plans in place?	Comment

Select one of the following options:		Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]
•	Yes	
•	Partially (not all projects)	
•	No	

Requested	General
content	Select "Yes" if all your active mining projects have closure plans in place.
	• If closure plans have been developed for part of your mining projects, select "Partially (not all projects)". In this case, use column 2 "Comment" to provide an explanation.
	• If "Yes" or 'Partially (not all projects)' are selected, you will be asked to provide details in the following question 11.16.1.
	Select "No" if none of your active mining projects have closure plans in place.
Additional	For details on the topic, refer to the handbook on mine closureprepared by the Leading Practice
information	Sustainable Development Program for the Mining Industry - LPSDP of the Australian Government (DIIS, 2016).

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	В
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.16.1 Please provide details on mines with closure plans.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" or "Partially (not all projects)" in response to 11.16.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM14.7a/F-CO14.7a)
Rationale	This question asks details about mine closure plans your organization has in place. This provides insights to investors and other data users on whether you are working towards the reduction of potential environmental liabilities of your mining project.
Response options	Please complete the following table:

1	2	3	4	5

% of mines with closure plans	% of closure plans that take biodiversity aspects into consideration	Is there a financial provision for mine closure expenditure?	Frequency closure plans are reviewed	Please explain
Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-100]	 Select from: Yes, for all mines Yes, for some mines No 	 Select all that apply: Regularly (all projects) Regularly (some projects) Occasionally (all projects) Occasionally (all projects) Occasionally (some projects) Not reviewed (all projects) Not reviewed (some projects) 	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]

Requested	General
content	• Data requested in this question provides an overview of your organization's approach towards closure plans. You are not requested to provide project-level data in this question.
	% of mines with closure plans (column 1)
	 Specify the percentage of mining projects with closure plans in place, considering all projects disclosed in 1.18 (except those you indicated to be in the "Exploration" stage).
	% of closure plans that take biodiversity aspects into consideration (column 2)
	 Indicate the percentage of closure plans that took biodiversity-related issues into consideration.
	Frequency closure plans are reviewed (column 4)
	 Select all options that apply. If more than one option is selected (i.e., different approach is adopted for different mining projects), provide an explanation on why this is the case in column 5 "Please explain".
	 Select "Regularly (all projects)" if all your projects follow a pre-defined timeframe for closure plan review (e.g., tri-annual).
	 Select "Regularly (some projects)" if part of your projects follows a pre-defined timeframe for closure plan review.
	 Select "Occasionally (all projects)" if all closure plans are reviewed during the project's lifecycle, but there is no pre-defined timeframe.
	 Select "Occasionally (some projects)" if part of your closure plans is reviewed at some point of the project's lifecycle, but there is no pre-defined timeframe.
	• Select "Not reviewed (all projects)" if all your closure plans are static documents (i.e. there are no plans for reviewing them during the project's lifecycle)
	• Select "Not reviewed (some projects)" if part of your closure plans is static documents (i.e. there are no plans for reviewing them during the project's lifecycle)

	Please explain (column 5)
	• Provide one or more company-specific examples of how biodiversity-related issues were taken into consideration in your closure plans.
	 Explain your approach to calculating your liabilities and demonstrate that there will be enough resources to cover the costs associated with the mine closure.
	 If part of your mines has no financial provision for covering mine closure expenditures, indicate the percentage of mines and explain any plans to avoid future negative legacies.
Additional	For details on the topic, refer to the handbook on mine closure prepared by the Leading Practice
information	Sustainable Development Program for the Mining Industry - LPSDP of the Australian Government (DIIS, 2016).

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.17 Can you disclose the area rehabilitated (in total and in the reporting year) for each of your mining projects?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM14.8/F-CO14.8)
Rationale	Rehabilitation is a relevant environmental performance indicator in the case of mining projects. Well-planned and managed rehabilitation might reduce and/or avoid negative legacies, high compliance costs and regulatory risks.
Response options	Please complete the following table:

1	2
Disclosing area rehabilitated (in total and in the reporting year)	Comment
Select from:	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]
• Yes	
Partially	
• No	

Requested	General		
content	• Please note that rehabilitation here is different from restoration; Rehabilitation aims to reinstate land productivity and ecosystem functionality, but it might assume a different land-use and species composition from the original ecosystem. The new ecosystem may be simpler in structure than the original but more productive, such as when a woodland is replaced with a plantation or grazing land or vice versa. (see "Explanation of Terms").		
	Disclosing area rehabilitated (in total and in the reporting year)? (column 1)		
	• Select "Yes" if you can disclose the total area rehabilitated for your mining projects that are either in "Production" or "Closure and/or legacy site" stages, as specified in 1.18.		
	Select "Partially" if data is only partially available.		
	• If "Yes" or 'Partially' is selected, you will be asked to provide details in 11.17.1.		
	Comment (column 2)		
	• If you selected "No" or "Partially", use this column to provide an explanation on why you are not disclosing complete data on rehabilitation (e.g., data not collected at the corporate level).		
Additional	Refer to the brochure prepared by the Minerals Council of Australia (MCA, 2018) for a summary		
information	on mine rehabilitation, with relevant examples.		
	For details on the topic, refer to the handbook on mine rehabilitation prepared by the Leading Practice Sustainable Development Program for the Mining Industry – LPSDP of the Australian Government (DIIS, 2016).		

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.17.1 Provide details on the area rehabilitated (total/reporting year) for each of your mining projects, including post-mining land use.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select 'Yes' or 'Partially' in response to 11.17.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM14.8a/F-CO14.8a)
Rationale	CDP encourages disclosure of project-level data on rehabilitation. Only project-level data allows a robust assessment of the environmental context within which the organization operates. Information disclosed here will allow investors and other data users to understand your

	approach to rehabilitation throughout your mining projects and regions your organization operates.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You can add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4
Mining project ID	Total area rehabilitated	Area rehabilitated in the reporting year	Describe post-mining
	(hectares)	(hectares)	
Select from:	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-	Numerical field [enter a number from 0-	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]
• Project 1-70	999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	

Requested	General
content	This question asks for project-level data on mine rehabilitation.
	• Note that this question is about rehabilitation of areas disturbed by mining-related activities. Rehabilitation might aim at ecosystem restoration, but it is a broader concept that will encompass different forms of sustainable post-mine land uses (see "Explanation of Terms").
	Mining project ID (column 1)
	• Add one row for each mining project for which you are able to disclose data on rehabilitation. You are only expected to include the mining projects that are in "Production" or "Closure and/or legacy site" stages, as specified in 1.18.
	• When referring to a specific mining project, please make sure you select the same mining project identifier as in 1.18. For example, "Project 1" here should refer to the same mining project that was attributed to the "Project 1" identifier in 1.18.
	Total area rehabilitated (hectares) (column 2)
	• Indicate the total area of land rehabilitated to date (since the year the project started).
	Area rehabilitated in the reporting year (hectares) (column 3)
	Indicate the area of land rehabilitated during the reporting year only.
	Describe post-mining land use (column 4)
	• Describe the planned use of the rehabilitated areas in the context of each mining project.
	• If an area breakdown is not available for different land uses (e.g. agriculture and biodiversity conservation), provide a qualitative description of the potential future uses of the rehabilitated areas.
	• If data on post-mining land use is not collected at the corporate level, use this column to provide this information.
Additional information	• Refer to the brochure prepared by the Minerals Council of Australia (MCA, 2018) for a summary on mine rehabilitation, with relevant examples.
------------------------	--
	 For details on the topic, refer to the handbook on mine rehabilitation prepared by the Leading Practice Sustainable Development Program for the Mining Industry LPSDP of the Australian Government (DIIS, 2016).

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

Engagement

11.18 Do you collaborate or engage in partnerships with non-governmental organizations to promote the implementation of your biodiversity-related goals and commitments?

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM15.3/F-CO15.3)
Rationale	This question asks information on whether your organization is partnering with non- governmental organizations (NGOs) to pursue your biodiversity goals and commitments. Involvement in such partnerships provides evidence to investors and other data users that your organization is undertaking a collaborative approach to ensure best practices around biodiversity-related issues. Organizations usually benefit from shared knowledge from NGOs regarding biodiversity-related issues.
Response options	Please complete the following table:

	1	2
Collaborating or partnering with NGOs		Comment
Se	lect from:	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]
•	Yes	
•	No, but plan to get involved in the next 2 years	
٠	No	

Requested content	 General Note that this question is only about collaborations and/or partnerships that are focused on biodiversity-related issues. Collaborations and partnerships with NGOs on other topics are not covered by this question.
	covered by this question.

	Collaborating or partnering with NGOs (column 1)
	• Select "Yes" if you collaborate or engage in partnerships with NGOs to promote the implementation of your biodiversity-related goals and commitments. You will be asked to provide relevant examples in 11.18.1.
	 If your organization does not collaborate or engage in partnerships with NGOs, but has concrete plans to do so in the next 2 years, select "No, but plan to get involved in the next 2 years". You can provide a description of your plans in column 2 "Comment".
	• If your organization does not collaborate or engage in partnership with NGOs, select "No". You can provide details in column 2 "Comment".

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.18.1 Provide details on main collaborations and/or partnerships with nongovernmental organizations that were active during the reporting year.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to 11.18.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM15.3a/F-CO15.3a)
Rationale	This question asks details of the main partnerships with non-governmental organizations (NGOs) your organization had in place during the reporting period. Strong and long-term partnerships with environmental NGOs provide evidence to investors and other data users that your organization is really committed to managing biodiversity-related risks.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You can add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1	2	3	4	5	6
Organization	Scope of collaboration	Mining project ID	Areas of collaborations	Describe the nature of the collaboration	Duration (until)

[maximum 500 characters]	 Company- wide Specific mining projects 	 Select all that apply: Project 1-70 	 Select all that apply: Deforestation and /or forest degradation Biodiversity Action Plans Protected areas Endangered species Offsets Restoration Landscape- scale assessments Other, please specify 	[maximum 2,400 characters]	 Select from: 2018-2020 2021-2025 2026-2030 >2030 No specified timeframe
--------------------------------	---	--	---	----------------------------------	---

PP 01	rowl
Auu	1000

Requested	General
content	• Note that this question is only about collaborations and/or partnerships that are focused on biodiversity-related issues. Collaborations and partnerships with NGOs on other topics are not covered by this question.
	• Provide relevant examples of collaborations and/or partnerships that involve one or more of your mining projects that were active during the reporting year. Note that you are not requested to provide the complete list of collaborations and/or partnerships with NGOs.
	• You should prioritize the disclosure of collaborations/partnerships with the greatest positive impact on biodiversity and widest geographical coverage. For example, if a global organization only mentions collaborations and partnerships related to its operations in one country, this is not considered to be an appropriate geographical coverage.
	• If you have operations in countries/areas of high-deforestation risk, it is desirable that you disclose examples related to deforestation and forest degradation, if available.
	Organization (column 1)
	• Provide the name of the NGO you are formally collaborating or partnering with.
	Scope of collaboration (column 2)
	• Indicate whether the collaboration/partnership is focused on specific mining projects "Specific mining projects" or if it involves your organization as a whole ("Company-wide").
	If you select "Specific mining projects", please indicate in column 3 "Mining project ID" which mining projects are included.
	Mining project ID (column 3)
	• Select one or more mining projects that fall within the scope of the collaboration/partnership.

 When referring to a specific mining project, please make sure you select the same mining project identifier as in 1.18. For example, "Project 1" here should refer to the same mining project that was attributed to the "Project 1" identifier in 1.18.
Areas of collaborations (column 4)
Select one or more areas of collaboration, as appropriate.
 If none of the available options are suitable, please select "Other, please specify" and provide a label that describes the topic covered by your collaboration/partnership.
Describe the nature of the collaboration (column 5)
 Describe the nature of your collaboration/partnership, including: details on specific projects/activities in the area(s) of collaboration indicated in column 4 "Areas of collaboration", obtained or expected benefits to your organization, obtained benefits to biodiversity (outcomes to date) and other relevant aspects.
Duration (until) (column 6)
 If the collaboration/partnership has no established timeframe, select "No specified timeframe" and explain why this is the case in column 5 "Describe the nature of the collaboration".

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.19 Do you engage with artisanal and small-scale miners operating within your mining project areas or in their area of influence?

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to 11.6.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM15.4/F-CO15.4)
Rationale	This question asks about actions your organization is undertaking to manage risks associated with artisanal and small-scale miners within your mining project areas or in the area of influence of your mining projects. Developing effective ways of engaging with artisanal and small-scale mining (ASM) helps your mining projects to keep their social license to operate, e.g., by preventing conflicts or contributing to reducing environmental harm. This will provide insights to investors and other data users on your risk management approach for ASM.

Response options	Select one of the following options:
	• Yes
	• No

nization engages with artisanal and small-scale miners operating in its		
nization engages with artisanal and small-scale miners operating in its		
n their areas of influence. You will be able to provide details in		
ization does not engage with artisanal and small-scale miners opect areas or in their areas of influence.		
The following publications provide further guidance on the interaction between large-scale mining		
and artisanal and small-scale mining (ASM):		
ng Together: Large-Scale Mining Meets Artisanal Mining, A Guide for 2.		
Que Diligence Guidance for Meaningful Stakeholder Engagement in DECD Publishing, Paris.		
ue Diligence Guidance for Responsible Supply Chains of Minerals		
nd High-Risk Areas: Third Edition, OECD Publishing, Paris.		
Authoring notes		
В		
M-B only		

11.19.1 Describe your engagement approach to artisanal and small-scale mining (ASM) during the reporting year.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select 'Yes' in response to 11.19.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM15.4a/F-CO15.4a)
Rationale	This question asks details on the main engagement activities with artisanal and small-scale miners your organization had in place during the reporting period.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You can add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table

1	2	3
Mining project ID	Forms of engagement	Please explain
Select all that apply:Project 1-70	 Select from: Regularisation of ASM Establishment of alternative livelihood programs Resettlement of ASM miners Employment of ASM miners as workers Other, please specify 	Text field [maximum 2,400 characters]

Requested	General
content	• Note that this question is not asking you to provide an extensive list of engagement activities your organization carried out during the reporting year. CDP is looking for activities of greater positive impact on biodiversity and reasonable geographical coverage.
	Add a new row for each example being disclosed.
	 If you have operations in countries/areas of high-deforestation risk, it is desirable that you disclose examples related to deforestation and/or forest degradation, if available.
	Mining project ID (column 1)
	• When referring to a specific mining project, please make sure you select the same mining project identifier as in 1.18. For example, "Project 1" here should refer to the same mining project that was attributed to the "Project 1" identifier in .18.
	• If similar forms of engagement occur in more than one mining project, select all that apply.
	Forms of engagement (column 2)
	• Select the option that best represents your engagement with artisanal and small-scale miners.
	• If any other form of engagement is adopted, select "Other, please specify" and provide a label. Provide further details in column 3 "Please explain".
	Please explain (column 3)
	• Provide a description specific to the organization of your engagement with artisanal and small- scale miners, including numbers of engaged miners (if available) and examples of positive outcomes to biodiversity, to the company and to artisanal and small-scale miners.
	• Describe any challenges and barriers you faced in engaging with ASM in the reporting period.
Additional information	The following publications provide further guidance on the interaction between large-scale mining and artisanal and small-scale mining (ASM):
	World Bank. 2009. <u>Mining Together: Large-Scale Mining Meets Artisanal Mining, A Guide for</u> <u>Action</u> . Washington, DC.
	OECD (2017), <u>OECD Due Diligence Guidance for Meaningful Stakeholder Engagement in the</u> <u>Extractive Sector</u> , OECD Publishing, Paris.

OECD (2016), OECD Due Diligence Guidance for Responsible Supply Chains of Minerals
from Conflict-Affected and High-Risk Areas: Third Edition, OECD Publishing, Paris.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.20 Do you engage with other stakeholders to further the implementation of your policies concerning biodiversity?

Question details	
Change from last	No change (2023 F-MM15.5/F-CO15.5)
year	
Rationale	Mining organizations and their projects might impact, benefit or maintain relationships with diverse stakeholders. This question gathers information on relevant biodiversity-related engagement initiatives that were not already disclosed in previous questions. Examples provided here will further contribute to the understanding, by investors and other data users, of how broadly and proactively your organization engages with external stakeholders on biodiversity-related issues.
Response options	Select of the following options:
	• Yes
	• No

Requested content	General
	• This question refers to any other engagement your organization has about biodiversity-related issues, apart from the ones covered by previous questions in this module. This might include, e.g., engagement with indigenous peoples, governments or local communities.
	• Select "Yes" if you can provide relevant examples of engagement with other stakeholders in the context of your biodiversity policy. You will be able to provide details in 11.20.1.
	• Select "No" if there are no or you are not able to provide relevant examples of engagement with other stakeholders.
Explanation of terms	Stakeholder: persons or groups who are or could be directly or indirectly affected by a project or activity (<u>OECD, 2017</u>).
Additional	For additional information on stakeholder engagement in the context of the extractive sector, see:
information	OECD (2017), <u>OECD Due Diligence Guidance for Meaningful Stakeholder Engagement in</u> <u>the Extractive Sector</u> , OECD Publishing, Paris.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

11.20.1 Provide relevant examples of other biodiversity-related engagement activities that happened during the reporting year.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in response to 11.20.
Change from last year	No change (2023 F-MM15.5a/F-CO15.5a)
Rationale	This question asks for details on other biodiversity-related engagement not covered by the previous questions that happened during the reporting year.
Response options	Please complete the following table. You can add rows by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.

1		2	3	
Activities		Mining project ID	Please explain	
Se	lect from:	Select all that apply:	Text field [maximum 2,400	
 Participating in landscape-scale planning processes 		Project 1-70	characters	
Engaging with local communities				
•	Engaging with indigenous peoples			
•	Funding research organizations			
•	Participating in government-led initiatives			
•	Other, please specify			

[Add row]

Requested content	 General Note that this question is not asking you to provide an extensive list of engagement activities your organization carried out during the reporting year.
	• You should provide examples of engagement that resulted in a substantive positive impact on biodiversity and of a wide geographical coverage. For example, if a global company only mentions engagement activities related to its operation in Canada, this is not considered to be an adequate geographical representation.

	If you have operations in countries/areas of high-deforestation risk, it is desirable that you disclose examples related to deforestation and/or forest degradation, if available.
	Activities (column 1)
	• This list of activities is exemplificative. Select the option that best represents your engagement with other stakeholders.
	• If any other activities are carried out, select "Other, please specify". Provide further details in column 3 "Please explain".
	Mining project ID (column 2)
	• When referring to a specific mining project, please make sure you select the same mining project identifier as in 1.18. For example, "Project 1" here should refer to the same mining project that was attributed to the "Project 1" identifier in 1.18.
	• If similar engagement activities occur in more than one mining project, select all that apply.
	Please explain (column 3)
	• Provide details on your organization's motivation for developing the specified engagement activity and why it is relevant in the context of the selected mining projects.
	Describe the nature of the engagement activity and stakeholders involved, including relevant quantified outcomes to biodiversity and/or ecosystem service provision.
Additional	For additional information on stakeholder engagement in the context of the extractive sector, see:
information	OECD (2017), <u>OECD Due Diligence Guidance for Meaningful Stakeholder Engagement in</u> <u>the Extractive Sector</u> , OECD Publishing, Paris.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	В
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	M-B only

Module 12.: Environmental Performance- Financial Services

Guidance for companies reporting on Financial Services on behalf of investors & supply chain members

The full reporting guidance including explanation of terms is available via the portal/public guidance page.

Module 12: Environmental Performance - Financial Services

Guidance for companies reporting on Financial Services on behalf of investors & supply chain members.

The full reporting guidance including explanation of terms is available via the portal/public guidance page.

Module overview

Module Overview	Financial institutions' impact on nature, and their exposure to environmental-related risks, come almost entirely from the activities they finance and/or insure in the wider economy. They are therefore requested to report information related to the environment only if they lend to, invest in, or insure sectors of the economy with a critical impact or dependency on nature. Organizations should respond to this module in the context of these financing/insurance underwriting activities.
Sector-specific content	Financial services

Environmental impact of portfolio and emissions breakdown (FS only)

(12.1) Does your organization measure the impact of your portfolio on the environment?

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in column 1 "Activity undertaken" in any row in
dependencies	1.10.
Change from last	Modified question (2023 C-FS14.1, FW-FS5.1)
year	New question for Forests, Water and Biodiversity
Rationale	Most of financial institutions' impact on the environment occurs in their portfolios, within the financial products and services they provide and/or in their investments that enable activities which have impact on the environment. Organizations in this sector should measure their portfolio impact using specific metrics to understand the impact their financial activities have on the environment and manage it properly. This question informs investors and other data users about the extent to which organizations understand their portfolios' environmental impact.
Ambition	 Financial institutions understand and manage the impact they have on the environment through measuring the impact each of their portfolios has on the different environmental themes.
Connection to other	TCFD Metrics and Targets B
frameworks	NZAM Commitment 2

0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Portfolio	We	Disclosure	Primary reason	Explain why	We	Primary reason	Explain why
	measure	metric	for not measuring	your	measure	for not measuring	your
	the		portfolio impact	organization	the	portfolio impact	organization
	impact of		on climate	does not	impact of	on forests	does not
	our			measure its	our		measure its
	portfolio			portfolio	portfolio		portfolio
	on the			impact on	on		impact on
	climate			climate	forests		forests
Banking	Select	Select all that	Select from:	Text field	Select	Select from:	Text field
(Bank)	from:	apply:	 Lack of 	[maximum	from:	 Lack of 	[maximum
	Yes	Financed	internal	2,500	Yes	internal	2,500
	• No,	emissions	resources,	characters]	• No,	resources,	characters]
	but	Other	capabilities, or		but	capabilities, or	
	we	carbon	expertise		we	expertise	
	plan	footprinting	(e.g., due to		plan	(e.g., due to	
	to do	and/or	organization		to do	organization	
	so in	exposure	size)		so in	SIZE)	
	the	metrics (as	 INO standardinad 		the	• INO	
	next	defined by	standardized		next	standardized	
	two	TCFD)	procedure Not on		two	procedure Not on	
	years	• Otner,	 INULATI immediate 		years	 Not all immediate 	
	• NO,	please	stratogio		• NO,	stratogio	
	anu	specily	priority		anu	priority	
	do		 Lack of tools 		do	 Lack of tools 	
	not				not		
	plan		methodologies		plan	methodologies	
	to do		available		to do	available	

@cdp | www.cdp.net @cdp | www.cdp.net

so in the next two years• Judged to be unimportant or not relevant • Other, please specify	so in the next• Judged to be unimportant or not relevanttwo years• Other, please specify
--	--

8	9	9 10 11		12	13
We measure the impact of our portfolio on water	Primary reason for not measuring portfolio impact on water	Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on water	We measure the impact of our portfolio on biodiversity	Primary reason for not measuring portfolio impact on biodiversity	Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on biodiversity
 Select from: Yes No, but we plan to do so in the next two years No, and we do not plan to do so in the next two years 	 Select from: Lack of internal resources, capabilities, or expertise (e.g., due to organization size) No standardized procedure Not an immediate strategic priority Lack of tools or methodologies available Judged to be unimportant or not relevant Other, please specify 	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	 Select from: Yes No, but we plan to do so in the next two years No, and we do not plan to do so in the next two years 	 Select from: Lack of internal resources, capabilities, or expertise (e.g., due to organization size) No standardized procedure Not an immediate strategic priority Lack of tools or methodologies available Judged to be unimportant or not relevant Other, please specify 	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]

Requested	General
content	 This question is seeking to understand whether your organization evaluates its portfolio impact or financed emissions. Portfolio impact can be expressed in a number of metrics.
	 For details on methodologies to calculate carbon footprinting and exposure metrics please consult the <u>CDP Technical Note on Portfolio Impact Metrics for Financial Services Sector</u> <u>Companies.</u>
	You should complete all rows in this table.
	We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate (column 1)

 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts the climate via the activities you ler to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and disclose the portfolio emissions or other metrics, as listed above. <i>Disclosure metric (column 2)</i> This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". Indicate which metrics you use to measure the impact of your portfolio on the climate. <i>Primary reason for not measuring portfolio impact on climate (column 3)</i> This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". <i>Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on climate (column 4)</i> This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". <i>Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact the climate.</i> Include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. <i>We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests (column 5)</i> The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asseer your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts the forests via the activities you len to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and the metrics used. <i>Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impacts</i> the forests. Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts the forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the	
 Disclosure metric (column 2) This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". Indicate which metrics you use to measure the impact of your portfolio on the climate. Primary reason for not measuring portfolio impact on climate (column 3) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on climate (column 4) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on climate (column 4) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on to conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the climate. Include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests (column 5) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asset your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts the forests (column 7) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfoli impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on water (column 6) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you ha	• Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts the climate via the activities you lend to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and disclose the portfolio emissions or other metrics, as listed above.
 This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". Indicate which metrics you use to measure the impact of your portfolio on the climate. <i>Primary reason for not measuring portfolio impact on climate (column 3)</i> This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". <i>Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on climate (column 4)</i> This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on to conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the climate. Include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. <i>We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests (column 5)</i> The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts the forests via the activities you lent to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and th metrics used. Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you or not conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impact she forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure the impact of our portfolio on forests". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you or not conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests. You should al	Disclosure metric (column 2)
 Indicate which metrics you use to measure the impact of your portfolio on the climate. <i>Primary reason for not measuring portfolio impact on climate (column 3)</i> This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". <i>Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on climate (column 4)</i> This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you of not conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the climate. Include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. <i>We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests (column 5)</i> The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to assee your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impact on forests (column 7) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impact on does not measure its portfolio impact on forests. Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on forests (column 7) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on to conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impacts the impact of our portfolio on orests". You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your	 This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate".
 Primary reason for not measuring portfolio impact on climate (column 3) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on climate (column 4) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you or not conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the climate. Include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests (column 5) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts the forests (column 7) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impact of does not measure its portfolio impact on forests (column 7) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impact of our portfolio no is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you or not conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on water (column 8) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your por	Indicate which metrics you use to measure the impact of your portfolio on the climate.
 This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impaor of our portfolio on the climate". <i>Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on climate (column 4)</i> This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impaor of our portfolio on the climate". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you or not conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the climate. Include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. <i>We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests (column 5)</i> The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impact on forests (column 7) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impact of one specific to the organization and provides details as to why you or not conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests (column 7) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you or not conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact on forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impacts in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on mater (column 8) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have repor	Primary reason for not measuring portfolio impact on climate (column 3)
 Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on climate (column 4) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on to conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the climate. Include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests (column 5) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to assee your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts the forests via the activities you len to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and the metrics used. Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on forests (column 7) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on to conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfoli impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on water (column 8) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to assee your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 	 This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate".
 This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on to conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the climate. Include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests (column 5) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to assee your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts the forests via the activities you len to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and th metrics used. Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on forests (column 7) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impact of our portfolio to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests. Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on to conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfoli impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on water (column 8) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to assee your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to assee your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Ye	Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on climate (column 4)
 Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on to conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the climate. Include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests (column 5) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts the forests via the activities you len to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and th metrics used. Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on forests (column 7) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on to conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfoli impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on water (column 8) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts water via the activities you lend to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and the investion 2.2.4 	• This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate".
 Include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests (column 5) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts the forests via the activities you len to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and th metrics used. Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on forests (column 7) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on to conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfoli impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on water (column 8) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 	• Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you do not conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the climate.
 We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests (column 5) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts the forests via the activities you len to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and th metrics used. <i>Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on forests (column 7)</i> This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on to conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfoli impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on water (column 8) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 	 Include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using.
 The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts the forests via the activities you len to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and the metrics used. <i>Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on forests (column 7)</i> This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you not conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfol impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on water (column 8) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts water via the activities you lend to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and the 	We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests (column 5)
 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts the forests via the activities you len to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and th metrics used. <i>Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on forests (column 7)</i> This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on to conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfoli impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. <i>We measure the impact of our portfolio on water (column 8)</i> The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts water via the activities you lend to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and the 	• The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to assess your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4
 Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on forests (column 7) This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on to conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfoli impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on water (column 8) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts water via the activities you lend to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and the 	 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts the forests via the activities you lend to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and the metrics used.
 This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impart of our portfolio on forests". Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on not conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on water (column 8) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts water via the activities you lend to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and the 	Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on forests (column 7)
 Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on not conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests. You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. <i>We measure the impact of our portfolio on water (column 8)</i> The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts water via the activities you lend to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and the 	• This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 5 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests".
 You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfol impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using. We measure the impact of our portfolio on water (column 8) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts water via the activities you lend to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and the 	• Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you do not conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests.
 We measure the impact of our portfolio on water (column 8) The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts water via the activities you lend to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and the 	 You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using.
 The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to asses your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts water via the activities you lend to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and the 	We measure the impact of our portfolio on water (column 8)
Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts water via the activities you lend to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and the	 The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to assess your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4
metrics used.	 Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts water via the activities you lend to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you should provide more details and the metrics used.
Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on water (column 10)	Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on water (column 10)
This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 8 "We measure our portfolio's the impact of our portfolio on water".	 This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 8 "We measure our portfolio's the impact of our portfolio on water".
Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you on to conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests.	Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you do not conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts the forests.

 You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using.
We measure the impact of our portfolio on biodiversity (column 11)
• The "Yes" dropdown option will only appear if you have reported having a process to assess your dependencies and impacts in column 1 "Process in place covering this portfolio" in question 2.2.4
• Select "Yes" if you measure how your portfolio impacts biodiversity via the activities you lend to, invest in and/or insure. In subsequent questions you may provide more details and the metrics used.
Explain why your organization does not measure its portfolio impact on biodiversity (column 13)
 This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 11 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on biodiversity".
• Ensure your explanation is specific to the organization and provides details as to why you do not conduct analysis to understand how your portfolio impacts biodiversity.
• You should also include details on whether you are exploring ways to measure your portfolio impact in the future and what metrics you are looking at using.

Authoring notes			
Tags			
Corporate authority	Capital markets		
Environmental Issue	Question level	CC,F,W,B	
(Theme)			
Sector	Question level	FS Only	

(12.1.1) Provide details of your organization's financed emissions in the reporting year and in the base year.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in column 1 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate" and "Financed emissions" in column 2 "Disclosure metric" of 12.1.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 C-FS14.1a)
Rationale	 GHG emissions accounting is one of the primary metrics organizations in the financial sector can use to understand how their portfolio impacts the climate. In addition to highlighting risks and opportunities, portfolio emissions disclosure is a pre-requisite for financial institutions to measure improvements in the climate performance of their portfolios, and measure progress towards the net zero commitments that are increasingly being made. IMPORTANT NOTE: This question asks you to disclose your financed emissions (also known as Scope 3 Category 15 "Investments" total absolute emissions). For organizations in the financial sector, Scope 3
	Category 15 "Investments" total absolute emissions has been pulled out of question 7.8 as the majority of emissions occur in the investment chain, in relation to financial products and services and/or investments. Portfolio emissions (or Scope 3 Category 15 "Investments" total absolute emissions as defined by the GHG Protocol) is the most relevant category to financial services organizations.

	In this question, organizations in the financial sector are only requested to disclose their Scope 3 Category 15 "Investments" total absolute emissions, Categories 1-14 and if applicable other upstream or downstream scope 3 emissions should be disclosed in 7.8.
Ambition	 Financial institutions monitor and manage climate-related risks by measuring and disclosing the emissions associated with their financing, also known as "financed emissions".
	• Financial institutions disclose the methodology used to calculate the financed emissions, including the method of allocation the organization uses to attribute its share of emissions in relation to the value of its total assets as well as the total amount of assets/gross exposure included in the financed emissions disclosure and any exclusions from the calculation.
Connection to other	TCFD Metrics and Targets B
frameworks	NZAM Commitment 2
	IFRS S2 29
Response options	Please complete the following table:

0	1	2	3	4	5
Portfolio	Asset classes covered in the calculation	Financed emissions (metric unit tons CO2e) in the reporting year	% of portfolio covered in relation to total portfolio value	Total value of assets included in the financed emissions calculation [Auto-calculated]	% of financed emissions calculated using data obtained from clients/investees (optional)
Banking (Bank)	 Select all that apply: Loans Project finance Bonds Equity investments Undrawn loan commitments Fixed income Cash equivalents/money market instruments Real estate Commodities Other, please specify 	Numeric field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 3 decimal places and no commas]	Percentage field [enter a percentage from 0-100 3dp]	Auto-calculated from: Column 3 * 1.10 column 4 for each portfolio	Percentage field [enter a percentage from 0-100 3dp]

6	7	8	9	10	11
Emissions calculation methodology	Weighted data quality score (for PCAF-	Financed emissions (metric unit tons CO2e) in	Base year end	% of undrawn Ioan commitments	Please explain the details of and
	aligned data quality scores only)	the base year		included in the financed emissions calculation	assumptions used in your calculation

ſ	Sele	ct from:	Numeric field	Numeric field	Use the	Percentage	Text field
	•	The Global	[enter a number	[enter a number	calendar button	field [enter a	[maximum
	•	GHG	from 1-5]	from 0-	or enter dates	percentage	2,500
		Accounting		999,999,999,999	manually in the	from 0-100 3dp]	characters]
		and		using a maximum	format		
		Standard		of 3 decimal	DD/MM/YYYY		
		for the		places and no			
		Financial		commasj			
		(PCAF)					
	•	GHG					
		Protocol: A					
		Corporate					
		Accounting					
		Reporting					
		Standard					
	٠	Other,					
		please					
		specify					

Requested	General
content	• Metrics other than absolute emissions (in tCO2e) should not be reported in this question, and should be reported in 12.1.3.
	• For example, weighted average carbon intensities (WACI) should be reported in 12.1.3.
	Portfolio (column 0)
	The options which appear are driven by the activities you selected in 1.10.You are requested to complete all rows in this table.
	Financed emissions (metric unit tons CO2e) in the reporting year (column 2)
	 Use gross figures for reporting absolute emissions, not net figures. For funded amounts, gross exposure shall be calculated as the funded carrying amounts (before subtracting the loss allowance, when applicable), whether prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards or other GAAP.
	• Enter the emissions in metric unit tons CO2e, entering numbers only up to 99,999,999,999 without commas and up to three decimal places.
	 Negative numbers are not allowed as reporting needs to be gross, not net figures. Emission figures should be for the reporting year only.
	• Entering 0 implies that you have measured and calculated emissions from this source and they are equal to zero.
	% of portfolio covered in relation to total portfolio value (column 3)
	• Enter the percentage of portfolio value that has been covered by the financed emissions calculation to the portfolio value based on the assets value reported in 1.10.
	Total value of assets included in the financed emissions calculation (column 4)
	• The value will be auto calculated based on the percentage provided in column 2 "Financed emissions (metric unit tons CO2e) in the reporting year" and the portfolio value based on assets value reported for the corresponding portfolio in question 1.10.

% of financed emissions calculated using data obtained from clients/investees (optional) (column
 Such data obtained from value chain partners (clients or investees) may take the form of primary activity data or emissions data calculated by value chain partners. More information on this can be found in Chapter 7, Collecting Data, of the GHG Protocol's Corporate Value Chain (Scope 3) Accounting and Reporting Standard.
Weighted data quality score (for PCAF-aligned data quality scores only) (column 7)
• If you are using the Partnership for Carbon Accounting Financials (PCAF) quality score for your data, enter the relevant score (from 1 to 5)
 A score of 1 reflects the best quality data and means that the investee company has performed an emissions calculation that has been verified by a third-party auditor. A score of 5 is the lowest and estimates the emissions of the investee company based on sector and region averages or benchmarks.
Financed emissions (metric unit tons CO2e) in the base year (column 8)
• The base year is the year against which you are comparing your financed emissions.
The base year cannot be after the reporting year.
• Enter the emissions in metric unit tons CO2e, entering numbers only up to 99,999,999,999 without commas and up to three decimal places.
 Negative numbers are not allowed as reporting needs to be gross, not net figures. Emission figures should be for the reporting year only.
 Entering 0 implies that you have measured and calculated emissions from this source and they are equal to zero.
Base year end (column 9)
The base year is the year against which you are comparing your financed emissions
 The base year cannot be after the reporting year
 The start date of the base year will automatically be assumed to be exactly 365 days before the listed end date. For example, if you enter an end date of 31/12/2023, the start date of the base year will automatically be assumed to be 01/01/2023.
% of undrawn loan commitments included in the financed emissions calculation. (column 10)
 Disclose separately the percentage of undrawn loan commitments included in the financed emissions calculation.
For portfolios that don't have any undrawn loan commitments enter 0 as a response.
Please explain the details of and assumptions used in your calculation (column 11)
Include the following information:
• The method of allocation the entity used to attribute its share of
emissions in relation to the size of its gross exposure;
 The portfolios and/or asset classes that have been excluded from the calculation and the reasons for excluding them;
 If a portfolio or an asset class is not fully covered in the calculation, explain the exclusion and the reasons for not covering 100% of it;
 The scopes considered when measuring emissions associated with assets in your portfolio;
 The sources of data if primary data was used in calculating portfolio emissions;

 The approach taken to modelling or estimating emissions when primary data was not used; and
 Any assumptions used in the calculation.
See the <u>CDP Technical Note: Portfolio Impact Metrics for Financial Services Sector Companies</u> for further information. for further information.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	CC only
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	FS Only

(12.1.2) Disclose or restate your financed emissions for previous years.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select any response other than "Not providing past emissions data for Scope 3" in column 6 "Number of past reporting years you will be providing Scope 3 emissions data for" of 1.4, and "Financed emissions" in column 2 "Disclosure metric" in any row of 12.1.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 C-FS14.1c)
Rationale	A prerequisite for a meaningful emissions data comparison is a consistent dataset over time. This question enables organizations to restate portfolio emissions data previously supplied to CDP, for example to ensure that their historical data reflects their current organizational boundary. It also allows first-time responders to provide portfolio emissions data for the five years prior to the reporting year.
Ambition	Financial services companies disclose portfolio emissions from previous years to enable tracking over time and to reflect changes that would otherwise compromise the consistency and relevance of the reported portfolio emissions information.
Connection to other frameworks	NZAM Commitment 2
Response options	Please complete the following table:

0	1	2	3	4	5	6
Year	End Date	Financed	% of	% calculated	Emissions	Please
		emissions	portfolio	using data	calculation	explain the
		(metric unit	covered in	obtained from	methodology	details of
		tons CO2e) in	relation to	clients/investees		and
		the reporting	total			assumptions
		year	portfolio			used in your
			value			calculation
Past year	[DD/MM/YYYY]	Numeric field	Percentage	Percentage field	Select from:	Text field
1 for		[enter a number	field [enter	[enter a	The Global	[maximum
Banking		from 0-	а	percentage from	GHG	2,500
(Bank)		999,999,999,999	percentage	0-100]	Accounting	characters]
[Only		using a	from 0-100]		and	
appears if		maximum of 3			Reporting	
"1 year" is					for the	

selected in	decimal places	Financial
column 6	and no commas]	Industry
"Select the		(PCAF)
number of		• GHG
past		Protocol: A
reporting		
years you		and
will be		Reporting
providing		Other
Scope 3		please
emissions		specify
data for" of		
1.4 AND		
"Financed		
emissions"		
of row		
"Banking		
(Bank)" in		
column 2		
"Disclosure		
metric" of		
12.1]		

Requested	General
content	 Rows appear depending on your selection in column 6 "Select the number of past reporting years you will be providing Scope 3 emissions data for" of 1.4 and in columns 2 "Disclosure metric" of 12.1.
	 Entering zero suggests that you have measured your emissions and that they are equal to zero.
	 Ensure that the reporting period represents only one full year that has already passed. Reporting periods should not be in the future. This information is important for others to understand the time dimension of your disclosure.
	Note for first time responders:
	 If you are a first-time responder, please provide your portfolio emissions data for the five years prior to the current reporting year.
	 Input portfolio emissions data for the year prior to the current reporting year in the first row and work backwards.
	Note for restatements:
	 If you have chosen to restate your organization's gross global scope 3 emissions data previously supplied to CDP by adding additional reporting years to 1.4, you may restate your Scope 3 Category 15 "Investments" emissions, or portfolio emissions, here.
	 Reporting recalculated figures for these years is optional.
	 Restated portfolio emissions data needs to be entered in reverse order i.e. you should work backwards from the most recent reporting year.
	End date (column 1)
	• The start date of each past year will be automatically assumed to be exactly 365 days before the listed date. For example, if you enter an end date of 31/12/2023, your start date will be automatically assumed to be 01/01/2023.

Financed emissions (metric un	it tons CO2e) in the reporting year (column 2)
Enter the emissions in meta without commas and up to	ric unit tons CO2e, entering numbers only up to 999,999,999,999 three decimal places.
 Negative numbers are not a figures should be for the re 	allowed as reporting needs to be gross, not net figures. Emission porting year only.
• Entering 0 implies that you they are equal to zero.	have measured and calculated emissions from this source and
% of portfolio covered in relatic	on to total portfolio value (column 3)
Enter the percentage of po total portfolio value based of	rtfolio value included in the financed emissions calculation to the on assets value reported in 1.10.
% calculated using data obtain	ed from clients/investees (column 4)
• This column is optional.	
 Such data obtained from va primary activity data or emi on this can be found in Cha <u>Chain (Scope 3) Accountin</u> 	alue chain partners (clients or investees) may take the form of issions data calculated by value chain partners. More information apter 7, Collecting Data, of the GHG Protocol's <u>Corporate Value</u> g and Reporting Standard.
Emissions calculation methods	logy (column 5)
 If you have used a methodo <u>Standard for the Financial</u> methodology used. 	ology other than the " <u>The Global GHG Accounting and Reporting</u> Industry", select "Other, please specify" to provide the
Please explain the details of ar	nd assumptions used in your calculation (column 6)
Include the following inform	nation:
0	The method of allocation the entity used to attribute its share of emissions in relation to the size of its gross exposure;
0	The portfolios and/or asset classes that have been excluded from the calculation and the reasons for excluding them;
0	If a portfolio or an asset class is not fully covered in the calculation, explain the exclusion and the reasons for not covering 100% of it;
0	The scopes considered when measuring emissions associated with assets in your portfolio;
0	The sources of data if primary data was used in calculating portfolio emissions;
0	The approach taken to modelling or estimating emissions when primary data was not used; and
0	Any assumptions used in the calculation.
• See the <u>CDP Technical No</u>	te: Portfolio Impact Metrics for Financial Services Sector
Companies for further infor	mation.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	CC Only
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	FS Only

(12.1.3) Provide details of the other metrics used to track the impact of your portfolio on the environment.

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in column "We measure the impact of our portfolio on the climate." and "Other carbon footprinting and/or exposure metrics (as defined by TCFD)" or "Other, please specify" in column 2 "Disclosure metric" of 12.1. It also appears if you select "Yes" in column 5 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on forests" or column 8 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on water " or column 11 "We measure the impact of our portfolio on biodiversity" in 12.1.
Change from last	Modified question (2023 C-FS14.1b)
year	New question for Forests and Water
Rationale	This question acknowledges that in addition to GHG emissions accounting, there are a number of other metrics organizations in the financial sector can use to understand how their portfolio impacts the environment. Metrics for measuring portfolio impact on forests, water and biodiversity are in their infancy, so this question allows financial institutions to explain how they assess the impact of their portfolio on the environment. This question allows you to express the impact of your portfolio on the environment using other metrics identified by the TCFD or other leading environmental frameworks and standards.
Ambition	Financial services companies measure and disclose the impact of their portfolios on the environment.
Connection to other	TNFD Metrics & targets B
frameworks	TCFD Metrics and Targets B

1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Environmental issue	Portfolio	Portfolio metric	Metric value in the reporting year	% of portfolio covered in relation to total portfolio value	Total value of assets included in the calculation	% of emissions calculated using data obtained from clients/investees
Climate change	Select from: Banking (Bank) Investing (Asset manager) Investing (Asset owner) Insurance underwriting (Insurance company)	Select from: <u>Climate</u> • Weighted average carbon intensity (tCO ₂ e/Million revenue) [CC only] • Portfolio carbon footprint (tCO ₂ e/Million invested) [CC only] • Carbon intensity (tCO ₂ e/Million revenue) [CC only] • Carbon intensity (tCO ₂ e/Million revenue) [CC only] • Avoided emissions financed	Numeric field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 3 decimal places and no commas]	Percentage field [enter a percentage from 0- 100]	Numeric field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places]	Percentage field [enter a percentage from 0-100]

			1		
		(tCO ₂ e) [CC			
		only]			
	•	Carbon			
		removals			
		financed			
		oniyj			
	•	Insurance-			
		associated			
		emissions			
		(tCO2e)			
	•	Facilitated			
		emissions			
		(tCO ₂ e) [CC			
		only]			
	•	Energy			
		consumption			
		(GWb/Million			
		ievenue or			
		investee			
		company) [CC			
		only]			
	•	Other metric for			
		impact on climate			
		change please			
		change piease			
		specify [CC only]			
	-	1 -			
	For	ests			
	•	Share of			
		investments in			
		companies that			
		engage in			
		activities that			
		cause land			
		dogradation			
		desentincation			
		or soil sealing			
		[F]			
	•	Share of			
		investments in			
		companies			
		without a policy			
		to address			
		deforestation			
		(I.E. a IIO-			
		uelorestation			
		policy) [F]			
	•	Share of			
		investments in			
		companies			
		without a no-			
		conversion of			
		notural			
		natural			
		policy [F]			
	•	Share of			
		investments in			
		companies with			
		100%			
		deforestation-			
		free (DF) status			
		[F]			
		L' J Chara af			
	•	Snare of			
		investments in			

	companies with 100% deforestation- and conversion- free (DCF) status [F] • Share of investments in companies that engage in integrated, multi- stakeholder landscape/ watershed/ river basin/		
	jurisdictional initiatives to promote shared sustainability goals [F] • Share of investments in companies that engage in ecosystem		
	 restoration [F] Share of investments in companies with sites/operations located in or near to biodiversity- sensitive areas or legally protected areas where activities of those investee companies 		
	 negatively affect those areas (percentage) [F] Other metric for impact on forests, please specify [F] <u>Water</u> Weighted 		
	average emissions to water (tonnes of emissions to water generated by investee companies/ Million invested) [W] • Other metric for impact on water		
	please specify [W] <u>Biodiversity</u>		

	•	Share of				
		invoctmonts in				
		investments in				
		investee				
		companies with				
		companies with				
		sites/operations				
		located in or near				
		iocated in of fiear				
		to biodiversity-				
		sonsitivo aroas				
		or legally				
		protected areas				
		where activities				
		of those investee				
		companies				
		negatively affect				
		these eress				
		linose areas				
		(percentage) [B]				
	•	Share of				
		investments in				
		invente e				
		IIIVESIEE	1			1
		companies				1
		whose				1
		WIIU3C	1			1
		operations	1			1
		affect				1
						1
		threatened				
		species (B)				
	٠	Share of				
		investments in				
		investments in				
		investee				
		companies				
		without a				
		biodiversity				
		protection				
		policy covering				
		an arotional				
		operational				
		sites owned,				
		loogod				
		leaseu,				
		managed in, or				
		adjacent to a				
		aujacent to, a				
		protected area				
		or an area of				
		bigh				
		nign				
		biodiversity				1
			1			1
		value outside				1
		protected areas	1			1
		(B)				1
		L	1			1
	•	Financed				1
		absolute	1			1
						1
		ploalversity	1			1
		footprint				1
		$(M \otimes A / l m \otimes A / l m \otimes A)$	1			1
		(MSA/km2/year)				
		[B]	1			1
	-	Financed				
	•	Financed				
		absolute				1
		hindiversity	1			1
		biouiversity				1
		footprint	1			1
		(PDF/km2/vear)				1
			1			1
		[B]	1			1
		Biodiversity	1			1
	- -	Diouiversity				1
		intensity per	1			1
		unit of capital				1
			1			1
		empioyea (MSA	1			1
		per million of				1
		capital	1			1
		capital				1
		employed) [B]				1
	•			•	•	

 Biodiversity intensity per unit of capital employed (PDF per million of capital employed) [B] 		
Other metric for impact on biodiversity, please specify [B]		

[Fixed row; add Row]

Requested	Portfolio (column 2)
content	 You are requested to complete all rows in this table, adding a row for each portfolio (column 2) for which you measure the impact to the corresponding environmental issue, as reported in 12.1. Weighted average carbon intensities (WACI) should be reported here. The options presented in the table are driven by your response to question 12.1.
	Portfolio metric (column 3)
	 Select the environmental footprinting and/or exposure metric(s) and the corresponding metric unit that you use to track and report of your portfolio on the environment, as defined in the TCFD Supplemental Guidance for the Financial Sector, the Global GHG Accounting and Reporting Standard, the TNFD Financial institutions metrics supplement and others. Option "Insurance-associated emissions" only appears if "Insurance underwriting (Insurance company)" is selected in column 2 "Portfolio". Any of the "Share of investments in" metric options only appears if "Investing (Asset manager)" or "Investing (Asset owner)" is selected in column 2 "Portfolio". Enter the share as a percentage in column 4 "Metric value in the reporting year". If you use any alternative portfolio impact metric not included in the options, select "Other, please specify" and give the metric a label. If you select "Other, please explain the details and assumptions used in your assessment ". % of portfolio covered in relation to total portfolio value (column 5) Enter the percentage of portfolio value covered in the calculation to the portfolio value based on assets value as reported in 1.10 Total value of assets included in the financed emissions calculation, based on the percentage provided in column 5 "% of portfolio covered in relation to total portfolio covered in relation to total portfolio relation, based on the percentage provided in column 5 "% of portfolio covered in relation to total portfolio covered in relation to total portfolio covered in relation to total portfolio relation, based on the percentage provided in column 5 "% of portfolio covered in relation to total portfolio value in the corresponding portfolio in question 1.10. Enter the total value of assets value reported for the corresponding portfolio in question 1.10. Enter the value of assets value reported for the corresponding portfolio in question 1.10.
	% of emissions calculated using data obtained from clients/investees (column 7)

 Such data obtained from value chain partners (clients or investees) may take the form of primary activity data or emissions data calculated by value chain partners. More information on this can be found in Chapter 7, Collecting Data, of the GHG Protocol's <u>Corporate Value Chain (Scope 3) Accounting and Reporting Standard</u>.
Please explain the details and key assumptions used in your assessment (column 8)
• Your response should include a short description of the types and sources of data used to measure the impact of your portfolio on the environment (e.g. activity data, emission factors or GWP values), a short description of the methodologies, assumptions and allocation methods used to make the calculations, and any further details for the metric you have used.
 For details on methodologies to calculate carbon footprinting and exposure metrics please consult <u>TCFD's Supplemental Guidance for the Financial Sector</u> and/or the <u>Global GHG</u> <u>Accounting and Reporting Standard</u>. Explain why the metric was chosen and how the coverage has been determined and whether you consider it to be substantive to your organization. If you wish to provide any additional context to your calculation, including any exclusions within your portfolio, you can also do that in this column.

Authoring notes					
Tags	Tags				
Corporate authority	Capital markets				
Environmental Issue	Question level	CC, F, W, B			
(Theme)					
Sector	Question level	FS Only			

(12.2) Are you able to provide a breakdown of your organization's financed emissions and other portfolio carbon footprinting metrics?

Question details				
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in column 1 "We measure the impact of our			
dependencies	portfolio on the	e climate." of any row in 12.1.		
Change from last	Modified quest	tion (2023 C-FS14.2)		
year				
Rationale	By breaking do scope, this dat development o legislation.	own emissions and other carbon footprin a can be made available to data users a of portfolio footprinting methodologies, gl	nting metrics by asset class, industry, and and other stakeholders to help guide the lobal decarbonization efforts, and regional	
Ambition	Finance Scope	ancial institutions disclose absolute gross financed emissions, disaggregated by ope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions.		
	• Financial institutions report gross exposure to each industry by asset class, expressed in the presentation currency of the entity's financial statements.			
0		1	2	

Portfolio	Portfolio breakdown	Please explain why you do not provide a breakdown of your portfolio impact on the climate
Banking (Bank)	Select all that apply:	[Text field, 2,500 characters]
	Yes, by asset class	
	Yes, by industry	
	Yes, by scope	
	• None of the above, but we plan to do this in the next two years	
	 None of the above and we don't plan to do this 	

Requested	General
content	Select all breakdowns that are relevant to your portfolio.
	Please explain why you do not provide a breakdown of your portfolio impact on the climate (column 2)
	 This column only appears if you select any "None" option in column 1 "Portfolio breakdown".
	 If you have only selected one or two of the three breakdown options (by asset class/industry/scope) explain why are you not able to provide a breakdown for the option(s) not selected.
	 If you selected "None of the above, but we plan to do this in the next two years" explain why you don't do this yet, how you plan to do this and what actions you are currently taking to achieve this.
	 If you selected "None of the above and we don't plan to do this", explain why you don't do this and why you don't plan on doing so in the future.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	CC Only
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	FS Only

(12.2.1) Break down your organization's financed emissions and other portfolio carbon footprinting metrics by asset class, by industry, and/or by scope.

Question details				
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes, by asset class", "Yes, by industry", or "Yes, by			
dependencies	scope" in column 1 "Portfolio breakdown" of 12.2.			
Change from last	Modified question (2023 C-FS14.2a, C-FS14.2b, C-FS14.2d)			
year				
Rationale	Current methodologies for calculating portfolio emissions can lead to double counting across			
	scopes. Breaking down absolute emissions and/or other carbon footprinting metrics of a			
	portfolio by scope can help financial institutions identify emissions throughout the value chain of			

	companies in their portfolio. Reporting at this level can provide a useful indicator for making comparisons between your financial activities in different industries. Furthermore, breaking down emissions and other carbon footprinting and/or exposure metrics by asset class can give an indication of the relative GHG emissions performance and/or exposure to climate-related risks of your company's assets. When reported over time, your organization and data users will be able to review improvements or declines in asset performance with considerations for your portfolio's impact on the climate.			
Ambition	Financial institutions disclose absolute gross financed emissions, disaggregated by Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions. Financial institutions report gross exposure to each industry by asset class, expressed in the			
	 Funded amounts—gross exposure shall be calculated as the funded carrying amounts (before subtracting the loss allowance, when applicable), whether prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards or other GAAP. 			
	 Undrawn loan commitments—the entity shall disclose the full amount of the commitment separately from the drawn portion of loan commitments. 			

1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
Portfolio	Portfolio metric	Industry	Asset class	Clients'/invest ees' scope	% of asset class emission s calculate d in the reporting year based on total value of assets	Value of assets covered in the calculation	Financed emissions or alternative metric
Select from: Banking (Bank) Investing (Asset manager) Investing (Asset owner) Insurance underwriti ng (Insuranc e company)	Select from: Absolute portfolio emissions (tCO2e) Weighted average carbon intensity (tCO2e/Mill ion revenue) Portfolio carbon footprint (tCO2e/Mill ion invested) Carbon intensity (tCO2e/Mill	Select from: Apparel Biotech, health care & pharma Food, beverage & agriculture Fossil Fuels Hospitality Infrastructu re Internation al bodies Manufactur ing Materials Power generation	Select from: Loans Project finance Bonds Equity investments Undrawn loan commitments Fixed income Cash equivalents/mo ney market instruments Real estate Commodities Other, please specify	Select from: Scope 1 Scope 2 Scope 3	Percenta ge field [enter a percenta ge from 0-100]	Numerical field [enter a range of 0- 999,999,999,999 ,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places and no commas]	Numerical field [enter a range of 0- 999,999,999, 999 using a maximum of 3 decimal places and no commas]

ion	Retail				
Noided	Services				
emissions	Transportat				
financed	ion				
(tCO2e)	Services				
Carbon					
removals					
tinanced					
associated					
emissions					
(tCO2e)					
Facilitated emissions					
(tCO2e)					
Energy					
consumption					
n revenue of					
investee					
company)					
EMISSIONS					
(tCO2e/M					
Wh)					
Emissions					
intensity					
(tCO2e/m2					
) Emissions					
intensity					
(tCO2e/ton					
ne steel					
produced)					
Other,					
please					
specity					
1	1	1	1	1	

9	10	11	12
Are you able to provide the gross exposure for your undrawn loan commitment separately from the drawn loan commitment?	Value of assets covered in the calculation based on outstanding loan amounts	Value of assets covered in the calculation based on outstanding loan amounts	Please explain the details, assumptions and exclusions in your calculation

Select from:	Numerical field	Numerical field	Text field
Voo	[enter a range of 0-	[enter a range of 0-	[maximum
res	999,999,999,999,999	999,999,999,999,999,999	3,000
No	using a maximum of	using a maximum of	characters]
Not	2 decimal places and	2 decimal places and	
applicable	no commas]	no commas]	

[Add row]

Requested	General
content	 Add a row for each portfolio for which you are able to provide a breakdown of your organization's portfolio impact.
	 If you are able to provide a breakdown of multiple scopes for a single portfolio, industry or asset class, add a separate row for each scope.
	Portfolio metric (column 2)
	 Disclose the quantitative emissions associated with the respective scope, industry and/or asset class.
	For details on methodologies to calculate portfolio metrics please consult the <u>CDP Technical</u> <u>Note on Portfolio Impact Metrics for Financial Services Sector Companies</u> .
	• If you are reporting absolute emissions or emissions intensity, use gross, not net figures. For funded amounts, gross exposure shall be calculated as the funded carrying amounts (before subtracting the loss allowance, when applicable), whether prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards or other GAAP.
	Industry (column 3)
	• Select from the drop-down list the industry for which you are able to disclose a figure for, adding one row for each industry.
	Asset class (column 4)
	• Select from the drop-down list the asset classes that you are able to disclose a figure for.
	• The options which appear are driven by the activities you selected in 1.10.
	 Add a row for each asset class for which you can disclose a figure by using the "Add Row" button at the bottom of the table.
	 If there are other asset classes for which you are able to disclose a figure for but are not listed in the drop-down list, select "Other, please specify" and disclose the asset class.
	 If you are disclosing emissions for each industry by asset class, make sure to indicate the industry for which you are reporting in column 2 "Industry".
	% of asset class emissions calculated in the reporting year based on total value of assets (column 6)
	 This column is only presented if you are providing a breakdown of your emissions on asset class level.
	 Provide the proportion of the asset class covered by the emissions calculation based on the total value of this asset class.
	Value of assets covered in the calculation (column 7)
	Provide the value of the assets covered by the emissions calculation.
	All values should be reported in the currency selected in 1.2.
	Value of assets covered in the calculation based on outstanding loan amounts (column 10)

 $\textcircled{\label{eq:cdp} ocdp | \underline{www.cdp.net} \ @cdp | \underline{www.cdp.net} }$

 Disclose the full amount of the commitment separately from the drawn portion of loan commitments included in the emissions calculation.
• All values should be reported in the currency selected in 1.2.
Value of assets covered in the calculation including undrawn loan commitments (column 11)
 Disclose the full amount of the commitment separately from the drawn portion of loan commitments included in the emissions calculation.
 For undrawn loan commitments, calculate the percentage by dividing the full amount of undrawn loan commitments to carbon related industries by the full amount of undrawn loan commitments to all industries.
• All values should be reported in the currency selected in 1.2.
Please explain the details, assumptions and exclusions in your calculation (column 12)
 If you are not providing the emissions value for all of the scopes (Scope 1, Scope 2, Scope 3), explain why you are not able to.
 If you are not able to provide the emissions value for each of your asset classes, explain why you are not able to.
 If you are not able to provide the emissions for each of the industries in which you operate, explain why.
 For your scope 2 financed emissions, explain if market-based and/or location-based method has been used.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	CC Only
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	FS Only

Portfolio Values

(12.3) State the values of your financing and insurance of fossil fuel assets in the reporting year.

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in column 1 "Activity undertaken" in any row in
dependencies	1.10.
Change from last	Modified question (2023 C-FS14.0)
year	
Rationale	The majority of financial institutions' emissions are driven by the activities they finance in the wider economy, also known as 'financed emissions'. The exposure of financial institutions to climate-related risks and opportunities are determined by their portfolios via lending, investment and insurance underwriting activities. Therefore, data users wish to understand the concentrations of fossil fuel assets in financial institutions' portfolios.
Ambition	Financial institutions measure and disclose their financing and insurance of fossil fuel assets to understand, and help data users understand, their impact on the climate.

Connection to other	TCFD Metrics and Targets B
frameworks	

0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
Portfol	Reporti	Value of the	New loans	Total premium	% of	Details	Primary	Please
io	ng	fossil fuel assets	advanced in	written in	portfolio	of	reason for	explain
	values	in your portfolio	reporting year	reporting year	value	calculati	not	why you
	of the	(unit currency -	(unit currency –	(unit currency -	compris	on	providing	are not
	financi	as specified in	as specified 1.2)	as specified in	ed of		values of	providin
	ng	1.2)		1.2)	fossil		the	g values
	and/or				fuel		financing	of the
	insuran				assets to		and/or	financin
	ce of				total		insurance	g and/or
	fossil				portfolio		to fossil	insuranc
	fuel				value in		fuel	e to
	assets				reportin		assets	fossil
					g year			fuel
								assets
Lendin	Select	Numeric field	Numeric field	N/A	Percenta	Text	Select	Text
g to all	from:	[enter a number	[enter a number		ge field	field	from:	field
fossil	Yes	from 0-	from 0-		[enter a	[maximu	Lack of	[maximu
fuel	No, but	999,999,999,999	999,999,999,999		percenta	m 2,500	internal	m 2,500
assets	we	,999 using a	,999 using a		ge from	characte	resources	characte
	plan to	maximum of 2	maximum of 2		0-100	rs]	, 	rs]
	report	decimal places	decimal places		using a		capabilitie	
	our	and no commas]	and no commas]		maximu		S, UI	
	portfoli				m of one			
	0'S				decimal		to	
	exposu ro to				placej		organizati	
	fossil						on size)	
	fuel in						No	
	the						standardi	
	next						zed	
	two						procedure	
	years						Not an	
	No.						immediat	
	and we						e	
	do not						strategic	
	plan to						priority	
	report						Judaed to	
	our						be	
	portfoli						unimporta	
	0'S						nt or not	
	exposu						relevant	
	foccil						Other,	
	fuel in						please	
	the						specify	
	next							
	two							
	years							
Insurin			N/A	Numeric field				
g all				[enter a number				
fossil				from 0-				
				999,999,999,999				

fuel		,999 using a		
assets		maximum of 2		
		decimal places		
		and no commas]		

Requested	General
content	• For details on methodologies to calculate your portfolio's value (exposure) please consult the <u>CDP Technical Note on Portfolio Impact Metrics for Financial Services Sector Companies</u> .
	Portfolio (column 0)
	• The rows which appear are driven by the activities you selected in 1.10.
	 Value of the fossil fuel assets in your portfolio (unit currency – as specified in 1.2) (column 2) This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column 1 "Reporting values of the financing and/or insurance of fossil fuel assets".
	• For lending and investing rows, report the total value of loans/investments outstanding in your portfolio at the end of the reporting year.
	• For insurance rows, report the total sums insured in your portfolio for the reporting year.
	New loans advanced in reporting year (unit currency – as specified in 1.2) (column 3)
	 This column only appears for "Lending" rows where "Yes" is selected in column 1 "Reporting values of the financing and/or insurance of fossil fuel assets".
	The refinancing of an existing loan is considered a new loan.
	 Include new loans advanced even if the loan has subsequently been removed from your portfolio. This module is asking about portfolio impact – impact on climate cannot be transferred in the same way that risk to your portfolio can.
	Total premium written in reporting year (unit currency – as specified in 1.2) (column 4)
	 This column only appears for "Insuring" rows where "Yes" is selected in column 1 "Reporting values of the financing and/or insurance of fossil fuel assets".
	• Report the Gross Written Premium (GWP) including direct and assumed that is written (before deductions for reinsurance and ceding commission) in the reporting year.
	% of portfolio value comprised of fossil fuel assets to total portfolio value in reporting year (column 5)
	 Provide a percentage value for the amount reported in column 2 "Value of the fossil fuel assets in your portfolio (unit currency – as specified in 1.2)" in relation to your total portfolio value.
	Details of calculation (column 6)
	• This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column 1 "Reporting values of the financing and/or insurance of fossil fuel assets".
	• Describe which industries you include in the calculation of the value you are reporting for the fossil fuel assets.
	• Provide any other details of your calculation that you consider important for data users.
	Primary reason for not providing a value for the financing and/or insurance to fossil fuel assets (column 7)

 This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "Reporting values of the financing and/or insurance of fossil fuel assets".
 If, for example, your organization provides strictly retail banking only (no commercial, institutional or business lending), select "Other, please specify".
Please explain why you are not providing a value for the financing and/or insurance to fossil fuel assets (column 8)
 This column only appears if any "No" option is selected in column 1 "Reporting values of the financing and/or insurance of fossil fuel assets".
 Ensure your explanation is organization-specific and provides details as to why you do not provide a value for the financing and/or insurance to fossil fuel assets.
 For example, if your organization provides strictly retail banking only (no commercial, institutional or business lending), provide details here.
 If you plan to assess your exposure within the next 2 years provide details of how you plan to do this.
 If you wish to provide any additional context to your disclosure, including any plans or timelines your organization has for completely phasing out financing and/or insurance of fossil fuel assets, you can also do that in this column.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	CC only
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	FS Only

(12.4) Does your organization provide finance and/or insurance to companies in the commodity value chain? If so, for each commodity and portfolio, state the values of your financing and/or insurance in the reporting year.

Question det	ails							
Question		This question only appears if you select "Yes" in column 1 "Activity undertaken"						
dependencies	6	in any row in 1.10.						
Change from	last	Modified question (2	2023 FW-FS5.2, FW-	FS5.2a)				
year								
Rationale		The production of certain key agricultural commodities has caused more than 60% of forest loss in Latin America and Southeast Asia, usually resulting in a permanent loss. While not all commodity production is necessarily harmful, understanding the concentrations of commodity- related assets in portfolios will enable financial institutions to understand where there is the potential for deforestation impacts and where enhanced policies are needed to prevent them.						
Ambition		Financial services companies measure and disclose their financing and insurance of agricultural commodities to understand the potential impact on deforestation.						
0	4	0		4		<u> </u>		

Financing and/or insurance of commodity	Finance or insurance provided to companies operating in the value chain for this commodity	Commodity value chain stage coverage	Portfolio exposure (unit currency – as specified in 1.2)	New loans advanced in reporting year (unit currency – as specified in 1.2)	Total premium written in reporting year (unit currency – as specified in 1.2)	% value of the exposure in relation to your total portfolio value
Lending to companies operating in the timber products value chain	Select from • Yes • No • Unknown	Select all that apply: • Production • Processing • Trading • Manufacturing • Retailing	Numeric field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places and no commas]	Numeric field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places and no commas]	N/A	Percentage field [enter a percentage from 0-100 using a maximum of one decimal]
Insuring companies operating in the timber products value chain				N/A	Numeric field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places and no commas]	

Requested	Financing and/or insurance of commodity (column 0)
content	• Each row corresponds to a portfolio activity, i.e., lending to, investing in or insuring companies operating in the commodity value chain. There is a row for each commodity asked about: timber products, palm oil, cattle products, soy, rubber, cocoa, and coffee. Please respond to all rows.
	Finance or insurance provided to companies operating in the value chain for this commodity (column 1)
	 For each commodity listed, indicate if you are providing financing (lending or investment) or insurance to companies operating in the value chain for that commodity within the reporting year.
	Commodity value chain stage coverage (column 2)
	 Indicate which stages in the commodity value chain the companies you are providing a financing/insurance figure for operate in.
	Portfolio exposure (unit currency as specified in 1.2) (column 3)
	 This figure should be in the same currency that you selected in 1.2.
	 For lending and investing rows, report the total value of loans/investments to companies operating in the commodity value chain outstanding in your portfolio at the end of the reporting year. For insurance rows, report the total sums insured for companies operating in the commodity value chain in your portfolio for the reporting year.
	New loans advanced in reporting year (unit currency as reported in 1.2) (column 4)
 This figure should be in the same currency selected in 1.2. Include new loans advanced to companies operating in the commodity value chain, even if the loan has subsequently been removed from your portfolio. This module is asking about portfolio impact – impact on forests cannot be transferred in the same way that risk to your portfolio can. 	
--	
Total premium written (unit currency as reported in 1.2) (column 5)	
 This figure should be in the same currency that you selected in 1.2. 	
 Report the Gross Written Premium (GWP) including direct and assumed that is written (before deductions for reinsurance and ceding commission) for companies operating in the commodity supply chain in the reporting year. 	
% value of the exposure in relation to your total portfolio value (column 6)	
 Provide a percentage value for the exposure reported in column 3 "Portfolio exposure (unit currency as specified in 1.2)" in relation to your total portfolio value. 	

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	F only
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	FS Only

(12.5) In the reporting year, did your organization finance and/or insure activities or sectors that are aligned with, or eligible under, a sustainable finance taxonomy? If so, are you able to report the values of that financing and/or underwriting?

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in column 1 "Activity undertaken" in any row in
dependencies	1.10.
Change from last	New question
year	
Rationale	Financial institutions need to ensure that their lending, investing and/or insurance is supporting the climate transition of the wider economy. An assessment of the financing and insuring of business activities or sectors defined as sustainable according to a sustainable finance taxonomy can inform progress on the organization's commitment to mitigate and adapt to climate change, as well as add credibility to it.
Ambition	Financial institutions ensure that their financing and insuring is supporting the climate transition of the wider economy, and/or aligned with a sustainable finance taxonomy.
Connection to other	NZAM Commitment 4
frameworks	

0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
Portfoli	Report	Taxonom	Total	Total assets	Total assets	Aligned	Share	Eligible	Share
0	ing	y under	assets in	covered in	excluded	assets based	of	assets based	of
	values	which	your	the	from the	on turnover of	aligne	on turnover of	eligibl

	of the financi ng and/or insura nce of activiti es or sector s that are eligible under or aligne d with a sustai nable financ e taxono my	portfolio alignment is being reported	portfolio (unit currency as selected in 1.2) [auto- calculated]	calculation of the taxonomy KPIs in the reporting year	calculation of your alignment KPIs in the reporting year	investees in the reporting year (unit currency as selected in 1.2)	d assets based on turnov er of invest ees out of total assets in the reporti ng year	investees in the reporting year	e assets based on turnov er of invest ees in the reporti ng year out of total assets in the reporti ng year
Bankin g (Bank)	Select from: Yes N o, b ut w e pl a n to re p or t in th e n ex t w o, b ut w e l a n to re p or t in h e s N o, b ut w e l a n to c f o n to c n o n to n to n o n to n o n to n o n to to to n to n to to to to n to n to to to to to to to to to to	Select from: • EU Taxo nom y for Sust aina ble Activ ities • Othe r, pleas e speci fy	[Autocalcu lated]	Numeric field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places and no commas]	Numeric field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places and no commas]	Numeric field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places and no commas]	Perce ntage field [enter a perce ntage from 0-100 using a maxim um of one decim al place	Numeric field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999 using a maximum of 2 decimal places and no commas]	Perce ntage field [enter a perce ntage from 0-100 using a maxim um of one decim al place]

Page 326 of 356

 $\textcircled{\label{eq:cdp} ocdp | \underline{www.cdp.net} \ @cdp | \underline{www.cdp.net} }$

n				
ot				
pl				
a				
n				
to				
re				
D				
or				
t t				
in				
th				
6				
n				
t t				
t 1.1/				
0				
VO				
ye				
ai				
э				

10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	
Aligned assets based	Share of	Eligible assets based	Share of	Sha				
on CAPEX of	aligned	on CAPEX of	eligible	aligned	aligned	aligned	aligned	alig
investees in the	assets	investees in the	assets	assets	assets	assets	assets	ass
currency as selected	based on	reporting year	based on	contributing	contributing	contributing	contributing	cor
in 1.2)	CAPEX of		CAPEX of	to climate	to climate	to climate	to climate	to o
,	investees		investees	change	change	change	change	cha
	out of total		out of total	mitigation	mitigation	mitigation	adaptation	ada
	asset in the		asset in the	based on	that is	that is	based on	tha
	reporting		reporting	turnover of	transitional	enabling	turnover of	ada
	year		year	investees	based on	based on	investees	bas
				in the	turnover of	turnover of	in the	turi
				reporting	investees	investees	reporting	inv
				year	in the	in the	year	in t
					reporting	reporting		rep
					year	year		yea
Numeric field [enter	Percentage	Numeric field [enter	Percentage	Percentage	Percentage	Percentage	Percentage	Pe
a number from 0-	field [enter	a number from 0-	field [enter	fiel				
999,999,999,999,999	a	999,999,999,999,999	а	а	а	а	а	а
using a maximum of	from 0-100	using a maximum of	percentage	percentage	percentage	percentage	percentage	per
2 decimal places and	using a	2 decimal places and	from 0-100	froi				
no commas]	maximum	no commas]	using a	usi				
	of one		maximum	maximum	maximum	maximum	maximum	ma
	decimal		of one	of o				
	piacej		decimal	decimal	decimal	decimal	decimal	deo
			place]	place]	place]	place]	place]	pla

22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
Share of	Share of	Share of	Share of	Total assets aligned	% of	Descriptio	Total premium
aligned	aligned	aligned	aligned	with the taxonomy in	portfolio	n of	written in reporting
assets	assets	assets	assets	the reporting year	that is	assets	year (unit currency –
contributin	contributin	contributin	contributin		aligned	excluded	as specified in 1.2)
g to	g to	g to	g to		with the	from	
climate	climate	climate	climate		taxonomy	alignment	
change	change	change	change		in the	calculation	
mitigation	adaptation	adaptation	adaptation		reporting	and	
that is	based on	that is	that is		year	reasons	
enabling	CAPEX of	adapted	enabling			for	
based on	investees	based on	based on			exclusion	
CAPEX of	in the	CAPEX of	CAPEX of				
investees	reporting	investees	investees				
in the	year	in the	in the				
reporting		reporting	reporting				
year		year	year				
Percentag	Percentag	Percentag	Percentag	Numeric field [enter	Percentag	Text field	Numeric field [enter
e field	e field	e field	e field	a number from 0-	e field	[maximum	a number from 0-
[enter a	[enter a	[enter a	[enter a	999,999,999,999,999	[enter a	2,500	999,999,999,999,999,99
percentag	percentag	percentag	percentag	9 using a maximum	percentag		9 using a maximum
e from 0-	e from 0-	e from 0-	e from 0-	of 2 decimal places	e from 0-	1	of 2 decimal places
100 using	100 using	100 using	100 using	and no commas]	100 using		and no commas]
а	а	а	а		а		
maximum	maximum	maximum	maximum		maximum		
of one	of one	of one	of one		of one		
decimal	decimal	decimal	decimal		decimal		
place]	place]	place]	place]		place]		

30	31	32	33	34	35	36
Gross premiums written for taxonomy- aligned non-life insurance and reinsurance activities	Total premiums written	"Do No Significant Harm" requirement s met	Details of "Do No Significant Harm" analysis	Details of calculation	Primary reason for not providing values of the financing and/or insurance	Explain why you are not providing values of the financing and/or insurance
Numeric field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999,99 9 using a maximum of 2 decimal places and no commas]	Numeric field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999,99 9 using a maximum of 2 decimal places and no commas]	Select from •Yes •No	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	 Select from: Lack of internal resources, capabilities, or expertise (e.g., due to organization size) No standardize d procedure Not an immediate strategic priority 	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]

 relevant Other, please specify 	.t
---	----

[Fixed Row]

	-
Requested	Portfolio (column 0)
content	• The rows which appear are driven by the activities you selected in question 1.10.
	Reporting values of the financing and/or insurance of activities or sectors that are eligible under or aligned with a sustainable finance taxonomy (column 1)
	 Indicate whether you are able to report values of your financing and/or insurance of activities or sectors that are eligible under or aligned with a sustainable finance taxonomy. For companies subject to the EU Taxonomy for Sustainable Activities, refer to the economic activities listed under the Climate Delegated Act Annex I and II. If a national taxonomy is under development and you are therefore not reporting values of the financing and/or insurance of activities or sectors that are eligible under or aligned with a sustainable finance taxonomy, but you are planning to implement the taxonomy in the next two years, select "No, but we plan to report in the next two years". Provide details in column 36 "Explain why you are not providing values of the financing and/or insurance" and describe if you are using any other classification system in the meanwhile.
	 Taxonomy under which portfolio alignment is being reported (column 2) This column is presented if "Yes" is selected in column 2 "Reporting values of the financing and/or insurance of activities or sectors that are eligible under or aligned with a sustainable finance taxonomy". Select "Other, please specify" if you are reporting under another sustainable finance taxonomy for Sustainable Activities and specify under which taxonomy you are reporting your financing and/or insuring.
	 Total assets in your portfolio (unit currency as selected in 1.2) (column 3) This column will be automatically calculated from the value you reported in column 4 "Portfolio value based on total assets" in question 1.10.
	 Total assets covered in the calculation of the taxonomy KPIs in the reporting year (column 4) Provide the value of assets reported in column 3 "Total assets in your portfolio (unit currency as selected in 1.2)" less assets that shall not be included in the calculation of the taxonomy KPIs under the EU Taxonomy for Sustainable Activities in the reporting year. Assets that shall not be included in the calculation of the taxonomy KPIs are, for example, exposures to central governments, central banks and supranational issuers. For details on which assets shall be excluded from the denominator of the KPI calculation under the EU Taxonomy for Sustainable Activities, please consult the <u>Disclosure Delegated Act, Article 7</u>.
	 Total assets excluded from the calculation of your alignment KPIs in the reporting year (column 5) Provide the value of assets that are not included in the calculation of your alignment KPIs under the EU Taxonomy for Sustainable Activities in the reporting year. Assets that shall not be included in the calculation of your alignment KPIs are, for example, exposures to financial and non-financial undertakings that are not subject to the NFRD, both EU and non-EU and exposure to SMEs.

 For details on which assets shall be excluded from the numerator of the KPI calculation under the EU Taxonomy for Sustainable Activities, please consult the <u>Disclosure</u> <u>Delegated Act, Article 7</u>.
Aligned assets based on turnover of investees in the reporting year (unit currency as selected in 1.2) (column 6)
 Enter the value of assets funding taxonomy-aligned activities contributing to turnover of portfolio company in the reporting year.
Share of aligned assets based on turnover of investees out of total asset in the reporting year (column 7)
 Enter the ratio of assets funding taxonomy-aligned activities as a percentage of total funded assets contributing to turnover of portfolio companies in the reporting year.
 Eligible assets based on turnover of investees in the reporting year (column 8) Enter the value of assets funding taxonomy-eligible activities contributing to turnover of portfolio company in the reporting year.
 Share of eligible assets based on turnover of investees in the reporting year out of total assets in the reporting year (column 9) Enter the ratio of assets funding taxonomy-eligible activities relative to total funded assets
Aligned assets based on CAPEX of investees in the reporting year.
 1.2) (column 10) Enter the value of assets funding taxonomy-aligned activities based on CAPEX of portfolio company in the reporting year.
Share of aligned assets based on CAPEX of investees out of total asset in the reporting year (column 11)
• Enter the ratio of assets funding taxonomy-aligned activities as a percentage of total funded assets of CAPEX of portfolio companies in the reporting year.
 Eligible assets based on CAPEX of investees in the reporting year (column 12) Enter the value of assets funding taxonomy-eligible activities based on CAPEX of portfolio company in the reporting year.
Share of eligible assets based on CAPEX of investees out of total asset in the reporting year (column 13)
• Enter the percentage of assets funding taxonomy-eligible activities relative to total funded assets of CAPEX of portfolio company in the reporting year.
Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation based on turnover of investees in the reporting year (column 14)
 Enter the percentage of taxonomy-aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation in the reporting year in relation to total funded assets contributing to turnover of portfolio company
 This percentage should be equal to or larger than the sum of the percentages in column 15 "Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation that is transitional based on turnover of investees in the reporting year" and column 16 "Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation that is enabling based on turnover of investees in the reporting war".

Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation that is transitional based on turnover of investees in the reporting year (column 15)
 Enter the percentage of taxonomy-aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation that is transitional in the reporting year in relation to total funded assets contributing to turnover of portfolio company.
Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation that is enabling based on turnover of investees in the reporting year (column 16)
Enter the percentage of taxonomy-aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation that is enabling in the reporting year in relation to total funded assets contributing to turnover of portfolio company.
Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation based on turnover of investees in the reporting year (column 17)
 Enter the percentage of taxonomy-aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation in the reporting year in relation to total funded assets contributing to turnover of portfolio company.
 This percentage should be equal to or larger than the sum of the percentages in column 18 "Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation that is adapted based on turnover of investees in the reporting year" and column 19 "Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation that is enabling based on turnover of investees in the reporting year".
Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation that is adapted based on turnover of investees in the reporting year (column 18)
 Enter the percentage of taxonomy-aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation that is adapted in the reporting year in relation to total funded assets contributing to turnover of portfolio company.
Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation that is enabling based on turnover of investees in the reporting year (column 19)
• Enter the percentage of taxonomy-aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation that is enabling in the reporting year in relation to total funded assets contributing to turnover of portfolio company.
Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation based on CAPEX of investees in the reporting year (column 20)
 Enter the percentage of taxonomy-aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation in the reporting year in relation to total funded assets of CAPEX of portfolio company. This percentage should be equal to or larger than the sum of the percentages in column 21 "Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation that is transitional based on CAPEX of investees in the reporting year" and column 22 "Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation that is contributing to climate change mitigation that is enabling based on CAPEX of investees in the reporting mitigation that is enabling based on CAPEX of investees in the reporting year".
 Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation that is transitional based on CAPEX of investees in the reporting year (column 21) Enter the percentage of taxonomy-aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation that is transitional in the reporting year in relation to total funded assets of CAPEX of portfolio company.
Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation that is enabling based on CAPEX of investees in the reporting year (column 22)

• Enter the percentage of taxonomy-aligned assets contributing to climate change mitigation that is enabling in the reporting year in relation to total funded assets of CAPEX of portfolio company.
Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation based on CAPEX of investees in the reporting year (column 23)
 Enter the percentage of taxonomy-aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation in the reporting year in relation to total funded assets of CAPEX of portfolio company.
• This percentage should be equal to or larger than the sum of the percentages in column 24 "Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation that is adapted based on CAPEX of investees in the reporting year" and column 25 "Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation that is enabling based on CAPEX of investees in the reporting year".
Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation that is adapted based on CAPEX of investees in the reporting year (column 24)
• Enter the percentage of taxonomy-aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation that is adapted in the reporting year in relation to total funded assets of CAPEX of portfolio company.
Share of aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation that is enabling based on CAPEX of investees in the reporting year (column 25)
 Enter the percentage of taxonomy-aligned assets contributing to climate change adaptation that is enabling in the reporting year in relation to total funded assets of CAPEX of portfolio company.
 Total assets aligned with the taxonomy in the reporting year (column 26) Enter the value of assets aligned with the taxonomy relative to total funded/insured assets in the reporting year.
 % of portfolio that is aligned with the taxonomy in the reporting year (column 27) Enter the ratio of assets aligned with the taxonomy relative to total funded/insured assets in the reporting year.
 Description of assets excluded from alignment calculation and reasons for exclusion (column 28) Explain the reasons for excluding certain assets from your calculation of taxonomy alignment.
 Total premium written in reporting year (column 29) Enter the value of premiums written in the reporting year for insurance provided for taxonomy-aligned activities.
Gross premiums written for taxonomy-aligned non-life insurance and reinsurance activities (column 30)
Enter the value of premiums written for taxonomy-aligned non-life insurance and reinsurance activities.
 Total premiums written (column 31) Enter the value of premiums written for taxonomy-aligned activities.
 <i>"Do No Significant Harm" requirements met (column 32)</i> Indicate whether the "Do No Significant Harm" principle set out in Article 17 of the EU Taxonomy Regulation has been met.

 The "Do No Significant Harm" principle entails assessing whether an investment in an economic activity that contributes substantially to an environmental or social objective does not significantly harm any other environmental or social objectives.
Details of "Do No Significant Harm" analysis (column 33)
Provide details of your 'Do no significant harm' analysis.
Details of calculation (column 34)
 Provide details of any calculations in this question, if necessary.
Primary reason for not providing values of the financing and/or insurance (column 35)
 Indicate the primary reason for not providing values of the financing and/or insurance of activities or sectors that are eligible under or aligned with a sustainable finance taxonomy.
Explain why you are not providing values of the financing and/or insurance (column 36)
 Explain why you are not providing values of the financing and/or insurance of activities or sectors that are eligible under or aligned with a sustainable finance taxonomy.

Authoring notes						
Tags	Tags					
Corporate authority	Capital markets					
Environmental Issue	Question level	CC Only				
(Theme)						
Sector	Question level	FS Only				

Environmentally sustainable products/services (FS only)

(12.6) Do any of your existing products and services enable clients to mitigate and/or adapt to the effects of environmental issues?

Question details	
Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in column 1 "Activity undertaken" in any row in 1.10.
Change from last year	Modified question (2023 C-FS4.5, FW-FS3.4)
Rationale	Achieving a 1.5°C, deforestation-free and conversion-free, water-secure world will require massive investment in low-carbon technologies, sustainable land use, and sustainable agricultural and water management practices. Data users are interested in whether financial institutions are providing financial products and services to meet this investment challenge. This question is useful to investors seeking to increase their investment in organizations providing environmentally sustainable financial products and services.
Ambition	Financial services companies develop and offer products and services that enable clients to mitigate and/or adapt to the effects of climate change, deforestation, and/or water insecurity. Financial service companies leverage sustainable finance instruments where possible. For example, they may use sustainable finance taxonomies to identify products and services they should invest in to achieve their transition plan objectives.
Connection to other frameworks	NZAM Commitment 5

1	2	3		
Existing products and services enable	Primary reason for not offering products	Explain why your organization does not		
clients to mitigate and/or adapt to the	and services that enable clients to	offer products and services that enable		
effects of environmental issues	mitigate and/or adapt to the effects of	clients to mitigate and/or adapt to the		
	environmental issues	effects of environmental issues		
 Select from: Yes No, but we plan to address this within the next two years No, and we do not plan to address this in the next two years 	 Select from: Lack of internal resources, capabilities, or expertise (e.g., due to organization size) No standardized procedure Not an immediate strategic priority Judged to be unimportant or not relevant Other, please specify 	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]		

[Fixed row]

General
Consider only <i>financial</i> products and services. If your organization has activities in more than one sector, you may also be presented with 7.74 and 7.74.1. All other low-carbon products and services (i.e. non-financial) should be reported in 7.74 and 7.74.1
There are various circumstances in which a financial services company might consider that the use of its products and services by others has the potential to reduce GHG emissions, deforestation and/or water insecurity
You should consider relevant low-carbon products and services such as green bonds, green loans/mortgages, green insurance products, specialty environmental risk advisory services and others.
Primary reason for not offering products and services that enable clients to mitigate and/or adapt to the effects of environmental issues (column 2)
Select only one option from the drop-down menu. If multiple options reasonably apply to your company, explain any additional reasons in column 3 "Explain why your organization does not offer products and services which that enable clients to mitigate and/or adapt to the effects of environmental issues".
Explain why your organization does not offer products and services that enable clients to mitigate and/or adapt to the effects of environmental issues (column 3)
Provide an explanation specific to your organization explaining why you do not have any existing products and services that enable clients to mitigate and/or adapt to the effects of environmental issues and outline any plans to do so in the future.

Authoring notes						
Tags	Tags					
Corporate authority	Capital markets					
Environmental Issue	Question level	CC,F,W				
(Theme)						
Sector	Question level	FS Only				

(12.6.1) Provide details of your existing products and services that enable clients to mitigate and/or adapt to the effects of environmental issues, including any taxonomy or methodology used to classify the products and services.

Question details						
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes" in column "Existing products and services that					
dependencies	enable clients to mitigate and/or adapt to the effects of environmental issues of 12.6.					
Change from last	Modified question (2023 C-FS4.5a, FW-FS3.4a)					
year						
Rationale	Achieving a 1.5°C, deforestation-free and conversion-free, water-secure world will require massive investment in low carbon technologies, sustainable land use, and sustainable agricultural and water management practices. Data users are interested in whether financial institutions are providing financial products and services to meet this investment challenge. This question is useful to investors seeking to increase their investment in organizations providing environmentally sustainable financial products and services.					
Ambition	Financial services companies develop and offer products and services that enable clients to mitigate and/or adapt to the effects of climate change, deforestation, and water insecurity.					
	Financial service companies leverage sustainable finance instruments where possible. For example, they may use sustainable finance taxonomies to identify products and services they should invest in to achieve their transition plan objectives.					
	Disclosure shall include a description of the aspects of traditional products that incentivize health, safety, and/or environmentally responsible actions or behavior (e.g., premium discounts).					
Connection to other	NZAM Commitment 5					
frameworks						

1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Environmen tal issue	Product/serv ice enables clients to mitigate and/or adapt to climate change	Portfolio	Asset class	Type of product classificationTaxonomy or methodology used to identify product characteristics		Type of solution financed, invested in or insured
Select all that apply: Climate change Forests Water	Select all that apply: • Mitigatio n • Adaptati on	 Select from: Banking (Bank) Investing (Asset manager) Investing (Asset owner) Investing (Asset owner) Insuranc e underwrit ing (Insuranc e company) 	 Select from: Loans Project finance Bonds Equity investments Undrawn loan commitments Fixed income Cash equivalents/mo ney market instruments Real estate Commodities Other, please specify 	 Select all that apply: Products that promote environme ntal and/or social characteris tics Products that have sustainable investment as their core objective 	Select all that apply: Low-carbon Investment (LCI) Registry Taxonomy Climate Bonds Taxonomy The EU Taxonomy for environment ally sustainable economic activities Evaluating the carbon-	Select all that apply: Carbon removal [CC only] Ecosystem protection Ecosystem restoration Emerging climate technolog y, please specify [CC only] Energy efficiency measures [CC only]

@cdp | www.cdp.net @cdp | www.cdp.net

		•	Other product classificati on, please specify Not applicable	•	reducing impacts of ICT Green Bond Principles (ICMA) ISO 14040/44 Standards LMA Green Loan Principles LMA Sustainabilit y Link Loans Principles Externally classified using other taxonomy or methodolog y, please specify Internally classified	• • • • • • • • • • • • •	Flood/drou ght resilience [W only] Fortified buildings [CC only] Green buildings and equipment [CC only] Landscape and/or jurisdiction al initiative [F and W only] Low- emission transport [CC only] Nature- based solutions Paperless/ digital service [CC only] Reforestati on [F only] Regenerat ive production Renewabl e energy [CC only] Regenerat ive production Renewabl e energy [CC only] Risk transfer mechanis ms for under- insured or uninsured [CC only] Sustainabl e forest manageme nt [F only] WASH services [W only] Wastewate r treatment infrastructu r [W only] Water resources and
							infrastructu
						•	Water
							resources and
							ecosystem protection
						_	[W only]
						•	vvater supply and

			•	sewer networks infrastructu re [W only] Water treatment infrastructu re [W only] Other, please specify Not applicable

8	9	10	11	12
Description of product/service	% of portfolio aligned with a taxonomy or methodology in relation to total portfolio value	% of asset value aligned with a taxonomy or methodology	Product considers principal adverse impacts on environmental factors	Details on how the principal adverse impacts on environmental factors are considered in this product
Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]	Percentage field [enter a percentage from 0 100, using up to 2 decimal places]	Percentage field [enter a percentage from 0-100, using up to 2 decimal places]	Select from: • Yes • No	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]

[Add row]

Requested	General						
content	• Consider only <i>financial</i> products and services. If your organization has activities in more than one sector, you may also be presented with 7.74 and 7.74.1. All other low-carbon products and services (i.e. non-financial) should be reported in 7.74 and 7.74.1.						
	Product/service enables clients to mitigate and/or adapt to climate change (column 2)						
	 This column only appears if "Climate change" is selected in column 1 "Environmental issue". 						
	• This is only applicable to products and/or services which are related to climate change.						
	Asset class (column 4)						
	• Select from the dropdown list the asset classes that the products/services fall under.						
	Type of product classification (column 5):						
	 This column is applicable to financial companies reporting on their product classification under the Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (SFDR) or other fund labels or fund transparency regulations in other jurisdictions. The Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (SEDR) applies to financial market 						
	 The Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (SFDR) applies to infancial market participants and advisers either located in the EU or located outside the EU for their financial products they market and/or manage for the EU market 						
	If this column is not applicable to your financial product, select "Not applicable".						

 If your product is not classified by the Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (SFDR) or other product classification systems, select the dropdown "Not applicable". If "Not applicable" is selected, you will not be able to select any of the other dropdowns. "Products that promote environmental and/or social characteristics" refers to Article 8 from the Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation. "Products that have sustainable investment as their core objective" refers to Article 9 from the Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation. If you selected "Other product classification, please specify", provide a label of the product classification used.
Taxonomy or methodology used to identify product characteristics (column 6)
 As investors seek to increase the proportion of their portfolio invested in environmentally friendly products there is an effort to establish standardized methodologies. As for avoided emissions, methodologies to calculate avoided emissions are still being developed. If you offer products enabling clients to have beneficial impacts on the environment, which have been classified using an external taxonomy or methodology not listed, select "Externally classified using other taxonomy or methodology, please specify" and provide a label for the taxonomy or methodology. If the products you offer have been classified internally as enabling clients to have beneficial impacts on the environment, select "Internally classified" and describe your internal taxon of the environment.
internal classification system in column 8 "Description of product/service".
Type of solution financed, invested in or insured (column 7)
 Indicate which type of sustainable solutions your financing, investments and insurance products and services cover. Select "Not applicable" if you are reporting a product-level disclosure under the SFDR and none of the dropdowns are applicable to your financial product, e.g. Portfolios managed by credit institutions or investment firms; Alternative investment funds (AIFs) and UCITS; Insurance-based investment products (IBIPs); Pension products, workplace pension products regulated under the IORP directive and PEPP. If you have selected "Other, please specify", provide a label of the type of solution financed, invested in or insured.
Description of product/service (column 8):
 For each row, describe the product/service and explain how you ensure that it supports mitigation and/or adaptation to environmental issues. Use this column to describe the product/service that you are disclosing in this row. If you have selected "Internally classified" or "Externally classified using other taxonomy or methodology, please specify" in column 6 "Taxonomy or methodology used to identify product characteristics", provide a rationale as to why you consider that this product will enable clients to mitigate and/or adapt to environmental issues.
% of portfolio aligned with a taxonomy or methodology in relation to total portfolio value (column 9)
• Enter the percentage of portfolio value aligned with a taxonomy or methodology to the portfolio value based on assets value reported in 1.10.
% of asset value aligned with a taxonomy or methodology (column 10)
• Enter the percentage of the asset value aligned with a taxonomy or methodology based on the total asset value.
Product considers principal adverse impacts on environmental factors (column 11)

 This column only appears if "Products that promote environmental and/or social characteristics" or "Products that have sustainable investment as their core objective" are selected in column 5 "Type of product classification". This column is applicable for products being reported under the Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation. For the purpose of this column, focus on the environmental principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors. Principal adverse impacts refer to the negative effects on sustainability factors that arise from investment decisions and advice.
Details on how the principal adverse impacts on environmental factors are considered in this product (column 12)
 This column only appears if "Yes" is selected in column 11 "Product considers principal adverse impacts on environmental factors". This column is applicable for products being reported under the Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation. For the purpose of this column, focus on the climate and other environmental principal adverse impacts on sustainability factors. For details on the principal adverse impacts indicators, please refer to the <u>Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation</u> (See Annex I, Table 1 and 2). Provide details on how the climate and other environmental principal adverse impacts are considered in this financial product.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	CC,F,W
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	FS Only

Other portfolio targets

(12.7) Has your organization set targets for deforestation- and conversion-free and/or water-secure lending, investing and/or insuring?

Question details	
Change from last	Minor change (2023 FW-FS3.3)
year	
Rationale	Target setting plays a vital role in environmental action through its role in the successful execution of organizations' strategies, as well as in the effective management of dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities. Your response to this question signals to data users your commitment to environmental action by setting targets for deforestation-free and conversion-free and/or water secure lending, investing and/or insuring.
Ambition	Financial services companies set and progress targets for deforestation-free and conversion- free and/or water secure lending, investing and/or insuring.
Connection to other	TNFD Metrics & targets C
frameworks	

0	1	2
Environmental issue	Target set	Explain why your organization has not set targets for deforestation- and conversion-free and/or water-secure lending, investing and/or insuring
Forests	 Select from: Yes, we have set deforestation and conversion-free lending, investing and/or insuring targets No, we have not set such targets, but we plan to within the next two years No, we have not set such targets and we do not plan to in the next two years 	Text field [maximum 2,500 characters]
Water	 Select from: Yes, we have set water-secure lending, investing and/or insuring targets No, we have not set such targets, but we plan to within the next two years No, we have not set such targets and we do not plan to in the next two years 	

[Fixed row]

Requested	Explain why your organization has not set targets for deforestation- and conversion-free and/or
content	water secure-lending, investing and/or insuring (column 2)
	 If you have not set any targets, explain why. If you plan to set targets within the next two years, indicate the nature of the target you intend to set (e.g., which portfolios and sectors would be covered), the anticipated timeline, and any other relevant plans. If you do not plan to set targets in the next two years, explain why you do not plan to. Explain other ways you are addressing or planning to address this issue.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital markets	
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	F,W
Sector	Question level	FS Only

(12.7.1) Provide details of your targets for deforestation and conversion-free and/or water-secure lending, investing and/or insuring.

Question details

Question dependencies	This question only appears if you select "Yes, we have set deforestation- and conversion-free lending, investing and/or insuring targets" or "Yes, we have set water-secure lending, investing and/or insuring targets" in response to column 1 "Targets set" for any row of 12.7.
Change from last	Modified question (2023 FW-FS3.3a)
year	
Rationale	Target setting plays a vital role in environmental action through its role in the successful execution of corporate strategies, as well as in the effective management of dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities. Your response to this question indicates to data users your commitment to environmental action by providing details of your targets for deforestation and conversion free and/or water secure lending, investing and/or insuring.
Ambition	Financial services companies have timebound, quantitative and tracked targets for deforestation and conversion-free and/or water-secure lending, investing and/or insuring.
Connection to other	TNFD Strategy B
frameworks	TNFD Metrics & targets C

1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
Environm ental issue covered by the target	Portfolio	Targets set	Date target was set	Sectors Asset classes covered by covered by the the target target		The target % of has been portfol set with o reference to covere by the target		Total value of portfol io covere
Forests	Select	Select from:	[DD/MM/Y	Select all	Select all that	Select from:	in relation to total portfoli o value Percent	d by target
	 Banking (Bank) Investin g (Asset manage r) Investin g (Asset owner) Insuran ce underwr iting (Insura nce compan y) 	 Targets for deforesta tion-free lending [F only] Targets for deforesta tion- and conversio n-free lending [F only] Targets for water- secure lending [W only] Targets for deforesta tion-free investme nts [F only] 	YYY]	 Apparel Biotech, health care & pharma Food, beverag e & agricultu re Fossil Fuels Hospitali ty Infrastru cture Internati onal bodies Manufact uring Materials 	 apply: Loans Project finance Bonds Equity investments Undrawn loan commitmen ts Fixed income Cash equivalents/ money market instruments Real estate Commoditie s Other, please specify 	 PRB Nature Target Setting Guidanc e [FW] Guidan ce on Biodiver sity Target- setting [FW] Global Canopy Finance Sector Roadma p [F] The Finance Sector Deforest ation Action (FSDA) 	age field [enter a percent age from 0- 100]	calcula ted from 2023 1.10]

 $\textcircled{\label{eq:cdp} ocdp | \underline{www.cdp.net} \ @cdp | \underline{www.cdp.net} }$

		raote	_	Davian			Initiativa	
	• 1a	iyeis	•	Power				
	TOP			generati			נרן	
	dei	foresta		on		٠	Kunmin	
	tior	n- and	•	Retail			g-	
	cor	nversio	•	Services			Montrea	
	n-f	ree		Transpor			l Global	
	inv	vestme	•	tation			Biodiver	
	nts	s [F		tation			sitv	
	onl	lv]		services			Framew	
	• Tar	raets					ork	
	for	water-					(F\\/)	
	500							
	inv	octmon				•	Paris	
	to [Agreem	
	15	vv oniyj					ent	
	• la	rgets					(FW)	
	for					•	Sustain	
	def	foresta					able	
	tior	n-free					Develop	
	ins	surance					ment	
	pro	ovided					Goals	
	[F	only]					(FW)	
	• Ta	raets				-	(IVV)	
	for					•	Planetar	
	def	foresta					У	
	tion	n- and					Boundar	
	00	nvorcio					ies	
	501						(FW)	
	11-1 in a	ree				•	Sustaina	
	ins						ble Blue	
	pro	ovided					Econom	
	[F (only]					v (SBE)	
	 Tar 	rgets						
	for	water-						
	sec	cure				•	Other,	
	ins	urance					please	
	pro	ovided					specify	
	ΓW	onlv1					[FW]	
	• Tar	raets						
	• Tai	Iyels						
	101	widing						
	pro	viung						
	pro	Daucts						
	and	d .						
	ser	rvices						
	tha	at						
	ena	able						
	clie	ents to						
	mit	tigate						
	def	forestati						
	on	[F only]						
	 Tar 	rgets						
	for	5						
	nro	ovidina						
	nro	oducts						
	and	d						
	cor	~ Nices						
	501 tha	vices						
	una oro	able						
	ena							
	CILE	HIS (O						
	mit	ligate						
	wa	ter						
	ins	ecurity						
	[W	only]						
	 Tar 	rgets						
	for							
	pro	portion						
	of v	vour						
	clie	ents/inv						
			1		1			

Page 342 of 356

 $\textcircled{\label{eq:cdp} ocdp | \underline{www.cdp.net} \ @cdp | \underline{www.cdp.net} }$

		-		
	estees			
	compliant			
	with your			
	doforosta			
	tion-free			
	requireme			
	nts [F			
	only]			
	 Targets 			
	for			
	proportion			
	of your			
	oli your			
	clients/inv			
	estees			
	compliant			
	with your			
	deforesta			
	tion- and			
	conversio			
	n-free			
	requireme			
	nts [F			
	onlyl			
	- Torgoto			
	• Targets			
	TOF			
	proportion			
	of your			
	clients/inv			
	estees			
	compliant			
	with your			
	water-			
	related			
	requireme			
	nts [W			
	onlyl			
	Other			
	• Otner,			
	piease			
	specify			
	[FW]			

9	10	11	12	13	14	
Target metric	Target value	End date of	End date of	Figure in base	Figure in	% of tar
		target	base year	year	reporting year	
 Select from: Total value (unit currency – as specified in 1.2) % of total lending/investment/ insurance Number of products and services % of all products and services Resources allocated to 	Numerical field [enter a number from 0 to 999,999,999,999,999 using up to 2 decimal places]	[DD/MM/YYYY]	To: [DD/MM/YYYY]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 3 decimal places and no commas]	Numerical field [enter a number from 0- 999,999,999,999 using a maximum of 3 decimal places and no commas]	Auto cal (reportin

Page 343 of 356

	products and			
	services (unit			
	currency – as			
	specified in 1.2)			
•	% of your			
	clients/investees			
•	% of your portfolio			
	value			
•	Other percentage			
	metric, please			
	specify			
•	Other non-			
	percentage metric,			
	please specify			

[Fixed row; Add Row]

Requested	General
aantant	General
content	 For climate change, this data is reported in 7.53.4 Add a row for each forests and/or water-related target that you have. Rows are presented based on your response to question 12.7.
	Targets set (column 3)
	 The options in this column are shown according to the portfolio the target relates to Targets for deforestation and conversion-free/water-secure lending/investments/insurance providing refer to targets for having a certain proportion of your portfolio activity dedicated to sustainable purposes, contributing to the transition to a deforestation and conversion free and water secure world. Targets for proportion of your clients/investees being compliant with your deforestation- and conversion-free/deforestation-free/water- related requirements refer to targeted percentage of your total number of client/investees or percentage of your total portfolio exposure/value to be compliant with your forests- and/or water related requirements. Select "Other, please specify" if your target doesn't fit within the other options and describe what kind of a target it is.
	Sectors covered by the target (column 5)
	 If your target applies to multiple sectors, select from the list all of the sectors included within the target.
	Asset classes covered by the target (column 6)
	Select all of the asset classes covered by the target.
	The target has been set with reference to (column 7)
	 Indicate the framework or guidance which has been used as a reference when setting the target.
	% of portfolio covered by the target in relation to total portfolio value (column 8)
	• Enter the percentage of portfolio value covered by the target with regards to the total portfolio value based on assets value, as reported in 1.10

Target metric (column 9)
 For each row, select the measurement of the target, i.e. what does the targeted number stand for. Total value: the target is set as a monetary value.
 % of total lending/investment/insurance: the target is set as a specific proportion of your portfolio activity.
 Number of products and services: targeted number of offering such products and/or services
 % of all products and services: target set as a certain proportion of your products and/or services related to forests and/or water security.
• Resources allocated to products and services: targeted amount of finances to related to forests- and/or water-related products and/or services.
 % of your clients/investees: proportion of the total number of clients/investees covered by the target.
 % of your portfolio value: proportion of your total portfolio value/exposure covered by the target.
 Other percentage metric, please specify: state the percentage-based measurement used for the target.
 Other non-percentage metric, please specify: state the measurement used for the target if it's not percentage-based.
Target value (column 10)
 If your target metric refers to monetary values or specific numbers and not proportions, based on your selection in column 9 "Target metric", give the target value as a number. If the value refers to monetary values, use the unit currency as specified in 1.2. If you are using a percentage-based metric, provide a figure between 0.01-100.
End date of target (column 11)
• Provide the end date of the year by which you aim to achieve the target.
End date of base year (column 12)
 Provide the end date of the baseline year used as a reference point in time against which progress against the target is measured.
Figure in base year (column 13)
 Using the same metric indicated in the "Target metric" column 9, provide the figure for your base year, which you use as a reference in time in against which progress is measured.
In you are using a percentage-based metric, provide a ligure between 0.01-100.
Figure in reporting year (column 14)
 Using the same metric indicated in column 9 "Target metric", provide the figure at the end of the reporting year. If you are using a percentage-based metric, provide a figure between 0.01-100.
% of target achieved (column 15)
 This column will be auto-calculated based on your responses in columns 13 "Figure in base year" and 14 "Figure in reporting year".
Provide details of your target (column 16)

 column (e.g., if the target applies to specific business activities or geographic regions). Explain any exclusions from your target. You can use this column to identify where you have a financial year or average year based target. If your target was originally in a different format, you may wish to give the original target before it was converted into the format required for the purposes of this table. If your target is part of a wider environmental goal, a regulatory requirement, or a longer-term target, you can also explain this here.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate	Capital markets	
authority		
Environmental	Question level	F, W
Issue (Theme)		
Sector	Question level	FS Only

Module overview

Module Overview	Verification and assurance is good practice in environmental reporting as it ensures the quality of data and processes disclosed. This module includes questions on the verification of the environmental information provided in your CDP response. This information gives data users confidence in the quality and credibility of your organization's response.
	The module also includes questions on signoff of your response, and to provide further information if required.

(13.1) Indicate if any environmental information included in your CDP response (not already reported in 7.9.1/2/3, 8.9.1/2/3/4, and 9.3.2) is verified and/or assured by a third party?

Question details	
Change from last	Modified question (2023 C10.2, F7.1, F-MM16.1/F-CO16.1, W9.1)
year	
Rationale	This information gives data users confidence in the quality and credibility of your
	organization's response. CDP supports third-party verification and assurance as good
	practice in environmental reporting as it ensures the reliability of the data and processes
	disclosed. This question allows leading organizations to report their efforts on this and to
	highlight trends in verification and assurance of interest to investors and purchasing
	organizations. CDP also recognizes the growing importance to organizations of disclosing
	credible independently verified environmental data for demonstrating compliance with
	emerging standards and regulations.

Ambition	Organizations work with an accredited third party to verify/assure data disclosed in their CDP response using a reputable standard.
Connection to other	AFi Core Principle 11
frameworks	

1	2	3
Other environmental information included in your CDP response is verified and/or assured by a third party	Primary reason why other environmental information included in your CDP response is not verified and/or assured by a third party	Explain why other environmental information included in your CDP response is not verified and/or assured by a third party
Select from:	Select from:	Text field [maximum 2,000 characters]
 Yes Third-party verification/assurance is currently in progress No, but we plan to obtain third-party verification/assurance of other environmental information in our CDP response within the next two years 	 Lack of internal resources, capabilities, or expertise (e.g., due to organization size) No standardized procedure Not an immediate strategic priority Judged to be unimportant or not relevant 	
 No, and we do not plan to obtain third-party verification/assurance of other environmental information in our CDP response within the next two years 	 Other, please specify 	

[Fixed row]

Requested	General
content	 This question requests whether any of the environmental information in your CDP response (other than information disclosed in questions 7.9.1/2/3, 8.9.1/2/3/4, and 9.3.2) has been verified and/or assured by a third party, (i.e., an independent body) and not by your own or partner organization. If you select "Yes" in response to column 3 "Indicate whether you will be providing verification/assurance information relevant to your taxonomy alignment in question 13.1" of 5.4.3, you may select "Yes" in column 1 and provide an attachment of the relevant audit report and further details on the verification and/or assurance of your taxonomy alignment in 13.1.1.
	 Other environmental information included in your CDP response is verified and/or assured by a third party (column 1) Select the option that best describes your approach to verifying environmental information contained within this disclosure. Select "Yes" if you currently verify any data/information disclosed in this request other than that already reported in previous questions. Explain why other environmental information included in your CDP response is not verified and/or assured by a third party (column 3) If the other environmental information included in your CDP response has not been independently verified by a third party you may provide details as to why, for example, if this is not deemed strategically important, or there is a lack of relevant, mature third-party verified/assured, you may provide details of this here. If applicable, briefly describe any plans to acquire third-party verification in the future.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	All
Sector	Question level	All sectors (+M-B)

(13.1.1) Which data points within your CDP response are verified and/or assured by a third party, and which standards were used?

Question details	
Question	This question only appears if you select "Yes" or "Third-party verification/assurance is
dependencies	currently in progress" in response to column "Other environmental information included in
	your CDP response is verified by a third party" of 13.1.
Change from last	Modified question (2023 C10.2a, F7.1a, F-MM16.1a/F-CO16.1a, W9.1a)
year	
Rationale	This information allows data users to understand which elements of your organizations CDP
	response have been verified/assured by an accredited third-party.
Ambition	Organizations disclose and provide evidence that the environmental data within their
	CDP response has been verified, through credible standards.
Connection to other	AFi Core Principle 11
frameworks	• IFRS S2 34
	• ESRS 2
	ESRS E1

1	2	3	4	5
Environmental issue for which data has been verified and/or assured	Disclosure module and data verified and/or assured	Verification/assuran ce standard	Further details of the third-party verification/assurance process	Attach verification/assuran ce evidence/report (optional)
Select all that apply: • Climate change • Forests • Water • Plastics • Biodiversity	 Select from: 1: Introduction 2: Identification, assessment, and management of dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities 3: Disclosure of risks and opportunities 4: Governance 5: Business strategy 6: Environmental performance – Consolidation approach 7: Environmental performance – Climate change 	 Select all that apply: General standards Water-related standards Forests-related standards Climate change- related standards Plastics-related standards Biodiversity-related standards 	Text field [maximum 2,000 characters]	[Attachment functionality]

8: Environmental performance – Forests 9: Environmental performance – Water	
security	
 10: Environmental performance – Plastics 	
 11: Environmental performance – Biodiversity 	
 12: Environmental performance – Financial services 	
 All data points in CDP response 	

[Add row]

Disclosure module and data ve	rified and/or assured (column 2)
Introduction	Environmental performance – Forests
 Facility geolocation data [W only], [SC only] 	 Ecosystem restoration and long-term protection projects
 All data points in module 1 	Origins of sourced volumes
 Other data point in module 1, please specify 	Traceability data
	All data points in module 8
Identification, assessment, and management of dependencies, impacts, risks, and opportunities	 Other data point in module 8, please specify
Classification of tailings dams [W only], [MM/CO only]	Environmental performance – Water security
 Identification of priority locations [F, W, B only] 	 Emissions to water in the reporting year
Identification, assessment, and management processes	 Facilities with water-related dependencies, impacts, risks and
All data points in module 2	opportunities
Other data point in module 2, please specify	 Revenue associated with products containing hazardous substances
Disclosure of risks and opportunities	 Volume withdrawn from areas with water stress (megaliters)
• Financial effect of environmental opportunities [CC, F, W, B	Water consumption – total volume
only]	Water discharges- total volumes
 Financial effect of environmental risks 	 Water discharges – volumes by destination
 Risk exposure by river basin [W only] 	Water discharges – volumes by treatment method
All data points in module 3	 Water intensities of products and services
• Other data point in module 3, please specify	 Water withdrawals – total volumes
6 a.v. ann an a a	 Water withdrawals – volumes by source
	 All data points in module 9
• Environmental policies [CC, F, W, B only]	Other data point in module 9, please specify
All data points in module 4	
• Other data point in module 4, please specify	Environmental performance – Plastics
Business strategy	 Circularity potential of plastic packaging
 Internal pricing of environmental externalities [CC_W only] 	 End-of-life management pathways
Scenario analysis [CC, F, W only]	• Raw material content - durable goods/products and/or durable
Supplier compliance with environmental requirements ICC. F	components
W, P only]	Raw material content - plastic packaging
Sustainable finance taxonomy aligned spending/revenue [CC	Raw material content - plastic polymers
only]	Waste generated
 Transition plans [CC only] 	All data points in module 10
 All data points in module 5 	• Other data point in module 10, please specify
 Other data point in module 5, please specify 	
	Environmental performance – Biodiversity
Environmental performance – Consolidation approach	 Area associated with biodiversity offsets [M-B only]
 Consolidation approach 	 Area rehabilitated in the reporting year [M-B only]

All data points in module 6	 Artisanal and small-scale mining (ASM) operations active in
Other data point in module 6, please specify	your mining project area or their area of influence [M-B only]
	 Criteria for Biodiversity Action Plans (BAPs) [M-B only]
Environmental performance – Climate change	 Mining projects [M-B only]
 Allocation of emissions to customers [SC only] 	Potential impact of activities on areas important for biodiversity
 Base year emissions 	[M-B only]
Carbon removals	 Proximity of activities to areas important for biodiversity [M-B arkil
 Electricity/Steam/Heat/Cooling consumption 	oniy] • Total area rehabilitated IM D ankil
 Electricity/Steam/Heat/Cooling generation 	
 Emissions breakdown by business division 	 Total area restored to date to mitigate significant impacts on biodiversity [M-B only]
 Emissions breakdown by country/area 	All data points in module 11
 Emissions reduction initiatives/activities 	• Other data point in module 11, please specify
 Energy attribute certificates (EACs) 	• Other data point in module 11, please specify
 Fuel consumption 	
Methane emissions	Environmental performance – Financial services
Product footprint	 Alignment with a sustainable finance taxonomy
 Progress against targets 	 Products and services footprint verification
 Project-based carbon credits 	 Progress against targets
 Renewable Electricity/Steam/Heat/Cooling consumption 	 All data points in module 12
 Renewable Electricity/Steam/Heat/Cooling generation 	 Other data point in module 12, please specify
 Renewable fuel consumption 	
 Target-setting methodology 	
Waste data	
• Year on year change in absolute emissions (Scope 1 and 2)	
 Year on year change in absolute emissions (Scope 3) 	
• Year on year change in emissions intensity (Scope 1 and 2)	
 Year on year change in emissions intensity (Scope 3) 	
 Year on year change in land use change emissions 	
 All data points in module 7 	
 Other data point in module 7, please specify 	

Verification/assurance standard (column 3)		
General standards	Climate change-related standards	
• AA1000AS	ABNT NBR ISO 14064-3:2007 (Associação Brasileira de	
 Aluminium Stewardship Initiative (ASW) 	Normas Técnicas)	
 ASAE 3000 [CC and W only] 	 Advanced technologies promotion Subsidy Scheme with 	
 Attestation Standards (AT-C Section 105 & 210/205) 	Emission reduction Target (ASSET)	
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)	 Airport Carbon Accreditation (ACA) des Airports Council International Europe 	
Compagnie Nationale des Commissaires aux Comptes	 Alberta Specified Gas Emitters Regulation 	
(CNCC)	• ASAE 3410	
 CRevR 6 Bestyrkande av hållbarhetsredovisning (RevR 6 Assurance of Sustainability) 	 Australia National Greenhouse and Energy Regulations (NGER Act) [CC only] 	
CSAE 3000 [CC and W only]	California Mandatory GHG Reporting Regulations (Californian	
DNV Verisustain Protocol / Verification Protocol for	Air Resources Board regulations)	
Sustainability Reporting	• Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook:	
 Dutch Standard 3000A 	Assurance Section 5025	
• IDW AsS 821: IDW Assurance Standard: Generally Accepted	Carbon Trust Standard	
Assurance Principles for the Audit or Review of Reports on	Chicago Climate Exchange verification standard [CC only]	
Sustainability Issues [CC and W only]	Climate Action Reserve	
International Sustainability and Carbon Certification (ISCC)	 Corporate GHG Verification Guidelines from ERT 	
[CC and F only]	• CSAE 3410	
	Earthcheck Certified	
ISAE 3410, Assurance Engagements on Greenhouse Gas Statements	 ERM GHG Performance Data Assurance Methodology 	
BoyPe Dreadure for ecourance of eucloinshilling report from	 ERT Standard "Corporate Greenhouse Gas Verification" 	
Far, the Swedish auditors professional body		

	-
Roundtable on Sustainable Biomaterials (RSB) [CC and F	IDW PS 821: IDW IDW Prüfungsstandard: Grundsätze
oniy] • SGS Sustainability Report Assurance	Berichtenim Bereich der Nachhaltigkeit
Standard 3810N Assurance engagements relating to	IRECS (International Renewable Energy Certificate services)
sustainability reports of the Royal Netherlands Institute of	• ISO 14064-1
Registered Accountants	• ISO 14064-3
 SURE (Sustainable Resources Verification Scheme) [CC and F only] 	 JVETS (Japanese Voluntary Emissions Trading Scheme) Guideline for Verification
 Sustainable Biomass Program (SBP) [CC and F only] 	 Korean GHG and energy target management system
 Verified Carbon Standard (VCS) [CC and F only] 	NMX-SAA-14064-3-IMNC: Instituto Mexicano de Normalización
 Other general verification standard, please specify 	y Certificación A.C
	Saitama Prefecture Target-Setting Emissions Trading Program
Water-related standards	 Spanish Institute of Registered Auditors (ICJCE)
 Alliance for Water Stewardship certification 	• SSAE 3000
 Other water verification standard, please specify 	 State of Israel Ministry of Environmental Protection,
Forests-related standards	VERIFICATION OF GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND
Forest Stewardship Council (ESC)	EMISSIONS REDUCTION IN ISRAEL GUIDANCE DOCUMENT
IBE data verification protocol	FOR CONDUCTING VERIFICATIONS, PIOCESS A
Programme for the Endorsement of Forest Certification	• Swiss Cillinate CO2 label • Thei Creenhouse Coe Management Organization (TCO)
(PEFC)	The Climate Registry's General Verification Protocol (GVP)
ProTerra	The Chinate Registry's General Vehication (GVI) Totocol (GVI)
Rainforest Alliance	
 Round Table on Responsible Soy (RTRS) 	Tottu elimate positive Tottu elimate positive
Roundtable on Sustainable Palm Oil (RSPO)	Tokyo Emissions Trading Scheme
 Sustainable Forestry Initiative (SFI) 	Verification under the EU Emissions Trading Scheme (EU ETS)
 Other forests verification standard, please specify 	Directive and EU ETS related national implementation laws
	Other climate change verification standard, please specify
	Plastics-related standards
	 Plastic Waste Reduction Standard
	• ISO 15270:2008
	 SCS Recycled Content Certification
	 Other plastics verification standard, please specify
	Biodiversity-related standards
	• Plan Vivo
	Other biodiversity verification standard, please specify

Requested	Disclosure module and data verified and/or assured (column 2)
content	• Select the questionnaire module in which the verified/assured data is reported.
	 For each module selected, indicate the data points from your CDP response that have been verified/assured by a third party.
	• If the verified/assured data points are not listed, select "Other data point in, please specify" and provide the relevant data point.
	Verification standard (column 3)
	• This column requests the verification standard against which the verification/assurance process has been undertaken. It does not refer to the reporting or calculation standard.
	• The options provided are not a comprehensive list of all acceptable environmental- related verification/assurance standards. Inclusion here does not mean that CDP has made a judgement about the standards or is promoting the use of any particular standard above another.
	 Refer to the following criteria when considering if a verification standard is credible: Relevance: The standard should specify that it relates to a third-party audit or verification process; for a program-related standard, third-party verification should be specified as part of the program compliance.
	should be specified as part of the program compliance.

	 Competency: The standard should include a statement regarding the competency of verifiers; where it is a program and verification parties are stipulated, competency is assumed to be determined by the second party and therefore need not be explicit in the standard. Independence: The standard should contain a requirement that ensures that impartiality is maintained in cases where the same external organization compiles and verifies a responding organization's inventory. Terminology: The standard should specify the meaning of any terms used for the level of the finding (e.g. limited assurance; reasonable assurance). Methodology: The standard should describe a methodology for the verification that includes the verification of the process and/or system controls and the data. Availability: The standard should be available for scrutiny. Further details of the third-party verification/assurance process (column 4) You may use this column to provide additional details about the verification/assurance process such as: How often the verification/assurance is performed; The scope it encompasses (i.e., whether it applies to your direct operations only, to your upstream/downstream value chain; or only to selected regions, facilities, and products); The level of insurance the verification provides (i.e., Limited assurance, Moderate assurance, Reasonable assurance, or High assurance); and Any parts of the data point selected in column 2 that are excluded from the verification/assurance of target-related details, provide any relevant target reference numbers.
Requested	Note for financial services companies:
content - [sector]	Disclose the verification of data in module 12: Environmental performance – Financial
(if applicable)	services, other than data disclosed in 12.1.1 and/or 12.1.3.
	The verification of financed emissions as per 12.1.1 and/or 12.1.3 should be disclosed in 7.9.3.
Additional	• For further details on good practice for verification and assurance refer to <u>CDP's guide on</u>
information	the business benefits of third-party verification of environmental data.
	 There is no requirement for data to be verified twice, as such data that has already been verified for one scheme/reporting effort can normally be used for another. Check the specifications of your verification body/evidence to ensure this is the case

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue	Question level	All
(Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All sectors (+M-B)

Further Information

(13.2) Use this field to provide any additional information or context that you feel is relevant to your organization's response. Please note that this field is optional and is not scored.

Question details	
Change from last year	No change (2023 C-FI, F-FI, W-FI)

1	2
Additional information	Attachment (optional)
Text field [maximum of 10,000 characters]	[Attachment functionality]
[Fixed row]	

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	All
Sector	Question level	All

Sign off

(13.3) Provide the following information for the person that has signed off (approved) your CDP response.

Question details		
Change from last year	No change (2023 C16.1, F17.1, W11.1)	
Rationale	CDP asks organizations to identify the job title and corresponding job category of the person signing off (approving) the CDP response. This information indicates to investors where in the corporate structure direct responsibility is being taken for the response and the information contained therein.	
Response options	Please complete the following table:	

1	2
Job title	Corresponding job category
Text field [maximum 200 characters]	Select from: • Board chair • Director on board • Chief Executive Officer (CEO) • Chief Financial Officer (CFO) • Chief Operating Officer (COO) • Chief Procurement Officer (CPO) • Chief Risk Officer (CRO) • Chief Sustainability Officer (CSO)

Other C-Suite Officer
President
General Counsel
 Business unit manager
Energy manager
 Environmental, health and safety manager
 Environment/Sustainability manager
Facilities manager
 Process operation manager
 Procurement manager
Public affairs manager
Risk manager
 Other, please specify

Requested content	 Job title (column 1) Enter the job title of the person who has signed off on this CDP response. Note that this question asks about the position and not about the name of the individual holding this position. Do not include names or any other personal data in your response.
	 Corresponding job category (column 2) Select the job category that most closely corresponds with the job title provided in column 1 "Job title". The job category selected should clearly correspond with the title given in column 1 "Job title". If you select "Other, please specify", provide a label for the corresponding job category.

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate authority	Capital Markets	
Environmental Issue (Theme)	Question level	All
Sector	Question level	All

Water Action Hub

(13.4) Please indicate your consent for CDP to share contact details with the Pacific Institute to support content for its Water Action Hub website

Question details		
Change from last year	No change (Submission page)	
Rationale	The CEO Water Mandate Water Action Hub is an online platform that catalogues water stewardship projects around the world and enables interested parties to connect and work together to solve local and regional water challenges.	
	CDP will share public response data from 3.1.1 with the Pacific Institute to be reviewed as potential water stewardship projects for upload to the Water Action Hub website. Only responses to the following datapoints will be considered for upload:	
	 For the Water environmental issue: Country/Area where the risk occurs; River basin where the risk occurs; Primary response to risk; Description of response. CDP's Privacy Policy can be found <u>here</u>. 	
Response options	Select from:	
	 Yes, CDP may share our Disclosure Submission Lead contact details with the Pacific Institute 	
	• No	

Requested contentGeneral• If you select "Yes, CDP may share the Pacific Institute", CDP will provi the CEO Water Mandate's Water A shared and reviewed as potential w Action Hub website. This will also a if your response data includes a pro- Hub. Your contact information will b	our Disclosure Submission Lead contact details with ide your public response data from one question to action Hub. Only your response to 3.1.1 will be vater stewardship projects for upload to the Water allow the Pacific Institute to contact your organization oject with potential for inclusion on the Water Action be kept confidential.
--	---

Authoring notes		
Tags		
Corporate	Capital Markets	
authority		
Environmental	Question level	W
Issue (Theme)		
Sector	Question level	All